
 

   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

AGENDA  
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING 
October 23, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 
 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

3.  Approve minutes from the September 25, 2019 meeting. 
 

4.  Consider and take possible action to adopt the December 31, 2018 Valuation Report 
and contribution rates for the period July 1, 2020—June 30, 2021. 

5.  Consider and take possible action to amend the Retirement Board’s Regulations. 
 

6.  Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with 
LRWL Inc. for pension administration system consulting services. 
 

7.  Review of risk diversifying sub-portfolio.  
      a.    Report from staff 
      b.    Presentation from AFL-CIO Housing Investment Trust 
 

8.  Miscellaneous 
a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



MINUTES 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

September 25, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

Conference Center, 1st Floor 

1220 Concord Avenue 

Concord, California 

Present: Candace Andersen, Donnie Finley, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay 

Kwon, David MacDonald, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Todd Smithey and Russell 

Watts 

Absent: Mike Sloan 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer; 

Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally 

Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry 

Gudino, Accounting Manager and Son Lu, IT Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Harvey Leiderman Reed Smith LLP 

Eileen Neill Verus Investments 

Jay Warner Artisan Partners 

Niall Paul TT International 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

Andersen and Pigeon were present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957. 

The Board moved into open session. 

3. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/23/19Agenda Item#3



Page 2 

September 25, 2019 

 

 

4. Review of report on Growth Sub-portfolio, including managers 

Price reviewed the role of Growth in CCCERA’s portfolio.  He also reviewed CCCERA’s current 

asset allocation and performance in 1, 3, 5, and 10-year increments noting we are meeting 

expectations as of June 30, 2019. 

Jay Warner, Artisan Global Opportunities and Niall Paul, TT Global Emerging Markets joined in the 

investment manager discussion. 

Paul reviewed TT’s goals in emerging markets and their hedging philosophy. Warner reviewed 

Artisan’s philosophy noting they are bottom up stock pickers. 

Paul provided an update on TT International noting they have been exploring partnerships for the 

past few years to help smooth the transition when someone retires. He reported they continue to run 

on a stand-alone basis and expect it to be business as usual.  

Andersen and Pigeon were no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

5. Presentation of the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association employer audit 

report 

Dutkiewicz presented the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association employer audit 

report noting there were no follow up items. 

6. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the Siris Capital 2019 Annual LP 

Conference, November 14-15, 2019, New York, NY. (Yes: Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, 

Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

b. No action was taken on this item: 2020 Aether Annual Meeting, Aether Investment Partners, 

LLC, January 22-23, 2020, Denver, CO.  

 

7. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 

 

Strohl reported we have completed our move and noted the next Board meeting will be held in 

the Board Room at 1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350.  Holcombe commented on how well the 

move went and congratulated staff. 

 

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report – 

 

Leiderman commented on Assembly Bill 5 that was just signed by Gov. Newsom. He stated the 

bill tightens up the definition of what an independent contractor is and noted he believes this 

will not impact the 1937 Act systems. 

 

(c) Trustees’ comments -  

 

None 

 

 



Page 3 

September 25, 2019 

 

 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, 

Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

 

 

 

 

             

Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 

 

 



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: October 23, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:     Consider and take possible action to adopt the December 31, 2018 Valuation Report 
       and Contribution Rates for the period July 1, 2020—June 30, 2021. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
Segal Consulting has prepared the December 31, 2018 valuation report. The employer and 
member contribution rates shown in this report are effective July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 

Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to adopt the December 31, 2018 Valuation Report and 
Contribution Rates for the period July 1, 2020—June 30, 2021. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/23/19Agenda Item#4



Th
is

 re
po

rt 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

at
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f R

et
ire

m
en

t t
o 

as
si

st
 in

 a
dm

in
is

te
rin

g 
th

e 
Fu

nd
. T

hi
s 

va
lu

at
io

n 
re

po
rt 

m
ay

 n
ot

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

be
 c

op
ie

d 
or

 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

 in
 a

ny
 fo

rm
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f R

et
ire

m
en

t a
nd

 m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tie

s 
in

 it
s 

en
tir

et
y,

 u
nl

es
s 

ex
pr

es
sl

y 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

Se
ga

l. 
Th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

is
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ur
po

se
s.

 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 ©

 2
01

9 
by

 T
he

 S
eg

al
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

s 
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 



  56
00

64
4v

4/
05

33
7.

00
2 

18
0 

H
ow

ar
d 

St
re

et
  S

ui
te

 1
10

0 
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

, C
A 

94
10

5-
61

47
 

T 
41

5.
26

3.
82

00
   

w
w

w
.s

eg
al

co
.c

om
 

 O
ct

ob
er

 1
6,

 2
01

9 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

12
00

 C
on

co
rd

 A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 3

00
 

C
on

co
rd

, C
A

 9
45

20
 

D
ea

r B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

rs
: 

W
e 

ar
e 

pl
ea

se
d 

to
 su

bm
it 

th
is

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 It
 su

m
m

ar
iz

es
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l d

at
a 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 a
na

ly
ze

s t
he

 p
re

ce
di

ng
 y

ea
r's

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e,

 a
nd

 e
st

ab
lis

he
s t

he
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r f
is

ca
l y

ea
r 2

02
0-

20
21

. 

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 g

en
er

al
ly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

t t
he

 re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

 B
oa

rd
 to

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
ad

m
in

is
te

rin
g 

th
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 T

he
 c

en
su

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 w
hi

ch
 o

ur
 c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

ba
se

d 
w

as
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

st
af

f o
f t

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 T

ha
t a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
is

 g
ra

te
fu

lly
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
ed

. 

Th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

of
 Jo

hn
 M

on
ro

e,
 A

SA
, M

A
A

A
 a

nd
 E

nr
ol

le
d 

A
ct

ua
ry

. W
e 

ar
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 

A
m

er
ic

an
 A

ca
de

m
y 

of
 A

ct
ua

rie
s a

nd
 w

e 
m

ee
t t

he
 Q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

St
an

da
rd

s o
f t

he
 A

m
er

ic
an

 A
ca

de
m

y 
of

 A
ct

ua
rie

s t
o 

re
nd

er
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

op
in

io
n 

he
re

in
. T

o 
th

e 
be

st
 o

f o
ur

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

in
 th

is
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
te

. F
ur

th
er

, i
n 

ou
r 

op
in

io
n,

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
s a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

ar
e 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 a
nd

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 

W
e 

lo
ok

 fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
is

 re
po

rt 
at

 y
ou

r n
ex

t m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

to
 a

ns
w

er
in

g 
an

y 
qu

es
tio

ns
. 

Si
nc

er
el

y,
 

Se
ga

l C
on

su
lti

ng
, a

 M
em

be
r o

f T
he

 S
eg

al
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. 

 B
y:

  
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

 
Pa

ul
 A

ng
el

o,
 F

SA
, M

A
A

A
, F

C
A

, E
A

 
Jo

hn
 M

on
ro

e,
 A

SA
, M

A
A

A
, E

A
 

Se
ni

or
 V

ic
e 

Pr
es

id
en

t a
nd

 A
ct

ua
ry

 
V

ic
e 

Pr
es

id
en

t a
nd

 A
ct

ua
ry

 



  Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
A

ct
ua

ri
al

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8

 Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
Pu

rp
os

e 
an

d 
Ba

si
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 Is

su
es

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

6 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 K

ey
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 9
 

Im
po

rta
nt

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Ab
ou

t A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

ns
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 1

3 
Se

ct
io

n 
2:

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
R

es
ul

ts
 

A.
 

M
em

be
r D

at
a .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
5 

B.
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

19
 

C
. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
22

 
D

. 
O

th
er

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 2
7 

E.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
28

 
F.

 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
29

 
G

. 
Fu

nd
ed

 S
ta

tu
s 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4
2 

H
. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
4 

I. 
Vo

la
til

ity
 R

at
io

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
5 

J.
 

R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

t .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

7 

 
Se

ct
io

n 
3:

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
Ex

hi
bi

t A
 –

 T
ab

le
 o

f P
la

n 
C

ov
er

ag
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 5
0 

Ex
hi

bi
t B

 –
 M

em
be

rs
 in

 A
ct

iv
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
...

 6
2 

Ex
hi

bi
t C

 –
 R

et
ire

d 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

as
 o

f 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
75

 
Ex

hi
bi

t D
 –

 R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 M
em

be
r D

at
a 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
82

 
Ex

hi
bi

t E
 –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
St

at
em

en
t o

f I
nc

om
e 

an
d 

Ex
pe

ns
es

 o
n 

a 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 B

as
is

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 8

3 
Ex

hi
bi

t F
 –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
St

at
em

en
t o

f P
la

n 
As

se
ts

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 8
4 

Ex
hi

bi
t G

 –
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 T

ot
al

 A
llo

ca
te

d 
R

es
er

ve
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
85

 
Ex

hi
bi

t H
 –

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 F

un
d 

Th
ro

ug
h 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
86

 
Ex

hi
bi

t I
 –

 T
ab

le
 o

f A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Ba

se
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 8
7 

Ex
hi

bi
t J

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
of

 U
AA

L 
Ba

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 ...
...

...
...

...
. 1

00
 

Ex
hi

bi
t K

 –
 D

ef
in

iti
on

 o
f P

en
si

on
 T

er
m

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
10

2 
Se

ct
io

n 
4:

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
B

as
is

 
Ex

hi
bi

t I
 –

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 M
et

ho
ds

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 1
06

 
Ex

hi
bi

t I
I –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 P
la

n 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

12
8 

Ex
hi

bi
t I

II 
– 

M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
R

at
es

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

13
6 

Ex
hi

bi
t I

V 
– 

R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

16
2 

Ex
hi

bi
t V

 –
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
an

d 
Em

pl
oy

er
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
63

 
Ex

hi
bi

t V
I –

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
as

 o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 1

65
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
4  

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

P
ur

po
se

 a
nd

 B
as

is
 

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 S

eg
al

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 (“

Se
ga

l”
) t

o 
pr

es
en

t a
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(“
th

e 
Pl

an
”)

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8.
 T

he
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

w
as

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

en
ef

its
. T

he
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 sh
ow

n 
in

 th
is

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fo
r o

th
er

 p
ur

po
se

s. 
In

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r, 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s h
er

ei
n 

ar
e 

no
t n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 P
la

n 
as

se
ts

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t 
of

 se
ttl

in
g 

th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 a

cc
ru

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

.  

Fu
tu

re
 a

ct
ua

ria
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 fr

om
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

du
e 

to
 su

ch
 fa

ct
or

s a
s t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 p

la
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
di

ff
er

in
g 

fro
m

 th
at

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 o
r d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
; c

ha
ng

es
 in

 e
co

no
m

ic
 o

r 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
; i

nc
re

as
es

 o
r d

ec
re

as
es

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 n

at
ur

al
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 u

se
d 

fo
r t

he
se

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
; 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pl

an
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
r a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

. 

Th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

 th
is

 re
po

rt 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
: 


 

Th
e 

be
ne

fit
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
f t

he
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n,

 a
s a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d;

 


 

Th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s o
f c

ov
er

ed
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, i

na
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
, a

nd
 re

tir
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s a
s o

f 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n;
 


 

Th
e 

as
se

ts
 o

f t
he

 P
la

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n;
 


 

Ec
on

om
ic

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
fu

tu
re

 sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 fo

r t
he

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
va

lu
at

io
n;

 


 

O
th

er
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

em
pl

oy
ee

 te
rm

in
at

io
ns

, r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

de
at

h,
 e

tc
. a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

fo
r t

he
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 


 

Th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

po
lic

y 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d.
 

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 g

en
er

al
 g

oa
ls

 o
f a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

hi
ch

 fu
lly

 fu
nd

 th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s, 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
, a

s a
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
m

ai
n 

as
 le

ve
l a

s p
os

si
bl

e 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
. A

nn
ua

l a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

ns
 m

ea
su

re
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 

to
w

ar
d 

th
is

 g
oa

l, 
as

 w
el

l a
s t

es
t t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
5  

In
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l m
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. O

ur
 c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
m

em
be

r d
at

a 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 u
s b

y 
th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s s

ta
ff.

 T
hi

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ha

s n
ot

 b
ee

n 
au

di
te

d 
by

 u
s, 

bu
t i

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

, b
ot

h 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 a
nd

 w
ith

 
pr

io
r y

ea
r’

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n.
 

Th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
re

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 a
s a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 T

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s e

m
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

s p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r b

ot
h 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 
a 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 a

m
or

tiz
e 

an
y 

un
fu

nd
ed

 o
r o

ve
rfu

nd
ed

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
cc

ru
ed

 li
ab

ili
tie

s. 
In

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 a

pp
lie

d 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

on
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

26
, 2

01
4,

 a
nd

 m
os

t r
ec

en
tly

 a
m

en
de

d 
on

 M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9.
 D

et
ai

ls
 o

f t
he

 fu
nd

in
g 

po
lic

y 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 
Se

ct
io

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

I o
n 

pa
ge

 1
16

. 

A
 sc

he
du

le
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
ba

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

3,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I o

n 
pa

ge
 8

7.
 A

 g
ra

ph
ic

al
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

(U
A

A
L)

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
ba

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

3,
 E

xh
ib

it 
J 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
0.

  

Th
e 

ra
te

s c
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

fo
r t

he
 fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r t
ha

t e
xt

en
ds

 fr
om

 Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
0 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

1.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
6  

S
ig

ni
fi

ca
nt

 I
ss

ue
s 

1.
 

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
hi

s v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

fle
ct

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

s r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
by

 S
eg

al
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

fo
r t

he
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 T

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 w
er

e 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
in

 o
ur

 A
ct

ua
ria

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y 
an

d 
ar

e 
al

so
 o

ut
lin

ed
 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

I o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t. 
Th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

 o
f 1

.2
6%

 o
f 

pa
yr

ol
l a

nd
 a

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
m

em
be

r r
at

e 
of

 0
.0

3%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll.

 O
f t

he
 1

.2
6%

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

, 0
.4

6%
 is

 
du

e 
to

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 th

e 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 0

.8
0%

 is
 d

ue
 to

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 th

e 
U

A
A

L 
ra

te
. 

2.
 

Th
e 

ra
tio

 o
f t

he
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s t

o 
th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 8

8.
5%

 to
 8

9.
3%

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f 
th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s t

o 
th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 9

0.
8%

 to
 8

4.
2%

. T
he

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s U
A

A
L 

(w
hi

ch
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
V

al
ua

tio
n 

V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s)

 h
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 fr

om
 $

1.
1 

bi
lli

on
 to

 $
1.

0 
bi

lli
on

. T
hi

s d
ec

re
as

e 
is

 m
ai

nl
y 

du
e 

to
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 p

ay
in

g 
do

w
n 

a 
po

rti
on

 o
f t

he
 U

A
A

L 
an

d 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, o
ffs

et
 to

 so
m

e 
de

gr
ee

 b
y 

an
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
on

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ue
 (i

.e
. a

fte
r s

m
oo

th
in

g)
 le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
7.

00
%

 a
ss

um
ed

 ra
te

, a
nd

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
O

LA
 

in
cr

ea
se

s f
or

 re
tir

ee
s a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s. 

A
 re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s U

A
A

L 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 E

xh
ib

it 
E.

 
3.

 
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 ra

te
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 a
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r r
at

es
 o

r m
em

be
r 

su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 ra

te
s)

 h
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 fr

om
 3

6.
07

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

to
 3

5.
73

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll.

 T
hi

s d
ec

re
as

e 
is

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

 in
 m

em
be

r d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s o
n 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t, 
pa

rti
al

ly
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
re

tu
rn

 o
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ue
 (i

.e
. a

fte
r s

m
oo

th
in

g)
 le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
7.

00
%

 a
ss

um
ed

 ra
te

 a
nd

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
s f

or
 

re
tir

ee
s a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s. 

A
 c

om
pl

et
e 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s a
gg

re
ga

te
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

F.
 

Se
pa

ra
te

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 sh

ow
n 

fo
r m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(n

on
-P

EP
R

A
 

m
em

be
rs

) a
nd

 o
n 

or
 a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

3 
(P

EP
R

A
 m

em
be

rs
). 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s s

ho
w

n 
in

 
Se

ct
io

n 
1 

ar
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f t
he

ir 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
. A

 d
et

ai
le

d 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

F.
  

4.
 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

m
em

be
r r

at
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
ha

s d
ec

re
as

ed
 fr

om
 1

2.
03

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

to
 1

1.
97

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll.

 A
 c

om
pl

et
e 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s a
gg

re
ga

te
 m

em
be

r r
at

e 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
F.

 
Th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
m

em
be

r r
at

es
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

III
 o

f t
hi

s r
ep

or
t. 

Th
ey

 a
re

 sh
ow

n 
by

 c
os

t g
ro

up
. 

5.
 

Th
e 

to
ta

l u
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
ne

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t l

os
s a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is
 a

bo
ut

 $
51

7 
m

ill
io

n 
as

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 a
n 

un
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 n
et

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ai

n 
of

 $
19

5 
m

ill
io

n 
in

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 T

hi
s d

ef
er

re
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t l

os
s o

f $
51

7 
m

ill
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 in
 

th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s f

or
 fu

nd
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
 in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fe
w

 y
ea

rs
 a

s s
ho

w
n 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

B.
 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 1

06
 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 4

3 
Re

f: 
Pg

. 2
8 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 3

0 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 3

2 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 3

1 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 2

0 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
7  

Th
e 

ne
t d

ef
er

re
d 

lo
ss

es
 o

f $
51

7 
m

ill
io

n 
re

pr
es

en
t a

bo
ut

 6
.3

%
 o

f t
he

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s. 
U

nl
es

s o
ffs

et
 b

y 
fu

tu
re

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ga
in

s o
r o

th
er

 fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e,

 th
e 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 $
51

7 
m

ill
io

n 
m

ar
ke

t l
os

se
s i

s e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s f

ut
ur

e 
fu

nd
ed

 ra
tio

 a
nd

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. T
hi

s p
ot

en
tia

l i
m

pa
ct

 m
ay

 b
e 

ill
us

tra
te

d 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
a.

 
If 

th
e 

ne
t d

ef
er

re
d 

lo
ss

es
 w

er
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 in

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ss
et

s, 
th

e 
fu

nd
ed

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

w
ou

ld
 

de
cr

ea
se

 fr
om

 8
9.

3%
%

 to
 8

4.
0%

. 
Fo

r c
om

pa
ris

on
 p

ur
po

se
s, 

if 
al

l t
he

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ga

in
s i

n 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ha

d 
be

en
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

fu
nd

ed
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fro
m

 8
8.

5%
 to

 9
0.

6%
. 

b.
 

If 
th

e 
ne

t d
ef

er
re

d 
lo

ss
es

 w
er

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
ss

et
s, 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 w
ou

ld
 in

cr
ea

se
 fr

om
 3

5.
73

%
 to

 a
bo

ut
 4

0.
15

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll.

 
Fo

r c
om

pa
ris

on
 p

ur
po

se
s, 

if 
al

l t
he

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ga

in
s i

n 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ha

d 
be

en
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 3

6.
1%

 to
 3

4.
3%

 
of

 p
ay

ro
ll.

 
6.

 
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
po

rt 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 o

f t
ha

t d
at

e.
 C

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

as
se

ts
 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 to

 th
at

 d
at

e,
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 th

ey
 e

xi
st

, a
re

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
ed

. D
ec

lin
es

 in
 a

ss
et

 v
al

ue
s w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l c

os
t o

f 
th

e 
pl

an
, w

hi
le

 in
cr

ea
se

s w
ill

 d
ec

re
as

e 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l c

os
t o

f t
he

 p
la

n.
 

7.
 

Th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

fle
ct

s t
he

 $
25

4,
00

0 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 S

an
 R

am
on

 V
al

le
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t t

ow
ar

ds
 th

ei
r 

U
A

A
L.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
C

C
C

ER
A

’s
 fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y,

 th
is

 a
m

ou
nt

 w
ill

 b
e 

am
or

tiz
ed

 a
s a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

 o
f p

ay
 (c

re
di

t) 
ov

er
 a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 

ei
gh

te
en

 y
ea

rs
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
va

lu
at

io
n 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 U
A

A
L 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. 
8.

 
Th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 B
oa

rd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

a 
ne

w
 A

ct
ua

ria
l S

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

N
o.

 5
1 

(A
SO

P 
51

) r
eg

ar
di

ng
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
A

SO
P 

51
 is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 C

C
C

ER
A

’s
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n.
 A

SO
P 

51
 re

qu
ire

s a
ct

ua
rie

s t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

as
se

ss
 ri

sk
s t

ha
t “

m
ay

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 b

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 to
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

pl
an

’s
 fu

tu
re

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

di
tio

n”
. E

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f k

ey
 

ris
ks

 li
st

ed
 th

at
 a

re
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 re

le
va

nt
 to

 C
C

C
ER

A
 a

re
 a

ss
et

/li
ab

ili
ty

 m
is

m
at

ch
 ri

sk
, i

nv
es

tm
en

t r
is

k,
 a

nd
 lo

ng
ev

ity
 ri

sk
. T

he
 

st
an

da
rd

 a
ls

o 
re

qu
ire

s a
n 

ac
tu

ar
y 

to
 c

on
si

de
r i

f t
he

re
 is

 a
ny

 o
ng

oi
ng

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ris
k 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
, h

ow
ev

er
 it

 d
oe

s n
ot

 re
qu

ire
 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
y 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

r a
bi

lit
y 

or
 w

ill
in

gn
es

s o
f c

on
tri

bu
tin

g 
en

tit
ie

s t
o 

m
ak

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

he
n 

du
e,

 n
or

 d
oe

s i
t 

re
qu

ire
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
to

 a
ss

es
s t

he
 li

ke
lih

oo
d 

or
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s o

f f
ut

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 la
w

.  
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y’
s i

ni
tia

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t c

an
 b

e 
st

ric
tly

 a
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

 a
bo

ut
 p

ot
en

tia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
fu

tu
re

 re
su

lts
, b

ut
 it

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
nu

m
er

ic
al

 d
em

on
st

ra
tio

ns
 w

he
re

 in
fo

rm
at

iv
e.

 T
he

 a
ct

ua
ry

 is
 a

ls
o 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 c
on

si
de

r a
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
as

 to
 w

he
th

er
 a

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
r r

is
k 

re
po

rt 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 
be

ne
fic

ia
l f

or
 th

e 
in

te
nd

ed
 u

se
r i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
ex

am
in

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r f

in
an

ci
al

 ri
sk

s. 
W

he
n 

m
ak

in
g 

th
at

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n,

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
y 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 su
ch

 fa
ct

or
s a

s t
he

 p
la

n’
s d

es
ig

n,
 ri

sk
 p

ro
fil

e,
 m

at
ur

ity
, s

iz
e,

 fu
nd

ed
 st

at
us

, a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n,

 c
as

h 
flo

w
, 

po
ss

ib
le

 in
so

lv
en

cy
 a

nd
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

ar
ke

t c
on

di
tio

ns
.  

Re
f: 

Pg
. 4

7 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
8  

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 a

re
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

a 
fix

ed
 se

t o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 d

at
a 

as
 o

f a
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
da

te
, t

he
re

 is
 ri

sk
 th

at
 

em
er

gi
ng

 re
su

lts
 m

ay
 d

iff
er

, p
er

ha
ps

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

, a
s a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 fl

ui
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 n
ot

 e
xa

ct
ly

 tr
ac

k 
cu

rre
nt

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. 
Th

is
 p

ot
en

tia
l d

iv
er

ge
nc

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
en

ga
ge

d 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l r

an
ge

 o
f t

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
f r

is
k 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s f

ut
ur

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

co
nd

iti
on

, b
ut

 h
av

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 b
rie

f d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 k

ey
 ri

sk
s t

ha
t m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t t
he

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

J.
 A

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 ri

sk
s t

ai
lo

re
d 

to
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
in

te
re

st
s o

r c
on

ce
rn

s o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

w
ith

 a
 b

et
te

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
in

he
re

nt
 ri

sk
s a

nd
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 T

hi
s a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
ou

ld
 fu

rth
er

 d
is

cu
ss

 a
nd

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
ris

ks
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 to
 C

C
C

ER
A

 su
ch

 a
s d

et
ai

le
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
ke

y 
ev

en
ts

, g
ro

w
in

g 
pl

an
 m

at
ur

ity
, h

ei
gh

te
ne

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 to
 a

ss
et

 a
nd

 li
ab

ili
ty

 c
ha

ng
es

, a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 to
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

ut
ur

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

se
le

ct
ed

 sc
en

ar
io

 o
r s

tre
ss

 te
st

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
9  

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 R

es
ul

ts
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 

To
ta

l R
at

e 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

(1
)  

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

To
ta

l R
at

e 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

  
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

(1
)  

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

Av
er

ag
e 

Em
pl

oy
er

  
G

en
er

al
 

 
 

 
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

:(1
) 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
– 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 4
) 

31
.1

1%
 

$7
,7

30
  

31
.1

0%
 

$7
,6

06
  

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
– 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 5
) 

26
.4

2%
 

 1
72

,3
33

  
26

.3
6%

 
16

5,
29

1 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

– 
C

en
tra

l C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
49

.8
6%

 
 1

7,
67

2 
 

49
.5

7%
 

17
,0

28
 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
– 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
42

.2
2%

 
 2

,4
20

  
41

.9
1%

 
2,

34
0 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
– 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
32

.8
0%

 
 1

,8
85

  
31

.8
2%

 
1,

63
7 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
– 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 1
 a

nd
 4

) 
15

.6
0%

 
 1

47
  

16
.5

9%
 

14
1 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r A

 a
nd

 D
) 

70
.3

2%
 

$4
1,

86
0 

 
71

.9
4%

 
$4

3,
93

2 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

– 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 a

nd
 E

as
t F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
s 

69
.1

4%
 

 2
7,

81
4 

 
75

.5
9%

 
26

,9
87

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r C

 a
nd

 E
) 

61
.1

0%
 

 2
4,

60
7 

 
62

.5
6%

 
22

,1
16

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 –
 M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 
70

.8
1%

 
 5

,2
51

  
69

.7
4%

 
5,

12
8 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 –

 S
an

 R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 D

is
tri

ct
 

75
.7

9%
 

 1
6,

38
0 

 
75

.2
5%

 
16

,2
11

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 –
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

85
.2

8%
 

2,
07

3 
 

92
.2

8%
 

2,
02

3 
 

Al
l E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

35
.7

3%
 

$3
20

,1
72

  
36

.0
7%

 
$3

10
,4

39
  

N
ot

e:
 P

ag
es

 1
63

 a
nd

 1
64

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

th
at

 s
ho

w
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
ar

e 
in

 e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

.  
(1

)  
Ba

se
d 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
ho

w
n.

 T
he

se
 ra

te
s 

do
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
em

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

r a
ny

 m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

 
 

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 R

es
ul

ts
 (

co
nt

in
ue

d)
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 

To
ta

l R
at

e 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

(1
)  

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

To
ta

l R
at

e 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

  
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

(1
)  

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

Av
er

ag
e 

M
em

be
r  

G
en

er
al

 
 

 
 

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
:(1

) 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
– 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 4
) 

10
.8

2%
 

$2
,6

88
  

10
.8

9%
 

$2
,6

64
  

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
– 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 5
) 

10
.7

0%
 

 6
9,

78
5 

 
10

.7
6%

 
67

,4
69

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

– 
C

en
tra

l C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
11

.2
9%

 
 4

,0
01

  
11

.4
5%

 
3,

93
3 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
– 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
11

.5
4%

 
 6

61
  

11
.7

0%
 

65
3 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
– 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
11

.3
2%

 
 6

51
  

11
.0

8%
 

57
0 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
– 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 1
 a

nd
 4

) 
13

.2
2%

 
 1

24
  

13
.3

1%
 

11
3 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r A

 a
nd

 D
) 

17
.9

9%
 

$1
0,

70
9 

 
17

.9
2%

 
$1

0,
94

4 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

– 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 a

nd
 E

as
t F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
s 

17
.2

5%
 

 6
,9

40
  

17
.5

4%
 

6,
26

1 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r C

 a
nd

 E
) 

16
.0

2%
 

 6
,4

52
  

16
.2

0%
 

5,
72

7 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 –
 M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 
17

.3
0%

 
 1

,2
83

  
17

.2
6%

 
1,

26
9 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 –

 S
an

 R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 D

is
tri

ct
 

16
.9

9%
 

 3
,6

72
  

16
.7

5%
 

3,
60

8 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 –
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

13
.3

9%
 

32
6 

 
15

.5
2%

 
34

0 
 

Al
l C

at
eg

or
ie

s 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

11
.9

7%
 

$1
07

,2
91

  
12

.0
3%

 
$1

03
,5

51
  

N
ot

e:
 P

ag
es

 1
63

 a
nd

 1
64

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

th
at

 s
ho

w
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
ar

e 
in

 e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

.  
(1

)  
Ba

se
d 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
ho

w
n.

 T
he

se
 ra

te
s 

do
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
em

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

r a
ny

 m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

 
 

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 R

es
ul

ts
 (

co
nt

in
ue

d)
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
  • 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 
$6

,1
86

,5
18

,5
15

  
$5

,8
73

,0
17

,5
31

  
Li

ab
ili

ty
 a

s 
of

  
• 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
(1

)  
29

9,
87

7,
08

0 
 

29
5,

69
1,

33
7 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1:
 

• 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 
3,

19
5,

74
8,

15
5 

 
3,

07
0,

53
8,

05
2 

 
 

• 
To

ta
l A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$9
,6

82
,1

43
,7

50
  

$9
,2

39
,2

46
,9

20
  

 
• 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 fo
r p

la
n 

ye
ar

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1 
$2

48
,9

42
,6

38
  

$2
46

,0
99

,3
86

  

As
se

ts
 a

s 
of

  
• 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
(M

VA
) 

$8
,1

49
,9

85
,7

93
  

$8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1:

 
• 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

(A
VA

) 
8,

66
6,

77
8,

05
6 

 
8,

19
5,

51
6,

54
1 

 
 

• 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
10

6.
3%

 
97

.7
%

 
 

• 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

(V
VA

) 
$8

,6
50

,1
78

,2
26

  
$8

,1
79

,8
91

,1
91

  

Fu
nd

ed
 s

ta
tu

s 
 

• 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
on

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
ba

si
s 

$1
,5

32
,1

57
,9

57
  

$8
48

,6
65

,8
71

  
as

 o
f  

• 
Fu

nd
ed

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

on
 M

VA
 b

as
is

 
84

.2
%

 
90

.8
%

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1:
 

• 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
on

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
ba

si
s 

$1
,0

31
,9

65
,5

24
  

$1
,0

59
,3

55
,7

29
  

 
• 

Fu
nd

ed
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
on

 V
VA

 b
as

is
 

89
.3

%
 

88
.5

%
 

K
ey

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

: •
 N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n 

7.
00

%
 

7.
00

%
 

 
• 

Pr
ic

e 
In

fla
tio

n 
2.

75
%

 
2.

75
%

 
 

• 
Pa

yr
ol

l g
ro

w
th

 in
cr

ea
se

 
3.

25
%

 
3.

25
%

 
(1

) 
In

cl
ud

es
 in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 o
n 

de
po

si
t. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

 
 

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 R

es
ul

ts
 (

co
nt

in
ue

d)
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
  

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 d

at
a 

 
Ac

tiv
e 

M
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1:

 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f m
em

be
rs

 
10

,0
21

 
10

,0
38

 
-0

.2
%

 
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
46

.2
 

46
.0

 
0.

2 
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
9.

9 
9.

8 
0.

1 
 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$8

96
,3

90
,7

68
  

$8
60

,6
24

,6
12

  
4.

2%
 

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$8
9,

45
1 

 
$8

5,
73

7 
 

4.
3%

 

 
R

et
ire

d 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

 
– 

Se
rv

ic
e 

re
tir

ed
 

7,
21

4 
6,

97
3 

3.
5%

 
 

– 
D

is
ab

ilit
y 

re
tir

ed
 

90
8 

89
6 

1.
3%

 
 

– 
Be

ne
fic

ia
rie

s 
1,

42
5 

1,
39

8 
1.

9%
 

 
– 

To
ta

l 
9,

54
7 

9,
26

7 
3.

0%
 

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

70
.4

 
70

.3
 

0.
1 

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$3
,9

86
 

$3
,8

92
  

2.
4%

 

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
Ve

st
ed

 M
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f m
em

be
rs

(1
)  

3,
47

7 
3,

32
7 

4.
5%

 
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
Ag

e 
46

.5
 

46
.5

 
0.

0 

 
To

ta
l M

em
be

rs
: 

23
,0

45
 

22
,6

32
 

1.
8%

 
(1

)  
In

cl
ud

es
 1

,8
47

 in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

n 
de

po
si

t a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

1,
69

6 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

 
 

Im
po

rt
an

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
A

bo
ut

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 V

al
ua

ti
on

s 

A
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 a
 b

ud
ge

tin
g 

to
ol

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

ng
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 o
f a

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n.
 It

 is
 a

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 

fo
re

ca
st

 –
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 c
os

t o
f t

he
 p

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s p
ai

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 S

eg
al

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 (“

Se
ga

l”
) r

el
ie

s o
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f i

np
ut

 it
em

s. 
Th

es
e 

in
cl

ud
e:

 

Pl
an

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 

Pl
an

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

de
fin

e 
th

e 
ru

le
s 

th
at

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
be

ne
fit

 p
ay

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 th

os
e 

ru
le

s,
 o

r t
he

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
em

, m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 E

ve
n 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 a

pp
ea

r p
re

ci
se

, o
ut

si
de

 fa
ct

or
s 

m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

ho
w

 th
ey

 o
pe

ra
te

. I
t i

s 
im

po
rta

nt
 to

 k
ee

p 
Se

ga
l i

nf
or

m
ed

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
pl

an
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, a

nd
 to

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
pl

an
 s

um
m

ar
y 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 o

ur
 re

po
rt 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

at
 S

eg
al

 h
as

 c
or

re
ct

ly
 in

te
rp

re
te

d 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

f b
en

ef
its

. 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
t d

at
a 

An
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

fo
r a

 p
la

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
by

 th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n.

 S
eg

al
 d

oe
s 

no
t a

ud
it 

su
ch

 d
at

a 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

en
es

s 
or

 a
cc

ur
ac

y,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
it 

fo
r o

bv
io

us
 in

co
ns

is
te

nc
ie

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 p

rio
r d

at
a 

an
d 

ot
he

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
th

at
 a

pp
ea

rs
 u

nr
ea

so
na

bl
e.

 It
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 fo
r S

eg
al

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
be

st
 p

os
si

bl
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 to
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 a

bo
ut

 a
ny

 k
no

w
n 

in
co

m
pl

et
e 

or
 in

ac
cu

ra
te

 d
at

a.
 

As
se

ts
 

Th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

as
 o

f t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
, a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
As

so
ci

at
io

n.
 T

he
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

us
es

 a
 “V

al
ua

tio
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s”

 th
at

 d
iff

er
s 

fro
m

 m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 to
 g

ra
du

al
ly

 re
fle

ct
 s

ix
-m

on
th

 c
ha

ng
es

 
in

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
In

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
an

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n,
 S

eg
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pl
an

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 fo
r t

he
 re

st
 o

f 
th

ei
r l

iv
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

liv
es

 o
f t

he
ir 

be
ne

fic
ia

rie
s.

 T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
s 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

ob
ab

ilit
y 

of
 

de
at

h,
 d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 te
rm

in
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 re
tir

em
en

t o
f e

ac
h 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 fo

r e
ac

h 
of

 th
os

e 
ev

en
ts

 in
 e

ac
h 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
r r

ef
le

ct
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

s 
to

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
an

d 
co

st
-o

f-
liv

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

. T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

en
ef

its
 a

re
 th

en
 d

is
co

un
te

d 
to

 a
 p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 ra

te
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

 th
at

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pl

an
’s

 a
ss

et
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 ra
ng

e 
fo

r e
ac

h 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
us

ed
 in

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 m

ay
 v

ar
y 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 s

el
ec

te
d.

 It
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 fo
r a

ny
 

us
er

 o
f a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
. A

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 p

er
io

di
ca

lly
 re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 fu
tu

re
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

 re
fle

ct
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 p
la

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e.

 W
hi

le
 fu

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
re

po
rte

d 
re

su
lts

, t
ha

t d
oe

s 
no

t m
ea

n 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

un
re

as
on

ab
le

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

 
 

Th
e 

us
er

 o
f S

eg
al

’s
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

(o
r o

th
er

 a
ct

ua
ria

l c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

) s
ho

ul
d 

ke
ep

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

 m
in

d:
 

• 
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 p

re
pa

re
d 

at
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t o
f t

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 S

eg
al

 is
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 u
se

 o
r m

is
us

e 
of

 it
s 

re
po

rt,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 b

y 
an

y 
ot

he
r p

ar
ty

. 

• 
An

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 a
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t o

f t
he

 p
la

n’
s 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 li

ab
ilit

ie
s 

at
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 d
at

e.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
no

te
d,

 S
eg

al
 d

id
 

no
t p

er
fo

rm
 a

n 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l r
an

ge
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 T

he
 a

ct
ua

l l
on

g-
te

rm
 c

os
t o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
w

ill 
be

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 p
ai

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. F
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

os
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

be
ca

us
e 

of
:  

– 
D

iff
er

en
ce

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e;
  

– 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r m

et
ho

ds
; 

– 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s;
 a

nd
 

– 
D

iff
er

en
ce

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
os

e 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d.
  

• 
If 

th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

is
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 e
ve

nt
 o

r t
re

nd
 th

at
 w

as
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
th

at
 m

ay
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 

Se
ga

l s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

dv
is

ed
, s

o 
th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
ev

al
ua

te
 it

. 

• 
Se

ga
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 in

ve
st

m
en

t, 
le

ga
l, 

ac
co

un
tin

g,
 o

r t
ax

 a
dv

ic
e.

 S
eg

al
’s

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ou

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f a
pp

lic
ab

le
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

’s
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s,
 b

ut
 th

ey
 m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

ns
. T

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 lo
ok

 to
 th

ei
r o

th
er

 a
dv

is
or

s 
fo

r 
ex

pe
rti

se
 in

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s.

 

A
s S

eg
al

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 h

as
 n

o 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
r a

ss
et

s o
f t

he
 P

la
n,

 it
 is

 n
ot

 a
 fi

du
ci

ar
y 

in
 it

s c
ap

ac
ity

 a
s 

ac
tu

ar
ie

s a
nd

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

Pl
an

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

 
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 
A

. M
em

be
r 

D
at

a 

Th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

on
si

de
rs

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r a

nd
 d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s o
f c

ov
er

ed
 m

em
be

rs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

, 
in

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

, r
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s. 

Th
is

 se
ct

io
n 

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 st
at

is
tic

al
 d

at
a 

on
 th

es
e 

m
em

be
r g

ro
up

s. 
 

M
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
hi

s v
al

ua
tio

n 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

3,
 E

xh
ib

its
 A

, B
, a

nd
 C

. 

M
EM

B
ER

 P
O

PU
LA

TI
O

N
: 2

00
9 

– 
20

18
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

Ac
tiv

e 
M

em
be

rs
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

Ve
st

ed
 

M
em

be
rs

(1
) 

R
et

ire
d 

M
em

be
rs

 
an

d 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

To
ta

l  
N

on
-A

ct
iv

es
 

R
at

io
 o

f  
N

on
-A

ct
iv

es
 

to
 A

ct
iv

es
 

R
at

io
 o

f  
R

et
ire

d 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 
 

to
 A

ct
iv

es
 

20
09

 
8,

93
8 

2,
20

9 
7,

29
2 

9,
50

1 
1.

06
 

0.
82

 

20
10

 
8,

81
1 

2,
23

1 
7,

55
9 

9,
79

0 
1.

11
 

0.
86

 

20
11

 
8,

62
9 

2,
21

4 
8,

08
5 

10
,2

99
 

1.
19

 
0.

94
 

20
12

 
8,

64
0 

2,
28

8 
8,

51
7 

10
,8

05
 

1.
25

 
0.

99
 

20
13

 
9,

12
4 

2,
34

5 
8,

62
5 

10
,9

70
 

1.
20

 
0.

95
 

20
14

 
9,

15
9 

2,
64

7 
8,

87
1 

11
,5

18
 

1.
26

 
0.

97
 

20
15

 
9,

64
2 

2,
79

0 
9,

06
8 

11
,8

58
 

1.
23

 
0.

94
 

20
16

 
9,

84
8 

3,
08

9 
9,

10
0 

12
,1

89
 

1.
24

 
0.

92
 

20
17

 
10

,0
38

 
3,

32
7 

9,
26

7 
12

,5
94

 
1.

25
 

0.
92

 

20
18

 
10

,0
21

 
3,

47
7 

9,
54

7 
13

,0
24

 
1.

30
 

0.
95

 
(1

)  
In

cl
ud

es
 in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 o
n 

de
po

si
t. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

 
 

A
ct

iv
e 

M
em

be
rs

 

Pl
an

 c
os

ts
 a

re
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ag

e,
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

of
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
. I

n 
th

is
 y

ea
r’

s v
al

ua
tio

n,
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
10

,0
21

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

of
 4

6.
2,

 a
ve

ra
ge

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 o
f 9

.9
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
of

 $
89

,4
51

. T
he

 1
0,

03
8 

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
ha

d 
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 o
f 4

6.
0,

 a
ve

ra
ge

 se
rv

ic
e 

of
 9

.8
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
of

 $
85

,7
37

. 

A
m

on
g 

th
e 

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, t

he
re

 w
er

e 
no

ne
 w

ith
 u

nk
no

w
n 

ag
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 A
ct

iv
e 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

AC
TI

VE
S 

B
Y 

AG
E 

AC
TI

VE
S 

B
Y 

YE
AR

S 
O

F 
SE

R
VI

C
E 

 
In

ac
ti

ve
 M

em
be

rs
 

In
 th

is
 y

ea
r’s

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
3,

47
7 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 a
 v

es
te

d 
rig

ht
 to

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

or
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 v
es

te
d 

be
ne

fit
 o

r e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 a

 re
tu

rn
 o

f t
he

ir 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 v
er

su
s 3

,3
27

 in
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

  

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

1,
00

0

1,
20

0

1,
40

0

G
en

er
al

S
af

et
y

0

50
0

1,
00

0

1,
50

0

2,
00

0

2,
50

0

3,
00

0

3,
50

0

4,
00

0

G
en

er
al

S
af

et
y



Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

17
 

R
et

ir
ed

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
ic

ia
ri

es
 

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8,
 8

,1
22

 re
tir

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 1

,4
25

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

to
ta

l m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f $

38
,0

57
,2

50
. F

or
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
, i

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 v

al
ua

tio
n,

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

7,
86

9 
re

tir
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 1
,3

98
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f $

36
,0

67
,6

26
. 

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8,
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
fo

r r
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

 is
 $

3,
98

6,
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 $

3,
89

2 
in

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 T

he
 

av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

fo
r r

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
 is

 7
0.

4 
in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t v

al
ua

tio
n,

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 7

0.
3 

in
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 R
et

ire
d 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
B

Y 
TY

PE
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
TH

LY
 A

M
O

U
N

T 
R

ET
IR

ED
 M

EM
B

ER
S 

AN
D

 B
EN

EF
IC

IA
R

IE
S 

B
Y 

TY
PE

 A
N

D
 A

G
E 

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

1,
00

0

1,
20

0

1,
40

0

1,
60

0

1,
80

0

2,
00

0

S
er

vi
ce

D
is

ab
ili

ty
B

en
ef

ic
ia

ry

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

1,
00

0

1,
20

0

1,
40

0

1,
60

0

1,
80

0

2,
00

0

S
er

vi
ce

D
is

ab
ili

ty
B

en
ef

ic
ia

ry



Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

18
 

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
s t

he
 p

ro
gr

es
si

on
 o

f t
he

 a
ct

iv
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ov

er
 th

e 
la

st
 te

n 
ye

ar
s. 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t a
ls

o 
sh

ow
s t

he
 g

ro
w

th
 a

m
on

g 
th

e 
re

tir
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
tim

e 
pe

rio
d.

 

M
EM

B
ER

 S
TA

TI
ST

IC
S:

 2
00

9 
– 

20
18

 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

Ac
tiv

e 
Pa

rt
ic

ip
an

ts
 

R
et

ire
d 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 

C
ou

nt
 

Av
er

ag
e 

Ag
e 

Av
er

ag
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
ou

nt
 

Av
er

ag
e 

Ag
e 

Av
er

ag
e 

M
on

th
ly

 
Am

ou
nt

 
20

09
 

8,
93

8 
46

.4
 

11
.0

 
7,

29
2 

69
.2

 
$3

,1
11

 

20
10

 
8,

81
1 

46
.6

 
11

.1
 

7,
55

9 
69

.3
 

3,
24

8 

20
11

 
8,

62
9 

46
.2

 
10

.7
 

8,
08

5 
69

.1
 

3,
38

1 

20
12

 
8,

64
0 

45
.9

 
10

.2
 

8,
51

7 
69

.0
 

3,
51

8 

20
13

 
9,

12
4 

45
.8

 
10

.1
 

8,
62

5 
69

.3
 

3,
57

9 

20
14

 
9,

15
9 

45
.8

 
9.

9 
8,

87
1 

69
.4

 
3,

66
9 

20
15

 
9,

64
2 

45
.9

 
9.

9 
9,

06
8 

69
.9

 
3,

70
6 

20
16

 
9,

84
8 

45
.9

 
9.

9 
9,

10
0 

70
.0

 
3,

79
9 

20
17

 
10

,0
38

 
46

.0
 

9.
8 

9,
26

7 
70

.3
 

3,
89

2 

20
18

 
10

,0
21

 
46

.2
 

9.
9 

9,
54

7 
70

.4
 

3,
98

6 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
19

 
 

B
. F

in
an

ci
al

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 

R
et

ire
m

en
t p

la
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
tic

ip
at

es
 th

at
, o

ve
r t

he
 lo

ng
 te

rm
, b

ot
h 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 (l
es

s a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
) a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s (
le

ss
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t f

ee
s)

 w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 c
ov

er
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
. R

et
ire

m
en

t p
la

n 
as

se
ts

 c
ha

ng
e 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

ne
t i

m
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

se
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ye
ar

, i
s p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
3,

 E
xh

ib
its

 E
, F

, G
 

an
d 

H
. 

It 
is

 d
es

ira
bl

e 
to

 h
av

e 
le

ve
l a

nd
 p

re
di

ct
ab

le
 p

la
n 

co
st

s f
ro

m
 o

ne
 y

ea
r t

o 
th

e 
ne

xt
. F

or
 th

is
 re

as
on

, t
he

 B
oa

rd
 h

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
 a

ss
et

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
m

et
ho

d 
th

at
 g

ra
du

al
ly

 a
dj

us
ts

 to
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
. U

nd
er

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
m

et
ho

d,
 th

e 
fu

ll 
va

lu
e 

of
 m

ar
ke

t f
lu

ct
ua

tio
ns

 is
 n

ot
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 in
 a

 si
ng

le
 

ye
ar

 a
nd

, a
s a

 re
su

lt,
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

as
se

t v
al

ue
 a

nd
 th

e 
pl

an
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 m
or

e 
st

ab
le

. T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t t
o 

re
co

gn
iz

e 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 is

 
tre

at
ed

 a
s i

nc
om

e,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

or
 n

eg
at

iv
e.

 R
ea

liz
ed

 a
nd

 u
nr

ea
liz

ed
 g

ai
ns

 a
nd

 lo
ss

es
 a

re
 tr

ea
te

d 
eq

ua
lly

 a
nd

, t
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
 sa

le
 o

f 
as

se
ts

 h
as

 n
o 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ue
. 

C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 O
F 

C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
S 

W
IT

H
 B

EN
EF

IT
S 

FO
R

 Y
EA

R
S 

EN
D

ED
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

9 
– 

20
18

 

 

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

40
0

45
0

50
0

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

$ Millions      

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
Be

ne
fit

s 
Pa

id



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
20

 
 

D
ET

ER
M

IN
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

AC
TU

AR
IA

L 
VA

LU
E 

O
F 

AS
SE

TS
 

1 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

$8
,1

49
,9

85
,7

93
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
R

et
ur

n 
Ac

tu
al

  
R

et
ur

n 
O

rig
in

al
  

Am
ou

nt
 

Pe
rc

en
t  

D
ef

er
re

d 
U

nr
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

 
Am

ou
nt

 
2 

C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 u

nr
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

re
tu

rn
 

a)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
$2

27
,9

09
,7

02
 

$5
88

,7
58

,9
58

 
$3

60
,8

49
,2

56
 

0%
 

$0
 

b)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

4 
24

9,
63

6,
41

0 
34

7,
25

7,
10

6 
97

,6
20

,6
96

 
0%

 
0 

c)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
24

1,
36

1,
74

3 
 

12
5,

72
7,

58
5 

 
(1

15
,6

34
,1

58
) 

10
%

 
(1

1,
56

3,
41

6)
 

d)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5 
24

6,
28

3,
58

5 
 

20
7,

43
9,

92
0 

 
(3

8,
84

3,
66

5)
 

20
%

 
(7

,7
68

,7
33

) 
e)

 
Pe

rio
d 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

25
3,

67
2,

47
1 

 
(1

42
,6

12
,6

00
) 

(3
96

,2
85

,0
71

) 
30

%
 

(1
18

,8
85

,5
21

) 
f) 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
23

9,
90

7,
82

2 
 

29
7,

61
5,

32
4 

 
57

,7
07

,5
02

  
40

%
 

23
,0

83
,0

01
  

g)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
24

9,
58

4,
56

7 
 

19
6,

25
8,

91
9 

 
(5

3,
32

5,
64

8)
 

50
%

 
(2

6,
66

2,
82

4)
 

h)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7 
25

5,
72

8,
81

9 
 

48
8,

76
4,

24
5 

 
23

3,
03

5,
42

6 
 

60
%

 
13

9,
82

1,
25

5 
 

i) 
Pe

rio
d 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

27
1,

87
3,

06
6 

 
49

8,
65

1,
73

6 
 

22
6,

77
8,

67
0 

 
70

%
 

15
8,

74
5,

06
9 

 
j) 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 
28

8,
46

0,
47

5 
 

63
,6

45
,3

90
  

(2
24

,8
15

,0
85

) 
80

%
 

(1
79

,8
52

,0
68

) 
k)

 
Pe

rio
d 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

28
9,

88
9,

30
6 

 
(2

58
,6

76
,2

79
) 

(5
48

,5
65

,5
85

) 
90

%
 

(4
93

,7
09

,0
26

) 
l) 

To
ta

l u
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
re

tu
rn

(2
) 

 
 

 
 

$(
51

6,
79

2,
26

3)
 

3 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
1 

– 
2l

 
$8

,6
66

,7
78

,0
56

 
4 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

10
6.

3%
 

5 
N

on
-v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
se

rv
es

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
na

tio
ns

: 
 

a)
 

Po
st

 R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

 B
en

ef
it 

$1
5,

75
7,

91
0 

 
b)

 
St

at
ut

or
y 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

0 
 

c)
 

Ad
di

tio
na

l O
ne

 P
er

ce
nt

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

0 
 

d)
 

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 D
es

ig
na

tio
n 

0 
 

e)
 

To
ta

l 
$1

5,
75

7,
91

0 
 

6 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

3 
– 

5e
 

$8
,6

51
,0

20
,1

46
 

7 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t f
or

 P
re

-P
ai

d 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(2

) 
84

1,
92

0 
8 

Fi
na

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
6 

– 
7 

$8
,6

50
,1

78
,2

26
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

)  
D

ef
er

re
d 

re
tu

rn
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 in
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
ne

xt
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

: 
 

(a
) 

Am
ou

nt
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

9 
$(

16
0,

42
6,

10
7)

 
 

(b
) 

Am
ou

nt
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

0 
(1

01
,4

65
,4

51
) 

 
(c

) 
Am

ou
nt

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
1 

(6
8,

04
5,

88
0)

 
 

(d
) 

Am
ou

nt
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

2 
(1

31
,9

98
,2

67
) 

 
(e

) 
Am

ou
nt

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
3 

(5
4,

85
6,

55
8)

 
 

(f)
 T

ot
al

 u
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
re

tu
rn

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

$(
51

6,
79

2,
26

3)
 

(2
)  

Th
is

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t i

s 
to

 e
xc

lu
de

 6
 m

on
th

s 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
18

 c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r t
ha

t w
er

e 
pr

e-
pa

id
 fo

r t
he

 2
01

9 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r. 

Th
es

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

ill 
be

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 v

al
ua

tio
n.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
21

 
 

Th
e 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

, A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ue
 a

nd
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s a

re
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n’

s f
in

an
ci

al
 st

at
us

. A
s i

nv
es

tm
en

t g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 

lo
ss

es
 a

re
 g

ra
du

al
ly

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s t
ra

ck
s t

he
 M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s. 

Th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s i
s 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ue
, e

xc
lu

di
ng

 a
ny

 n
on

-v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

se
rv

es
. T

he
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s i

s s
ig

ni
fic

an
t b

ec
au

se
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

es
e 

as
se

ts
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
ha

t p
or

tio
n,

 if
 a

ny
, r

em
ai

ns
 u

nf
un

de
d.

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

is
 a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 e

le
m

en
t i

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 

M
AR

K
ET

 V
AL

U
E,

 A
C

TU
AR

IA
L 

VA
LU

E,
 A

N
D

 V
AL

U
AT

IO
N

 V
AL

U
E 

O
F 

AS
SE

TS
  

AS
 O

F 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

7 
– 

20
18

 

 

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

10
.0

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

$ Billions       

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
22

 
 

C
. A

ct
ua

ri
al

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

To
 c

al
cu

la
te

 a
ny

 a
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n,
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

ab
ou

t f
ut

ur
e 

ev
en

ts
 th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 b
en

ef
its

 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

 a
nd

 a
ss

et
s t

o 
be

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

. E
ac

h 
ye

ar
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 m

ea
su

re
d 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. I

f o
ve

ra
ll 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
is

 m
or

e 
fa

vo
ra

bl
e 

th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 (a
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l g
ai

n)
, t

he
 a

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

w
ill

 d
ec

re
as

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r. 

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r h
an

d,
 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 if

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 le

ss
 fa

vo
ra

bl
e 

th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
(a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l l

os
s)

. 

Ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ga
in

s o
r l

os
se

s i
n 

on
e 

ye
ar

 w
ith

ou
t m

ak
in

g 
a 

ch
an

ge
 in

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 re
fle

ct
s t

he
 b

el
ie

f t
ha

t t
he

 si
ng

le
 y

ea
r’s

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

w
as

 a
 sh

or
t-t

er
m

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 th
at

, o
ve

r t
he

 lo
ng

 te
rm

, e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

w
ill

 re
tu

rn
 to

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. F
or

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 to
 re

m
ai

n 
st

ab
le

, a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
  

If 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 c

ha
ng

ed
, t

he
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t i
s a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 fo
r a

ll 
fu

tu
re

 
ye

ar
s. 

Th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

fle
ct

s c
ha

ng
es

 in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d.

 

Th
e 

to
ta

l l
os

s i
s $

16
1.

2 
m

ill
io

n,
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 $
55

.3
 m

ill
io

n 
fro

m
 in

ve
stm

en
t l

os
se

s, 
a 

ga
in

 o
f $

13
.2

 m
ill

io
n 

fro
m

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
an

d 
$1

19
.1

 in
 lo

ss
es

 fr
om

 a
ll 

ot
he

r s
ou

rc
es

. T
he

 n
et

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

va
ria

tio
n 

fr
om

 in
di

vi
du

al
 so

ur
ce

s o
th

er
 th

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

w
as

 1
.2

%
 o

f t
he

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 A

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 o

n 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

s. 

AC
TU

AR
IA

L 
EX

PE
R

IE
N

C
E 

FO
R

 Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
01

8 

1 
N

et
 lo

ss
 fr

om
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
(1

) 
$(

55
,2

52
,6

87
) 

2 
N

et
 g

ai
n 

fro
m

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
13

,1
73

,3
04

 

3 
N

et
 lo

ss
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e(2

) 
(1

19
,1

41
,1

11
) 

4 
N

et
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
lo

ss
:  

1 
+ 

2 
+ 

3 
$(

16
1,

22
0,

49
4)

 
(1

)  
D

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
ne

xt
 p

ag
e.

 
(2

)  
Se

e 
S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
E

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 d

et
ai

ls
. D

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f p

la
n 

or
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s,
 if

 a
ny

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
23

 
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

A
 m

aj
or

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 a

ss
et

 g
ro

w
th

 is
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n.

 T
he

 a
ss

um
ed

 re
tu

rn
 sh

ou
ld

 re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 ra

te
 

of
 re

tu
rn

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ol
ic

y.
 T

he
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

on
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s w

as
 -2

.3
3%

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 

Fo
r v

al
ua

tio
n 

pu
rp

os
es

, t
he

 a
ss

um
ed

 ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
on

 th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s i
s 7

.0
0%

. T
he

 a
ct

ua
l r

at
e 

of
 re

tu
rn

 o
n 

a 
va

lu
at

io
n 

ba
si

s 
fo

r t
he

 2
01

8 
pl

an
 y

ea
r w

as
 6

.3
2%

. S
in

ce
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 re
tu

rn
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r w
as

 le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 re
tu

rn
, t

he
 P

la
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l l

os
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
w

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 it

s i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

. 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T 

EX
PE

R
IE

N
CE

 F
O

R
 Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

1 
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
nc

om
e 

$(
19

5,
03

0,
88

8)
 

$5
16

,8
25

,8
83

  
$5

15
,7

66
,3

23
  

2 
Av

er
ag

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ss
et

s 
8,

36
7,

64
0,

78
7 

8,
17

2,
57

6,
27

9 
8,

15
7,

41
4,

42
9 

3 
R

at
e 

of
 re

tu
rn

: 1
 ÷

 2
 

-2
.3

3%
 

6.
32

%
 

6.
32

%
 

4 
As

su
m

ed
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

7.
00

%
 

7.
00

%
 

7.
00

%
 

5 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
nc

om
e:

 2
 x

 4
 

$5
85

,7
34

,8
55

 
$5

72
,0

80
,3

39
 

$5
71

,0
19

,0
10

 

6 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l g

ai
n/

(lo
ss

): 
1 

– 
5 

$(
78

0,
76

5,
74

3)
 

$(
55

,2
54

,4
56

) 
$(

55
,2

52
,6

87
) 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
24

 
 

Be
ca

us
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
is

 lo
ng

 te
rm

, i
t i

s u
se

fu
l t

o 
se

e 
ho

w
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 h

as
 fo

llo
w

ed
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ov
er

 
tim

e.
 T

he
 c

ha
rt 

be
lo

w
 sh

ow
s t

he
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

on
 a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

nd
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ba
si

s c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

la
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

av
er

ag
es

 o
ve

r s
el

ec
t t

im
e 

pe
rio

ds
. 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T 

R
ET

U
R

N
 –

 M
AR

K
ET

 V
AL

U
E,

 A
C

TU
AR

IA
L 

VA
LU

E 
AN

D
 V

AL
U

AT
IO

N
 V

AL
U

E:
 2

00
9 

– 
20

18
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t R
et

ur
n 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t R
et

ur
n 

Am
ou

nt
 

Pe
rc

en
t 

Am
ou

nt
 

Pe
rc

en
t 

Am
ou

nt
 

Pe
rc

en
t 

20
09

 
$7

36
,9

56
,8

91
 

19
.6

8%
 

$1
8,

22
6,

93
3 

0.
34

%
 

$1
7,

02
1,

11
6 

0.
32

%
 

20
10

 
59

4,
63

7,
09

0 
13

.3
5%

 
95

,9
18

,9
13

 
1.

82
%

 
94

,8
35

,0
30

 
1.

80
%

 

20
11

 
88

,0
42

,2
68

 
1.

76
%

 
14

8,
05

8,
54

8 
2.

78
%

 
14

6,
98

8,
61

4 
2.

77
%

 

20
12

 
66

8,
13

8,
99

7 
13

.3
1%

 
12

1,
92

1,
30

2 
2.

25
%

 
12

0,
82

6,
17

7 
2.

24
%

 

20
13

 
87

0,
98

4,
74

4 
15

.5
0%

 
49

2,
50

3,
80

2 
9.

01
%

 
49

1,
32

4,
30

8 
9.

02
%

 

20
14

 
47

3,
52

2,
26

1 
7.

35
%

 
67

3,
04

0,
86

7 
11

.3
9%

 
67

1,
95

7,
21

2 
11

.4
0%

 

20
15

 
65

,4
95

,6
57

 
0.

95
%

 
57

7,
19

9,
12

3 
8.

78
%

 
57

6,
15

1,
24

5 
8.

79
%

 

20
16

 
49

3,
87

4,
24

2 
7.

10
%

 
50

2,
35

2,
17

3 
7.

04
%

 
50

1,
32

8,
14

9 
7.

04
%

 

20
17

 
98

7,
41

5,
98

1 
13

.3
1%

 
60

8,
51

9,
87

4 
8.

00
%

 
60

7,
47

7,
59

7 
8.

00
%

 

20
18

 
 (1

95
,0

30
,8

88
) 

-2
.3

3%
 

 5
16

,8
25

,8
83

  
6.

32
%

 
 5

15
,7

66
,3

23
  

6.
32

%
 

M
os

t r
ec

en
t f

iv
e-

ye
ar

 g
eo

m
et

ric
 a

ve
ra

ge
 re

tu
rn

 
5.

06
%

 
 

8.
13

%
 

 
8.

13
%

 

M
os

t r
ec

en
t t

en
-y

ea
r g

eo
m

et
ric

 a
ve

ra
ge

 re
tu

rn
 

7.
98

%
 

 
6.

03
%

 
 

6.
03

%
 

N
ot

e:
 E

ac
h 

ye
ar

’s
 y

ie
ld

 is
 w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
as

se
t v

al
ue

 in
 th

at
 y

ea
r. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
25

 
 

Su
bs

ec
tio

n 
B 

de
sc

rib
ed

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

et
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d 

th
at

 g
ra

du
al

ly
 re

co
gn

iz
es

 fl
uc

tu
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n.

 T
he

 g
oa

l 
of

 th
is

 is
 to

 st
ab

ili
ze

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 a

nd
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 m
or

e 
le

ve
l p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

co
st

s. 

M
AR

K
ET

, A
C

TU
AR

IA
L 

AN
D

 V
AL

U
A

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 O
F 

R
ET

U
R

N
  

FO
R

 Y
EA

R
S 

EN
D

ED
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

7 
– 

20
18

 

 

-4
0%

-3
0%

-2
0%

-1
0%0%10

%

20
%

30
%

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
26

 
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
to

ta
le

d 
$4

27
.8

 m
ill

io
n 

(a
fte

r e
xc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
pr

e-
pa

id
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 b

y 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 fo

r t
he

 2
01

9 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r)

, c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
am

ou
nt

 o
f $

41
5.

1 
m

ill
io

n.
 T

hi
s r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

 g
ai

n 
of

 $
13

.2
 

m
ill

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r, 

w
he

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r t
im

in
g.

 

O
th

er
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
ot

he
r d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

th
at

 a
pp

ea
r w

he
n 

th
e 

ne
w

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
e:

 


 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
ur

no
ve

r a
m

on
g 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s, 


 

re
tir

em
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

(e
ar

lie
r o

r l
at

er
 th

an
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

), 


 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
(m

or
e 

or
 fe

w
er

 d
ea

th
s t

ha
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d)
,  


 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f d
is

ab
ili

ty
 re

tir
em

en
ts

 (m
or

e 
or

 fe
w

er
 th

an
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

), 
 


 

sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s (

gr
ea

te
r o

r s
m

al
le

r t
ha

n 
pr

oj
ec

te
d)

,  


 

co
st

-o
f-l

iv
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 (C

O
LA

s)
 h

ig
he

r o
r l

ow
er

 th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

, a
nd

  


 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 d

iff
er

en
t t

ha
n 

as
su

m
ed

. 

Th
e 

ne
t l

os
s f

ro
m

 th
is

 o
th

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

am
ou

nt
ed

 to
 $

11
9.

1 
m

ill
io

n,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 1

.2
%

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l 

A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 T

hi
s l

os
s w

as
 m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 in

di
vi

du
al

 sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s f

or
 

ac
tiv

es
. S

ee
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
E 

fo
r a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
27

 
 

D
. O

th
er

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 t

he
 A

ct
ua

ri
al

 A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is
 $

9.
7 

bi
lli

on
, a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f $
0.

4 
bi

lli
on

, o
r 4

.8
%

, f
ro

m
 th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 a
s o

f t
he

 p
rio

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
. T

he
 li

ab
ili

ty
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 g
ro

w
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 w
ith

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 in
te

re
st

, a
nd

 to
 d

ec
lin

e 
du

e 
to

 b
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

 m
ad

e.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 fl
uc

tu
at

io
ns

 c
an

 o
cc

ur
 d

ue
 to

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
th

at
 d

iff
er

s f
ro

m
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

(a
s d

is
cu

ss
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

su
bs

ec
tio

n)
. 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 


 

Th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s r

ef
le

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

A
ct

ua
ria

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y 
re

po
rt 

da
te

d 
A

pr
il 

23
, 2

01
9.

 

• 
Th

es
e 

ch
an

ge
s d

ec
re

as
ed

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
by

 a
bo

ut
 $

90
 m

ill
io

n 
(o

r a
 0

.9
%

 d
ec

re
as

e)
 a

nd
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t b

y 
0.

49
%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
(a

 d
ec

re
as

e 
of

 a
bo

ut
 1

.8
%

). 
Th

e 
to

ta
l (

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r)

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 d
ec

re
as

e 
as

 a
 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s w

as
 1

.2
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll.
 

• 
Th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s i
nc

lu
de

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 m

er
it 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s, 
re

tir
em

en
t f

ro
m

 a
ct

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

m
or

ta
lit

y,
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
in

ci
de

nc
e,

 te
rm

in
at

io
n,

 re
tir

em
en

t a
ge

 fo
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
, p

er
ce

nt
 o

f m
em

be
rs

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 g

o 
on

 to
 w

or
k 

fo
r a

 
re

ci
pr

oc
al

 sy
st

em
, r

ec
ip

ro
ca

l s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s, 
pe

rc
en

t m
ar

rie
d,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

ts
 a

nd
 si

ck
 le

av
e 

co
nv

er
si

on
s. 

 


 

D
et

ai
ls

 o
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 m
et

ho
ds

 a
re

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

I. 

P
la

n 
P

ro
vi

si
on

s 


 
Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

la
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 si

nc
e 

th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 


 

A
 su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 p

la
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 is

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

II.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
28

 
 

E
.  

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
ua

ri
al

 A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
FO

R
 Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

1 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
at

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r 
 

$1
,0

59
,3

55
,7

29
 

2 
To

ta
l N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

t m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r(1

)  
 

23
8,

00
9,

50
8 

3 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 
 

9,
72

5,
06

5 
 

4 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

 
(4

15
,0

80
,4

01
) 

5 
In

te
re

st
 

 
68

,6
07

,5
65

  

6 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
at

 e
nd

 o
f y

ea
r 

 
$9

60
,6

17
,4

66
 

7 
C

ha
ng

es
 d

ue
 to

: 
 

 

 
a)

 In
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
le

ss
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

$5
5,

25
2,

68
7 

 
 

 
b)

 A
ct

ua
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

(1
2,

91
1,

80
3)

 
 

 
c)

 G
ai

n 
fro

m
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 U
AA

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

(2
61

,5
01

) 
 

 
d)

 In
di

vi
du

al
 s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

20
,9

84
,3

10
  

 

 
e)

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

67
,0

57
,5

26
  

 

 
f) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
lo

ss
 o

n 
ac

tiv
es

 (e
ar

lie
r r

et
ire

m
en

ts
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d)

 
17

,4
09

,5
57

  
 

 
g)

 O
th

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
lo

ss
(2

)  
13

,6
89

,7
18

  
 

 
h)

 A
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

(8
9,

87
2,

43
6)

 
 

 
To

ta
l c

ha
ng

es
 

 
$7

1,
34

8,
05

8 
 

8 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
at

 e
nd

 o
f y

ea
r 

 
$1

,0
31

,9
65

,5
24

 

N
ot

e:
 T

he
 s

um
 o

f i
te

m
s 

7d
 th

ro
ug

h 
7g

 e
qu

al
s 

th
e 

“N
et

 lo
ss

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e”
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

C
.  

(1
)  

Ex
cl

ud
es

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
. 

(2
) 

O
th

er
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
in

 a
ct

ua
l v

er
su

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

(b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
) d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 te
rm

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
29

 
 

F.
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 

Th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
is

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t p
ay

m
en

t a
nd

 a
 p

ay
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8,
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

is
 3

5.
73

%
 o

f c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

Th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
se

ts
 th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y 

us
ed

 to
 c

al
cu

la
te

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 la

ye
re

d 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
ds

. S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 

Ex
hi

bi
t I

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y.

 

Th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

da
ta

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

de
sc

rib
ed

, t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 P
la

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

al
l c

ha
ng

es
 a

ff
ec

tin
g 

fu
tu

re
 c

os
ts

 a
do

pt
ed

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n,

 a
ct

ua
ria

l g
ai

ns
 

an
d 

lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. 

AV
ER

AG
E 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 E
M

PL
O

YE
R

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

IN
G

 D
EC

EM
BE

R
 3

1 

Al
l T

ie
rs

 C
om

bi
ne

d 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Am

ou
nt

 
($

 in
 ‘0

00
s)

 
%

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
ed

 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Am
ou

nt
 

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

%
 o

f P
ro

je
ct

ed
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
1 

To
ta

l N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
$2

48
,9

42
 

27
.7

8%
 

$2
46

,0
99

 
28

.5
9%

 
2 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

10
7,

29
1 

11
.9

7%
 

10
3,

55
1 

12
.0

3%
 

3 
Em

pl
oy

er
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t: 

 1
 –

 2
 

$1
41

,6
51

 
15

.8
1%

 
$1

42
,5

48
  

16
.5

6%
 

4 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

9,
68

2,
14

4 
 

9,
23

9,
24

7 
 

5 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

8,
65

0,
17

8 
 

8,
17

9,
89

1 
 

6 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 4

 –
 5

 
$1

,0
31

,9
66

  
 

1,
05

9,
35

6 
 

7 
Pa

ym
en

t o
n 

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

17
8,

52
1 

19
.9

2%
 

16
7,

89
1 

19
.5

1%
 

8 
To

ta
l a

ve
ra

ge
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n:

 3
 +

 7
 

$3
20

,1
72

  
35

.7
3%

 
$3

10
,4

39
  

36
.0

7%
 

9 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$8

96
,3

91
  

 
$8

60
,6

25
  

 
N

ot
e:

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
 a

t t
he

 m
id

dl
e 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
.  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
30

 
 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
ti

on
 o

f 
A

ve
ra

ge
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

e 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
 d

et
ai

ls
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t y
ea

r’s
 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

R
EC

O
N

C
IL

IA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

AV
ER

AG
E 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 E
M

PL
O

YE
R

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
E 

FR
O

M
 D

EC
EM

BE
R

 3
1,

 2
01

7 
TO

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

e(1
) 

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l 

D
ol

la
r A

m
ou

nt
(2

)  
Av

er
ag

e 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

36
.0

7%
 

$3
10

,4
39

,4
14

 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

t r
et

ur
n 

le
ss

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
0.

47
%

 
$4

,2
13

,0
37

  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

ct
ua

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
(0

.1
1%

) 
 (9

86
,0

30
) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 U
AA

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

0.
00

%
 

 (2
0,

06
2)

 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
 

0.
18

%
 

 1
,6

13
,5

03
  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

m
or

tiz
in

g 
pr

io
r y

ea
r’s

 U
AA

L 
ov

er
 a

 la
rg

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

ta
l p

ay
ro

ll 
(0

.1
4%

) 
 5

,4
03

,8
62

(3
) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f C

O
LA

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
0.

57
%

 
 5

,1
09

,4
27

  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

lo
ss

 o
n 

ac
tiv

es
 (e

ar
lie

r r
et

ire
m

en
ts

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d)
 

0.
15

%
 

 1
,3

44
,5

86
  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 m
em

be
r d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
s 

on
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

(0
.3

0%
) 

 (2
,6

89
,1

72
) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 

(0
.0

3%
) 

 (2
68

,9
17

) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f o

th
er

 lo
ss

es
(4

)  
0.

13
%

 
 (3

,7
18

,4
86

) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(1

.2
6%

) 
(2

68
,9

17
) 

To
ta

l c
ha

ng
e 

(0
.3

4%
) 

$9
,7

32
,8

31
  

Av
er

ag
e 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
35

.7
3%

 
$3

20
,1

72
,2

45
  

(1
)  

Th
es

e 
ra

te
s 

do
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
em

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
, o

r m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
. 

(2
) 

Ba
se

d 
on

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

va
lu

at
io

n 
da

te
 s

ho
w

n.
 

(3
) 

R
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

do
lla

r i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 U
AA

L 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
ba

se
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 
(4

) 
O

th
er

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s 

in
 a

ct
ua

l v
er

su
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
(b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

) d
is

ab
ilit

y,
 m

or
ta

lit
y,

 te
rm

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 E
st

im
at

ed
 a

nn
ua

l d
ol

la
r c

os
t a

ls
o 

re
fle

ct
s 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 p

ay
ro

ll 
fro

m
 p

rio
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

  
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
31

 
 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
ti

on
 o

f 
A

ve
ra

ge
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

M
em

be
r 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
 d

et
ai

ls
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r’s

 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 

R
EC

O
N

C
IL

IA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

AV
ER

AG
E 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
  

FR
O

M
 D

EC
EM

BE
R

 3
1,

 2
01

7 
TO

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

e(1
) 

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l 

D
ol

la
r A

m
ou

nt
(2

)  
Av

er
ag

e 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

M
em

be
r C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
12

.0
3%

 
$1

03
,5

51
,3

07
 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 

0.
00

%
 

$0
  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 m
em

be
r d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
s(3

)  
(0

.0
3%

) 
4,

00
9,

04
6 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(0

.0
3%

) 
(2

68
,9

17
) 

To
ta

l c
ha

ng
e 

(0
.0

6%
) 

$3
,7

40
,1

29
 

Av
er

ag
e 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
M

em
be

r C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

11
.9

7%
 

$1
07

,2
91

,4
36

 
(1

)  
Th

es
e 

ra
te

s 
do

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
y 

em
pl

oy
er

 s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

, o
r m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

. 
(2

) 
Ba

se
d 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
ho

w
n.

 
(3

) 
In

cl
ud

es
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 p
ro

fil
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p.
 E

st
im

at
ed

 a
nn

ua
l d

ol
la

r c
os

t a
ls

o 
re

fle
ct

s 
ch

an
ge

 in
 p

ay
ro

ll 
fro

m
 p

rio
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
32

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.5

5%
 

3.
40

%
 

14
.9

5%
 

$1
,6

76
,6

98
 

12
.3

5%
 

3.
55

%
 

15
.9

0%
 

$1
,8

74
,6

29
 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
1,

46
1,

36
3 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

1,
45

7,
25

9 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

22
.6

3%
 

5.
35

%
 

27
.9

8%
 

$3
,1

38
,0

61
 

23
.0

6%
 

5.
20

%
 

28
.2

6%
 

$3
,3

31
,8

88
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/o
 P

O
B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.5

5%
 

3.
40

%
 

14
.9

5%
 

$1
,0

48
,1

46
 

12
.3

5%
 

3.
55

%
 

15
.9

0%
 

$1
,0

82
,6

21
 

U
AA

L 
16

.1
3%

 
6.

00
%

 
22

.1
3%

 
1,

55
1,

53
7 

15
.7

9%
 

5.
72

%
 

21
.5

1%
 

1,
46

4,
60

2 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

27
.6

8%
 

9.
40

%
 

37
.0

8%
 

$2
,5

99
,6

83
 

28
.1

4%
 

9.
27

%
 

37
.4

1%
 

$2
,5

47
,2

23
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ P
O

B
 (M

or
ag

a)
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
11

.5
5%

 
3.

40
%

 
14

.9
5%

 
$1

04
,4

39
 

12
.3

5%
 

3.
55

%
 

15
.9

0%
 

$8
9,

20
6 

U
AA

L 
9.

07
%

 
1.

91
%

 
10

.9
8%

 
76

,7
05

 
8.

47
%

 
1.

48
%

 
9.

95
%

 
55

,8
24

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

20
.6

2%
 

5.
31

%
 

25
.9

3%
 

$1
81

,1
44

 
20

.8
2%

 
5.

03
%

 
25

.8
5%

 
$1

45
,0

30
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ U
A

AL
 P

re
pa

ym
en

t (
Fi

rs
t F

iv
e)

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.5

5%
 

3.
40

%
 

14
.9

5%
 

$2
23

,3
66

 
12

.3
5%

 
3.

55
%

 
15

.9
0%

 
$2

38
,7

33
 

U
AA

L 
11

.3
1%

 
2.

35
%

 
13

.6
6%

 
20

4,
09

3 
10

.5
6%

 
1.

76
%

 
12

.3
2%

 
18

4,
98

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

22
.8

6%
 

5.
75

%
 

28
.6

1%
 

$4
27

,4
59

 
22

.9
1%

 
5.

31
%

 
28

.2
2%

 
$4

23
,7

13
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ U
A

AL
 P

re
pa

ym
en

t (
LA

FC
O

) 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.5

5%
 

3.
40

%
 

14
.9

5%
 

$3
5,

49
5 

12
.3

5%
 

3.
55

%
 

15
.9

0%
 

$3
6,

57
0 

U
AA

L 
15

.3
8%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.1
0%

 
50

,0
96

 
15

.0
4%

 
5.

44
%

 
20

.4
8%

 
47

,1
04

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

26
.9

3%
 

9.
12

%
 

36
.0

5%
 

$8
5,

59
1 

27
.3

9%
 

8.
99

%
 

36
.3

8%
 

$8
3,

67
4 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

$0
 

8.
95

%
 

3.
01

%
 

11
.9

6%
 

$0
 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
0 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

19
.8

8%
 

4.
91

%
 

24
.7

9%
 

$0
 

19
.6

6%
 

4.
66

%
 

24
.3

2%
 

$0
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
33

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
D

is
tr

ic
t G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

$3
28

,7
49

 
8.

95
%

 
3.

01
%

 
11

.9
6%

 
$2

77
,2

55
 

U
AA

L 
16

.1
3%

 
6.

00
%

 
22

.1
3%

 
61

8,
64

1 
15

.7
9%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.5
1%

 
49

8,
64

2 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

24
.9

3%
 

8.
96

%
 

33
.8

9%
 

$9
47

,3
90

 
24

.7
4%

 
8.

73
%

 
33

.4
7%

 
$7

75
,8

97
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ P

O
B

 (M
or

ag
a)

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

$1
5,

56
9 

8.
95

%
 

3.
01

%
 

11
.9

6%
 

$2
5,

74
4 

U
AA

L 
9.

07
%

 
1.

91
%

 
10

.9
8%

 
14

,5
37

 
8.

47
%

 
1.

48
%

 
9.

95
%

 
21

,4
17

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

17
.8

7%
 

4.
87

%
 

22
.7

4%
 

$3
0,

10
6 

17
.4

2%
 

4.
49

%
 

21
.9

1%
 

$4
7,

16
1 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t (

Fi
rs

t F
iv

e)
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
8.

80
%

 
2.

96
%

 
11

.7
6%

 
$1

48
,2

54
 

8.
95

%
 

3.
01

%
 

11
.9

6%
 

$1
23

,8
47

 
U

AA
L 

11
.3

1%
 

2.
35

%
 

13
.6

6%
 

17
2,

20
6 

10
.5

6%
 

1.
76

%
 

12
.3

2%
 

12
7,

57
5 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
20

.1
1%

 
5.

31
%

 
25

.4
2%

 
$3

20
,4

60
 

19
.5

1%
 

4.
77

%
 

24
.2

8%
 

$2
51

,4
22

 
D

is
tr

ic
t G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/ U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t (
LA

FC
O

) 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

$0
 

8.
95

%
 

3.
01

%
 

11
.9

6%
 

$0
 

U
AA

L 
15

.3
8%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.1
0%

 
0 

15
.0

4%
 

5.
44

%
 

20
.4

8%
 

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

24
.1

8%
 

8.
68

%
 

32
.8

6%
 

$0
 

23
.9

9%
 

8.
45

%
 

32
.4

4%
 

$0
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
68

%
 

1.
99

%
 

10
.6

7%
 

$0
 

8.
80

%
 

2.
02

%
 

10
.8

2%
 

$0
 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
0 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

19
.7

6%
 

3.
94

%
 

23
.7

0%
 

$0
 

19
.5

1%
 

3.
67

%
 

23
.1

8%
 

$0
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
34

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.8

4%
 

3.
34

%
 

15
.1

8%
 

$6
1,

28
0,

87
8 

12
.3

1%
 

3.
43

%
 

15
.7

4%
 

$6
5,

05
0,

70
5 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
52

,6
01

,4
39

 
10

.7
1%

 
1.

65
%

 
12

.3
6%

 
51

,0
81

,7
48

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

22
.9

2%
 

5.
29

%
 

28
.2

1%
 

$1
13

,8
82

,3
17

 
23

.0
2%

 
5.

08
%

 
28

.1
0%

 
$1

16
,1

32
,4

53
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 w

/o
 P

O
B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.8

4%
 

3.
34

%
 

15
.1

8%
 

$4
68

,7
89

 
12

.3
1%

 
3.

43
%

 
15

.7
4%

 
$5

08
,1

94
 

U
AA

L 
16

.1
3%

 
6.

00
%

 
22

.1
3%

 
68

3,
41

8 
15

.7
9%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.5
1%

 
69

4,
48

9 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

27
.9

7%
 

9.
34

%
 

37
.3

1%
 

$1
,1

52
,2

07
 

28
.1

0%
 

9.
15

%
 

37
.2

5%
 

$1
,2

02
,6

83
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 5
 (3

%
/4

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
39

%
 

2.
76

%
 

11
.1

5%
 

$6
,4

56
,4

52
 

8.
42

%
 

2.
79

%
 

11
.2

1%
 

$6
,4

76
,3

14
 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
7,

54
5,

07
3 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

7,
14

0,
70

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

19
.4

7%
 

4.
71

%
 

24
.1

8%
 

$1
4,

00
1,

52
5 

19
.1

3%
 

4.
44

%
 

23
.5

7%
 

$1
3,

61
7,

01
4 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 5
 (3

%
/4

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/o

 P
O

B
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
8.

39
%

 
2.

76
%

 
11

.1
5%

 
$9

1,
19

7 
8.

42
%

 
2.

79
%

 
11

.2
1%

 
$5

8,
35

9 
U

AA
L 

16
.1

3%
 

6.
00

%
 

22
.1

3%
 

18
1,

00
3 

15
.7

9%
 

5.
72

%
 

21
.5

1%
 

11
1,

98
0 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
24

.5
2%

 
8.

76
%

 
33

.2
8%

 
$2

72
,2

00
 

24
.2

1%
 

8.
51

%
 

32
.7

2%
 

$1
70

,3
39

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/ C
ou

rt
s 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
8.

16
%

 
1.

84
%

 
10

.0
0%

 
$1

8,
63

5,
93

8 
8.

20
%

 
1.

87
%

 
10

.0
7%

 
$1

5,
30

2,
81

3 
U

AA
L 

11
.0

8%
 

1.
95

%
 

13
.0

3%
 

24
,2

82
,6

27
 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

18
,7

82
,7

97
 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
19

.2
4%

 
3.

79
%

 
23

.0
3%

 
$4

2,
91

8,
56

5 
18

.9
1%

 
3.

52
%

 
22

.4
3%

 
$3

4,
08

5,
61

0 
D

is
tr

ic
t G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
16

%
 

1.
84

%
 

10
.0

0%
 

$3
3,

18
9 

8.
20

%
 

1.
87

%
 

10
.0

7%
 

$2
6,

38
0 

U
AA

L 
16

.1
3%

 
6.

00
%

 
22

.1
3%

 
73

,4
48

 
15

.7
9%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.5
1%

 
56

,3
50

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

24
.2

9%
 

7.
84

%
 

32
.1

3%
 

$1
06

,6
37

 
23

.9
9%

 
7.

59
%

 
31

.5
8%

 
$8

2,
73

0 
(1

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

6%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

9%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
35

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

C
C

SD
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

12
.3

6%
 

3.
67

%
 

16
.0

3%
 

$4
,5

62
,0

37
 

13
.3

0%
 

3.
88

%
 

17
.1

8%
 

$4
,9

47
,2

50
 

U
AA

L 
23

.2
3%

 
11

.5
8%

 
34

.8
1%

 
9,

90
6,

70
7 

22
.9

9%
 

10
.4

3%
 

33
.4

2%
 

9,
62

3,
81

2 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

35
.5

9%
 

15
.2

5%
 

50
.8

4%
 

$1
4,

46
8,

74
4 

36
.2

9%
 

14
.3

1%
 

50
.6

0%
 

$1
4,

57
1,

06
2 

C
C

C
SD

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
23

%
 

2.
83

%
 

11
.0

6%
 

$7
72

,3
46

 
8.

03
%

 
2.

80
%

 
10

.8
3%

 
$6

01
,3

34
 

U
AA

L 
23

.2
3%

 
11

.5
8%

 
34

.8
1%

 
2,

43
0,

86
3 

22
.9

9%
 

10
.4

3%
 

33
.4

2%
 

1,
85

5,
64

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

31
.4

6%
 

14
.4

1%
 

45
.8

7%
 

$3
,2

03
,2

09
 

31
.0

2%
 

13
.2

3%
 

44
.2

5%
 

$2
,4

56
,9

74
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

  
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

12
.7

7%
 

3.
65

%
 

16
.4

2%
 

$6
85

,0
17

 
13

.2
4%

 
3.

74
%

 
16

.9
8%

 
$6

94
,6

27
 

U
AA

L 
16

.4
4%

 
10

.5
7%

 
27

.0
1%

 
1,

12
6,

81
5 

16
.3

6%
 

9.
71

%
 

26
.0

7%
 

1,
06

6,
48

6 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

29
.2

1%
 

14
.2

2%
 

43
.4

3%
 

$1
,8

11
,8

32
 

29
.6

0%
 

13
.4

5%
 

43
.0

5%
 

$1
,7

61
,1

13
 

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
96

%
 

3.
02

%
 

11
.9

8%
 

$1
86

,7
34

 
9.

49
%

 
3.

24
%

 
12

.7
3%

 
$1

89
,9

28
 

U
AA

L 
16

.4
4%

 
10

.5
7%

 
27

.0
1%

 
42

1,
01

0 
16

.3
6%

 
9.

71
%

 
26

.0
7%

 
38

8,
95

7 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

25
.4

0%
 

13
.5

9%
 

38
.9

9%
 

$6
07

,7
44

 
25

.8
5%

 
12

.9
5%

 
38

.8
0%

 
$5

78
,8

85
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
36

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
11

.7
5%

 
3.

45
%

 
15

.2
0%

 
$5

84
,4

64
 

12
.2

7%
 

3.
52

%
 

15
.7

9%
 

$6
06

,9
75

 
U

AA
L 

10
.5

3%
 

7.
93

%
 

18
.4

6%
 

70
9,

81
7 

10
.1

2%
 

6.
84

%
 

16
.9

6%
 

65
1,

95
1 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
22

.2
8%

 
11

.3
8%

 
33

.6
6%

 
$1

,2
94

,2
81

 
22

.3
9%

 
10

.3
6%

 
32

.7
5%

 
$1

,2
58

,9
26

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.3

8%
 

3.
79

%
 

15
.1

7%
 

$2
7,

02
4 

11
.4

4%
 

3.
90

%
 

15
.3

4%
 

$2
5,

75
3 

U
AA

L 
10

.5
3%

 
7.

93
%

 
18

.4
6%

 
32

,8
85

 
10

.1
2%

 
6.

84
%

 
16

.9
6%

 
28

,4
73

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

21
.9

1%
 

11
.7

2%
 

33
.6

3%
 

$5
9,

90
9 

21
.5

6%
 

10
.7

4%
 

32
.3

0%
 

$5
4,

22
6 

C
C

C
FP

D
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
)  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
10

.0
7%

 
2.

27
%

 
12

.3
4%

 
$2

12
,7

17
 

9.
46

%
 

2.
19

%
 

11
.6

5%
 

$1
31

,9
56

 
U

AA
L 

10
.5

3%
 

7.
93

%
 

18
.4

6%
 

31
8,

21
3 

10
.1

2%
 

6.
84

%
 

16
.9

6%
 

19
2,

10
1 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
20

.6
0%

 
10

.2
0%

 
30

.8
0%

 
$5

30
,9

30
 

19
.5

8%
 

9.
03

%
 

28
.6

1%
 

$3
24

,0
57

 
(1

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

6%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

9%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
37

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
12

.5
8%

 
3.

84
%

 
16

.4
2%

 
$1

14
,8

39
 

13
.2

7%
 

3.
95

%
 

17
.2

2%
 

$1
14

,2
14

 
U

AA
L 

0.
16

%
 

0.
00

%
 

0.
16

%
 

1,
11

9 
0.

19
%

 
0.

00
%

 
0.

19
%

 
1,

26
0 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
12

.7
4%

 
3.

84
%

 
16

.5
8%

 
$1

15
,9

58
 

13
.4

6%
 

3.
95

%
 

17
.4

1%
 

$1
15

,4
74

 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

9.
39

%
 

3.
21

%
 

12
.6

0%
 

$3
0,

35
5 

10
.0

1%
 

3.
47

%
 

13
.4

8%
 

$2
5,

26
6 

U
AA

L 
0.

16
%

 
0.

00
%

 
0.

16
%

 
38

5 
0.

19
%

 
0.

00
%

 
0.

19
%

 
35

6 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

9.
55

%
 

3.
21

%
 

12
.7

6%
 

$3
0,

74
0 

10
.2

0%
 

3.
47

%
 

13
.6

7%
 

$2
5,

62
2 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r A
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
22

.3
6%

 
7.

06
%

 
29

.4
2%

 
$1

6,
43

8,
11

8 
23

.0
0%

 
7.

35
%

 
30

.3
5%

 
$1

7,
46

3,
31

5 
U

AA
L 

22
.0

1%
 

19
.4

7%
 

41
.4

8%
 

23
,1

76
,5

17
 

22
.5

9%
 

19
.5

4%
 

42
.1

3%
 

24
,2

41
,4

98
 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
44

.3
7%

 
26

.5
3%

 
70

.9
0%

 
$3

9,
61

4,
63

5 
45

.5
9%

 
26

.8
9%

 
72

.4
8%

 
$4

1,
70

4,
81

3 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r D
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
14

.3
1%

 
5.

73
%

 
20

.0
4%

 
$7

31
,5

00
 

14
.8

6%
 

6.
13

%
 

20
.9

9%
 

$7
40

,7
93

 
U

AA
L 

22
.0

1%
 

19
.4

7%
 

41
.4

8%
 

1,
51

4,
10

4 
22

.5
9%

 
19

.5
4%

 
42

.1
3%

 
1,

48
6,

87
9 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
36

.3
2%

 
25

.2
0%

 
61

.5
2%

 
$2

,2
45

,6
04

 
37

.4
5%

 
25

.6
7%

 
63

.1
2%

 
$2

,2
27

,6
72

 
(1

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

6%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

9%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
38

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
21

.9
4%

 
7.

00
%

 
28

.9
4%

 
$8

,8
90

,9
08

 
22

.6
0%

 
7.

30
%

 
29

.9
0%

 
$8

,6
34

,7
67

 
U

AA
L 

11
.9

1%
 

26
.5

3%
 

38
.4

4%
 

11
,8

09
,4

85
 

14
.6

3%
 

28
.3

6%
 

42
.9

9%
 

12
,4

15
,0

04
 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
33

.8
5%

 
33

.5
3%

 
67

.3
8%

 
$2

0,
70

0,
39

3 
37

.2
3%

 
35

.6
6%

 
72

.8
9%

 
$2

1,
04

9,
77

1 
Ea

st
 C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
21

.9
4%

 
7.

00
%

 
28

.9
4%

 
$8

54
,8

68
 

22
.6

0%
 

7.
30

%
 

29
.9

0%
 

$7
67

,3
50

 
U

AA
L 

37
.8

2%
 

46
.3

0%
 

84
.1

2%
 

2,
48

4,
84

9 
42

.8
4%

 
49

.8
7%

 
92

.7
1%

 
2,

37
9,

29
7 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
59

.7
6%

 
53

.3
0%

 
11

3.
06

%
 

$3
,3

39
,7

17
 

65
.4

4%
 

57
.1

7%
 

12
2.

61
%

 
$3

,1
46

,6
47

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
13

.0
5%

 
5.

35
%

 
18

.4
0%

 
$3

30
,8

75
 

14
.2

8%
 

6.
00

%
 

20
.2

8%
 

$3
59

,8
01

 
U

AA
L 

11
.9

1%
 

26
.5

3%
 

38
.4

4%
 

69
1,

24
2 

14
.6

3%
 

28
.3

6%
 

42
.9

9%
 

76
2,

71
5 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
24

.9
6%

 
31

.8
8%

 
56

.8
4%

 
$1

,0
22

,1
17

 
28

.9
1%

 
34

.3
6%

 
63

.2
7%

 
$1

,1
22

,5
16

 
Ea

st
 C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
13

.0
5%

 
5.

35
%

 
18

.4
0%

 
$7

1,
74

8 
14

.2
8%

 
6.

00
%

 
20

.2
8%

 
$6

2,
49

1 
U

AA
L 

37
.8

2%
 

46
.3

0%
 

84
.1

2%
 

32
8,

01
2 

42
.8

4%
 

49
.8

7%
 

92
.7

1%
 

28
5,

67
6 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
50

.8
7%

 
51

.6
5%

 
10

2.
52

%
 

$3
99

,7
60

 
57

.1
2%

 
55

.8
7%

 
11

2.
99

%
 

$3
48

,1
67

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
12

.0
9%

 
3.

32
%

 
15

.4
1%

 
$6

73
,2

06
 

13
.9

0%
 

3.
90

%
 

17
.8

0%
 

$3
86

,3
48

 
U

AA
L 

11
.9

1%
 

26
.5

3%
 

38
.4

4%
 

1,
67

9,
30

2 
14

.6
3%

 
28

.3
6%

 
42

.9
9%

 
93

3,
09

5 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

24
.0

0%
 

29
.8

5%
 

53
.8

5%
 

$2
,3

52
,5

08
 

28
.5

3%
 

32
.2

6%
 

60
.7

9%
 

$1
,3

19
,4

43
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
39

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r C
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
20

.4
8%

 
4.

38
%

 
24

.8
6%

 
$3

,5
51

,7
98

 
21

.0
6%

 
4.

51
%

 
25

.5
7%

 
$3

,4
45

,9
78

 
U

AA
L 

22
.0

1%
 

19
.4

7%
 

41
.4

8%
 

5,
92

6,
33

0 
22

.5
9%

 
19

.5
4%

 
42

.1
3%

 
5,

67
7,

71
0 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
42

.4
9%

 
23

.8
5%

 
66

.3
4%

 
$9

,4
78

,1
28

 
43

.6
5%

 
24

.0
5%

 
67

.7
0%

 
$9

,1
23

,6
88

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r E
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
13

.1
7%

 
3.

57
%

 
16

.7
4%

 
$4

,3
50

,0
68

 
13

.5
0%

 
3.

76
%

 
17

.2
6%

 
$3

,7
75

,7
86

 
U

AA
L 

22
.0

1%
 

19
.4

7%
 

41
.4

8%
 

10
,7

79
,0

22
 

22
.5

9%
 

19
.5

4%
 

42
.1

3%
 

9,
21

6,
33

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

35
.1

8%
 

23
.0

4%
 

58
.2

2%
 

$1
5,

12
9,

09
0 

36
.0

9%
 

23
.3

0%
 

59
.3

9%
 

$1
2,

99
2,

11
6 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

20
.3

6%
 

6.
75

%
 

27
.1

1%
 

$1
,6

24
,5

80
 

21
.3

8%
 

7.
06

%
 

28
.4

4%
 

$1
,8

25
,6

42
 

U
AA

L 
14

.0
5%

 
31

.4
1%

 
45

.4
6%

 
2,

72
4,

21
3 

13
.8

3%
 

28
.6

7%
 

42
.5

0%
 

2,
72

8,
19

2 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

34
.4

1%
 

38
.1

6%
 

72
.5

7%
 

$4
,3

48
,7

93
 

35
.2

1%
 

35
.7

3%
 

70
.9

4%
 

$4
,5

53
,8

34
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

12
.7

0%
 

5.
23

%
 

17
.9

3%
 

$2
55

,1
38

 
13

.3
3%

 
5.

65
%

 
18

.9
8%

 
$1

77
,1

56
 

U
AA

L 
14

.0
5%

 
31

.4
1%

 
45

.4
6%

 
64

6,
88

1 
13

.8
3%

 
28

.6
7%

 
42

.5
0%

 
39

6,
68

7 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

26
.7

5%
 

36
.6

4%
 

63
.3

9%
 

$9
02

,0
19

 
27

.1
6%

 
34

.3
2%

 
61

.4
8%

 
$5

73
,8

43
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
40

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
Sa

n 
R

am
on

 F
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
21

.6
4%

 
6.

92
%

 
28

.5
6%

 
$4

,9
60

,1
73

 
22

.2
2%

 
7.

08
%

 
29

.3
0%

 
$5

,4
21

,0
31

 
U

AA
L 

29
.7

5%
 

19
.9

2%
 

49
.6

7%
 

8,
62

6,
46

4 
28

.8
3%

 
18

.7
1%

 
47

.5
4%

 
8,

79
5,

76
1 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
51

.3
9%

 
26

.8
4%

 
78

.2
3%

 
$1

3,
58

6,
63

7 
51

.0
5%

 
25

.7
9%

 
76

.8
4%

 
$1

4,
21

6,
79

2 
Sa

n 
R

am
on

 F
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
11

.4
4%

 
4.

71
%

 
16

.1
5%

 
$6

85
,3

15
 

12
.6

6%
 

5.
40

%
 

18
.0

6%
 

$5
49

,0
52

 
U

AA
L 

29
.7

5%
 

19
.9

2%
 

49
.6

7%
 

2,
10

7,
71

4 
28

.8
3%

 
18

.7
1%

 
47

.5
4%

 
1,

44
5,

28
9 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
41

.1
9%

 
24

.6
3%

 
65

.8
2%

 
$2

,7
93

,0
29

 
41

.4
9%

 
24

.1
1%

 
65

.6
0%

 
$1

,9
94

,3
41

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

  
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

17
.2

9%
 

5.
00

%
 

22
.2

9%
 

$4
20

,6
17

 
14

.8
9%

 
5.

21
%

 
20

.1
0%

 
$3

71
,8

01
 

U
AA

L(3
), 

(4
) 

37
.3

1%
 

26
.9

8%
 

64
.2

9%
 

1,
21

3,
16

5 
42

.6
3%

 
30

.0
4%

 
72

.6
7%

 
1,

34
4,

21
6 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
54

.6
0%

 
31

.9
8%

 
86

.5
8%

 
$1

,6
33

,7
82

 
57

.5
2%

 
35

.2
5%

 
92

.7
7%

 
$1

,7
16

,0
17

 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
11

.6
5%

 
4.

82
%

 
16

.4
7%

 
$8

9,
59

8 
11

.9
2%

 
5.

07
%

 
16

.9
9%

 
$5

8,
09

5 
U

AA
L(3

), 
(4

)  
37

.3
1%

 
26

.9
8%

 
64

.2
9%

 
34

9,
74

3 
42

.6
3%

 
30

.0
4%

 
72

.6
7%

 
24

8,
48

3 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

48
.9

6%
 

31
.8

0%
 

80
.7

6%
 

$4
39

,3
41

 
54

.5
5%

 
35

.1
1%

 
89

.6
6%

 
$3

06
,5

78
 

To
ta

l A
ll 

Em
pl

oy
er

s 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

(A
gg

re
ga

te
) 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
12

.3
0%

 
3.

51
%

 
15

.8
1%

 
$1

41
,6

51
,2

02
 

12
.8

7%
 

3.
69

%
 

16
.5

6%
 

$1
42

,5
48

,0
79

 
U

AA
L 

13
.5

6%
 

6.
36

%
 

19
.9

2%
 

17
8,

52
1,

04
3 

13
.4

5%
 

6.
06

%
 

19
.5

1%
 

16
7,

89
1,

33
5 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
25

.8
6%

 
9.

87
%

 
35

.7
3%

 
$3

20
,1

72
,2

45
 

26
.3

2%
 

9.
75

%
 

36
.0

7%
 

$3
10

,4
39

,4
14

 
(1

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

6%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

9%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(3

)  
Th

e 
to

ta
l U

AA
L 

do
lla

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

fo
r R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
FP

D
 is

 $
1,

63
9,

71
6 

fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1.
 It

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

U
AA

L 
ra

te
 s

ho
w

n 
ab

ov
e 

m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 e
st

im
at

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
fo

r F
Y 

20
20

-2
1.

 T
he

 
es

tim
at

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
fo

r F
Y 

20
20

-2
1 

w
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 p

ay
ro

ll 
am

ou
nt

s 
sh

ow
n 

on
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

 fo
r 2

01
9 

by
 1

8-
m

on
th

s 
of

 a
ss

um
ed

 w
ag

e 
in

fla
tio

n.
 

(4
) 

Th
e 

to
ta

l U
AA

L 
do

lla
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fo

r R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

FP
D

 is
 $

1,
67

0,
97

1 
fo

r F
Y 

20
19

-2
0.

 It
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
U

AA
L 

ra
te

 s
ho

w
n 

ab
ov

e 
m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 e

st
im

at
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0.
 T

he
 

es
tim

at
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 
w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 p
ay

ro
ll 

am
ou

nt
s 

fo
r 2

01
8 

by
 1

8-
m

on
th

s 
of

 a
ss

um
ed

 w
ag

e 
in

fla
tio

n.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
41

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r t
ha

t i
s u

se
d 

to
 e

st
im

at
e 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 d

ol
la

r a
m

ou
nt

 sh
ow

n 
on

 th
e 

pr
io

r p
ag

es
 a

s o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
ar

e 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

  

 

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

6 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

$6
99

,3
86

  
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
24

0,
91

1 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r A
  

$5
5,

87
3,

95
5 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r D
  

3,
65

0,
20

2 
 

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

8 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

$3
0,

72
1,

86
6 

 
Ea

st
 C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

2,
95

3,
93

3 
 

C
C

C
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

  
1,

79
8,

23
6 

 
Ea

st
 C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

38
9,

93
4 

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 E
 

4,
36

8,
63

2 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r C
  

$1
4,

28
7,

19
9 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r E
  

25
,9

86
,0

71
  

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

  
$5

,9
92

,5
50

  
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

1,
42

2,
96

7 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

  
$1

7,
36

7,
55

3 
 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

  
4,

24
3,

43
4 

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

$1
,8

87
,0

19
  

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

  
54

4,
00

9 
 

To
ta

l A
ll 

Em
pl

oy
er

s 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

(A
gg

re
ga

te
) 

$8
96

,3
90

,7
67

  

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 w
/ C

ou
rts

 
$1

1,
21

5,
37

1 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/o
 P

O
B 

7,
01

1,
01

2 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ P
O

B 
(M

or
ag

a)
 

69
8,

58
5 

 
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 w
/ U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t (

Fi
rs

t F
iv

e)
 

1,
49

4,
09

0 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t (
LA

FC
O

) 
23

7,
42

3 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rts

 
0 

 
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B 

2,
79

5,
48

4 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ P

O
B 

(M
or

ag
a)

 
13

2,
39

2 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t (

Fi
rs

t F
iv

e)
 

1,
26

0,
66

0 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t (

LA
FC

O
) 

0 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rts

 
0 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 w
/ C

ou
rts

 
$4

03
,6

94
,8

51
  

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 w

/o
 P

O
B 

3,
08

8,
19

8 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 5
 (3

%
/4

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rts

 
57

,9
05

,3
95

  
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (3
%

/4
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B 

81
7,

90
9 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/ C
ou

rts
 

18
6,

35
9,

37
6 

 
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B 

33
1,

89
4 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

C
C

SD
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

  
$2

8,
45

9,
37

0 
 

C
C

C
SD

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
6,

98
3,

23
3 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

$4
,1

71
,8

44
  

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
)  

1,
55

8,
71

8 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

C
C

FP
D

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

$3
,8

45
,1

61
  

C
C

C
FP

D
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
)  

17
8,

14
4 

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

)  
1,

72
3,

80
0 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
42

 
 

G
. F

un
de

d 
S

ta
tu

s 

A
 c

om
m

on
ly

 re
po

rte
d 

pi
ec

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

tu
s i

s t
he

 fu
nd

ed
 ra

tio
. T

he
se

 ra
tio

s c
om

pa
re

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t, 

A
ct

ua
ria

l a
nd

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s t
o 

th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

Pl
an

. H
ig

h 
ra

tio
s i

nd
ic

at
e 

a 
w

el
l-f

un
de

d 
pl

an
 w

ith
 a

ss
et

s 
su

ffi
ci

en
t t

o 
co

ve
r t

he
 P

la
n’

s A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 L

ow
er

 ra
tio

s m
ay

 in
di

ca
te

 re
ce

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 b
en

ef
it 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
, f

un
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
be

lo
w

 a
ct

ua
ria

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, p

oo
r a

ss
et

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, o
r a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f o

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

.  

Th
e 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
 d

ep
ic

ts
 a

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
ed

 ra
tio

 fo
r t

he
 P

la
n.

 T
he

 c
ha

rt 
on

 th
e 

ne
xt

 p
ag

e 
sh

ow
s t

he
 P

la
n’

s s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 fu
nd

in
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 
fo

r t
he

 la
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s. 
 

Th
e 

fu
nd

ed
 st

at
us

 m
ea

su
re

s s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

is
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ar
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fo

r a
ss

es
si

ng
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r o
r a

m
ou

nt
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

f P
la

n 
as

se
ts

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t o
f s

et
tli

ng
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 b
en

ef
it 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
. A

s t
he

 c
ha

rt 
be

lo
w

 sh
ow

s, 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s a

re
 d

iff
er

en
t d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l, 
V

al
ua

tio
n 

or
 M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s i

s 
us

ed
. 

FU
N

D
ED

 R
AT

IO
  

FO
R

 P
LA

N
 Y

EA
R

S 
EN

D
IN

G
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

7 
– 

20
18

 

 

50
%

55
%

60
%

65
%

70
%

75
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
Ba

si
s

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

Ba
si

s
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

Ba
sis



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
43

 
 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 O

F 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
 

FO
R

 P
LA

N
 Y

EA
R

S 
EN

D
IN

G
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

9 
– 

20
18

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

D
at

e 
as

 o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s(1
)  

(a
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l  
Ac

cr
ue

d 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

(A
AL

)(2
)  

(b
) 

U
nf

un
de

d/
 

(O
ve

rf
un

de
d)

 
A

AL
 

(U
AA

L)
 

 (b
) -

 (a
) 

Fu
nd

ed
 

R
at

io
 (%

)  
(a

) /
 (b

) 

C
ov

er
ed

 
Pa

yr
ol

l 
(c

) 

U
A

AL
 a

s 
a 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
C

ov
er

ed
 

Pa
yr

ol
l (

%
) 

[(b
) -

 (a
)] 

/ (
c)

 
20

09
 

$5
,2

90
,1

14
,1

02
 

$6
,3

14
,7

87
,1

87
 

$1
,0

24
,6

73
,0

85
 

83
.8

%
 

$6
94

,4
43

,9
99

 
14

7.
6%

 

20
10

 
5,

34
1,

82
1,

71
1 

6,
65

4,
03

6,
80

1 
1,

31
2,

21
5,

09
0 

80
.3

 
68

7,
44

3,
20

6 
19

0.
9 

20
11

 
5,

42
6,

71
9,

06
6 

6,
91

5,
31

1,
64

9 
1,

48
8,

59
2,

58
3 

78
.5

 
66

6,
39

4,
14

6 
22

3.
4 

20
12

 
5,

48
2,

25
7,

06
2 

7,
76

1,
31

5,
53

5 
2,

27
9,

05
8,

47
3 

70
.6

 
65

2,
31

2,
18

0 
34

9.
4 

20
13

 
5,

90
7,

41
6,

43
2 

7,
73

1,
09

7,
40

7 
1,

82
3,

68
0,

97
5 

76
.4

 
67

9,
42

8,
91

1 
26

8.
4 

20
14

 
6,

55
7,

49
6,

10
1 

8,
02

7,
43

8,
21

3 
1,

46
9,

94
2,

11
2 

81
.7

 
69

7,
83

1,
83

7 
21

0.
6 

20
15

 
7,

13
6,

80
1,

38
0 

8,
44

8,
62

4,
09

6 
1,

31
1,

82
2,

71
6 

84
.5

 
74

6,
35

2,
66

3 
17

5.
8 

20
16

 
7,

60
6,

99
7,

53
0 

8,
79

4,
43

4,
13

9 
1,

18
7,

43
6,

60
9 

86
.5

 
78

4,
41

2,
26

0 
15

1.
4 

20
17

 
8,

17
9,

89
1,

19
1 

9,
23

9,
24

6,
92

0 
1,

05
9,

35
5,

72
9 

88
.5

 
86

0,
62

4,
61

3 
12

3.
1 

20
18

 
 8

,6
50

,1
78

,2
26

  
 9

,6
82

,1
43

,7
50

  
 1

,0
31

,9
65

,5
24

  
89

.3
 

 8
96

,3
90

,7
68

  
11

5.
1 

(1
)  

Ex
cl

ud
es

 a
ss

et
s 

fo
r n

on
-v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
se

rv
es

. 
(2

) 
Ex

cl
ud

es
 li

ab
ilit

ie
s 

fo
r n

on
-v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
se

rv
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
44

 
 

H
. A

ct
ua

ri
al

 B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
 

A
n 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n’

s f
un

di
ng

 is
 g

iv
en

 b
y 

an
 A

ct
ua

ria
l B

al
an

ce
 S

he
et

. I
n 

th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h,
 fi

rs
t t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 
th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Pl

an
 fo

r c
ur

re
nt

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
. T

he
n 

th
es

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

re
 d

is
co

un
te

d 
at

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
 to

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 v

al
ua

tio
n,

 th
er

eb
y 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

th
e 

pr
es

en
t v

al
ue

, r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 a
s t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
Be

ne
fit

s o
f t

he
 P

la
n.

 

Se
co

nd
, t

hi
s A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
B

en
ef

its
 is

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

as
se

ts
. T

he
 “

as
se

ts
” 

fo
r t

hi
s p

ur
po

se
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ne

t a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

as
se

ts
 a

lre
ad

y 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
, t

he
 p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

, t
he

 p
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
, a

nd
 th

e 
pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y.

 

AC
TU

AR
IA

L 
B

AL
AN

C
E 

SH
EE

T 
FO

R
 Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f F
ut

ur
e 

Be
ne

fit
s(1

) 
 

 
 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f b
en

ef
its

 fo
r r

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

$3
,4

96
,9

42
,3

67
 

$2
,6

89
,5

76
,1

48
 

$6
,1

86
,5

18
,5

15
 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f b
en

ef
its

 fo
r i

na
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
(2

)  
22

1,
61

7,
07

9 
78

,2
60

,0
01

 
29

9,
87

7,
08

0 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f b
en

ef
its

 fo
r a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 

3,
63

5,
33

0,
71

7 
1,

30
6,

93
3,

03
2 

4,
94

2,
26

3,
74

9 

To
ta

l A
ct

ua
ria

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f F
ut

ur
e 

B
en

ef
its

 
$7

,3
53

,8
90

,1
63

 
$4

,0
74

,7
69

,1
81

 
$1

1,
42

8,
65

9,
34

4 

C
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 a

ss
et

s(1
)  

 
 

 

• 
To

ta
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

$5
,3

28
,2

83
,1

67
 

$3
,3

21
,8

95
,0

59
 

$8
,6

50
,1

78
,2

26
 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 b
y 

m
em

be
rs

 
55

9,
80

3,
12

1 
23

0,
92

0,
63

6 
79

0,
72

3,
75

7 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 fo
r: 

 
 

 

» 
En

try
 a

ge
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

73
7,

73
9,

66
4 

21
8,

05
2,

17
3 

95
5,

79
1,

83
7 

» 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
72

8,
06

4,
21

1 
30

3,
90

1,
31

3 
1,

03
1,

96
5,

52
4 

To
ta

l o
f c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 a
ss

et
s 

$7
,3

53
,8

90
,1

63
 

$4
,0

74
,7

69
,1

81
 

$1
1,

42
8,

65
9,

34
4 

(1
) 

Ex
cl

ud
es

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

(2
) 

In
cl

ud
es

 in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

n 
de

po
si

t. 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
45

 
 

I.
 V

ol
at

ili
ty

 R
at

io
s 

R
et

ire
m

en
t p

la
ns

 a
re

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
vo

la
til

ity
 in

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f r

eq
ui

re
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. T
hi

s v
ol

at
ili

ty
 te

nd
s t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

s r
et

ire
m

en
t p

la
ns

 b
ec

om
e 

m
or

e 
m

at
ur

e.
 

Th
e 

A
ss

et
 V

ol
at

ili
ty

 R
at

io
 (A

V
R

), 
w

hi
ch

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s d

iv
id

ed
 b

y 
to

ta
l p

ay
ro

ll,
 p

ro
vi

de
s a

n 
in

di
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
vo

la
til

ity
 fo

r a
ny

 g
iv

en
 le

ve
l o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t v

ol
at

ili
ty

. A
 h

ig
he

r A
V

R
 in

di
ca

te
s t

ha
t t

he
 p

la
n 

is
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
gr

ea
te

r l
ev

el
 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
vo

la
til

ity
. T

hi
s i

s a
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t s

in
ce

 it
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t l
ev

el
 o

f a
ss

et
s. 

 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t A

V
R

 is
 a

bo
ut

 9
.0

. T
hi

s m
ea

ns
 th

at
 a

 1
%

 a
ss

et
 g

ai
n 

or
 lo

ss
 (r

el
at

iv
e 

to
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n)

 tr
an

sl
at

es
 to

 a
bo

ut
 9

.0
%

 o
f 

on
e-

ye
ar

’s
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 S

in
ce

 a
ct

ua
ria

l g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 lo

ss
es

 a
re

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r 1

8 
ye

ar
s, 

th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
0.

7%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

de
cr

ea
se

/(i
nc

re
as

e)
 in

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

1%
 a

ss
et

 g
ai

n/
(lo

ss
). 

 

Th
e 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 V
ol

at
ili

ty
 R

at
io

 (L
V

R
), 

w
hi

ch
 is

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
di

vi
de

d 
by

 p
ay

ro
ll,

 p
ro

vi
de

s a
n 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
-te

rm
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
vo

la
til

ity
 fo

r a
ny

 g
iv

en
 le

ve
l o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t v

ol
at

ili
ty

. T
hi

s i
s b

ec
au

se
, o

ve
r a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 p

er
io

d 
of

 ti
m

e,
 

th
e 

pl
an

’s
 a

ss
et

s s
ho

ul
d 

tra
ck

 th
e 

pl
an

’s
 li

ab
ili

tie
s. 

 

Th
e 

LV
R

 a
ls

o 
in

di
ca

te
s h

ow
 v

ol
at

ile
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
du

e 
to

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
or

 to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 L
V

R
 is

 a
bo

ut
 1

0.
7,

 b
ut

 is
 8

.1
 fo

r G
en

er
al

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 2
1.

8 
fo

r S
af

et
y.

 T
hi

s m
ea

ns
 th

at
 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
gr

ea
te

r i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s f
or

 S
af

et
y 

th
an

 fo
r G

en
er

al
. 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t o
n 

th
e 

ne
xt

 p
ag

e 
sh

ow
s h

ow
 th

e 
as

se
t a

nd
 li

ab
ili

ty
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 ra
tio

s h
av

e 
va

rie
d 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
46

 
 

VO
LA

TI
LI

TY
 R

AT
IO

S 
FO

R
 Y

EA
R

S 
EN

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

00
9 

– 
20

18
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

As
se

t V
ol

at
ili

ty
 R

at
io

 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 V

ol
at

ili
ty

 R
at

io
 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
To

ta
l 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
To

ta
l 

20
09

 
5.

0 
11

.4
 

6.
4 

7.
0 

16
.0

 
9.

1 

20
10

 
5.

6 
13

.1
 

7.
3 

7.
5 

17
.2

 
9.

7 

20
11

 
5.

9 
13

.6
 

7.
6 

8.
0 

18
.6

 
10

.4
 

20
12

 
6.

7 
16

.2
 

8.
7 

9.
0 

22
.5

 
11

.9
 

20
13

 
7.

3 
18

.2
 

9.
5 

8.
6 

22
.3

 
11

.4
 

20
14

 
7.

5 
19

.7
 

9.
9 

8.
6 

23
.5

 
11

.5
 

20
15

 
7.

1 
18

.7
 

9.
3 

8.
4 

23
.3

 
11

.3
 

20
16

 
7.

2 
19

.0
 

9.
5 

8.
3 

23
.1

 
11

.1
 

20
17

 
7.

4 
19

.6
 

9.
7 

8.
0 

22
.2

 
10

.7
 

20
18

 
6.

9 
18

.0
 

9.
0 

8.
1 

21
.8

 
10

.7
 

  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
47

 
 

J.
 R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 a

re
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

a 
fix

ed
 se

t o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 d

at
a 

as
 o

f a
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
da

te
, t

he
re

 is
 ri

sk
 th

at
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 
re

su
lts

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
, p

er
ha

ps
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
, a

s a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
is

 fl
ui

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 n

ot
 e

xa
ct

ly
 tr

ac
k 

cu
rr

en
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. T

hi
s p

ot
en

tia
l d

iv
er

ge
nc

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. 

Th
is

 se
ct

io
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l r

an
ge

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

, b
ut

 d
oe

s i
nc

lu
de

 a
 c

on
ci

se
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
of

 so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

ris
ks

 th
at

 m
ay

 a
ff

ec
t t

he
 P

la
n’

s f
ut

ur
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

di
tio

n.
 W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
a 

m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 ri

sk
s t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

w
ith

 a
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 ri
sk

s i
nh

er
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Pl
an

 th
at

 c
an

 in
fo

rm
 b

ot
h 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g.

 
Th

is
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
ou

ld
 e

na
bl

e 
us

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
to

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

nd
 il

lu
st

ra
te

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 ri

sk
s o

r p
ot

en
tia

l f
ut

ur
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 it
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 d

is
cu

ss
in

g 
an

d 
co

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

ta
ilo

re
d 

sc
en

ar
io

 te
st

in
g,

 se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 te

st
in

g,
 st

re
ss

 te
st

in
g 

an
d 

st
oc

ha
st

ic
 m

od
el

in
g.

  

Th
is

 se
ct

io
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 a
nd

 b
as

ic
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

ris
ks

 th
at

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
an

 o
ng

oi
ng

 in
flu

en
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 

fin
an

ci
al

 h
ea

lth
, a

s w
el

l a
s a

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 h

is
to

ric
al

 tr
en

ds
 a

nd
 m

at
ur

ity
 m

ea
su

re
s. 

R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

ts
 


 

A
ss

et
/L

ia
bi

lit
y 

M
is

m
at

ch
 R

is
k 

(th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
ha

t f
ut

ur
e 

pl
an

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

do
es

 n
ot

 a
ffe

ct
 a

ss
et

 a
nd

 li
ab

ili
ty

 v
al

ue
s i

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

w
ay

, 
ca

us
in

g 
th

em
 to

 d
iv

er
ge

)  
Th

e 
m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
ss

et
/li

ab
ili

ty
 m

is
m

at
ch

 ri
sk

 to
 th

e 
Pl

an
 is

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

is
k,

 a
s d

is
cu

ss
ed

 b
el

ow
. I

n 
fa

ct
, i

nv
es

tm
en

t r
is

k 
ha

s t
he

 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

et
/li

ab
ili

ty
 m

is
m

at
ch

 in
 tw

o 
w

ay
s. 

Th
e 

fir
st

 m
is

m
at

ch
 is

 e
vi

de
nt

 in
 a

nn
ua

l v
al

ua
tio

ns
: w

he
n 

as
se

t v
al

ue
s d

ev
ia

te
 

fro
m

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, t
he

y 
ar

e 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t f
ro

m
 li

ab
ili

ty
 c

ha
ng

es
. T

he
 se

co
nd

 m
is

m
at

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
ca

us
ed

 w
he

n 
sy

st
em

ic
 a

ss
et

 
de

vi
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 m
ay

 si
gn

al
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
, w

hi
ch

 c
au

se
s l

ia
bi

lit
y 

va
lu

es
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s t

o 
m

ov
e 

in
 th

e 
op

po
si

te
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

fro
m

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 a
ss

et
 g

ro
w

th
 ra

te
s. 

A
ss

et
/li

ab
ili

ty
 m

is
m

at
ch

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
be

 c
au

se
d 

by
 d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ris

k 
su

ch
 a

s l
on

ge
vi

ty
, w

hi
ch

 a
ff

ec
ts

 li
ab

ili
tie

s b
ut

 h
av

e 
no

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

as
se

t l
ev

el
s. 

Th
is

 ri
sk

 is
 a

ls
o 

di
sc

us
se

d 
be

lo
w

. 


 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

(th
e 

ris
k 

th
at

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d)

 
Th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

is
 a

 lo
ng

-te
rm

, s
ta

tic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
fo

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
pu

rp
os

es
 e

ve
n 

th
ou

gh
 in

 re
al

ity
 m

ar
ke

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ca
n 

be
 q

ui
te

 v
ol

at
ile

 in
 a

ny
 g

iv
en

 y
ea

r. 
Th

at
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 c
an

 c
au

se
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 h

ea
lth

 o
f t

he
 sy

st
em

, a
ff

ec
tin

g 
bo

th
 fu

nd
ed

 st
at

us
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s. 

Th
e 

in
he

re
nt

 y
ea

r-t
o-

ye
ar

 v
ol

at
ili

ty
 is

 re
du

ce
d 

by
 sm

oo
th

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ue
 o

f 
A

ss
et

s, 
ho

w
ev

er
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ca
n 

st
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

si
za

bl
e 

im
pa

ct
. A

s d
is

cu
ss

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
I, 

Vo
la

til
ity

 R
at

io
s, 

on
 

pa
ge

 4
5,

 a
 1

%
 a

ss
et

 g
ai

n 
or

 lo
ss

 (r
el

at
iv

e 
to

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n)
 tr

an
sl

at
es

 to
 a

bo
ut

 9
.0

%
 o

f o
ne

-y
ea

r’s
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 S

in
ce

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
48

 
 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 lo

ss
es

 a
re

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r 1

8 
ye

ar
s, 

th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
0.

7%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

de
cr

ea
se

/(i
nc

re
as

e)
 in

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

1%
 a

ss
et

 g
ai

n/
(lo

ss
). 

Th
e 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
ov

er
 th

e 
la

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
s h

as
 ra

ng
ed

 fr
om

 a
 lo

w
 o

f -
2.

33
%

 to
 a

 h
ig

h 
of

 1
9.

68
%

. 


 

Lo
ng

ev
ity

 R
is

k 
(th

e 
ris

k 
th

at
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d)

 
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 c
ur

re
nt

 li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

of
 fu

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

, 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

ng
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 li

ab
ili

tie
s f

or
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
ns

. E
m

er
gi

ng
 p

la
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
th

at
 

do
es

 n
ot

 m
at

ch
 th

es
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 in
cr

ea
se

s o
r d

ec
re

as
es

 in
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 T

hi
s r

is
k 

ca
n 

be
 re

du
ce

d 
by

 u
si

ng
 ta

bl
es

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
r t

he
 P

la
n 

(p
ub

lic
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
ta

bl
es

) t
ha

t a
re

 w
ei

gh
te

d 
by

 b
en

ef
it 

le
ve

ls
, a

nd
 b

y 
us

in
g 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l m

or
ta

lit
y 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
. 


 

O
th

er
 R

is
ks

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 lo
ng

ev
ity

, t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f o

th
er

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
to

 m
at

ch
 fu

tu
re

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ex
ac

tly
. O

ne
 

ex
am

pl
e 

is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 sa
la

ry
 sc

al
es

 o
ve

r t
im

e.
 A

s s
al

ar
y 

is
 c

en
tra

l t
o 

th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 b
en

ef
its

 p
ai

d 
in

 re
tir

em
en

t, 
de

vi
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

sa
la

ry
 sc

al
es

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
m

at
er

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 

m
em

be
r. 

Ex
am

pl
es

 o
f d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
tir

em
en

t, 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

, a
nd

 w
ill

 li
ke

ly
 v

ar
y 

in
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
fo

r d
iff

er
en

t c
os

t g
ro

up
s 

(fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 m

or
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fo

r s
af

et
y 

gr
ou

ps
). 

So
m

e 
pl

an
s a

ls
o 

ca
rr

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ris
k,

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 a

ct
ua

l f
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 d
ev

ia
tin

g 
fro

m
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

fu
tu

re
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s h

av
e 

a 
pr

ov
en

 tr
ac

k-
re

co
rd

 o
f m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 D
et

er
m

in
ed

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d’

s 
A

ct
ua

ria
l F

un
di

ng
 P

ol
ic

y,
 so

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ris
k 

is
 m

in
im

al
.  

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 H
is

to
ric

al
 T

re
nd

s 

Pa
st

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ca
n 

he
lp

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
e 

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 o

f k
ey

 re
su

lts
 to

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 O
ve

r t
he

 p
as

t t
en

 y
ea

rs
: 


 

Th
e 

fu
nd

ed
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
on

 th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s b
as

is
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

fro
m

 8
3.

8%
 to

 8
9.

3%
. T

hi
s i

s p
rim

ar
ily

 d
ue

 to
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
to

 a
m

or
tiz

e 
th

e 
U

A
A

L 
(i.

e.
, a

m
or

tiz
in

g 
ea

ch
 la

ye
r o

f U
A

A
L 

ov
er

 1
8 

ye
ar

s a
s a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
) a

nd
 

av
er

ag
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
ov

er
 re

ce
nt

 y
ea

rs
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
on

 a
 sm

oo
th

ed
 b

as
is

. F
or

 a
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

hi
st

or
y 

se
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

2,
 

Su
bs

ec
tio

n 
G

, F
un

de
d 

St
at

us
 st

ar
tin

g 
on

 p
ag

e 
42

.  


 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

ge
om

et
ric

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
on

 th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s o
ve

r t
he

 la
st

 1
0 

ye
ar

s w
as

 6
.0

3%
. T

hi
s i

nc
lu

de
s a

 h
ig

h 
of

 a
 

11
.4

0%
 re

tu
rn

 a
nd

 a
 lo

w
 o

f 0
.3

2%
. T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
 8

.1
3%

. F
or

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ils

 se
e 

th
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 
ta

bl
e 

in
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
B 

on
 p

ag
e 

24
. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
49

 
 


 

Th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

so
ur

ce
 o

f n
ew

 U
A

A
L 

w
as

 th
e 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
of

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
ul

tip
le

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s. 

Fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
 in

 2
01

2 
ch

an
ge

d 
th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
 fr

om
 7

.7
5%

 to
 7

.2
5%

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
es

, a
dd

in
g 

$5
67

 m
ill

io
n 

in
 

un
fu

nd
ed

 li
ab

ili
ty

. T
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
 in

 2
01

5 
ch

an
ge

d 
th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
 fr

om
 7

.2
5%

 to
 7

.0
0%

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
es

, 
ad

di
ng

 $
11

4 
m

ill
io

n 
in

 u
nf

un
de

d 
lia

bi
lit

y.
 F

or
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

n 
th

e 
un

fu
nd

ed
 li

ab
ili

ty
 c

ha
ng

es
 se

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
3,

 E
xh

ib
it 

I, 
Ta

bl
e 

of
 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Ba
se

s s
ta

rti
ng

 o
n 

pa
ge

 8
7.

 


 

Th
e 

pl
an

’s
 fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

de
al

s w
ith

 th
es

e 
un

fu
nd

ed
 li

ab
ili

tie
s o

ve
r t

im
e.

 T
hi

s c
an

 b
e 

se
en

 m
os

t c
le

ar
ly

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
3,

 
Ex

hi
bi

t J
, P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
of

 U
AA

L 
Ba

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

 p
ag

es
 1

00
 a

nd
 1

01
. 

M
at

ur
ity

 M
ea

su
re

s 

In
 th

e 
la

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
s t

he
 ra

tio
 o

f m
em

be
rs

 in
 p

ay
 st

at
us

 to
 a

ct
iv

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
nt

s h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fro

m
 0

.8
2 

to
 0

.9
5.

 T
hi

s r
at

io
 h

as
 fl

uc
tu

at
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
0.

82
 a

nd
 0

.9
9 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
la

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
s. 

A
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ra

tio
 in

di
ca

te
s t

ha
t t

he
 p

la
n 

ha
s g

ro
w

n 
in

 m
at

ur
ity

 o
ve

r t
im

e.
 T

hi
s i

s t
o 

be
 e

xp
ec

te
d,

 b
ut

 is
 

al
so

 in
fo

rm
at

iv
e 

fo
r u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 p
la

n 
se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 to
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 ri
sk

s. 
Fo

r m
or

e 
de

ta
ils

 se
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
A,

 M
em

be
r D

at
a 

on
 p

ag
e 

15
. 

A
s p

en
si

on
 p

la
ns

 m
at

ur
e,

 th
e 

ca
sh

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 fu

lfi
ll 

be
ne

fit
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

ve
r t

im
e.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, c

as
h 

flo
w

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 to
 a

ss
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

is
 a

lig
ne

d 
to

 m
ee

t e
m

er
gi

ng
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

tie
s. 

Fo
r t

he
 p

rio
r y

ea
r b

en
ef

its
 p

ai
d 

w
er

e 
$3

6 
m

ill
io

n 
m

or
e 

th
an

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 re
ce

iv
ed

. P
la

ns
 w

ith
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

ls
 o

f n
eg

at
iv

e 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
s h

av
e 

a 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
 la

rg
er

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
to

 in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
as

se
ts

, w
hi

ch
 c

an
 c

re
at

e 
a 

dr
ag

 o
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s p

la
n 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 h
as

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
 le

ve
ls

 o
f n

eg
at

iv
e 

ca
sh

 fl
ow

s. 
Fo

r m
or

e 
de

ta
ils

 o
n 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 c

as
h 

flo
w

s s
ee

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ris

on
 o

f C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 B
en

ef
its

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

B,
 F

in
an

ci
al

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 p

ag
e 

19
. 

A
 fu

rth
er

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 p

la
n 

m
at

ur
ity

 m
ea

su
re

s a
nd

 h
ow

 th
ey

 re
la

te
 to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 a

ss
et

s a
nd

 li
ab

ili
tie

s i
s i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

I, 
Vo

la
til

ity
 R

at
io

s s
ta

rti
ng

 o
n 

pa
ge

 4
5.

 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
50

 
 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
TO

TA
L 

PL
AN

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
10

,0
21

 
10

,0
38

 
-0

.2
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

46
.2

 
46

.0
 

0.
2 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

9.
9 

9.
8 

0.
1 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$8
96

,3
90

,7
68

  
$8

60
,6

24
,6

12
  

4.
2%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$8
9,

45
1 

 
$8

5,
73

7 
 

4.
3%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$1
,1

04
,6

21
,1

26
  

$1
,0

35
,0

22
,1

13
  

6.
7%

 
• 

To
ta

l a
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 

6,
22

5 
6,

08
9 

2.
2%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 3
,4

77
  

 3
,3

27
  

4.
5%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

46
.5

 
46

.5
 

0.
0 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
7,

21
4 

6,
97

3 
3.

5%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
70

.5
 

70
.4

 
0.

1 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$4
,1

47
  

$4
,0

67
  

2.
0%

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

(3
)  

90
8 

89
6 

1.
3%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

66
.3

 
66

.2
 

0.
1 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$4

,8
18

  
$4

,6
27

  
4.

1%
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
(2

)  
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

1,
42

5 
 1

,3
98

  
1.

9%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
72

.6
 

72
.3

 
0.

3 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,6

45
  

$2
,5

51
  

3.
7%

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

(2
)  

In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 

(3
)  

Fo
r 2

01
8,

 in
cl

ud
es

 7
42

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e-

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

16
6 

m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
51

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 1
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
50

4 
52

9 
-4

.7
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

50
.8

 
50

.5
 

0.
3 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

17
.5

 
16

.5
 

1.
0 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$5
7,

83
2,

24
2 

 
$5

8,
28

6,
29

3 
 

-0
.8

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$1

14
,7

47
  

$1
10

,1
82

  
4.

1%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$7

1,
81

9,
99

4 
 

$6
6,

82
3,

08
1 

 
7.

5%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
49

7 
51

2 
-2

.9
%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 2
29

  
 2

33
  

-1
.7

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
52

.5
 

52
.2

 
0.

3 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
:(2

)  
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

2,
36

3 
2,

43
7 

-3
.0

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
75

.2
 

74
.9

 
0.

3 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$4
,4

02
  

$4
,2

47
  

3.
6%

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

(3
)  

24
7 

25
5 

-3
.1

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
72

.5
 

71
.7

 
0.

8 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,9

61
  

$2
,8

90
  

2.
5%

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

(2
)  

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
68

3 
 6

86
  

-0
.4

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
78

.2
 

78
.0

 
0.

2 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,4

13
  

$2
,3

36
  

3.
3%

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

(2
)  

In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 

(3
)  

Fo
r 2

01
8,

 in
cl

ud
es

 1
80

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e-

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

67
 m

em
be

rs
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
no

n-
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
52

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 2
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r(1
)  

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
:(2

)  
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 1

72
  

 2
01

  
-1

4.
4%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

58
.5

 
57

.6
 

0.
9 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
42

5 
42

0 
1.

2%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
75

.3
 

75
.2

 
0.

1 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$8
67

  
$8

57
  

1.
2%

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

(3
)  

40
 

42
 

-4
.8

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
72

.2
 

71
.6

 
0.

6 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,3

19
  

$2
,3

23
  

-0
.2

%
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
(2

)  
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

10
1 

 1
02

  
-1

.0
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

69
.6

 
68

.7
 

0.
9 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$9

33
  

$8
91

  
4.

7%
 

(1
)  

As
 o

f t
he

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

5 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 lo
ng

er
 a

ny
 T

ie
r 2

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
s 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
al

l t
ra

ns
fe

rre
d 

to
 T

ie
r 3

.  
(2

)  
In

cl
ud

es
 m

em
be

rs
 fr

om
 te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

 
(3

)  
Fo

r 2
01

8,
 in

cl
ud

es
 2

1 
m

em
be

rs
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
se

rv
ic

e-
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
19

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
53

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 3
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
4,

43
6 

4,
73

8 
-6

.4
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

51
.2

 
50

.7
 

0.
5 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

14
.6

 
13

.9
 

0.
7 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$4
06

,7
83

,0
49

  
$4

16
,5

11
,4

31
  

-2
.3

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$9

1,
70

0 
 

$8
7,

90
9 

 
4.

3%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$5

53
,0

49
,5

09
  

$5
23

,5
94

,1
20

  
5.

6%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
4,

30
4 

4,
50

7 
-4

.5
%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 1

,7
45

  
 1

,7
43

  
0.

1%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
48

.7
 

48
.2

 
0.

5 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
3,

12
4 

2,
87

8 
8.

5%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
68

.1
 

67
.8

 
0.

3 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,8

54
  

$2
,7

78
  

2.
7%

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
(2

)  
84

 
83

 
1.

2%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
62

.5
 

62
.6

 
-0

.1
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$2

,4
89

  
$2

,3
90

  
4.

1%
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
21

8 
 2

04
  

6.
9%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

62
.1

 
61

.0
 

1.
1 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$1

,5
93

  
$1

,5
56

  
2.

4%
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
(2

)  
Fo

r 2
01

8,
 in

cl
ud

es
 2

6 
m

em
be

rs
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
se

rv
ic

e-
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
58

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
54

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 4
 –

 2
%

 C
O

LA
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
25

 
18

 
38

.9
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

45
.5

 
43

.1
 

2.
4 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

1.
9 

1.
5 

0.
4 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$1
,7

23
,8

00
  

$1
,1

32
,6

69
  

52
.2

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$6

8,
95

2 
 

$6
2,

92
6 

 
9.

6%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$3

02
,2

80
  

$1
47

,9
03

  
10

4.
4%

 
• 

To
ta

l a
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 

1 
0 

N
/A

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 4

  
 4

  
0.

0%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
44

.8
 

48
.3

 
-3

.5
 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
55

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 4
 –

 3
%

 C
O

LA
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
14

8 
12

9 
14

.7
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

40
.9

 
41

.1
 

-0
.2

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
2.

6 
2.

2 
0.

4 
• 

To
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

ed
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n(1

)  
$1

3,
14

9,
54

3 
 

$1
0,

96
8,

71
6 

 
19

.9
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$8
8,

84
8 

 
$8

5,
02

9 
 

4.
5%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$3
,3

08
,5

30
  

$1
,9

94
,0

64
  

65
.9

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
15

 
2 

65
0.

0%
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 1
9 

 
 1

4 
 

35
.7

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
39

.2
 

37
.0

 
2.

2 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
56

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 5
 –

 2
%

 C
O

LA
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
2,

67
9 

2,
35

0 
14

.0
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

40
.7

 
39

.9
 

0.
8 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

2.
0 

1.
5 

0.
5 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$1
86

,6
91

,2
70

  
$1

52
,2

26
,3

51
  

22
.6

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$6

9,
68

7 
 

$6
4,

77
7 

 
7.

6%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$3

4,
57

2,
42

9 
 

$2
0,

01
5,

21
3 

 
72

.7
%

 
• 

To
ta

l a
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 

30
 

12
 

15
0.

0%
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 5
91

  
 4

17
  

41
.7

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
39

.6
 

39
.6

 
0.

0 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
3 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
67

.9
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$2

79
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
57

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 5
 –

 3
%

 C
O

LA
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
77

0 
80

1 
-3

.9
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

44
.0

 
43

.1
 

0.
9 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

4.
5 

3.
6 

0.
9 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$5
8,

72
3,

30
4 

 
$5

8,
29

3,
24

9 
 

0.
7%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$7
6,

26
4 

 
$7

2,
77

6 
 

4.
8%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$2
6,

32
7,

95
4 

 
$2

0,
23

7,
02

4 
 

30
.1

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
33

4 
3 

11
03

3.
3%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 2

86
  

 2
74

  
4.

4%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
42

.4
 

41
.5

 
0.

9 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
8 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
62

.8
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$4

22
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
58

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 A

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
87

4 
94

5 
-7

.5
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

45
.6

 
45

.2
 

0.
4 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

16
.2

 
15

.8
 

0.
4 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$1
14

,7
96

,8
76

  
$1

15
,7

55
,7

98
  

-0
.8

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$1

31
,3

47
  

$1
22

,4
93

  
7.

2%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$3

80
,6

80
,9

46
  

$3
77

,6
72

,1
09

  
0.

8%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
86

5 
93

5 
-7

.5
%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 2
97

  
 3

14
  

-5
.4

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
45

.9
 

45
.2

 
0.

7 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
:(2

)  
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

1,
28

9 
1,

23
8 

4.
1%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

66
.4

 
66

.2
 

0.
2 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$7

,9
29

  
$7

,7
96

  
1.

7%
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
:(2

)  
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
(3

)  
52

8 
50

9 
3.

7%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
64

.0
 

63
.9

 
0.

1 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$6
,2

68
  

$6
,0

63
  

3.
4%

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

(2
)  

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
42

3 
40

6 
4.

2%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
69

.7
 

69
.2

 
0.

5 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$3
,9

69
  

$3
,8

33
  

3.
5%

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

(2
)  

In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 

(3
)  

Fo
r 2

01
8,

 in
cl

ud
es

 5
07

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e-

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

21
 m

em
be

rs
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
no

n-
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
59

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 C

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
12

7 
12

8 
-0

.8
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

38
.2

 
37

.4
 

0.
8 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

8.
7 

7.
6 

1.
1 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$1
4,

28
7,

19
9 

 
$1

3,
47

6,
64

3 
 

6.
0%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$1
12

,4
98

  
$1

05
,2

86
  

6.
8%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$1
5,

28
9,

27
7 

 
$1

2,
54

8,
37

7 
 

21
.8

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
12

4 
11

8 
5.

1%
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 7
2 

 
 7

4 
 

-2
.7

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
35

.2
 

34
.5

 
0.

7 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
2 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
63

.1
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$1

,9
02

  
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
(2

)  
8 

7 
14

.3
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

42
.9

 
43

.1
 

-0
.2

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$3
,6

65
  

$3
,7

58
  

-2
.5

%
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
(2

)  
Fo

r 2
01

8,
 in

cl
ud

es
 7

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e-

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

1 
m

em
be

r r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 a

 n
on

-s
er

vi
ce

 c
on

ne
ct

ed
 d

is
ab

ilit
y.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
60

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 D

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
12

2 
11

5 
6.

1%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
34

.2
 

33
.6

 
0.

6 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
3.

6 
2.

8 
0.

8 
• 

To
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

ed
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n(1

)  
$1

2,
04

8,
78

3 
 

$9
,9

27
,0

39
  

21
.4

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$9

8,
76

1 
 

$8
6,

32
2 

 
14

.4
%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$7
,0

62
,6

83
  

$4
,7

01
,8

83
  

50
.2

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
26

 
0 

N
/A

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 2

2 
 

 2
1 

 
4.

8%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
35

.3
 

33
.4

 
1.

9 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

(2
)  

1 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

56
.2

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,1

60
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
(2

)  
Fo

r 2
01

8,
 in

cl
ud

es
 1

 m
em

be
r r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
-c

on
ne

ct
ed

 d
is

ab
ilit

y.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
61

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 E

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
33

6 
28

5 
17

.9
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

32
.6

 
31

.9
 

0.
7 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

2.
7 

2.
2 

0.
5 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$3
0,

35
4,

70
3 

 
$2

4,
04

6,
42

4 
 

26
.2

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$9

0,
34

1 
 

$8
4,

37
3 

 
7.

1%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$1

2,
20

7,
52

5 
 

$7
,2

88
,3

39
  

67
.5

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
29

 
0 

N
/A

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 4

0 
 

 3
2 

 
25

.0
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

31
.5

 
31

.3
 

0.
2 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
62

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
TO

TA
L 

PL
AN

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

93
 

93
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$6

1,
31

7 
 

$6
1,

31
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
66

1 
61

9 
41

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

0,
82

0 
 

$6
9,

78
6 

 
$8

6,
76

3 
 

$5
7,

23
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
30

 - 
34

 
1,

20
5 

84
9 

30
3 

53
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

0,
95

5 
 

$7
6,

04
6 

 
$9

0,
90

1 
 

$1
02

,7
37

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
1,

35
1 

64
9 

34
0 

30
6 

56
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

9,
56

1 
 

$7
9,

10
5 

 
$9

6,
43

5 
 

$1
02

,5
69

  
$9

7,
92

1 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

1,
33

6 
47

3 
26

7 
29

8 
25

6 
42

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
4,

06
3 

 
$7

9,
01

0 
 

$9
4,

67
7 

 
$1

07
,3

84
  

$1
05

,7
49

  
$9

3,
95

0 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

1,
47

9 
42

8 
23

4 
29

7 
32

5 
15

4 
39

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

6,
41

5 
 

$7
4,

95
5 

 
$9

1,
81

2 
 

$1
01

,8
87

  
$1

10
,2

15
  

$1
17

,9
53

  
$1

18
,8

16
  

$7
7,

16
3 

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
1,

44
3 

33
2 

21
7 

24
3 

30
4 

18
7 

11
3 

41
 

5 
1 

 
$9

5,
13

9 
 

$7
6,

86
3 

 
$8

9,
06

4 
 

$9
3,

68
8 

 
$1

03
,8

72
  

$1
07

,4
94

  
$1

08
,7

86
  

$1
19

,7
13

  
$1

40
,3

78
  

$9
3,

16
4 

 
55

 - 
59

 
1,

21
6 

27
1 

19
1 

17
7 

22
2 

15
3 

10
5 

61
 

30
 

6 
 

$9
1,

82
6 

 
$7

6,
75

1 
 

$8
3,

68
5 

 
$9

0,
61

9 
 

$9
4,

96
4 

 
$1

00
,5

47
  

$1
10

,6
30

  
$1

18
,7

26
  

$8
2,

47
8 

 
$1

73
,0

69
  

60
 - 

64
 

85
7 

17
3 

14
7 

16
1 

14
4 

94
 

69
 

32
 

25
 

12
 

 
$8

8,
04

6 
 

$7
4,

25
4 

 
$8

5,
77

6 
 

$8
8,

63
4 

 
$8

6,
94

5 
 

$9
5,

53
7 

 
$9

8,
53

2 
 

$1
12

,1
50

  
$9

1,
97

5 
 

$1
28

,5
65

  
65

 - 
69

 
30

0 
42

 
84

 
61

 
41

 
36

 
21

 
8 

4 
3 

 
$8

8,
02

7 
 

$7
7,

00
5 

 
$8

0,
83

7 
 

$8
9,

58
6 

 
$9

6,
32

2 
 

$9
9,

05
8 

 
$8

8,
68

7 
 

$9
7,

66
4 

 
$9

9,
77

4 
 

$1
20

,2
35

  
70

 &
 o

ve
r 

80
 

14
 

16
 

22
 

18
 

4 
3 

2 
1 

- -
 

 
$7

8,
16

3 
 

$5
9,

61
2 

 
$8

6,
21

6 
 

$8
4,

23
2 

 
$7

7,
78

9 
 

$8
9,

79
8 

 
$6

7,
67

7 
 

$8
9,

38
5 

 
$4

4,
69

8 
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
10

,0
21

 
3,

94
3 

1,
84

0 
1,

61
9 

1,
36

6 
67

0 
35

0 
14

6 
65

 
22

 
 

$8
9,

45
1 

 
$7

5,
44

7 
 

$9
0,

62
0 

 
$9

8,
54

4 
 

$1
01

,6
87

  
$1

05
,2

26
  

$1
06

,8
77

  
$1

15
,4

36
  

$9
1,

06
8 

 
$1

37
,9

57
  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
63

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 1
 N

O
N

-E
N

H
AN

C
ED

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

46
,0

70
  

- -
 

- -
 

$8
5,

23
9 

 
$2

06
,9

01
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

0,
19

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$8
0,

19
8 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
4 

- -
 

3 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

1,
76

2 
 

- -
 

$7
5,

67
8 

 
$1

00
,0

14
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
7 

- -
 

3 
2 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

9,
91

2 
 

- -
 

$7
5,

67
8 

 
$9

2,
62

7 
 

$2
06

,9
01

  
$8

0,
19

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
64

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 1
 E

N
H

AN
C

ED
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
3 

- -
 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
34

,1
82

  
- -

 
$1

34
,1

82
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

23
 

2 
17

 
4 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

15
,9

28
  

$1
04

,6
63

  
$1

16
,5

52
  

$1
18

,9
09

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
51

 
8 

17
 

20
 

6 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
15

,7
89

  
$1

11
,8

13
  

$1
12

,1
04

  
$1

24
,5

70
  

$1
02

,2
58

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
63

 
9 

15
 

18
 

19
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
15

,7
09

  
$1

33
,1

24
  

$1
07

,5
14

  
$1

21
,3

74
  

$1
10

,9
68

  
$9

2,
85

5 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

74
 

3 
13

 
15

 
28

 
13

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

19
,8

93
  

$1
32

,2
92

  
$1

22
,9

72
  

$1
18

,5
91

  
$1

21
,0

03
  

$1
12

,5
70

  
$1

23
,1

03
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

10
6 

4 
9 

20
 

40
 

16
 

13
 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
18

,3
46

  
$1

15
,4

80
  

$1
55

,0
07

  
$1

08
,3

50
  

$1
22

,0
63

  
$1

04
,8

74
  

$1
08

,4
01

  
$1

37
,7

52
  

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

91
 

5 
9 

17
 

26
 

10
 

13
 

8 
3 

- -
 

 
$1

12
,4

82
  

$1
09

,1
23

  
$1

28
,8

15
  

$1
03

,5
86

  
$1

12
,5

11
  

$1
03

,4
94

  
$1

26
,1

00
  

$1
21

,0
74

  
$6

7,
27

9 
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

60
 

2 
12

 
10

 
10

 
11

 
8 

4 
1 

2 
 

$1
06

,2
28

  
$1

16
,9

21
  

$1
18

,7
78

  
$1

11
,2

61
  

$1
11

,8
30

  
$9

1,
02

3 
 

$1
06

,3
85

  
$1

05
,4

81
  

$6
0,

25
1 

 
$7

4,
53

6 
 

65
 - 

69
 

23
 

1 
4 

3 
8 

1 
2 

- -
 

1 
3 

 
$1

12
,1

06
  

$1
04

,4
58

  
$1

09
,5

79
  

$1
30

,4
15

  
$1

07
,9

81
  

$6
2,

35
0 

 
$9

8,
10

1 
 

- -
 

$1
61

,3
09

  
$1

20
,2

35
  

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

2 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

8,
09

9 
 

- -
 

- -
 

$6
7,

88
6 

 
$1

28
,5

24
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
49

7 
34

 
99

 
10

9 
13

8 
53

 
38

 
16

 
5 

5 
 

$1
14

,9
55

  
$1

18
,9

61
  

$1
20

,3
95

  
$1

14
,6

63
  

$1
16

,1
49

  
$1

02
,3

71
  

$1
14

,2
63

  
$1

21
,3

45
  

$8
4,

68
0 

 
$1

01
,9

55
  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
65

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 3
 E

N
H

AN
C

ED
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
11

 
- -

 
11

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
3,

79
7 

 
- -

 
$6

3,
79

7 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

18
0 

28
 

12
4 

28
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

9,
64

7 
 

$7
9,

95
1 

 
$7

8,
64

8 
 

$8
3,

76
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
45

3 
37

 
18

5 
19

6 
35

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
1,

82
7 

 
$9

1,
24

1 
 

$9
5,

73
8 

 
$9

0,
10

8 
 

$8
1,

39
5 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
59

2 
38

 
18

3 
20

6 
13

3 
32

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
3,

83
3 

 
$9

1,
29

4 
 

$9
4,

55
6 

 
$9

9,
10

7 
 

$8
7,

84
8 

 
$8

3,
63

2 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

69
4 

27
 

15
8 

22
0 

17
4 

92
 

21
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
3,

22
7 

 
$9

0,
77

0 
 

$9
0,

10
6 

 
$9

3,
42

9 
 

$9
1,

45
6 

 
$1

04
,0

21
  

$8
6,

65
1 

 
$7

7,
16

3 
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

86
0 

33
 

16
2 

20
3 

21
1 

13
4 

79
 

32
 

5 
1 

 
$9

2,
98

1 
 

$9
2,

07
9 

 
$8

6,
07

5 
 

$8
9,

15
0 

 
$9

2,
24

1 
 

$1
00

,6
37

  
$9

6,
79

2 
 

$1
09

,1
61

  
$1

40
,3

78
  

$9
3,

16
4 

 
55

 - 
59

 
78

8 
22

 
13

6 
15

4 
17

1 
13

6 
87

 
49

 
27

 
6 

 
$9

3,
68

2 
 

$1
06

,7
05

  
$8

3,
45

0 
 

$8
8,

26
0 

 
$8

7,
98

6 
 

$9
8,

25
5 

 
$1

05
,0

77
  

$1
15

,7
49

  
$8

4,
16

7 
 

$1
73

,0
69

  
60

 - 
64

 
57

5 
13

 
93

 
14

2 
13

0 
78

 
59

 
27

 
23

 
10

 
 

$9
0,

08
5 

 
$9

2,
58

5 
 

$8
6,

90
7 

 
$8

5,
40

3 
 

$8
4,

29
4 

 
$9

4,
33

9 
 

$9
3,

72
9 

 
$1

11
,3

23
  

$9
3,

01
5 

 
$1

39
,3

70
  

65
 - 

69
 

22
0 

5 
65

 
55

 
31

 
34

 
19

 
8 

3 
- -

 
 

$8
7,

71
8 

 
$7

2,
84

8 
 

$8
1,

90
0 

 
$8

6,
30

7 
 

$9
0,

38
7 

 
$9

9,
29

1 
 

$8
7,

69
6 

 
$9

7,
66

4 
 

$7
9,

26
2 

 
- -

 
70

 &
 o

ve
r 

63
 

2 
14

 
20

 
17

 
4 

3 
2 

1 
- -

 
 

$7
9,

64
9 

 
$3

6,
04

3 
 

$8
3,

65
3 

 
$8

5,
86

6 
 

$7
4,

80
4 

 
$8

9,
79

8 
 

$6
7,

67
7 

 
$8

9,
38

5 
 

$4
4,

69
8 

 
- -

 
To

ta
l 

4,
43

6 
20

5 
1,

13
1 

1,
22

4 
90

2 
51

0 
26

8 
12

0 
59

 
17

 
 

$9
1,

70
0 

 
$9

0,
53

9 
 

$8
8,

04
3 

 
$9

0,
89

7 
 

$8
8,

67
7 

 
$9

8,
40

7 
 

$9
7,

04
2 

 
$1

10
,7

08
  

$9
1,

46
1 

 
$1

48
,5

46
  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
66

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 4
 –

 2
%

 C
O

LA
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
5,

29
9 

 
$6

5,
29

9 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

3 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

0,
03

7 
 

$7
0,

03
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$5
3,

08
4 

 
$5

3,
08

4 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$4

4,
44

5 
 

$4
4,

44
5 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
06

,9
10

  
$1

06
,9

10
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

7 
6 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
4,

46
0 

 
$6

4,
83

0 
 

$6
2,

24
3 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
4 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
2,

60
8 

 
$6

2,
60

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

1,
71

2 
 

$9
1,

71
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
25

 
24

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$6

8,
95

2 
 

$6
9,

23
2 

 
$6

2,
24

3 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
67

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 4
 –

 3
%

 C
O

LA
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

5,
74

3 
 

$8
5,

74
3 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
24

 
24

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
5,

26
8 

 
$7

5,
26

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

25
 

23
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
2,

62
3 

 
$9

4,
03

0 
 

$7
6,

44
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
24

 
23

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

5,
83

9 
 

$9
7,

43
9 

 
$5

9,
02

5 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

25
 

25
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

7,
26

6 
 

$8
7,

26
6 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
16

 
15

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

1,
39

5 
 

$8
9,

24
8 

 
$1

23
,5

92
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

15
 

11
 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
2,

48
5 

 
$8

9,
09

3 
 

$1
01

,8
15

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
12

 
10

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

0,
46

8 
 

$9
0,

47
7 

 
$9

0,
42

4 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

5 
4 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
8,

42
2 

 
$8

4,
79

3 
 

$1
02

,9
39

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
1 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
2,

71
0 

 
$8

2,
71

0 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
14

8 
13

7 
11

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
8,

84
8 

 
$8

8,
48

9 
 

$9
3,

32
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
68

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 5
 –

 2
%

 C
O

LA
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

59
 

59
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$5

1,
27

7 
 

$5
1,

27
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
39

6 
39

6 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
2,

06
2 

 
$6

2,
06

2 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

60
0 

59
2 

8 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
1,

51
2 

 
$7

0,
91

7 
 

$1
15

,5
10

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
41

6 
41

3 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

3,
48

8 
 

$7
3,

11
9 

 
$1

24
,1

80
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

31
1 

31
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

2,
61

6 
 

$7
2,

61
6 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
31

8 
31

5 
2 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
0,

18
2 

 
$6

9,
90

3 
 

$9
3,

03
3 

 
$1

12
,4

46
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

22
1 

22
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

0,
66

5 
 

$7
0,

66
5 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
18

4 
18

0 
3 

- -
 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
1,

20
2 

 
$7

1,
18

0 
 

$5
4,

86
3 

 
- -

 
$1

24
,1

80
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

13
3 

12
7 

6 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
8,

96
0 

 
$6

8,
97

2 
 

$6
8,

70
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
31

 
28

 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

1,
37

9 
 

$7
2,

73
3 

 
$5

8,
73

9 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
10

 
10

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
0,

75
8 

 
$6

0,
75

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
2,

67
9 

2,
65

2 
25

 
1 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
9,

68
7 

 
$6

9,
46

4 
 

$8
9,

43
0 

 
$1

12
,4

46
  

$1
24

,1
80

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
69

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 5
 –

 3
%

 C
O

LA
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

3 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$4

7,
40

2 
 

$4
7,

40
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
42

 
29

 
12

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$6

2,
21

6 
 

$5
7,

98
8 

 
$7

2,
84

6 
 

$5
7,

23
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
30

 - 
34

 
13

2 
77

 
55

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
5,

18
0 

 
$7

7,
40

6 
 

$7
2,

06
4 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
16

4 
92

 
71

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

9,
01

8 
 

$8
1,

37
2 

 
$7

6,
22

5 
 

$6
0,

69
0 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
11

2 
65

 
47

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
3,

15
2 

 
$8

5,
22

7 
 

$8
0,

28
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
95

 
54

 
41

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
6,

84
8 

 
$8

1,
75

8 
 

$7
0,

38
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
74

 
41

 
33

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
7,

03
9 

 
$7

9,
95

9 
 

$7
3,

41
0 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
72

 
43

 
29

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
1,

51
4 

 
$7

4,
44

0 
 

$6
7,

17
6 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
54

 
22

 
31

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

1,
66

9 
 

$7
8,

67
6 

 
$6

7,
33

8 
 

$5
1,

77
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
18

 
7 

11
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

7,
13

9 
 

$9
2,

32
4 

 
$6

7,
47

5 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
4 

2 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

0,
80

7 
 

$7
7,

45
2 

 
$1

04
,1

63
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
77

0 
43

5 
33

2 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

6,
26

4 
 

$7
8,

70
4 

 
$7

3,
24

5 
 

$5
6,

56
6 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
70

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 A

 N
O

N
-E

N
H

AN
C

ED
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
2 

- -
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
32

,5
59

  
- -

 
$1

32
,5

59
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

38
,4

40
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$1
38

,4
40

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
44

,8
86

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

44
,8

86
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

5 
- -

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

3 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

42
,9

38
  

- -
 

$1
30

,8
85

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

43
,6

18
  

$1
52

,9
49

  
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

70
,2

81
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$2
03

,0
23

  
$1

37
,5

39
  

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
13

 
- -

 
3 

- -
 

4 
- -

 
4 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
45

,1
55

  
- -

 
$1

32
,0

01
  

- -
 

$1
41

,6
63

  
- -

 
$1

58
,4

69
  

$1
45

,2
44

  
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
71

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 A

 E
N

H
AN

C
ED

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
2 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

12
,0

15
  

$1
13

,3
20

  
$1

10
,7

09
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

67
 

17
 

34
 

16
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

18
,7

69
  

$1
07

,7
08

  
$1

19
,8

21
  

$1
28

,2
85

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
13

9 
16

 
31

 
77

 
15

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
24

,9
30

  
$1

10
,8

76
  

$1
21

,6
55

  
$1

27
,2

55
  

$1
34

,7
48

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
19

0 
5 

12
 

64
 

10
1 

8 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
28

,6
16

  
$1

52
,2

93
  

$1
21

,2
10

  
$1

28
,9

28
  

$1
27

,5
80

  
$1

35
,4

96
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

25
2 

3 
9 

55
 

12
0 

49
 

16
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

37
,1

52
  

$1
36

,4
48

  
$1

44
,1

43
  

$1
29

,7
16

  
$1

33
,5

15
  

$1
45

,5
40

  
$1

60
,4

96
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

13
3 

1 
4 

17
 

53
 

36
 

18
 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
38

,0
41

  
$1

30
,6

53
  

$1
17

,3
03

  
$1

26
,6

30
  

$1
36

,4
48

  
$1

34
,9

42
  

$1
55

,8
94

  
$1

77
,7

80
  

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

48
 

1 
4 

5 
24

 
7 

4 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

28
,9

56
  

$9
1,

13
3 

 
$1

10
,6

31
  

$1
17

,3
16

  
$1

24
,4

59
  

$1
40

,8
65

  
$1

58
,0

39
  

$1
54

,8
12

  
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
23

 
- -

 
2 

8 
4 

5 
2 

1 
1 

- -
 

 
$1

28
,9

85
  

- -
 

$1
22

,6
81

  
$1

22
,3

12
  

$1
10

,8
99

  
$1

24
,1

45
  

$2
08

,7
87

  
$1

61
,1

37
  

$9
9,

77
4 

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
7 

- -
 

1 
3 

2 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

21
,1

25
  

- -
 

$1
10

,0
80

  
$1

08
,8

77
  

$1
41

,6
63

  
$1

27
,8

37
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
86

1 
44

 
98

 
24

5 
31

9 
10

6 
40

 
8 

1 
- -

 
 

$1
31

,1
38

  
$1

16
,1

59
  

$1
22

,1
93

  
$1

27
,6

79
  

$1
31

,2
67

  
$1

39
,6

98
  

$1
60

,5
94

  
$1

67
,0

87
  

$9
9,

77
4 

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
72

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 C

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
7 

- -
 

7 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
11

,2
94

  
- -

 
$1

11
,2

94
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

44
 

2 
37

 
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

10
,7

82
  

$9
8,

21
6 

 
$1

10
,9

90
  

$1
14

,2
71

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
35

 
2 

21
 

12
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

10
,7

75
  

$1
02

,0
52

  
$1

09
,4

64
  

$1
14

,5
23

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
19

 
1 

7 
10

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

09
,2

88
  

$2
0,

05
6 

 
$1

13
,0

22
  

$1
14

,8
13

  
$1

17
,1

31
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

12
 

- -
 

7 
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

16
,2

91
  

- -
 

$1
14

,3
45

  
$1

19
,0

16
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

6 
- -

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
40

,7
40

  
- -

 
$1

65
,1

34
  

$1
16

,3
47

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
2 

- -
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
10

,8
35

  
- -

 
$1

10
,8

35
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

2 
1 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
09

,2
71

  
$1

07
,6

07
  

$1
10

,9
35

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
12

7 
6 

85
 

35
 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
12

,4
98

  
$8

8,
03

3 
 

$1
12

,9
88

  
$1

15
,3

68
  

$1
17

,1
31

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
73

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 D

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

3 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

1,
03

2 
 

$7
1,

03
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
33

 
32

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

5,
85

9 
 

$9
6,

33
0 

 
$8

0,
77

5 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

46
 

33
 

13
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

9,
84

6 
 

$1
00

,6
92

  
$9

7,
69

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

35
 - 

39
 

22
 

18
 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
00

,9
90

  
$9

6,
56

0 
 

$1
20

,9
25

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
9 

7 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

2,
11

8 
 

$8
3,

79
9 

 
$1

21
,2

31
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

3 
1 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
13

,4
46

  
$8

5,
59

4 
 

$1
27

,3
73

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
2 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
16

,4
45

  
$1

16
,4

46
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

3 
2 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
04

,3
12

  
$1

14
,8

72
  

$8
3,

19
4 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
1 

- -
 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
42

,4
42

  
- -

 
$1

42
,4

42
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

65
 - 

69
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
70

 &
 o

ve
r 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
To

ta
l 

12
2 

98
 

24
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

8,
76

1 
 

$9
6,

85
1 

 
$1

06
,5

58
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
74

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 E

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

27
 

27
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

2,
82

1 
 

$8
2,

82
1 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
14

0 
13

4 
6 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

8,
20

9 
 

$8
7,

62
0 

 
$1

01
,3

82
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

85
 

72
 

13
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

1,
37

3 
 

$8
9,

56
3 

 
$1

01
,3

96
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

35
 - 

39
 

42
 

37
 

5 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
9,

89
6 

 
$8

8,
31

3 
 

$1
01

,6
04

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
12

 
11

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

0,
65

6 
 

$8
9,

73
9 

 
$1

00
,7

41
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

8 
7 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
3,

10
7 

 
$9

2,
01

6 
 

$1
00

,7
41

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
13

 
13

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
06

,9
21

  
$1

06
,9

21
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

6 
4 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
04

,0
80

  
$1

04
,2

74
  

$1
03

,6
91

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
26

,5
78

  
$1

26
,5

78
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

65
 - 

69
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
70

 &
 o

ve
r 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
To

ta
l 

33
6 

30
8 

28
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

0,
34

1 
 

$8
9,

32
3 

 
$1

01
,5

47
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
75

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

TO
TA

L 
PL

AN
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 1

7 
 

 6
  

 3
  

 3
  

 1
  

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 
$9

63
  

$1
65

  
$1

,2
53

  
$1

,4
68

  
$7

19
  

$3
68

  
$1

,5
11

  
- -

 
$4

,2
45

  
- -

 
30

 - 
34

 
 1

5 
 

 7
  

 3
  

 1
  

 2
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,2
58

  
$1

,3
66

  
$1

,0
58

  
$9

18
  

$1
,9

81
  

$6
24

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 1

8 
 

 4
  

 4
  

 3
  

 2
  

 3
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,9
48

  
$2

,5
77

  
$3

,7
52

  
$6

49
  

$1
,4

25
  

$8
05

  
$1

,2
70

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
 4

7 
 

 1
5 

 
 1

1 
 

 1
0 

 
 1

  
 5

  
 4

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 

$2
,9

05
  

$3
,7

55
  

$3
,0

92
  

$3
,5

23
  

$1
,7

06
  

$6
82

  
$1

,1
99

  
- -

 
$1

,0
50

  
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 9

7 
 

 3
7 

 
 1

6 
 

 1
7 

 
 1

4 
 

 8
  

 5
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$3

,4
59

  
$4

,5
00

  
$3

,0
57

  
$4

,2
13

  
$2

,4
53

  
$1

,1
23

  
$1

,0
38

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
 4

02
  

 2
93

  
 5

7 
 

 2
2 

 
 1

6 
 

 8
  

 6
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$4

,5
70

  
$4

,5
85

  
$5

,7
01

  
$3

,9
00

  
$3

,4
40

  
$2

,4
36

  
$1

,3
64

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
 8

48
  

 3
78

  
 3

68
  

 3
7 

 
 3

2 
 

 2
1 

 
 7

  
 5

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$4
,1

86
  

$3
,1

92
  

$5
,4

60
  

$3
,4

11
  

$3
,3

91
  

$3
,3

03
  

$2
,9

09
  

$1
,9

37
  

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

 1
,3

58
  

 4
41

  
 5

62
  

 2
42

  
 5

6 
 

 2
6 

 
 1

9 
 

 7
  

 4
  

 1
  

 
$4

,1
94

  
$3

,0
13

  
$4

,8
19

  
$5

,3
38

  
$3

,7
61

  
$2

,6
95

  
$2

,7
23

  
$3

,6
22

  
$2

,2
55

  
$4

12
  

65
 - 

69
 

 1
,8

64
  

 3
97

  
 6

65
  

 4
86

  
 2

06
  

 5
0 

 
 3

2 
 

 1
7 

 
 6

  
 5

  
 

$4
,1

16
  

$2
,8

02
  

$4
,4

69
  

$4
,9

90
  

$4
,0

55
  

$3
,0

17
  

$3
,1

88
  

$3
,0

01
  

$2
,5

71
  

$1
,4

95
  

70
 - 

74
 

 1
,9

27
  

 1
50

  
 4

90
  

 5
41

  
 4

51
  

 1
69

  
 5

3 
 

 3
6 

 
 2

1 
 

 1
6 

 
 

$4
,2

58
  

$2
,2

25
  

$3
,9

19
  

$5
,0

04
  

$5
,3

01
  

$2
,7

32
  

$3
,4

24
  

$2
,9

50
  

$2
,8

56
  

$2
,7

27
  

75
 - 

79
 

 1
,2

58
  

 2
2 

 
 1

39
  

 3
20

  
 3

64
  

 2
17

  
 1

20
  

 4
2 

 
 2

3 
 

 1
1 

 
 

$3
,8

57
  

$1
,8

18
  

$2
,9

86
  

$3
,4

52
  

$4
,5

93
  

$4
,5

73
  

$3
,3

04
  

$3
,0

12
  

$2
,9

77
  

$3
,3

76
  

80
  -

 8
4 

 8
20

  
 4

  
 2

2 
 

 7
2 

 
 1

93
  

 2
15

  
 1

63
  

 1
06

  
 3

0 
 

 1
5 

 
 

$3
,6

09
  

$1
,9

66
  

$2
,4

74
  

$2
,6

30
  

$3
,5

17
  

$4
,1

22
  

$4
,4

15
  

$2
,5

26
  

$3
,5

60
  

$3
,2

25
  

85
 - 

89
 

 4
97

  
 - 

-  
 2

  
 9

  
 2

7 
 

 1
11

  
 1

27
  

 1
12

  
 7

2 
 

 3
7 

 
 

$3
,1

84
  

- -
 

$2
,0

20
  

$3
,0

70
  

$2
,0

19
  

$3
,6

92
  

$3
,6

69
  

$2
,9

68
  

$2
,4

77
  

$2
,9

73
  

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 3

79
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 2
  

 3
  

 2
1 

 
 8

2 
 

 9
8 

 
 1

00
  

 7
2 

 
 

$3
,0

66
  

- -
 

$9
69

  
$4

,8
19

  
$1

,9
02

  
$2

,3
28

  
$3

,2
58

  
$3

,2
77

  
$2

,8
50

  
$3

,1
02

  
To

ta
l 

 9
,5

47
  

 1
,7

54
  

 2
,3

43
  

 1
,7

65
  

 1
,3

68
  

 8
58

  
 6

21
  

 4
23

  
 2

58
  

 1
57

  
 

$3
,9

86
  

$3
,2

02
  

$4
,4

87
  

$4
,5

79
  

$4
,4

26
  

$3
,6

43
  

$3
,5

86
  

$2
,9

32
  

$2
,8

23
  

$2
,9

96
  

N
ot

e:
 T

ot
al

 re
tir

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
$3

8,
05

7,
25

0,
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

ge
 7

0.
4,

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
et

ire
m

en
t 1

4.
1.

 In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
76

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R
 1

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$4
48

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$4

48
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 5
  

 1
  

 3
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$8

89
  

$8
24

  
$1

,0
58

  
- -

 
- -

 
$4

48
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

35
 - 

39
 

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$9

27
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$9
27

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
 7

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 3

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 

$8
81

  
$1

,0
76

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$6

38
  

$1
,0

53
  

- -
 

$1
,0

50
  

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

 5
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,5
54

  
- -

 
$2

,0
14

  
$2

,5
19

  
- -

 
$1

,0
88

  
$1

,0
60

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
 2

8 
 

 1
8 

 
 3

  
 1

  
 3

  
 2

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,9

72
  

$2
,0

82
  

$2
,2

17
  

$2
,2

50
  

$1
,5

31
  

$1
,0

27
  

$2
,1

83
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

 1
04

  
 4

5 
 

 3
7 

 
 6

  
 4

  
 6

  
 2

  
 4

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$2
,5

38
  

$3
,4

17
  

$2
,0

12
  

$1
,5

62
  

$1
,7

39
  

$1
,8

17
  

$1
,5

40
  

$1
,3

47
  

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

 3
13

  
 8

1 
 

 1
55

  
 4

2 
 

 1
2 

 
 9

  
 7

  
 3

  
 3

  
 1

  
 

$3
,8

21
  

$3
,3

28
  

$4
,7

85
  

$2
,4

21
  

$2
,9

56
  

$2
,4

93
  

$1
,8

88
  

$1
,7

50
  

$2
,0

19
  

$4
12

  
65

 - 
69

 
 5

47
  

 5
1 

 
 2

10
  

 1
62

  
 7

5 
 

 1
6 

 
 1

9 
 

 6
  

 4
  

 4
  

 
$4

,3
14

  
$3

,4
35

  
$5

,5
17

  
$4

,3
77

  
$2

,5
68

  
$2

,9
42

  
$2

,8
15

  
$2

,1
03

  
$1

,9
34

  
$8

36
  

70
 - 

74
 

 6
61

  
 1

9 
 

 8
6 

 
 2

30
  

 1
93

  
 8

1 
 

 2
2 

 
 1

2 
 

 9
  

 9
  

 
$4

,5
38

  
$2

,5
02

  
$5

,7
53

  
$5

,8
45

  
$4

,2
20

  
$2

,1
56

  
$2

,4
22

  
$3

,0
43

  
$1

,9
50

  
$1

,8
51

  
75

 - 
79

 
 5

17
  

 1
  

 1
5 

 
 8

6 
 

 1
90

  
 1

13
  

 7
0 

 
 2

2 
 

 1
6 

 
 4

  
 

$4
,1

59
  

$3
,3

28
  

$6
,2

81
  

$5
,3

30
  

$5
,1

72
  

$3
,2

04
  

$2
,1

51
  

$2
,1

70
  

$2
,7

16
  

$1
,9

37
  

80
  -

 8
4 

 4
53

  
 1

  
 1

  
 1

4 
 

 8
7 

 
 1

48
  

 9
7 

 
 8

0 
 

 1
5 

 
 1

0 
 

 
$3

,8
68

  
$3

51
  

$2
64

  
$5

,3
31

  
$5

,5
67

  
$4

,5
23

  
$3

,1
10

  
$1

,9
08

  
$2

,6
83

  
$2

,8
43

  
85

 - 
89

 
 3

41
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 9
  

 7
3 

 
 9

9 
 

 8
8 

 
 5

1 
 

 1
9 

 
 

$3
,1

98
  

- -
 

- -
 

$8
,6

07
  

$3
,4

99
  

$4
,5

75
  

$3
,7

70
  

$2
,3

91
  

$1
,6

37
  

$2
,1

40
  

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 3

09
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 3
  

 1
0 

 
 6

9 
 

 8
9 

 
 8

5 
 

 5
3 

 
 

$2
,8

94
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$1
,9

02
  

$4
,2

40
  

$3
,6

18
  

$3
,0

20
  

$2
,2

88
  

$2
,5

16
  

To
ta

l 
 3

,2
93

  
 2

19
  

 5
11

  
 5

44
  

 5
76

  
 4

67
  

 3
88

  
 3

04
  

 1
84

  
 1

00
  

 
$3

,8
81

  
$3

,1
51

  
$5

,0
41

  
$4

,9
99

  
$4

,4
41

  
$3

,5
80

  
$3

,0
99

  
$2

,4
32

  
$2

,1
42

  
$2

,3
06

  
N

ot
e:

 T
ot

al
 re

tir
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

$1
2,

78
1,

93
9,

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 7
5.

6,
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t 1
9.

4.
 In

cl
ud

es
 m

em
be

rs
 fr

om
 te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
77

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R
 2

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$8
52

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

,1
45

  
$5

60
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

 4
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$9

64
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$7
49

  
$1

,1
79

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 1

2 
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 6
  

 4
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,0
44

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$7

98
  

$1
,1

35
  

$1
,0

32
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 7
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$9

06
  

$2
69

  
- -

 
$6

63
  

- -
 

$1
,3

03
  

$1
,2

66
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

 2
8 

 
 1

6 
 

 1
0 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$4
76

  
$3

56
  

$2
44

  
- -

 
- -

 
$2

,5
96

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
 5

4 
 

 1
7 

 
 1

0 
 

 1
3 

 
 6

  
 6

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$8
00

  
$3

83
  

$4
69

  
$7

62
  

$1
,6

22
  

$1
,5

54
  

$1
,5

12
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

65
 - 

69
 

 6
8 

 
 9

  
 1

1 
 

 1
9 

 
 2

1 
 

 7
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$9

03
  

$7
82

  
$5

13
  

$8
37

  
$9

29
  

$1
,5

52
  

$2
,4

18
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 - 

74
 

 1
09

  
 3

  
 1

2 
 

 2
5 

 
 2

9 
 

 3
2 

 
 6

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$9
60

  
$1

,0
17

  
$6

91
  

$7
07

  
$9

74
  

$1
,0

32
  

$1
,8

12
  

$1
,7

49
  

- -
 

- -
 

75
 - 

79
 

 1
01

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 1

5 
 

 3
9 

 
 3

8 
 

 7
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,0
98

  
- -

 
$8

7 
 

$6
73

  
$1

,4
29

  
$1

,0
00

  
$9

25
  

$4
97

  
- -

 
- -

 
80

  -
 8

4 
 9

4 
 

 - 
-  

 1
  

 3
  

 3
9 

 
 3

7 
 

 1
1 

 
 3

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,0

94
  

- -
 

$9
64

  
$1

,2
14

  
$1

,1
36

  
$1

,0
78

  
$1

,0
27

  
$9

07
  

- -
 

- -
 

85
 - 

89
 

 6
2 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 1

3 
 

 3
0 

 
 1

6 
 

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,1
34

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

,1
58

  
$1

,2
00

  
$1

,1
25

  
$4

25
  

$4
18

  
- -

 
90

 &
 O

ve
r 

 2
5 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 1

1 
 

 1
2 

 
 1

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 

$9
75

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$5

90
  

$1
,3

65
  

$9
12

  
$5

94
  

- -
 

To
ta

l 
 5

66
  

 4
7 

 
 4

5 
 

 7
6 

 
 1

50
  

 1
74

  
 6

3 
 

 9
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 
$9

81
  

$4
86

  
$4

92
  

$7
62

  
$1

,1
69

  
$1

,0
93

  
$1

,2
30

  
$9

42
  

$5
06

  
- -

 
N

ot
e:

 T
ot

al
 re

tir
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

$5
55

,3
82

, a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 7
4.

1,
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t 1
7.

7.
 In

cl
ud

es
 m

em
be

rs
 fr

om
 te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
78

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R
 3

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 1

0 
 

 6
  

 3
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$5

47
  

$1
65

  
$1

,2
53

  
- -

 
$7

19
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 7
  

 4
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,0
37

  
$6

25
  

- -
 

- -
 

$1
,9

81
  

$8
00

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 5

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 3

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$8
32

  
$5

09
  

- -
 

$6
49

  
$1

,7
06

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
 1

0 
 

 2
  

 4
  

 3
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,9
41

  
$3

,4
03

  
$1

,9
00

  
$1

,0
99

  
$1

,7
06

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 1

4 
 

 5
  

 3
  

 2
  

 4
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,5
13

  
$1

,9
76

  
$1

,7
41

  
$9

52
  

$1
,0

45
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 1
09

  
 9

4 
 

 6
  

 7
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,7
51

  
$1

,6
81

  
$2

,6
25

  
$2

,1
07

  
$1

,1
79

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
 3

67
  

 2
51

  
 1

05
  

 6
  

 5
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,2
75

  
$2

,5
49

  
$1

,6
63

  
$2

,3
61

  
$1

,2
40

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
 6

58
  

 3
19

  
 2

61
  

 6
7 

 
 1

1 
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,9
42

  
$2

,9
48

  
$3

,2
05

  
$1

,9
55

  
$2

,5
55

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
 9

12
  

 3
22

  
 3

90
  

 1
65

  
 3

5 
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,9
58

  
$2

,7
08

  
$3

,5
05

  
$2

,4
81

  
$1

,4
17

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
70

 - 
74

 
 7

74
  

 1
22

  
 3

76
  

 2
12

  
 6

3 
 

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$3

,1
30

  
$2

,2
60

  
$3

,5
06

  
$3

,3
66

  
$1

,7
93

  
$2

,1
81

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
75

 - 
79

 
 4

11
  

 2
0 

 
 1

17
  

 2
02

  
 7

1 
 

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,5
44

  
$1

,7
62

  
$2

,5
81

  
$2

,8
43

  
$1

,8
67

  
- -

 
$1

,5
58

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
80

  -
 8

4 
 1

32
  

 2
  

 1
7 

 
 5

5 
 

 5
8 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,9

26
  

$2
,1

22
  

$2
,3

57
  

$2
,0

20
  

$1
,7

03
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

85
 - 

89
 

 1
4 

 
 - 

-  
 2

  
 7

  
 5

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,6

02
  

- -
 

$2
,0

20
  

$1
,4

89
  

$1
,5

93
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 3

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$3
,5

36
  

- -
 

$9
69

  
$4

,8
19

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
To

ta
l 

 3
,4

26
  

 1
,1

48
  

 1
,2

85
  

 7
31

  
 2

59
  

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,7
65

  
$2

,5
66

  
$3

,1
72

  
$2

,7
30

  
$1

,7
40

  
$1

,4
91

  
$1

,5
58

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
N

ot
e:

 T
ot

al
 re

tir
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

$9
,4

72
,2

74
, a

ve
ra

ge
 a

ge
 6

7.
6,

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
et

ire
m

en
t 7

.6
.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
79

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R
 5

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 1
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$4

70
  

$4
70

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
 3

  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$2
07

  
$2

07
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

 1
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$4

09
  

$4
09

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
 3

  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$5
30

  
$5

30
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 - 

74
 

 3
  

 3
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$3

72
  

$3
72

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
75

 - 
79

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

80
  -

 8
4 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
85

 - 
89

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
 1

1 
 

 1
1 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$3
83

  
$3

83
  

- -
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

N
ot

e:
 T

ot
al

 re
tir

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
$4

,2
08

, a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 6
4.

2,
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t 0
.5

.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
80

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

SA
FE

TY
 T

IE
R

 A
 A

N
D

 T
IE

R
 C

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 6

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,7

41
  

- -
 

- -
 

$1
,4

68
  

- -
 

$2
88

  
$1

,5
11

  
- -

 
$4

,2
45

  
- -

 
30

 - 
34

 
 3

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$2
,3

86
  

$3
,1

20
  

- -
 

$9
18

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 9

  
 3

  
 4

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$3
,0

38
  

$3
,2

66
  

$3
,7

52
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$1
,2

70
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

 2
6 

 
 1

1 
 

 7
  

 7
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$4

,1
19

  
$4

,3
06

  
$3

,7
73

  
$4

,5
62

  
- -

 
- -

 
$1

,3
82

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 6

6 
 

 3
2 

 
 1

2 
 

 1
4 

 
 8

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$4
,4

55
  

$4
,8

94
  

$3
,4

73
  

$4
,8

00
  

$3
,5

71
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 2
57

  
 1

78
  

 4
8 

 
 1

3 
 

 1
1 

 
 4

  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$6
,1

63
  

$6
,4

43
  

$6
,3

03
  

$5
,2

42
  

$4
,3

71
  

$3
,7

06
  

$1
,1

56
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

 3
45

  
 6

2 
 

 2
16

  
 2

5 
 

 2
3 

 
 1

3 
 

 5
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$7

,0
57

  
$6

,5
18

  
$8

,1
38

  
$4

,1
07

  
$4

,1
46

  
$4

,0
98

  
$3

,4
57

  
$4

,2
97

  
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
 3

32
  

 2
3 

 
 1

36
  

 1
20

  
 2

7 
 

 1
1 

 
 1

0 
 

 4
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 
$7

,5
93

  
$4

,8
74

  
$8

,2
75

  
$8

,7
43

  
$5

,0
86

  
$3

,4
83

  
$3

,5
49

  
$5

,0
26

  
$2

,9
64

  
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
 3

34
  

 1
2 

 
 5

4 
 

 1
40

  
 7

5 
 

 2
7 

 
 1

2 
 

 1
1 

 
 2

  
 1

  
 

$7
,6

38
  

$4
,7

40
  

$8
,1

61
  

$9
,2

18
  

$7
,6

48
  

$3
,4

41
  

$3
,8

43
  

$3
,4

91
  

$3
,8

45
  

$4
,1

32
  

70
 - 

74
 

 3
80

  
 3

  
 1

6 
 

 7
4 

 
 1

66
  

 5
5 

 
 2

5 
 

 2
2 

 
 1

2 
 

 7
  

 
$7

,0
44

  
$2

,1
38

  
$6

,1
93

  
$8

,5
34

  
$8

,6
44

  
$4

,5
80

  
$4

,6
92

  
$3

,0
08

  
$3

,5
36

  
$3

,8
53

  
75

 - 
79

 
 2

29
  

 1
  

 6
  

 1
7 

 
 6

4 
 

 6
6 

 
 4

2 
 

 1
9 

 
 7

  
 7

  
 

$6
,7

50
  

$1
,4

17
  

$3
,1

26
  

$3
,6

39
  

$7
,8

26
  

$8
,9

74
  

$5
,6

64
  

$4
,1

19
  

$3
,5

74
  

$4
,1

99
  

80
  -

 8
4 

 1
41

  
 1

  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 9

  
 3

0 
 

 5
5 

 
 2

3 
 

 1
5 

 
 5

  
 

$6
,0

29
  

$3
,2

68
  

$4
,3

74
  

- -
 

$5
,7

02
  

$5
,8

97
  

$7
,3

92
  

$4
,8

88
  

$4
,4

37
  

$3
,9

89
  

85
 - 

89
 

 8
0 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 8

  
 1

2 
 

 2
2 

 
 2

0 
 

 1
8 

 
 

$4
,9

93
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$4
,9

76
  

$6
,2

23
  

$5
,5

08
  

$4
,7

22
  

$3
,8

52
  

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 4

2 
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 8
  

 1
4 

 
 1

9 
 

 
$5

,5
38

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

,1
15

  
$6

,4
37

  
$6

,4
26

  
$4

,7
37

  
To

ta
l 

 2
,2

50
  

 3
28

  
 5

02
  

 4
14

  
 3

83
  

 2
15

  
 1

69
  

 1
10

  
 7

2 
 

 5
7 

 
 

$6
,7

74
  

$5
,9

49
  

$7
,6

51
  

$7
,9

91
  

$7
,4

93
  

$5
,8

63
  

$5
,5

94
  

$4
,4

76
  

$4
,6

29
  

$4
,2

06
  

N
ot

e:
 T

ot
al

 re
tir

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
$1

5,
24

1,
28

8,
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

ge
 6

6.
3,

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
et

ire
m

en
t 1

5.
4.

 In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
81

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

SA
FE

TY
 T

IE
R

 D
 A

N
D

 T
IE

R
 E

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
 1

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$2
,1

60
 

$2
,1

60
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 - 

74
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
75

 - 
79

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

80
  -

 8
4 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
85

 - 
89

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
1 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$2
,1

60
  

$2
,1

60
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

N
ot

e:
 T

ot
al

 re
tir

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
$2

,1
60

, a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 5
6.

2,
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t 1
.6

.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
82

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 D
 –

 R
EC

O
N

C
IL

IA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

M
EM

B
ER

 D
AT

A 

 
Ac

tiv
e 

M
em

be
rs

 

In
ac

tiv
e 

Ve
st

ed
 

M
em

be
rs

(1
)  

R
et

ire
d 

M
em

be
rs

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

M
em

be
rs

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

To
ta

l 
N

um
be

r a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

10
,0

38
 

3,
32

7 
6,

97
3 

89
6 

1,
39

8 
22

,6
32

 

• 
N

ew
 m

em
be

rs
 

79
9 

10
0 

0 
0 

10
4 

1,
00

3 

• 
Te

rm
in

at
io

ns
 –

 w
ith

 v
es

te
d 

rig
ht

s 
(3

10
) 

31
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

• 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
re

fu
nd

s 
(1

75
) 

(1
33

) 
0 

0 
0 

(3
08

) 

• 
R

et
ire

m
en

ts
 

(3
19

) 
(9

2)
 

41
1 

0 
0 

0 

• 
N

ew
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
(3

3)
 

(2
) 

(5
) 

40
 

0 
0 

• 
R

et
ur

n 
to

 w
or

k 
27

 
(2

7)
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

• 
D

ie
d 

w
ith

 o
r w

ith
ou

t b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

 
(7

) 
(6

) 
(1

64
) 

(2
7)

 
(7

1)
 

(2
75

) 

• 
D

at
a 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 
1 

0 
(1

) 
(1

) 
(6

) 
(7

) 

N
um

be
r a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
10

,0
21

 
3,

47
7 

7,
21

4 
90

8 
1,

42
5 

23
,0

45
 

(1
)  

In
cl

ud
es

 in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

n 
de

po
si

t. 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
83

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 E
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

IN
C

O
M

E 
AN

D
 E

XP
EN

SE
S 

O
N

 A
 M

AR
K

ET
 V

AL
U

E 
B

AS
IS

 
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
 

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

at
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 a

t t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r 
 

$8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
  

 
$7

,4
38

,5
19

,5
04

  
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

in
co

m
e:

 
 

 
 

 
• 

Em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
$3

25
,1

17
,1

03
  

 
$3

14
,8

36
,5

61
  

 
• 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

10
3,

54
1,

52
9 

 
 

96
,4

66
,9

06
  

 
• 

Le
ss

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

(9
,3

37
,0

53
) 

 
(9

,1
46

,1
15

) 
 

N
et

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

in
co

m
e 

 
$4

19
,3

21
,5

79
  

 
$4

02
,1

57
,3

52
  

In
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e:
 

 
 

 
 

• 
In

te
re

st
, d

iv
id

en
ds

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

co
m

e 
$1

22
,0

28
,7

12
  

 
$2

16
,7

36
,1

17
  

 
• 

As
se

t a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
(2

71
,9

10
,9

65
) 

 
81

3,
54

4,
84

7 
 

 
• 

Le
ss

 in
ve

st
m

en
t f

ee
s 

(4
5,

14
8,

63
5)

 
 

(4
2,

86
4,

98
3)

 
 

N
et

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e 
 

$(
19

5,
03

0,
88

8)
 

 
$9

87
,4

15
,9

81
  

To
ta

l i
nc

om
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r b
en

ef
its

 
 

$2
24

,2
90

,6
91

  
 

$1
,3

89
,5

73
,3

33
  

Le
ss

 b
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

: 
 

 
 

 
• 

Be
ne

fit
s 

pa
id

 
$(

45
1,

37
1,

64
5)

 
 

$(
42

9,
57

4,
19

5)
 

 
• 

R
ef

un
ds

 o
f c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(9
,2

32
,8

94
) 

 
(5

,9
80

,4
05

) 
 

• 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
, t

ra
ns

fe
rs

 o
r o

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
(4

,2
81

,4
07

) 
 

(1
,9

57
,1

88
) 

 
N

et
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

 
$(

46
4,

88
5,

94
7)

 
 

$(
43

7,
51

1,
78

8)
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s 
at

 m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 
 

$(
24

0,
59

5,
25

6)
 

 
$9

52
,0

61
,5

45
  

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

at
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

 
$8

,1
49

,9
85

,7
93

  
 

$8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
84

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 F
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

PL
AN

 A
SS

ET
S 

 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

 
C

as
h 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
s 

 
$6

53
,2

79
,9

87
  

 
$6

90
,7

93
,8

03
  

Ac
co

un
ts

 re
ce

iv
ab

le
: 

 
 

 
 

• 
In

ve
st

m
en

t t
ra

de
s 

$1
6,

98
3,

47
2 

 
 

$2
2,

46
2,

32
2 

 
 

• 
In

ve
st

m
en

t i
nc

om
e 

20
,2

29
,6

23
  

 
20

,2
93

,6
45

  
 

• 
Em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
9,

98
2,

07
7 

 
 

9,
80

5,
48

6 
 

 
• 

Ad
di

tio
na

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
12

,3
17

,6
64

  
 

14
,3

67
,3

97
  

 
To

ta
l a

cc
ou

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
 

 
$5

9,
51

2,
83

6 
 

 
$6

6,
92

8,
85

0 
 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

: 
 

 
 

 
• 

St
oc

ks
 

$3
,2

02
,5

23
,4

90
  

 
$3

,8
99

,0
74

,0
60

  
 

• 
Bo

nd
s 

2,
61

1,
97

9,
91

5 
 

 
2,

38
5,

46
0,

86
6 

 
 

• 
R

ea
l e

st
at

e 
64

4,
58

7,
62

6 
 

 
65

2,
38

5,
61

7 
 

 
• 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 re
al

 a
ss

et
s 

1,
44

0,
99

3,
83

3 
 

 
1,

21
6,

66
6,

28
5 

 
 

To
ta

l i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 a
t m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 

 
$7

,9
00

,0
84

,8
64

  
 

$8
,1

53
,5

86
,8

28
  

O
th

er
 a

ss
et

s 
 

50
0,

28
4 

 
 

51
6,

75
4 

 
To

ta
l a

ss
et

s 
 

 
$8

,6
13

,3
77

,9
71

  
 

$8
,9

11
,8

26
,2

35
  

Ac
co

un
ts

 p
ay

ab
le

: 
 

 
 

 
• 

In
ve

st
m

en
t t

ra
de

s 
$(

20
,5

76
,9

22
) 

 
$(

25
,3

52
,5

46
) 

 
• 

Se
cu

rit
y 

le
nd

in
g 

(2
43

,3
58

,0
31

) 
 

(2
94

,0
05

,4
15

) 
 

• 
Em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 u

ne
ar

ne
d 

(1
51

,7
48

,1
13

) 
 

(1
55

,4
92

,3
20

) 
 

• 
O

th
er

 
(4

7,
70

9,
11

2)
 

 
(4

6,
39

4,
90

5)
 

 
To

ta
l a

cc
ou

nt
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

 
$(

46
3,

39
2,

17
8)

 
 

$(
52

1,
24

5,
18

6)
 

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

at
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 

 
$8

,1
49

,9
85

,7
93

  
 

$8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
  

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

at
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ue

 
 

$8
,6

66
,7

78
,0

56
  

 
$8

,1
95

,5
16

,5
41

  
N

et
 a

ss
et

s 
at

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
va

lu
e 

 
$8

,6
50

,1
78

,2
26

  
 

$8
,1

79
,8

91
,1

91
  

N
ot

e:
 

R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
85

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 G
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
TO

TA
L 

AL
LO

C
AT

ED
 R

ES
ER

VE
S 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

 
M

em
be

r D
ep

os
its

 (1
)  

$8
52

,4
64

,7
38

 
$7

95
,7

27
,4

98
  

M
em

be
r C

os
t o

f L
iv

in
g 

(1
)  

44
9,

16
1,

64
5 

42
0,

38
8,

70
7 

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 A

dv
an

ce
 (1

) (
2)

 
2,

29
5,

15
2,

78
6 

2,
06

3,
00

2,
25

9 
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
os

t o
f L

iv
in

g 
(1

) (
2)

 
1,

03
2,

58
7,

04
5 

92
8,

96
4,

62
8 

 
R

et
ire

d 
M

em
be

rs
 (1

) (
2)

 
3,

46
8,

06
7,

21
1 

3,
36

3,
34

3,
72

2 
 

R
et

ire
d 

C
os

t o
f L

iv
in

g 
(1

) (
2)

 
2,

56
5,

74
2,

21
5 

2,
44

4,
58

2,
49

5 
 

D
ol

la
r P

ow
er

 C
os

t o
f L

iv
in

g 
Su

pp
le

m
en

t P
re

-F
un

di
ng

 (1
)  

2,
64

9,
18

1 
3,

94
6,

60
3 

 
Po

st
 R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

it 
(3

)  
15

,7
57

,9
10

 
15

,6
25

,3
50

  
St

at
ut

or
y 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

(o
ne

 p
er

ce
nt

) (3
)  

0 
 

0 
 

Ad
di

tio
na

l O
ne

 P
er

ce
nt

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

D
es

ig
na

tio
n 

(3
)  

0 
 

0 
 

C
on

tra
 T

ra
ck

in
g 

Ac
co

un
t (1

)  
(2

,0
14

,8
04

,6
75

) 
(1

,8
40

,0
64

,7
21

) 
To

ta
l A

llo
ca

te
d 

R
es

er
ve

s 
$8

,6
66

,7
78

,0
56

 
$8

,1
95

,5
16

,5
41

  
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

R
et

ur
n 

(5
16

,7
92

,2
63

) 
19

5,
06

4,
50

8 
 

N
et

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 
$8

,1
49

,9
85

,7
93

 
$8

,3
90

,5
81

,0
49

  
N

ot
e:

 R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

(1
)  

In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
ss

et
s.

 
(2

)  
Bo

th
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

fle
ct

 a
 “t

ru
e-

up
” o

f r
et

ire
d 

re
se

rv
es

. 
(3

)  
N

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ss
et

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
86

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 H
 –

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
FU

N
D

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
01

8 

Ye
ar

 
En

de
d 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

(1
) 

M
em

be
r 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
(1

) 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es
(2

) 

N
et

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
R

et
ur

n(3
)  

B
en

ef
it 

Pa
ym

en
ts

 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

at
 

Ye
ar

-E
nd

 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
  

As
se

ts
 a

t  
Ye

ar
-E

nd
 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

as
 a

 
Pe

rc
en

t o
f 

M
ar

ke
t 

Va
lu

e 
20

09
 

$1
95

,6
13

,6
73

  
$6

6,
53

6,
16

1 
 

N
/A

 
$7

36
,9

56
,8

91
  

$2
72

,0
76

,0
07

  
$4

,4
76

,7
29

,5
30

  
$5

,2
90

,1
14

,1
02

  
11

8.
2%

 

20
10

 
18

3,
95

0,
93

0 
 

64
,3

30
,4

84
  

N
/A

 
59

4,
63

7,
09

0 
29

2,
49

0,
83

5 
 

5,
02

7,
15

7,
19

9 
 

5,
34

1,
82

1,
71

1 
 

10
6.

3%
 

20
11

 
20

0,
38

8,
99

4 
 

61
,5

75
,3

76
  

N
/A

 
88

,0
42

,2
68

 
32

4,
87

4,
37

9 
 

5,
05

2,
28

9,
45

8 
 

5,
42

6,
71

9,
06

6 
 

10
7.

4%
 

20
12

 
21

2,
32

1,
32

5 
 

73
,3

61
,7

12
  

N
/A

 
66

8,
13

8,
99

7 
35

1,
53

0,
36

8 
 

5,
65

4,
58

1,
12

4 
 

5,
48

2,
25

7,
06

2 
 

97
.0

%
 

20
13

 
23

5,
01

7,
45

2 
 

72
,3

73
,2

54
  

N
/A

 
87

0,
98

4,
74

4 
37

4,
63

8,
97

8 
 

6,
45

8,
31

7,
59

6 
 

5,
90

7,
41

6,
43

2 
 

91
.5

%
 

20
14

 
29

3,
76

0,
41

3 
 

78
,2

57
,6

65
  

N
/A

 
47

3,
52

2,
26

1 
39

4,
94

7,
70

5 
 

6,
90

8,
91

0,
23

0 
 

6,
55

7,
49

6,
10

1 
 

94
.9

%
 

20
15

 
32

3,
72

0,
27

0 
 

85
,3

60
,6

37
  

N
/A

 
65

,4
95

,6
57

 
40

6,
90

4,
36

6 
 

6,
97

6,
58

2,
42

8 
 

7,
13

6,
80

1,
38

0 
 

10
2.

3%
 

20
16

 
30

7,
45

7,
14

3 
 

89
,2

40
,1

72
  

$8
,4

86
,4

63
  

49
3,

87
4,

24
2 

42
0,

14
8,

01
8 

 
7,

43
8,

51
9,

50
4 

 
7,

60
6,

99
7,

53
0 

 
10

2.
3%

 

20
17

 
31

4,
83

6,
56

1 
 

96
,4

66
,9

06
  

9,
14

6,
11

5 
 

98
7,

41
5,

98
1 

43
7,

51
1,

78
8 

 
8,

39
0,

58
1,

04
9 

 
8,

17
9,

89
1,

19
1 

 
97

.5
%

 

20
18

 
32

5,
11

7,
10

3 
 

10
3,

54
1,

52
9 

 
9,

33
7,

05
3 

 
(1

95
,0

30
,8

88
) 

46
4,

88
5,

94
7 

 
8,

14
9,

98
5,

79
3 

 
8,

65
0,

17
8,

22
6 

 
10

6.
1%

 
(1

) 
Pr

io
r t

o 
20

17
, e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

“e
m

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
” a

nd
 e

xc
lu

de
 “m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

”. 
(2

) 
Pr

io
r to

 2
01

6,
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 w
er

e 
sh

ow
n 

as
 a

n 
of

fs
et

 to
 th

e 
ne

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t r

et
ur

n.
 

(3
) 

O
n 

a 
m

ar
ke

t b
as

is
, n

et
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t f

ee
s 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6.
 P

rio
r t

o 
20

16
, s

ho
w

n 
ne

t o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

t f
ee

s 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
87

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

) 

C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

#1
 a

nd
 #

2 
– 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

es
ta

rt 
of

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

$7
85

,0
69

,1
53

  
15

 
$3

79
,5

29
,4

98
  

4 
$1

03
,7

46
,6

44
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

80
,0

33
,1

99
  

18
 

60
,6

88
,5

14
  

8 
8,

88
5,

62
3 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
16

5,
04

1,
32

3 
 

18
 

13
2,

91
8,

13
0 

 
9 

17
,5

94
,1

80
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
39

,5
63

,8
26

  
18

 
31

,8
63

,2
31

  
9 

4,
21

7,
69

0 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
(7

4,
70

1,
91

3)
 

18
 

(6
0,

16
2,

13
6)

 
9 

(7
,9

63
,5

75
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

15
3,

07
0,

54
3 

 
18

 
12

9,
34

9,
28

5 
 

10
 

15
,6

71
,1

71
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

94
,7

50
,0

78
  

18
 

83
,1

77
,7

79
  

11
 

9,
31

5,
71

9 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

11
7,

02
9,

11
6 

 
18

 
10

5,
85

5,
17

5 
 

12
 

11
,0

49
,7

19
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
28

8,
80

2,
88

2 
 

18
 

26
1,

22
7,

98
0 

 
12

 
27

,2
68

,3
48

  
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(1

34
,8

10
,1

12
) 

18
 

(1
25

,1
93

,0
21

) 
13

 
(1

2,
26

3,
94

3)
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
07

,5
53

,2
89

) 
18

 
(9

9,
88

0,
64

7)
 

13
 

(9
,7

84
,3

36
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(1
71

,8
98

,8
12

) 
18

 
(1

62
,9

39
,6

17
) 

14
 

(1
5,

06
6,

74
5)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(1

05
,0

03
,5

33
) 

18
 

(1
01

,0
80

,2
96

) 
15

 
(8

,8
67

,0
25

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

39
,8

14
,8

84
  

18
 

38
,3

27
,2

84
  

15
 

3,
36

2,
16

9 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

(2
8,

57
9,

02
6)

 
18

 
(2

7,
96

4,
82

9)
 

16
 

(2
,3

37
,3

91
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(1
7,

93
7,

63
8)

 
18

 
(1

7,
77

3,
69

4)
 

17
 

(1
,4

20
,8

86
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

75
,2

64
,0

47
  

18
 

75
,2

64
,0

47
  

18
 

5,
77

4,
19

5 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(6

,0
21

,6
83

) 
18

 
(6

,0
21

,6
83

) 
18

 
(4

61
,9

78
) 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
#1

 a
nd

 #
2 

 
 

 
$6

97
,1

84
,9

98
  

 
$1

48
,7

19
,5

79
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
88

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

– 
C

en
tr

al
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$3

6,
18

5,
00

0 
 

15
 

$1
7,

49
3,

07
7 

 
4 

$4
,7

81
,8

36
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

3,
70

9,
83

5 
 

18
 

2,
81

3,
13

7 
 

8 
41

1,
88

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

10
,1

18
,2

61
  

18
 

8,
14

8,
87

0 
 

9 
1,

07
8,

65
4 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

2,
00

3,
00

0 
 

18
 

1,
61

3,
14

2 
 

9 
21

3,
52

9 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
20

,0
37

,2
35

  
18

 
16

,1
37

,2
42

  
9 

2,
13

6,
06

3 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

18
,1

78
,4

89
  

18
 

15
,3

61
,3

79
  

10
 

1,
86

1,
09

1 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

11
,4

79
,6

48
  

18
 

9,
70

0,
65

3 
 

10
 

1,
17

5,
27

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

10
,5

14
,5

35
  

18
 

9,
23

0,
34

3 
 

11
 

1,
03

3,
77

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

12
,5

64
,2

41
  

18
 

11
,3

64
,6

07
  

12
 

1,
18

6,
29

7 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
22

,4
55

,3
42

  
18

 
20

,3
11

,3
06

  
12

 
2,

12
0,

20
1 

 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
(4

,6
66

,4
77

) 
18

 
(4

,2
20

,9
22

) 
12

 
(4

40
,6

02
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

58
2,

96
2 

 
18

 
54

1,
37

5 
 

13
 

53
,0

33
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
4,

95
0,

86
6)

 
18

 
(1

3,
88

4,
30

0)
 

13
 

(1
,3

60
,1

10
) 

U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(4
,6

62
,8

99
) 

18
 

(4
,3

30
,2

57
) 

13
 

(4
24

,1
93

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(1

1,
84

8,
82

3)
 

18
 

(1
1,

23
1,

27
5)

 
14

 
(1

,0
38

,5
37

) 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(2

,3
31

,8
96

) 
18

 
(2

,2
10

,3
60

) 
14

 
(2

04
,3

88
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

(6
,5

04
,5

10
) 

18
 

(6
,2

61
,4

83
) 

15
 

(5
49

,2
73

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

44
,2

20
  

18
 

42
,5

68
  

15
 

3,
73

4 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

(1
,5

22
,9

32
) 

18
 

(1
,4

90
,2

03
) 

16
 

(1
24

,5
56

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
(1

,6
21

,9
26

) 
18

 
(1

,6
07

,1
03

) 
17

 
(1

28
,4

77
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

5,
33

1,
33

6 
 

18
 

5,
33

1,
33

6 
 

18
 

40
9,

01
6 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

1,
12

9,
70

9 
 

18
 

1,
12

9,
70

9 
 

18
 

86
,6

70
  

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

 
 

 
$7

3,
98

2,
84

2 
 

 
$1

2,
28

0,
91

9 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
89

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

– 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$7

,7
70

,0
00

  
15

 
$3

,7
56

,2
86

  
4 

$1
,0

26
,8

03
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

1,
57

3,
51

3 
 

18
 

1,
19

3,
18

2 
 

8 
17

4,
69

8 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

1,
27

7,
07

9 
 

18
 

1,
02

8,
51

2 
 

9 
13

6,
14

3 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
42

5,
00

0 
 

18
 

34
2,

27
9 

 
9 

45
,3

07
  

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
(1

89
,2

75
) 

18
 

(1
52

,4
35

) 
9 

(2
0,

17
8)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
61

9,
69

7 
 

18
 

52
3,

66
3 

 
10

 
63

,4
44

  
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
(9

20
,6

56
) 

18
 

(7
77

,9
82

) 
10

 
(9

4,
25

6)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

1,
05

9,
32

8 
 

18
 

92
9,

94
7 

 
11

 
10

4,
15

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

1,
91

2,
99

9 
 

18
 

1,
73

0,
34

6 
 

12
 

18
0,

62
3 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

3,
72

2,
86

2 
 

18
 

3,
36

7,
40

3 
 

12
 

35
1,

50
7 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(2

,2
20

,7
04

) 
18

 
(2

,0
62

,2
83

) 
13

 
(2

02
,0

22
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
,0

77
,2

89
) 

18
 

(1
,0

00
,4

37
) 

13
 

(9
8,

00
3)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(1

,3
60

,0
21

) 
18

 
(1

,2
89

,1
38

) 
14

 
(1

19
,2

04
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

(8
75

,2
94

) 
18

 
(8

42
,5

91
) 

15
 

(7
3,

91
4)

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

43
2,

80
1 

 
18

 
41

6,
63

0 
 

15
 

36
,5

48
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

(2
97

,0
92

) 
18

 
(2

90
,7

07
) 

16
 

(2
4,

29
8)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
53

,8
95

  
18

 
53

,4
03

  
17

 
4,

26
9 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
52

7,
74

1 
 

18
 

52
7,

74
1 

 
18

 
40

,4
88

  
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

86
,5

77
  

18
 

86
,5

77
  

18
 

6,
64

2 
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

 
 

 
$7

,5
40

,3
95

  
 

$1
,5

38
,7

49
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
90

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
5 

– 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$(

1,
01

1,
00

0)
 

15
 

$(
48

8,
75

2)
 

4 
$(

13
3,

60
3)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

8 
45

,9
63

  
18

 
34

,8
53

  
8 

5,
10

3 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

1,
61

4,
18

0 
 

18
 

1,
30

0,
00

0 
 

9 
17

2,
07

9 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
33

6,
00

0 
 

18
 

27
0,

60
2 

 
9 

35
,8

19
  

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
2,

14
2,

53
8 

 
18

 
1,

72
5,

52
0 

 
9 

22
8,

40
5 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
2,

72
2,

30
6 

 
18

 
2,

30
0,

43
2 

 
10

 
27

8,
70

6 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

1,
35

0,
62

0 
 

18
 

1,
18

5,
66

2 
 

11
 

13
2,

79
1 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
1,

78
7,

42
6 

 
18

 
1,

61
6,

76
2 

 
12

 
16

8,
76

6 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
3,

18
4,

17
2 

 
18

 
2,

88
0,

14
7 

 
12

 
30

0,
64

5 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(2
,5

00
,6

65
) 

18
 

(2
,3

22
,2

73
) 

13
 

(2
27

,4
90

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(9

85
,6

53
) 

18
 

(9
15

,3
38

) 
13

 
(8

9,
66

7)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(2
,2

15
,7

58
) 

18
 

(2
,1

00
,2

75
) 

14
 

(1
94

,2
09

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(7

56
,5

51
) 

18
 

(7
28

,2
84

) 
15

 
(6

3,
88

7)
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
35

5,
94

6 
 

18
 

34
2,

64
7 

 
15

 
30

,0
58

  
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
1,

59
1,

37
5 

 
18

 
1,

55
7,

17
4 

 
16

 
13

0,
15

4 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

1,
47

6,
31

3 
 

18
 

1,
46

2,
82

0 
 

17
 

11
6,

94
3 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
1,

49
5,

43
0 

 
18

 
1,

49
5,

43
0 

 
18

 
11

4,
72

8 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
60

6,
92

0 
 

18
 

60
6,

92
0 

 
18

 
46

,5
62

  
Su

bt
ot

al
 –

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
 

 
 

$1
0,

22
4,

04
9 

 
 

$1
,0

51
,9

03
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

.  

(1
) 

As
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r. 

 
(2

) 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 n

ow
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
st

 g
ro

up
s.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 th

e 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 A

B 
19

7.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
91

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

– 
Sm

al
l D

is
tr

ic
ts

 (G
en

er
al

 N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d)
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l S

ur
pl

us
(2

) 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

$(
49

8,
37

4)
 

 
$(

49
8,

37
4)

 
N

/A
 

$0
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

 
 

 
$(

49
8,

37
4)

 
 

$0
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

C
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 C

C
C

ER
A’

s 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 P

ol
ic

y,
 a

ll 
pr

io
r U

AA
L 

la
ye

rs
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fu

lly
 a

m
or

tiz
ed

 d
ue

 to
 s

ur
pl

us
. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
92

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
#7

 a
nd

 #
9 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$1

27
,6

62
,4

39
  

15
 

$6
1,

71
6,

42
5 

 
4 

$1
6,

87
0,

55
2 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

8 
25

,6
19

,2
65

  
18

 
19

,4
26

,8
77

  
8 

2,
84

4,
35

9 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

55
,1

34
,9

40
  

18
 

44
,4

03
,6

26
  

9 
5,

87
7,

64
4 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

11
,0

76
,6

65
  

18
 

8,
92

0,
73

3 
 

9 
1,

18
0,

82
5 

 
D

ep
oo

lin
g 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

23
,8

52
,0

78
  

18
 

19
,2

09
,5

74
  

9 
2,

54
2,

74
3 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
57

,2
87

,9
75

  
18

 
48

,4
10

,0
89

  
10

 
5,

86
5,

07
1 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

1 
45

,2
09

,3
50

  
18

 
39

,6
87

,7
07

  
11

 
4,

44
4,

93
2 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
53

,2
58

,5
03

  
18

 
48

,1
73

,3
81

  
12

 
5,

02
8,

59
0 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

13
8,

35
3,

56
2 

 
18

 
12

5,
14

3,
56

2 
 

12
 

13
,0

63
,1

42
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(3
5,

02
4,

91
2)

 
18

 
(3

2,
52

6,
30

4)
 

13
 

(3
,1

86
,2

86
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(4
3,

77
1,

70
6)

 
18

 
(4

0,
64

9,
11

8)
 

13
 

(3
,9

81
,9

99
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(6
1,

81
5,

39
3)

 
18

 
(5

8,
59

3,
63

6)
 

14
 

(5
,4

18
,0

52
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(3

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(5
1,

70
1)

 
18

 
(4

9,
00

6)
 

14
 

(4
,5

31
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

(5
8,

48
9,

96
6)

 
18

 
(5

6,
30

4,
61

1)
 

15
 

(4
,9

39
,1

86
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
39

,2
91

,4
09

  
18

 
37

,8
23

,3
68

  
15

 
3,

31
7,

96
4 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
(1

3,
55

7,
81

1)
 

18
 

(1
3,

26
6,

43
8)

 
16

 
(1

,1
08

,8
52

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
(8

,1
78

,2
40

) 
18

 
(8

,1
03

,4
94

) 
17

 
(6

47
,8

19
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

41
,0

37
,4

06
  

18
 

41
,0

37
,4

06
  

18
 

3,
14

8,
35

5 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(4

7,
71

3,
59

9)
 

18
 

(4
7,

71
3,

59
9)

 
18

 
(3

,6
60

,5
47

) 
Su

bt
ot

al
 –

 C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

#7
 a

nd
 #

9 
 

  
 

$2
36

,7
46

,5
43

  
 

$4
1,

23
6,

90
5 

 
N

ot
e:

 R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

(1
) 

As
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r. 

 
(2

) 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 n

ow
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
st

 g
ro

up
s.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 th

e 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 A

B 
19

7.
 

(3
)  

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
el

im
in

at
ed

 fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
93

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

– 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 a
nd

 E
as

t F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

es
ta

rt 
of

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

$1
24

,1
38

,7
10

  
15

 
$6

0,
01

2,
93

3 
 

4 
$1

6,
40

4,
89

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

6,
78

0,
43

6 
 

18
 

5,
14

1,
54

9 
 

8 
75

2,
79

3 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

27
,0

18
,7

06
  

18
 

21
,7

59
,8

59
  

9 
2,

88
0,

32
1 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

4,
94

5,
00

0 
 

18
 

3,
98

2,
51

9 
 

9 
52

7,
16

0 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
47

,8
18

,6
66

  
18

 
38

,5
11

,3
71

  
9 

5,
09

7,
69

4 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

38
,1

65
,4

45
  

18
 

32
,2

50
,9

67
  

10
 

3,
90

7,
33

1 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

(1
,5

99
,0

51
) 

18
 

(1
,3

51
,2

47
) 

10
 

(1
63

,7
09

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

1 
26

,5
33

,1
66

  
18

 
23

,2
92

,5
39

  
11

 
2,

60
8,

71
1 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
31

,5
01

,4
40

  
18

 
28

,4
93

,6
82

  
12

 
2,

97
4,

32
0 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

68
,1

93
,3

56
  

18
 

61
,6

82
,2

54
  

12
 

6,
43

8,
71

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(2
2,

66
1,

64
0)

 
18

 
(2

1,
04

5,
00

3)
 

13
 

(2
,0

61
,5

74
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
7,

91
0,

67
6)

 
18

 
(1

6,
63

2,
96

3)
 

13
 

(1
,6

29
,3

70
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(2
9,

21
7,

96
2)

 
18

 
(2

7,
69

5,
15

1)
 

14
 

(2
,5

60
,9

23
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

(1
9,

00
5,

51
0)

 
18

 
(1

8,
29

5,
40

9)
 

15
 

(1
,6

04
,9

21
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
24

,2
96

,8
46

  
18

 
23

,3
89

,0
45

  
15

 
2,

05
1,

74
8 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
(8

,2
97

,6
85

) 
18

 
(8

,1
19

,3
58

) 
16

 
(6

78
,6

42
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(1
0,

65
8,

50
2)

 
18

 
(1

0,
56

1,
08

7)
 

17
 

(8
44

,2
87

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
19

,3
01

,2
43

  
18

 
19

,3
01

,2
43

  
18

 
1,

48
0,

77
5 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(2
3,

50
3,

82
0)

 
18

 
(2

3,
50

3,
82

0)
 

18
 

(1
,8

03
,1

93
) 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

 
  

 
$1

90
,6

13
,9

21
  

 
$3

3,
77

7,
84

3 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
94

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 –
 M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$(

2,
59

1,
00

0)
 

15
 

$(
1,

25
2,

57
9)

 
4 

$(
34

2,
40

0)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

2,
00

2,
15

0 
 

18
 

1,
51

8,
21

4 
 

8 
22

2,
28

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

5,
67

1,
68

4 
 

18
 

4,
56

7,
76

3 
 

9 
60

4,
62

8 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
1,

01
2,

00
0 

 
18

 
81

5,
02

7 
 

9 
10

7,
88

4 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
4,

87
3,

63
1 

 
18

 
3,

92
5,

04
1 

 
9 

51
9,

55
2 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
5,

33
4,

96
4 

 
18

 
4,

50
8,

20
8 

 
10

 
54

6,
18

7 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

80
6,

01
8 

 
18

 
68

1,
11

0 
 

10
 

82
,5

19
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

6,
79

1,
00

5 
 

18
 

5,
96

1,
58

6 
 

11
 

66
7,

68
4 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
8,

92
4,

59
8 

 
18

 
8,

07
2,

47
8 

 
12

 
84

2,
64

8 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
12

,1
49

,8
92

  
18

 
10

,9
89

,8
20

  
12

 
1,

14
7,

17
5 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(1

,0
27

,4
40

) 
18

 
(9

54
,1

44
) 

13
 

(9
3,

46
8)

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(3

,6
13

,9
81

) 
18

 
(3

,3
56

,1
67

) 
13

 
(3

28
,7

71
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(4
,8

13
,0

45
) 

18
 

(4
,5

62
,1

93
) 

14
 

(4
21

,8
58

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(8

,4
90

,8
06

) 
18

 
(8

,1
73

,5
65

) 
15

 
(7

17
,0

06
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
3,

84
4,

34
7 

 
18

 
3,

70
0,

71
1 

 
15

 
32

4,
63

6 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

1,
02

8,
69

0 
 

18
 

1,
00

6,
58

2 
 

16
 

84
,1

33
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(4
22

,9
95

) 
18

 
(4

19
,1

29
) 

17
 

(3
3,

50
6)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
6,

02
9,

05
5 

 
18

 
6,

02
9,

05
5 

 
18

 
46

2,
54

4 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(4

,1
16

,5
42

) 
18

 
(4

,1
16

,5
42

) 
18

 
(3

15
,8

18
) 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 
 

  
 

$2
8,

94
1,

27
5 

 
 

$3
,3

59
,0

50
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
95

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 –
 S

an
 R

am
on

 V
al

le
y 

Fi
re

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$5

8,
76

6,
00

0 
 

15
 

$2
8,

40
9,

51
1 

 
4 

$7
,7

65
,9

09
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

10
,2

16
,6

94
  

18
 

7,
74

7,
23

5 
 

8 
1,

13
4,

30
1 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
9,

26
2,

10
5 

 
18

 
7,

45
9,

35
4 

 
9 

98
7,

38
4 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

2,
45

3,
00

0 
 

18
 

1,
97

5,
55

5 
 

9 
26

1,
50

1 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
(2

0,
17

4,
50

0)
 

18
 

(1
6,

24
7,

79
0)

 
9 

(2
,1

50
,6

96
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

6,
58

5,
81

2 
 

18
 

5,
56

5,
21

2 
 

10
 

67
4,

24
7 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
5,

09
3,

42
0 

 
18

 
4,

30
4,

09
5 

 
10

 
52

1,
45

8 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

5,
51

3,
07

1 
 

18
 

4,
83

9,
73

2 
 

11
 

54
2,

03
9 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
14

,6
00

,7
41

  
18

 
13

,2
06

,6
62

  
12

 
1,

37
8,

58
1 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

26
,6

72
,1

43
  

18
 

24
,1

25
,4

86
  

12
 

2,
51

8,
34

5 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(4
,4

92
,9

00
) 

18
 

(4
,1

72
,3

85
) 

13
 

(4
08

,7
28

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(1

2,
98

4,
00

2)
 

18
 

(1
2,

05
7,

74
9)

 
13

 
(1

,1
81

,1
80

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(1

3,
85

0,
85

2)
 

18
 

(1
3,

12
8,

96
0)

 
14

 
(1

,2
14

,0
12

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(9

,0
08

,5
82

) 
18

 
(8

,6
71

,9
95

) 
15

 
(7

60
,7

30
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
5,

53
3,

14
4 

 
18

 
5,

32
6,

41
0 

 
15

 
46

7,
24

6 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

2,
02

0,
04

2 
 

18
 

1,
97

6,
62

9 
 

16
 

16
5,

21
3 

 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
(3

03
,8

06
) 

18
 

(3
01

,0
29

) 
17

 
(2

4,
06

5)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(1
,8

37
,3

78
) 

18
 

(1
,8

20
,5

85
) 

17
 

(1
45

,5
43

) 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(2

61
,5

01
) 

18
 

(2
61

,5
01

) 
18

 
(2

0,
06

2)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

11
,6

81
,7

29
  

18
 

11
,6

81
,7

29
  

18
 

89
6,

21
2 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(9
,2

40
,1

63
) 

18
 

(9
,2

40
,1

63
) 

18
 

(7
08

,8
98

) 
Su

bt
ot

al
 –

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 

 
  

 
$5

0,
71

5,
45

4 
 

 
$1

0,
69

8,
52

2 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
96

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 –
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

 
 

 
 

 
R

es
ta

rt 
of

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

$3
,9

60
,0

00
  

15
 

$1
,9

14
,4

01
  

4 
$5

23
,3

13
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

95
7,

15
0 

 
18

 
72

5,
79

9 
 

8 
10

6,
26

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

2,
87

2,
36

0 
 

18
 

2,
31

3,
29

2 
 

9 
30

6,
20

7 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
1,

15
4,

00
0 

 
18

 
92

9,
38

9 
 

9 
12

3,
02

2 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
(1

,8
09

,3
74

) 
18

 
(1

,4
57

,2
02

) 
9 

(1
92

,8
88

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
1,

50
2,

50
3 

 
18

 
1,

26
9,

66
1 

 
10

 
15

3,
82

4 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

66
2,

08
5 

 
18

 
55

9,
48

2 
 

10
 

67
,7

83
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

2,
06

7,
21

7 
 

18
 

1,
81

4,
73

8 
 

11
 

20
3,

24
6 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
2,

24
6,

13
1 

 
18

 
2,

03
1,

67
0 

 
12

 
21

2,
07

6 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
3,

01
8,

79
6 

 
18

 
2,

73
0,

56
1 

 
12

 
28

5,
03

0 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

41
3,

08
8 

 
18

 
38

3,
61

9 
 

13
 

37
,5

79
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
,1

69
,8

21
) 

18
 

(1
,0

86
,3

68
) 

13
 

(1
06

,4
21

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
31

5,
93

7 
 

18
 

29
9,

47
0 

 
14

 
27

,6
92

  
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(9

90
,3

79
) 

18
 

(9
53

,3
76

) 
15

 
(8

3,
63

3)
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
77

5,
87

4 
 

18
 

74
6,

88
5 

 
15

 
65

,5
19

  
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
(2

70
,7

31
) 

18
 

(2
64

,9
13

) 
16

 
(2

2,
14

2)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(8
36

,9
69

) 
18

 
(8

29
,3

19
) 

17
 

(6
6,

29
8)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(7

1,
91

5)
 

18
 

(7
1,

91
5)

 
18

 
(5

,5
17

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(9
85

,8
76

) 
18

 
(9

85
,8

76
) 

18
 

(7
5,

63
6)

 
Su

bt
ot

al
 –

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 

 
  

 
$1

0,
06

9,
99

7 
 

 
$1

,5
59

,0
23

  
N

ot
e:

 R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

(1
) 

As
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r. 

 
(2

) 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 n

ow
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
st

 g
ro

up
s.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 th

e 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 A

B 
19

7.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
97

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
Sp

ec
ia

l A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 P
O

Bs
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$(

45
3,

97
3,

31
9)

 
15

 
$(

21
9,

46
5,

61
2)

 
4 

$(
59

,9
92

,2
29

) 
M

or
ag

a 
G

en
er

al
 P

O
Bs

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

(7
01

,4
12

) 
15

 
(3

39
,0

85
) 

4 
(9

2,
69

1)
 

C
C

C
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
PO

Bs
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
(1

27
,5

09
,7

11
) 

15
 

(6
1,

64
2,

38
3)

 
4 

(1
6,

85
0,

31
2)

 
Fi

rs
t F

iv
e 

U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

(1
,7

94
,2

05
) 

11
 

(8
14

,8
98

) 
4 

(2
33

,1
91

) 
LA

FC
O

 U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(3
0,

81
7)

 
18

 
(3

0,
53

5)
 

17
 

(2
,4

41
) 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 

 
  

 
$(

28
2,

29
2,

51
3)

 
 

$(
77

,1
70

,8
64

) 
N

ot
e:

 R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

(1
) 

As
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r. 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 p

ay
m

en
t a

m
ou

nt
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r t
he

 S
pe

ci
al

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 c
re

di
t a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
re

ce
ip

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
ce

ed
s 

fo
r P

en
si

on
 

O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

Bo
nd

s 
(P

O
Bs

) o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 s
pe

ci
al

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

. T
he

se
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 s

er
ve

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

U
AA

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
 fo

r t
he

se
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 T

he
 c

os
t o

f d
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

PO
Bs

 is
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
is

 re
po

rt.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
98

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
Al

l C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$1

,1
39

,9
49

,3
02

  
15

 
$5

51
,0

90
,7

99
  

4 
$1

50
,6

43
,9

46
  

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 P
O

Bs
(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

(4
53

,9
73

,3
19

) 
15

 
(2

19
,4

65
,6

12
) 

4 
(5

9,
99

2,
22

9)
 

M
or

ag
a 

G
en

er
al

 P
O

Bs
(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

(7
01

,4
12

) 
15

 
(3

39
,0

85
) 

4 
(9

2,
69

1)
 

C
C

C
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
PO

Bs
(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

(1
27

,5
09

,7
11

) 
15

 
(6

1,
64

2,
38

3)
 

4 
(1

6,
85

0,
31

2)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

13
0,

93
8,

20
6 

 
18

 
99

,2
89

,3
60

  
8 

14
,5

37
,3

13
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

27
8,

01
0,

63
7 

 
18

 
22

3,
89

9,
40

5 
 

9 
29

,6
37

,2
40

  
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

62
,9

68
,4

91
  

18
 

50
,7

12
,4

76
  

9 
6,

71
2,

73
7 

 
D

ep
oo

lin
g 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

1,
84

9,
08

6 
 

18
 

1,
48

9,
18

5 
 

9 
19

7,
12

0 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

28
3,

46
7,

73
5 

 
18

 
23

9,
53

8,
89

6 
 

10
 

29
,0

21
,0

72
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(3

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

15
,5

21
,4

64
  

18
 

13
,1

16
,1

11
  

10
 

1,
58

9,
06

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

19
3,

78
8,

37
1 

 
18

 
17

0,
12

0,
03

2 
 

11
 

19
,0

53
,0

51
  

Fi
rs

t F
iv

e 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

(1
,7

94
,2

05
) 

11
 

(8
14

,8
98

) 
4 

(2
33

,1
91

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
24

3,
82

5,
19

5 
 

18
 

22
0,

54
4,

76
3 

 
12

 
23

,0
21

,6
20

  
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

56
6,

55
3,

00
7 

 
18

 
51

2,
45

8,
52

0 
 

12
 

53
,4

93
,1

10
  

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

(4
,6

66
,4

77
) 

18
 

(4
,2

20
,9

22
) 

12
 

(4
40

,6
02

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(2

01
,7

42
,3

23
) 

18
 

(1
87

,3
50

,4
19

) 
13

 
(1

8,
35

2,
89

9)
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(3

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(2
04

,0
17

,2
83

) 
18

 
(1

89
,4

63
,0

87
) 

13
 

(1
8,

55
9,

85
7)

 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(4

,6
62

,8
99

) 
18

 
(4

,3
30

,2
57

) 
13

 
(4

24
,1

93
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(2
96

,7
04

,7
29

) 
18

 
(2

81
,2

40
,7

74
) 

14
 

(2
6,

00
5,

84
8)

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(4
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(5

1,
70

1)
 

18
 

(4
9,

00
6)

 
14

 
(4

,5
31

) 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(2

,3
31

,8
96

) 
18

 
(2

,2
10

,3
60

) 
14

 
(2

04
,3

88
) 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 p
ay

m
en

t a
m

ou
nt

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r t

he
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 re

pr
es

en
t t

he
 c

re
di

t a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

re
ce

ip
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

s 
fo

r P
en

si
on

 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s 

(P
O

Bs
) o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
. T

he
se

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 s
er

ve
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
U

AA
L 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

 fo
r t

he
se

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

 T
he

 c
os

t o
f d

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
PO

Bs
 is

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt.

 
(2

) 
In

cl
ud

es
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f P

O
Bs

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

C
ou

rts
), 

Fi
rs

t 5
 –

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, L
oc

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
Fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, o
r M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 c

os
t g

ro
up

s 
or

 fo
r C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
ei

r S
af

et
y 

co
st

 g
ro

up
. 

(3
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
(4

)  
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

el
im

in
at

ed
 fo

r C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
99

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
Al

l C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

$(
20

9,
12

5,
13

2)
 

18
 

$(
20

1,
31

1,
60

9)
 

15
 

$(
17

,6
59

,5
75

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

11
4,

38
9,

47
1 

 
18

 
11

0,
11

5,
54

8 
 

15
 

9,
65

9,
62

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

(4
7,

88
5,

17
1)

 
18

 
(4

6,
85

6,
06

3)
 

16
 

(3
,9

16
,3

81
) 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
(3

03
,8

06
) 

18
 

(3
01

,0
29

) 
17

 
(2

4,
06

5)
 

LA
FC

O
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(3
0,

81
7)

 
18

 
(3

0,
53

5)
 

17
 

(2
,4

41
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(3
9,

96
3,

44
0)

 
18

 
(3

9,
59

8,
18

7)
 

17
 

(3
,1

65
,6

04
) 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(2

61
,5

01
) 

18
 

(2
61

,5
01

) 
18

 
(2

0,
06

2)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

16
0,

59
6,

07
2 

 
18

 
16

0,
59

6,
07

2 
 

18
 

12
,3

20
,7

96
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(8

9,
75

8,
47

7)
 

18
 

(8
9,

75
8,

47
7)

 
18

 
(6

,8
86

,1
96

) 
C

G
 #

6 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l S

ur
pl

us
(5

) 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(4
98

,3
74

) 
N

/A
 

(4
98

,3
74

) 
N

/A
 

0 
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 A

ll 
C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
 

 
 

$1
,0

23
,2

28
,5

88
  

 
$1

77
,0

51
,6

29
  

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s(6
)  

 
 

 
8,

73
6,

93
6 

 
 

To
ta

l C
C

C
ER

A 
 

 
 

$1
,0

31
,9

65
,5

24
 

 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 p
ay

m
en

t a
m

ou
nt

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r t

he
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 re

pr
es

en
t t

he
 c

re
di

t a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

re
ce

ip
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

s 
fo

r P
en

si
on

 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s 

(P
O

Bs
) o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
. T

he
se

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 s
er

ve
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
U

AA
L 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

 fo
r t

he
se

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

 T
he

 c
os

t o
f d

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
PO

Bs
 is

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt.

 
(2

) 
In

cl
ud

es
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f P

O
Bs

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

C
ou

rts
), 

Fi
rs

t 5
 –

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, L
oc

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
Fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, o
r M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 c

os
t g

ro
up

s 
or

 fo
r C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
ei

r S
af

et
y 

co
st

 g
ro

up
. 

(3
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
(4

)  
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

el
im

in
at

ed
 fo

r C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9.
 

(5
)  

C
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 C

C
C

ER
A’

s 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 P

ol
ic

y,
 a

ll 
pr

io
r U

AA
L 

la
ye

rs
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fu

lly
 a

m
or

tiz
ed

 d
ue

 to
 s

ur
pl

us
. 

(6
)  

St
ar

tin
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

th
re

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

(i.
e.

, D
ia

bl
o 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
, D

el
ta

 D
ia

bl
o 

Sa
ni

ta
tio

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 a

nd
 C

ity
 o

f P
itt

sb
ur

g)
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 C

os
t 

G
ro

up
s 

#1
, #

2 
an

d 
#7

 to
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
C

os
t G

ro
up

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

0 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 J
 –

 P
R

O
JE

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

U
AA

L 
B

AL
AN

C
ES

 A
N

D
 P

AY
M

EN
TS

 

 

 (1
,50

0)

 (1
,00

0)

 (5
00

)

 0 50
0

 1,
00

0

 1,
50

0

 2,
00

0

 2,
50

0

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

$ in Millions

GA
IN

S
& 

LO
SS

ES
AS

SU
MP

TIO
N 

/ 
PL

AN
CH

AN
GE

S
RE

ST
AR

T
/ 

OT
HE

R
CH

AN
GE

S

NE
T

OU
TS

TA
ND

IN
G

BA
LA

NC
E

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 B
al

an
ce

 o
f $

1,
02

3 
M

ill
io

n 
in

 N
et

 U
AA

L a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8

Ex
cl

ud
es

 T
er

m
in

at
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

er
s

N
ET

 O
UT

ST
AN

DI
N

G 
BA

LA
N

CE



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

1 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 J
 –

 P
R

O
JE

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

U
AA

L 
B

AL
AN

C
ES

 A
N

D
 P

AY
M

EN
TS

 (C
O

NT
IN

U
ED

) 

 

 (2
00

)

 (1
00

)

 0 10
0

 20
0

 30
0

 40
0

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

$ in Millions

GA
IN

S
& 

LO
SS

ES
AS

SU
MP

TIO
N 

/ 
PL

AN
CH

AN
GE

S
RE

ST
AR

T 
/ 

OT
HE

R
CH

AN
GE

S
NE

TU
AA

L
PA

YM
EN

T

An
nu

al
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 A
m

or
tiz

e 
$1

,0
23

 M
ill

io
n 

in
 N

et
 U

AA
L a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8
Ex

cl
ud

es
 T

er
m

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s

N
ET

 U
AA

L 
PA

YM
EN

T



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

2 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 K
 –

 D
EF

IN
IT

IO
N

 O
F 

PE
N

SI
O

N
 T

ER
M

S 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
lis

t d
ef

in
es

 c
er

ta
in

 te
ch

ni
ca

l t
er

m
s f

or
 th

e 
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

re
ad

er
: 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
fo

r A
ct

iv
es

: 
Th

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
ts

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

ye
ar

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
da

te
. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
fo

r P
en

si
on

er
s 

an
d 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f l
ife

tim
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pe
ns

io
ne

rs
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s.

 T
hi

s 
su

m
 

ta
ke

s 
ac

co
un

t o
f l

ife
 e

xp
ec

ta
nc

ie
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 th
e 

ag
es

 o
f t

he
 a

nn
ui

ta
nt

s 
an

d 
th

e 
in

te
re

st
 th

at
 

th
e 

su
m

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 e

ar
n 

be
fo

re
 it

 is
 e

nt
ire

ly
 p

ai
d 

ou
t i

n 
be

ne
fit

s.
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l C
os

t M
et

ho
d:

 
A 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
al

lo
ca

tin
g 

th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f F
ut

ur
e 

Be
ne

fit
s 

to
 v

ar
io

us
 ti

m
e 

pe
rio

ds
; a

 
m

et
ho

d 
us

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
th

at
 a

re
 u

se
d 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n.

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
or

 L
os

s:
 

A 
m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
th

at
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 a

 s
et

 o
f 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
tw

o 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

da
te

s.
 T

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 th
at

 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

di
ffe

rs
 fr

om
 th

at
 a

ss
um

ed
, A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
em

er
ge

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 fo

re
ca

st
ed

, o
r m

ay
 b

e 
la

rg
er

 o
r s

m
al

le
r t

ha
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d.
 A

ct
ua

ria
l g

ai
ns

 a
re

 d
ue

 to
 

fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e,

 e
.g

., 
as

se
ts

 e
ar

n 
m

or
e 

th
an

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
, s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

le
ss

 th
an

 
as

su
m

ed
, m

em
be

rs
 re

tir
e 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
as

su
m

ed
, e

tc
. F

av
or

ab
le

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

m
ea

ns
 a

ct
ua

l r
es

ul
ts

 
pr

od
uc

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l l

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
no

t a
s 

la
rg

e 
as

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. O

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

ha
nd

, a
ct

ua
ria

l l
os

se
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 u
nf

av
or

ab
le

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e,

 i.
e.

, a
ct

ua
l r

es
ul

ts
 y

ie
ld

 a
ct

ua
ria

l 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 la
rg

er
 th

an
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

.  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 E

qu
iv

al
en

t: 
O

f e
qu

al
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

, d
et

er
m

in
ed

 a
s 

of
 a

 g
iv

en
 d

at
e 

an
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 g

iv
en

 s
et

 o
f 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 (A

PV
): 

Th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
n 

am
ou

nt
 o

r s
er

ie
s 

of
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

or
 re

ce
iv

ab
le

 a
t v

ar
io

us
 ti

m
es

, d
et

er
m

in
ed

 
as

 o
f a

 g
iv

en
 d

at
e 

by
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 s
et

 o
f A

ct
ua

ria
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. E

ac
h 

su
ch

 
am

ou
nt

 o
r s

er
ie

s 
of

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
is

: 
Ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

ba
bl

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 e

ffe
ct

 o
f c

er
ta

in
 in

te
rv

en
in

g 
ev

en
ts

 (s
uc

h 
as

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
le

ve
ls

, m
ar

ita
l s

ta
tu

s,
 e

tc
.) 

M
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

pr
ob

ab
ilit

y 
of

 th
e 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
of

 a
n 

ev
en

t (
su

ch
 a

s 
su

rv
iv

al
, d

ea
th

, d
is

ab
ilit

y,
 

te
rm

in
at

io
n,

 e
tc

.) 
on

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pa

ym
en

t i
s 

co
nd

iti
on

ed
, a

nd
  

D
is

co
un

te
d 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 a
n 

as
su

m
ed

 ra
te

 (o
r r

at
es

) o
f r

et
ur

n 
to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
tim

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 m

on
ey

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

3 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f F
ut

ur
e 

B
en

ef
its

: 
Th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f b

en
ef

it 
am

ou
nt

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 a
t v

ar
io

us
 fu

tu
re

 ti
m

es
 u

nd
er

 
a 

pa
rti

cu
la

r s
et

 o
f A

ct
ua

ria
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
, t

ak
in

g 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 s

uc
h 

ite
m

s 
as

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f 
ad

va
nc

em
en

t i
n 

ag
e,

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 fu
tu

re
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

re
di

ts
. T

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l 

Pr
es

en
t V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
Be

ne
fit

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

fo
r a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, r

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
, 

be
ne

fic
ia

rie
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s,
 a

nd
 in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 e
ith

er
 a

 re
fu

nd
 o

f m
em

be
r 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 o
r a

 fu
tu

re
 re

tir
em

en
t b

en
ef

it.
 E

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
no

th
er

 w
ay

, i
t i

s 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

to
 b

e 
in

ve
st

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 in

ve
st

ed
 p

lu
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s 

w
ou

ld
 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t a
ss

et
s 

to
 p

ay
 a

ll 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 w
he

n 
du

e.
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n:
 

Th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n,
 a

s 
of

 a
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

da
te

, o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t, 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y,
 A

ct
ua

ria
l 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s,

 a
nd

 re
la

te
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
s 

fo
r a

 p
la

n,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 D
et

er
m

in
ed

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
.  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

(A
VA

): 
Th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

as
 o

f a
 g

iv
en

 d
at

e,
 u

se
d 

by
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
fo

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
pu

rp
os

es
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t o

r f
ai

r v
al

ue
 o

f p
la

n 
as

se
ts

, b
ut

 c
om

m
on

ly
 p

la
ns

 u
se

 a
 s

m
oo

th
ed

 v
al

ue
 in

 o
rd

er
 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ye
ar

-to
-y

ea
r v

ol
at

ilit
y 

of
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
re

su
lts

, s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

fu
nd

ed
 ra

tio
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 D
et

er
m

in
ed

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
n.

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
: 

Va
lu

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 u
til

iz
in

g 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 o
f a

ct
ua

ria
l s

ci
en

ce
. A

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 v
al

ue
 is

 d
er

iv
ed

 b
y 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 to
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

va
lu

es
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n.

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

(A
D

C
): 

Th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 p

er
io

di
c 

re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

, e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

do
lla

r a
m

ou
nt

 o
r a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

co
ve

re
d 

pl
an

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y.

 T
he

 A
D

C
 c

on
si

st
s 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t. 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

M
et

ho
d:

 
A 

m
et

ho
d 

fo
r d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pa
ym

en
t. 

Th
e 

m
os

t c
om

m
on

 m
et

ho
ds

 u
se

d 
ar

e 
le

ve
l 

do
lla

r a
nd

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

Le
ve

l D
ol

la
r m

et
ho

d,
 th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t i
s 

on
e 

of
 a

 s
tre

am
 o

f p
ay

m
en

ts
, a

ll 
eq

ua
l, 

w
ho

se
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

Le
ve

l P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 P

ay
 m

et
ho

d,
 th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t 
is

 o
ne

 o
f a

 s
tre

am
 o

f i
nc

re
as

in
g 

pa
ym

en
ts

, w
ho

se
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

Le
ve

l P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 P

ay
 m

et
ho

d,
 th

e 
st

re
am

 o
f 

pa
ym

en
ts

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
at

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 ra
te

 a
t w

hi
ch

 to
ta

l c
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

of
 a

ll 
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ill 

in
cr

ea
se

. 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pa
ym

en
t: 

Th
e 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n,
 o

r A
D

C
, t

ha
t i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 p
ay

of
f t

he
 U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

4 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
ns

 o
r A

ct
ua

ria
l 

As
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 
Th

e 
es

tim
at

es
 u

po
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f t
he

 P
la

n 
is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
- t

he
 ra

te
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t y

ie
ld

 th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 w
ill 

ea
rn

 o
ve

r t
he

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 fu
tu

re
; 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
ra

te
s 

- t
he

 ra
te

 o
r p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 d
ea

th
 a

t a
 g

iv
en

 a
ge

 fo
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
pe

ns
io

ne
rs

;  
R

et
ire

m
en

t r
at

es
 - 

th
e 

ra
te

 o
r p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 re
tir

em
en

t a
t a

 g
iv

en
 a

ge
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

; 
D

is
ab

ilit
y 

ra
te

s 
– 

th
e 

ra
te

 o
r p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
re

tir
em

en
t a

t a
 g

iv
en

 a
ge

; 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
ra

te
s 

- t
he

 ra
te

 o
r p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
at

 w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
of

 v
ar

io
us

 a
ge

s 
ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 
le

av
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t f

or
 re

as
on

s 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

de
at

h,
 d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 o
r r

et
ire

m
en

t; 
Sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

 ra
te

s 
- t

he
 ra

te
s 

of
 s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
 d

ue
 to

 in
fla

tio
n,

 re
al

 w
ag

e 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 m
er

it 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s.
 

C
lo

se
d 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pe
rio

d:
 

A 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
nu

m
be

r o
f y

ea
rs

 th
at

 is
 c

ou
nt

ed
 d

ow
n 

by
 o

ne
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

, a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
de

cl
in

es
 to

 z
er

o 
w

ith
 th

e 
pa

ss
ag

e 
of

 ti
m

e.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 if
 th

e 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

is
 in

iti
al

ly
 s

et
 a

t 2
0 

ye
ar

s,
 it

 is
 1

9 
ye

ar
s 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 o
ne

 y
ea

r, 
18

 y
ea

rs
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

w
o 

ye
ar

s,
 e

tc
. S

ee
 O

pe
n 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pe
rio

d.
 

D
ec

re
m

en
ts

: 
Th

os
e 

ca
us

es
/e

ve
nt

s 
du

e 
to

 w
hi

ch
 a

 m
em

be
r’s

 s
ta

tu
s 

(a
ct

iv
e-

in
ac

tiv
e-

re
tir

ee
-b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
) 

ch
an

ge
s,

 th
at

 is
: d

ea
th

, r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

di
sa

bi
lit

y,
 o

r t
er

m
in

at
io

n.
 

D
ef

in
ed

 B
en

ef
it 

Pl
an

: 
A 

re
tir

em
en

t p
la

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 b

en
ef

its
 a

re
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
a 

fo
rm

ul
a 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n,

 a
ge

 a
nd

/o
r y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
. 

D
ef

in
ed

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
Pl

an
: 

A 
re

tir
em

en
t p

la
n,

 s
uc

h 
as

 a
 4

01
(k

) p
la

n,
 a

 4
03

(b
) p

la
n,

 o
r a

 4
57

 p
la

n,
 in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 to

 
th

e 
pl

an
 a

re
 a

ss
ig

ne
d 

to
 a

n 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 e
ac

h 
m

em
be

r, 
th

e 
pl

an
’s

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
ar

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

ac
co

un
t, 

an
d 

ea
ch

 m
em

be
r’s

 b
en

ef
its

 a
re

 a
 d

ire
ct

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

. 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
St

ud
y:

 
A 

pe
rio

di
c 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
 th

at
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 a
 re

vi
si

on
 o

f 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. A

ct
ua

l r
at

es
 o

f d
ec

re
m

en
t a

nd
 s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 a

ss
um

ed
 v

al
ue

s 
an

d 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
y.

 

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

: 
Th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f t
he

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
(V

VA
) t

o 
th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

(A
AL

). 
Pl

an
s 

so
m

et
im

es
 a

ls
o 

ca
lc

ul
at

e 
a 

m
ar

ke
t f

un
de

d 
ra

tio
, u

si
ng

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
(M

VA
), 

ra
th

er
 

th
an

 th
e 

VV
A.

 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n:
 

Th
e 

ra
te

 o
f e

ar
ni

ng
s 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
 fr

om
 it

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
te

re
st

, d
iv

id
en

ds
 a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l g
ai

n 
an

d 
lo

ss
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
, c

om
pu

te
d 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
. F

or
 a

ct
ua

ria
l 

pu
rp

os
es

, t
he

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
of

te
n 

re
fle

ct
s 

a 
sm

oo
th

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 lo

ss
es

 to
 a

vo
id

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 s
w

in
gs

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ss
et

s 
fro

m
 o

ne
 y

ea
r t

o 
th

e 
ne

xt
. 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t: 
Th

e 
po

rti
on

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
Be

ne
fit

s 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 a

 
va

lu
at

io
n 

ye
ar

 b
y 

th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l C
os

t M
et

ho
d.

 A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
an

 U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

Ac
cr

ue
d 

Li
ab

ilit
y 

is
 n

ot
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t (
se

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t).
 F

or
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

th
at

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 p
ar

t b
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

, N
or

m
al

 C
os

t r
ef

er
s 

to
 th

e 
to

ta
l o

f 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 s

ta
te

d.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

5 
 

O
pe

n 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d:

 
An

 o
pe

n 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

is
 o

ne
 w

hi
ch

 is
 u

se
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t b
ut

 
w

hi
ch

 d
oe

s 
no

t c
ha

ng
e 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 If

 th
e 

in
iti

al
 p

er
io

d 
is

 s
et

 a
s 

30
 y

ea
rs

, t
he

 s
am

e 
30

-y
ea

r p
er

io
d 

is
 

us
ed

 in
 e

ac
h 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
r i

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d.

  

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 

Li
ab

ili
ty

: 
Th

e 
ex

ce
ss

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

ov
er

 th
e 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s.
 T

hi
s 

va
lu

e 
m

ay
 

be
 n

eg
at

iv
e,

 in
 w

hi
ch

 c
as

e 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
as

 a
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 

Li
ab

ilit
y,

 a
ls

o 
ca

lle
d 

th
e 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Su
rp

lu
s 

or
 a

n 
O

ve
rfu

nd
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
D

at
e 

or
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

D
at

e:
 

Th
e 

da
te

 a
s 

of
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 a

nd
 a

s 
of

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l P

re
se

nt
 

Va
lu

e 
of

 F
ut

ur
e 

Be
ne

fit
s 

is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
. T

he
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 a

re
 

di
sc

ou
nt

ed
 to

 th
is

 d
at

e.
 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s:
 

Th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 n

on
-v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
se

rv
es

. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

6 
 Se

ct
io

n 
4:

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
B

as
is

  
EX

H
IB

IT
 I 

– 
AC

TU
AR

IA
L 

AS
SU

M
PT

IO
N

S 
AN

D
 M

ET
H

O
D

S 
R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

an
al

ys
is

 u
se

d 
in

 s
el

ec
tin

g 
ea

ch
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
th

at
 h

as
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 a
ct

ua
ria

l 
va

lu
at

io
n 

is
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 th
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
St

ud
y 

re
po

rt 
da

te
d 

Ap
ril

 2
3,

 2
01

9.
 U

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

no
te

d,
 a

ll 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

et
ho

ds
 s

ho
w

n 
be

lo
w

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
ll 

tie
rs

. 
Th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d.
 

Ec
on

om
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
 

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n:
 

7.
00

%
; n

et
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t e

xp
en

se
s.

 
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
St

ud
y 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 a

bo
ve

, e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s 
re

pr
es

en
t a

bo
ut

 
0.

65
%

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s.
  

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

: 
1.

10
%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r b

as
ed

 o
n 

no
rm

al
 c

os
t (

be
fo

re
 e

xp
en

se
s)

 fo
r 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r. 

Th
is

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f a

ct
ua

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r l
ea

di
ng

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 
Fo

r t
he

 2
01

8 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r, 

ac
tu

al
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 w
er

e 
$9

,3
37

,0
53

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l p

ay
ro

ll 
w

as
 

$8
50

,9
29

,1
06

. T
hi

s 
re

su
lts

 in
 th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 1

.1
0%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 a

s 
sh

ow
n 

be
lo

w
:  

 
Av

er
ag

e 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t R

at
e 

 
Be

fo
re

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
W

ei
gh

tin
g 

To
ta

l L
oa

di
ng

 

Av
er

ag
e 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t R
at

e 
B

ef
or

e 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
W

ei
gh

tin
g 

To
ta

l  
Lo

ad
in

g 
Em

pl
oy

er
 

15
.3

4%
 

57
.1

5%
 

0.
63

%
 

M
em

be
r 

11
.5

0%
 

42
.8

5%
 

0.
47

%
 

To
ta

l 
 

10
0.

00
%

 
1.

10
%

 
Th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e 

is
 th

en
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rc

en
t o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

as
 th

e 
ba

si
c 

m
em

be
r r

at
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 lo

ad
in

g 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

. T
hi

s 
is

 d
on

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

50
/5

0 
sh

ar
in

g 
of

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t f
or

 th
os

e 
in

 th
e 

PE
PR

A 
tie

rs
. T

he
 ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 s

ho
w

s 
th

is
 a

llo
ca

tio
n.

 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Lo
ad

 a
s 

a 
%

 o
f P

ay
ro

ll 
Ad

di
tio

n 
to

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 B

as
ic

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t R
at

e 
0.

47
%

 
Ad

di
tio

n 
to

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 B

as
ic

 U
AA

L 
R

at
e 

0.
16

%
 

Ad
di

tio
n 

to
 M

em
be

r B
as

ic
 R

at
e 

0.
47

%
 

To
ta

l A
dd

iti
on

 to
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
R

at
es

 
1.

10
%

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

7 
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
C

re
di

tin
g 

R
at

e:
 

7.
00

%
, c

om
po

un
de

d 
se

m
i-a

nn
ua

lly
. 

C
on

su
m

er
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x:
 

In
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 2
.7

5%
 p

er
 y

ea
r. 

 
Be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

 (n
on

-d
is

ab
ilit

y)
, T

ie
r 4

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 (n

on
-d

is
ab

ilit
y)

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 T

ie
r D

 
ar

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
3.

00
%

 m
ax

im
um

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
 d

ue
 to

 C
PI

 p
er

 y
ea

r (
va

lu
ed

 a
s 

a 
2.

75
%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
 

Be
ne

fit
s 

fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 2

, T
ie

r 3
 (d

is
ab

ilit
y)

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 (d

is
ab

ilit
y)

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

 4
.0

0%
 m

ax
im

um
 c

ha
ng

e 
pe

r 
ye

ar
 (v

al
ue

d 
as

 a
 2

.7
5%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
Be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 m
em

be
rs

 c
ov

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 c

er
ta

in
 m

em
or

an
da

 o
f u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

 2
.0

0%
 m

ax
im

um
 c

ha
ng

e 
pe

r y
ea

r (
va

lu
ed

 a
s 

a 
2.

00
%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
Fo

r m
em

be
rs

 th
at

 h
av

e 
C

O
LA

 b
an

ks
, t

he
y 

ar
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 fu
tu

re
 C

O
LA

s.
 

Th
e 

ac
tu

al
 C

O
LA

 g
ra

nt
ed

 b
y 

C
C

C
ER

A 
on

 A
pr

il 
1,

 2
01

9 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

fle
ct

ed
 fo

r n
on

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 

Pa
yr

ol
l G

ro
w

th
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

of
 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r p
lu

s 
“a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ar
d”

 re
al

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 0
.5

0%
 p

er
 y

ea
r, 

us
ed

 to
 a

m
or

tiz
e 

th
e 

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 In

te
rn

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

40
1(

a)
(1

7)
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Li

m
it:

 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
f 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
75

22
.1

0 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Li
m

it:
 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
f 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

8 
 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
s:

 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 ra
te

 o
f c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
cl

ud
es

: i
nf

la
tio

n 
at

 2
.7

5%
, p

lu
s 

“a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ar

d”
 re

al
 s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

of
 0

.5
0%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
pl

us
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
er

it 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s:
 

M
er

it 
an

d 
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

s 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 1

 
12

.0
0 

13
.0

0 
1 

– 
2 

7.
00

 
8.

00
 

2 
– 

3 
5.

25
 

5.
75

 
3 

– 
4 

3.
75

 
4.

75
 

4 
– 

5 
2.

75
 

2.
75

 
5 

– 
6 

2.
25

 
2.

00
 

6 
– 

7 
1.

75
 

1.
75

 
7 

– 
8 

1.
50

 
1.

50
 

8 
– 

9 
1.

40
 

1.
40

 
9 

– 
10

 
1.

30
 

1.
30

 
10

 –
 1

1 
1.

20
 

1.
25

 
11

 –
 1

2 
1.

10
 

1.
20

 
12

 –
 1

3 
1.

00
 

1.
15

 
13

 –
 1

4 
0.

90
 

1.
10

 
14

 –
 1

5 
0.

80
 

1.
05

 
15

 –
 1

6 
0.

75
 

1.
00

 
16

 –
 1

7 
0.

70
 

1.
00

 
17

 –
 1

8 
0.

65
 

1.
00

 
18

 –
 1

9 
0.

60
 

1.
00

 
19

 –
 2

0 
0.

55
 

1.
00

 
20

 &
 O

ve
r 

0.
50

 
1.

00
 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

to
ta

l a
ss

um
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

 fo
r a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 

5.
7%

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

9 
 D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

 

Po
st

-R
et

ire
m

en
t M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
: 

H
ea

lth
y 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

G
en

er
al

 H
ea

lth
y 

R
et

ire
e 

Am
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

Ab
ov

e-
M

ed
ia

n 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
), 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

Sa
fe

ty
 H

ea
lth

y 
R

et
ire

e 
Am

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

) m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 1
05

%
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 1

00
%

 fo
r f

em
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
• 

Al
l B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 P
ub

-2
01

0 
C

on
tin

ge
nt

 S
ur

vi
vo

r A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

) m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 1
05

%
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
D

is
ab

le
d 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

N
on

-S
af

et
y 

D
is

ab
le

d 
R

et
ire

e 
Am

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
) m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 1

05
%

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 1
00

%
 fo

r f
em

al
es

, p
ro

je
ct

ed
 g

en
er

at
io

na
lly

 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

Sa
fe

ty
 D

is
ab

le
d 

R
et

ire
e 

Am
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r 

m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
) m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 1

05
%

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 1
00

%
 fo

r f
em

al
es

, p
ro

je
ct

ed
 g

en
er

at
io

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

18
. 

Th
e 

Pu
b-

20
10

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
es

 a
nd

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
s 

sh
ow

n 
ab

ov
e 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

as
 

of
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e.

 T
he

se
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ta
bl

es
 w

er
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 to
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
to

 re
fle

ct
 fu

tu
re

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e 

an
d 

th
os

e 
ye

ar
s.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

0 
 

Pr
e-

R
et

ire
m

en
t M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
: 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 A

m
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

Ab
ov

e-
M

ed
ia

n 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
), 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

), 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
sc

al
e 

M
P-

20
18

. 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
(1

) 
Sa

fe
ty

(1
)  

M
al

e 
Fe

m
al

e 
M

al
e 

Fe
m

al
e 

20
 

0.
04

 
0.

01
 

0.
04

 
0.

02
 

25
 

0.
02

 
0.

01
 

0.
03

 
0.

02
 

30
 

0.
03

 
0.

01
 

0.
04

 
0.

02
 

35
 

0.
04

 
0.

02
 

0.
04

 
0.

03
 

40
 

0.
06

 
0.

03
 

0.
05

 
0.

04
 

45
 

0.
09

 
0.

05
 

0.
07

 
0.

06
 

50
 

0.
13

 
0.

08
 

0.
10

 
0.

08
 

55
 

0.
19

 
0.

11
 

0.
15

 
0.

11
 

60
 

0.
28

 
0.

17
 

0.
23

 
0.

14
 

65
 

0.
41

 
0.

27
 

0.
35

 
0.

20
 

70
 

0.
61

 
0.

44
 

0.
66

 
0.

39
 

 (1
)  

G
en

er
at

io
na

l p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

ba
se

 y
ea

r (
20

10
) a

re
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

s.
 

Al
l p

re
-re

tir
em

en
t d

ea
th

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d.
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

 fo
r M

em
be

r 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

: 
• 

G
en

er
al

 M
em

be
rs

: P
ub

-2
01

0 
G

en
er

al
 H

ea
lth

y 
R

et
ire

e 
Am

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

), 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

30
 y

ea
rs

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
sc

al
e 

M
P-

20
18

, w
ei

gh
te

d 
30

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

70
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

Sa
fe

ty
 H

ea
lth

y 
R

et
ire

e 
Am

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

) m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 1
05

%
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 1

00
%

 fo
r f

em
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 3
0 

ye
ar

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

, w
ei

gh
te

d 
85

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

15
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

1 
 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 In

ci
de

nc
e:

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 In
ci

de
nc

e 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 4

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 5

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
20

 
0.

01
 

0.
01

 
0.

02
 

25
 

0.
02

 
0.

02
 

0.
16

 
30

 
0.

04
 

0.
03

 
0.

32
 

35
 

0.
08

 
0.

05
 

0.
46

 
40

 
0.

22
 

0.
08

 
0.

56
 

45
 

0.
36

 
0.

11
 

0.
90

 
50

 
0.

52
 

0.
13

 
2.

54
 

55
 

0.
60

 
0.

16
 

3.
80

 
60

 
0.

60
 

0.
22

 
4.

30
 

65
 

0.
60

 
0.

25
 

4.
50

 
70

 
0.

60
 

0.
25

 
4.

50
 

60
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 4
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 o

th
er

 4
0%

 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

30
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 o

th
er

 7
0%

 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

10
0%

 o
f S

af
et

y 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

2 
 

Te
rm

in
at

io
n:

 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 

Le
ss

 th
an

 1
 

14
.0

0 
12

.5
0 

1 
– 

2 
9.

50
 

10
.0

0 
2 

– 
3 

9.
25

 
8.

25
 

3 
– 

4 
6.

50
 

5.
75

 
4 

– 
5 

5.
25

 
5.

00
 

5 
– 

6 
5.

00
 

4.
25

 
6 

– 
7 

4.
50

 
3.

50
 

7 
– 

8 
4.

25
 

3.
25

 
8 

– 
9 

3.
75

 
3.

00
 

9 
– 

10
 

3.
50

 
2.

50
 

10
 –

 1
1 

3.
25

 
2.

25
 

11
 –

 1
2 

3.
00

 
2.

10
 

12
 –

 1
3 

2.
75

 
2.

00
 

13
 –

 1
4 

2.
50

 
1.

90
 

14
 –

 1
5 

2.
50

 
1.

80
 

15
 –

 1
6 

2.
25

 
1.

70
 

16
 –

 1
7 

2.
25

 
1.

60
 

17
 –

 1
8 

2.
00

 
1.

50
 

18
 –

 1
9 

2.
00

 
1.

25
 

19
 –

 2
0 

1.
75

 
1.

00
 

20
 &

 O
ve

r 
1.

25
 

0.
75

 
Th

e 
m

em
be

r i
s 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

r o
f t

he
 m

em
be

r’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
or

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

re
tir

em
en

t 
be

ne
fit

.  
N

o 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
fte

r a
 m

em
be

r i
s 

fir
st

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 re

tir
e.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

3 
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (G
en

er
al

): 

Ag
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
) 

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 3
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 1
  

N
on

-
En

ha
nc

ed
 

PE
PR

A 
 

Ti
er

 4
 a

nd
 

Ti
er

 5
 

Le
ss

 th
an

 
30

 Y
ea

rs
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e 

O
ve

r 3
0 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

Le
ss

 th
an

 
30

 Y
ea

rs
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e 

O
ve

r 3
0 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
50

 
5.

00
 

9.
00

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
3.

00
 

0.
00

 
51

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
3.

00
 

5.
40

 
3.

00
 

0.
00

 
52

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
3.

00
 

5.
40

 
3.

00
 

2.
00

 
53

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
54

 
12

.0
0 

21
.6

0 
6.

00
 

10
.8

0 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
55

 
15

.0
0 

27
.0

0 
8.

00
 

14
.4

0 
10

.0
0 

5.
00

 
56

 
17

.0
0 

30
.6

0 
8.

00
 

9.
60

 
10

.0
0 

5.
00

 
57

 
17

.0
0 

30
.6

0 
9.

00
 

10
.8

0 
10

.0
0 

6.
00

 
58

 
17

.0
0 

30
.6

0 
10

.0
0 

12
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

6.
00

 
59

 
22

.0
0 

26
.4

0 
12

.0
0 

14
.4

0 
10

.0
0 

8.
00

 
60

 
25

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
13

.0
0 

15
.6

0 
25

.0
0 

8.
00

 
61

 
30

.0
0 

36
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

21
.6

0 
15

.0
0 

12
.0

0 
62

 
30

.0
0 

36
.0

0 
22

.0
0 

26
.4

0 
40

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
63

 
25

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
22

.0
0 

26
.4

0 
35

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
64

 
25

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
65

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
32

.0
0 

32
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
66

 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
32

.0
0 

32
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
67

 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
68

 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
69

 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
70

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
71

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
72

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
73

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
74

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
75

 &
 O

ve
r 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

4 
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (S
af

et
y)

: 

Ag
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
) 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 C
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 

Ti
er

 A
 N

on
-

En
ha

nc
ed

 a
nd

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

an
d 

Ti
er

 E
 

Le
ss

 th
an

 3
0 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
O

ve
r 3

0 
Ye

ar
s 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

45
 

7.
00

 
8.

75
 

2.
00

 
0.

00
 

46
 

3.
00

 
3.

75
 

1.
00

 
0.

00
 

47
 

10
.0

0 
12

.5
0 

4.
00

 
0.

00
 

48
 

10
.0

0 
12

.5
0 

4.
00

 
0.

00
 

49
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

12
.0

0 
0.

00
 

50
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

18
.0

0 
5.

00
 

51
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

18
.0

0 
4.

00
 

52
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
4.

00
 

53
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
5.

00
 

54
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
6.

00
 

55
 

20
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

56
 

20
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

57
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

58
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

59
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

60
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

61
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

62
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

63
 

30
.0

0 
45

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

64
 

40
.0

0 
60

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

it 
fo

r 
D

ef
er

re
d 

Ve
st

ed
 M

em
be

rs
: 

G
en

er
al

: 
59

 
Sa

fe
ty

 w
ith

 R
ec

ip
ro

ci
ty

: 
53

 
Sa

fe
ty

 w
ith

ou
t R

ec
ip

ro
ci

ty
: 

50
 

40
%

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 7

0%
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 d

ef
er

re
d 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

a 
re

ci
pr

oc
al

 e
m

pl
oy

er
. F

or
 re

ci
pr

oc
al

s,
 3

.7
5%

 a
nd

 4
.2

5%
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 fo
r 

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 

Fu
tu

re
 B

en
ef

it 
Ac

cr
ua

ls
: 

1.
0 

ye
ar

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 p

er
 y

ea
r f

or
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

 C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ar
tia

l s
er

vi
ce

 a
cc

ru
al

 fo
r p

ar
t-t

im
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

5 
 

U
nk

no
w

n 
D

at
a 

fo
r M

em
be

rs
: 

Sa
m

e 
as

 th
os

e 
ex

hi
bi

te
d 

by
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 s

im
ila

r k
no

w
n 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s.
 If

 n
ot

 s
pe

ci
fie

d,
 m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

al
e.

 

D
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f A
ct

iv
e 

M
em

be
rs

: 
Al

l a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f C

C
C

ER
A 

as
 o

f t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
.  

Fo
rm

 o
f P

ay
m

en
t: 

Al
l a

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 e
le

ct
 th

e 
un

m
od

ifi
ed

 o
pt

io
n 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t. 

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ex
pl

ic
it 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
be

ne
fit

s.
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

ar
rie

d:
 

Fo
r a

ll 
ac

tiv
e 

an
d 

in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

, 6
5%

 o
f m

al
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 5
0%

 o
f f

em
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
ar

rie
d 

at
 p

re
-re

tir
em

en
t d

ea
th

 o
r r

et
ire

m
en

t. 

Ag
e 

an
d 

G
en

de
r o

f S
po

us
e:

 
Fo

r a
ll 

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, m

al
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

a 
fe

m
al

e 
sp

ou
se

 w
ho

 is
 3

 y
ea

rs
 

yo
un

ge
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

m
em

be
r a

nd
 fe

m
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

m
al

e 
sp

ou
se

 w
ho

 is
 2

 y
ea

rs
 o

ld
er

 th
an

 
th

e 
m

em
be

r. 

O
ffs

et
s 

by
 O

th
er

 P
la

ns
 o

f t
he

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 fo

r D
is

ab
ili

ty
 B

en
ef

its
: 

Th
e 

Pl
an

 re
qu

ire
s 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 re
tir

e 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
fro

m
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 G
en

er
al

 P
EP

R
A 

Ti
er

 5
 to

 
of

fs
et

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 d

is
ab

ilit
y 

be
ne

fit
s 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 P

la
ns

 o
f t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

. W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
ny

 o
ffs

et
s 

in
 th

is
 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

Le
av

e 
C

as
ho

ut
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r l
ea

ve
 c

as
ho

ut
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 fi

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ay
 a

re
 u

se
d:

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
rs

 1
, 2

 a
nd

 3
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
s 

A
 a

nd
 C

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

 
1.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 2

 
0.

50
%

 fo
r T

ie
r 2

 
 

 
0.

75
%

 fo
r T

ie
r 3

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 3

 
4.

75
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 4

 
0.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 5

 
1.

25
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 6

 
0.

25
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 7

 
0.

75
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 8

 
0.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 9

 
0.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

0 
0.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

1 
2.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

2 
2.

00
%

 
 

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
0.

00
%

 
G

en
er

al
 P

E
P

R
A

 T
ie

rs
 4

 a
nd

 5
 S

af
et

y 
P

E
P

R
A

 T
ie

rs
 D

 a
nd

 E
 

 
N

on
e 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

6 
 Se

rv
ic

e 
fr

om
 A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 S

ic
k 

Le
av

e 
C

on
ve

rs
io

n:
 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
ve

rte
d 

fro
m

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 s
ic

k 
le

av
e 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

se
rv

ic
e 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t a

re
 u

se
d:

 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

et
ire

m
en

ts
: 

 
G

en
er

al
: 

1.
10

%
 

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 
1.

80
%

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
et

ire
m

en
ts

: 
 

G
en

er
al

: 
0.

06
%

 
 

Sa
fe

ty
: 

1.
20

%
 

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 S

ec
tio

n 
31

64
1.

01
, t

he
 c

os
t o

f t
hi

s 
be

ne
fit

 fo
r t

he
 n

on
-P

EP
R

A 
tie

rs
 w

ill 
be

 c
ha

rg
ed

 o
nl

y 
to

 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

an
d 

w
ill 

no
t a

ffe
ct

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s.

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 P
ol

ic
y 

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l C
os

t M
et

ho
d:

 
En

try
 A

ge
 A

ct
ua

ria
l C

os
t M

et
ho

d.
 E

nt
ry

 A
ge

 is
 th

e 
ag

e 
on

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
da

te
 m

in
us

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. N
or

m
al

 
C

os
t a

nd
 A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

ar
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 o

n 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
 b

as
is

 a
nd

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
as

 a
 

le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n,

 a
s 

if 
th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 b
en

ef
it 

fo
rm

ul
a 

fo
r e

ac
h 

in
di

vi
du

al
 h

as
 a

lw
ay

s 
be

en
 in

 e
ffe

ct
 

(i.
e.

, “
re

pl
ac

em
en

t l
ife

 w
ith

in
 a

 ti
er

”).
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s:

 
M

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

f a
ss

et
s 

(M
VA

) l
es

s 
un

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 re

tu
rn

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

la
st

 n
in

e 
se

m
i-a

nn
ua

l a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pe
rio

ds
. U

nr
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

ar
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 m
ar

ke
t r

et
ur

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

re
tu

rn
 o

n 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
, a

nd
 a

re
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 s
em

i-a
nn

ua
lly

 o
ve

r a
 fi

ve
-y

ea
r p

er
io

d.
  

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s:
 

Th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
no

n-
va

lu
at

io
n 

re
se

rv
es

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
na

tio
ns

. 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Po
lic

y:
 

Th
e 

U
AA

L 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 b

e 
am

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r s

ep
ar

at
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

la
ye

rs
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 d

ur
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 e
ac

h 
se

pa
ra

te
 la

ye
r w

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
 

An
y 

ne
w

 U
AA

L 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 a

ct
ua

ria
l g

ai
ns

 o
r l

os
se

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1 
w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 1

8 
ye

ar
s.

 

An
y 

ne
w

 U
AA

L 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r m

et
ho

ds
 w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 1

8 
ye

ar
s.

 

U
nl

es
s 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
ad

op
ts

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
rio

d 
af

te
r r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
na

ly
si

s:
 

i. 
W

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

no
te

d 
in

 ii
., 

be
lo

w
, t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 U
AA

L 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 a

ny
 p

la
n 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 w

ill 
be

 
am

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 1

0 
ye

ar
s;

 

ii.
 

Th
e 

en
tir

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 U
AA

L 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 a

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 re

tir
em

en
t i

nc
en

tiv
e 

w
ill 

be
 fu

nd
ed

 in
 fu

ll 
up

on
 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
in

ce
nt

iv
e.

 If
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 U
AA

L 
is

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

31
64

1.
04

 o
f t

he
 1

93
7 

C
ER

L 
(G

ol
de

n 
H

an
ds

ha
ke

), 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 

U
AA

L 
w

ill 
be

 fu
nd

ed
 in

 fu
ll 

up
on

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

G
ol

de
n 

H
an

ds
ha

ke
. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

7 
 

Th
e 

U
AA

L 
w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r “

cl
os

ed
” a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
rio

ds
 s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

la
ye

r d
ec

re
as

es
 b

y 
on

e 
ye

ar
 w

ith
 e

ac
h 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n.
 

Th
e 

U
AA

L 
w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 a

s 
a 

le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll 
so

 th
at

 th
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

am
ou

nt
 in

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
a 

le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll,
 ta

ki
ng

 
in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
fo

r g
en

er
al

 p
ay

ro
ll 

in
cr

ea
se

 (i
.e

., 
w

ag
e 

in
fla

tio
n)

. 

If 
an

 o
ve

rfu
nd

in
g 

or
 “s

ur
pl

us
” e

xi
st

s 
(i.

e.
, t

he
 V

VA
 e

xc
ee

ds
 th

e 
AA

L,
 s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
to

ta
l o

f a
ll 

U
AA

L 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
la

ye
rs

 b
ec

om
es

 n
eg

at
iv

e)
, a

ny
 p

rio
r U

AA
L 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

la
ye

rs
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

fu
lly

 
am

or
tiz

ed
, a

nd
 a

ny
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t U
AA

L 
w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
fir

st
 o

f a
 n

ew
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
la

ye
rs

, u
si

ng
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
rio

ds
.  

If 
th

e 
su

rp
lu

s 
ex

ce
ed

s 
20

%
 o

f t
he

 A
AL

 p
er

 S
ec

tio
n 

75
22

.5
2 

of
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e,
 th

en
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

su
rp

lu
s 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 2
0%

 o
f t

he
 A

AL
 (a

nd
 a

ny
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t s
ur

pl
us

es
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

at
 a

m
ou

nt
) w

ill 
be

 
am

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

n 
“o

pe
n”

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

of
 3

0 
ye

ar
s,

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if 

th
e 

ot
he

r c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f 
Se

ct
io

n 
75

22
.5

2 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 m
et

. I
f t

ho
se

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

re
 n

ot
 m

et
, t

he
n 

th
e 

su
rp

lu
s 

w
ill 

no
t b

e 
am

or
tiz

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
fu

ll 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t w

ill 
be

 c
on

tri
bu

te
d.

 

Th
es

e 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
po

lic
y 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

w
ill 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
pp

ly
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y 
to

 e
ac

h 
of

 C
C

C
ER

A’
s 

U
AA

L 
co

st
 

gr
ou

ps
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

th
at

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 S
ec

tio
n 

75
22

.5
2 

ap
pl

y 
to

 th
e 

to
ta

l p
la

n.
 

O
th

er
 A

ct
ua

ria
l M

et
ho

ds
 

 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
: 

Em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 c
on

si
st

 o
f t

w
o 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s:

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
 th

at
, i

f p
ai

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 fr

om
 a

 m
em

be
r’s

 fi
rs

t y
ea

r o
f m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ye

ar
 o

f 
re

tir
em

en
t, 

w
ou

ld
 a

cc
um

ul
at

e 
to

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 fu

lly
 fu

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r's
 re

tir
em

en
t-r

el
at

ed
 b

en
ef

its
. 

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

nn
ua

l c
re

di
tin

g 
of

 in
te

re
st

 a
t t

he
 a

ss
um

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

 ra
te

. T
he

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 is
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
s 

a 
le

ve
l p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(U

A
A

L)
 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
 th

at
, i

f p
ai

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 o

ve
r t

he
 U

AA
L 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
rio

d,
 w

ou
ld

 a
cc

um
ul

at
e 

to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 fu
lly

 fu
nd

 th
e 

U
AA

L.
  A

cc
um

ul
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
nn

ua
l c

re
di

tin
g 

of
 in

te
re

st
 a

t t
he

 a
ss

um
ed

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

 ra
te

. T
he

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

(o
r r

at
e 

cr
ed

it 
in

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
U

AA
L 

) i
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 to

 re
m

ai
n 

as
 a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 fu

tu
re

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
r p

ay
ro

ll 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

pa
yr

ol
l f

or
 n

ew
 m

em
be

rs
 a

s 
th

ey
 e

nt
er

 th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n)

 a
ss

um
in

g 
a 

co
ns

ta
nt

 n
um

be
r o

f a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

. I
n 

or
de

r t
o 

re
m

ai
n 

as
 a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

pa
yr

ol
l, 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

 (c
re

di
ts

) a
re

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
t t

he
 a

nn
ua

l r
at

e 
of

 3
.2

5%
 (i

.e
., 

2.
75

%
 

in
fla

tio
n 

pl
us

 0
.5

0%
 “a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ar
d”

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

). 
 

Th
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

po
lic

y 
is

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 p

ag
e.

 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
F.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

8 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

)  
Th

e 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) i

n 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
an

y 
ac

tu
al

 m
em

be
rs

 a
s 

of
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8.
 T

he
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

fo
r t

hi
s 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 u

se
d 

to
 e

st
im

at
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r a
ll 

of
 th

e 
PE

PR
A 

tie
rs

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ss
um

ed
 in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 p

ro
fil

es
 (e

.g
., 

en
try

 a
ge

, c
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 

m
al

e 
ve

rs
us

 fe
m

al
e,

 e
tc

.) 
fo

r t
hi

s 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 c
an

 b
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

da
ta

 p
ro

fil
es

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 a

nd
 a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

1.
 

M
em

be
r C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

: 
N

on
-P

E
P

R
A

 M
em

be
rs

 
Ar

tic
le

s 
6 

an
d 

6.
8 

of
 th

e 
19

37
 A

ct
 d

ef
in

e 
th

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r b

as
ic

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s 

fo
r n

on
-P

EP
R

A 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 T
he

 m
em

be
r’s

 b
as

ic
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 s
o 

th
at

, i
f p

ai
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 fr
om

 a
 m

em
be

r’s
 fi

rs
t y

ea
r o

f m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 

re
tir

em
en

t a
ge

, w
ou

ld
 a

cc
um

ul
at

e 
to

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 fu

nd
 a

n 
an

nu
ity

 th
at

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
: 

• 
1/

12
0 

of
 o

ne
 y

ea
r F

in
al

 A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

ar
y 

pe
r y

ea
r o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
t a

ge
 5

5 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 N
on

-
En

ha
nc

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 

• 
1/

10
0 

of
 o

ne
 y

ea
r F

in
al

 A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

ar
y 

pe
r y

ea
r o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
t a

ge
 5

0 
fo

r S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

m
em

be
rs

  
• 

1/
12

0 
of

 o
ne

 y
ea

r F
in

al
 A

ve
ra

ge
 S

al
ar

y 
pe

r y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

t a
ge

 6
0 

fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 3
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

m
em

be
rs

 
• 

1/
10

0 
of

 o
ne

 y
ea

r F
in

al
 A

ve
ra

ge
 S

al
ar

y 
pe

r y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

t a
ge

 5
0 

fo
r S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
m

em
be

rs
 

• 
1/

10
0 

of
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

 F
in

al
 A

ve
ra

ge
 S

al
ar

y 
pe

r y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

t a
ge

 5
0 

fo
r S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 C

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
m

em
be

rs
  

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

re
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 a

t a
n 

an
nu

al
 in

te
re

st
 ra

te
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d.

 N
ot

e 
th

at
 

re
ce

nt
ly

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

M
O

U
’s

 fo
r C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

50
%

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

' b
as

ic
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
. D

is
tri

ct
s 

pa
y 

va
ry

in
g 

po
rti

on
s 

of
 th

e 
m

em
be

rs
’ b

as
ic

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 o
n 

a 
no

nr
ef

un
da

bl
e 

ba
si

s.
 M

em
be

rs
 a

ls
o 

pa
y 

50
%

 o
f t

he
 c

os
t-o

f-l
iv

in
g 

be
ne

fit
. F

or
 m

os
t S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s,

 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 a
ls

o 
su

bv
en

t a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

, c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

p 
to

 9
%

 o
f c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

(d
ep

en
di

ng
 

on
 th

ei
r M

O
U

). 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 fo
r d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l b

en
ef

it 
(i.

e.
, b

as
ic

 a
nd

 
C

O
LA

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s)

, t
he

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 in

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
as

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 
m

em
be

r c
os

t. 
Pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 fo

r d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f t
he

 b
as

ic
 b

en
ef

it 
(i.

e.
, n

on
-

C
O

LA
 c

om
po

ne
nt

), 
th

e 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 in

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
on

ly
 a

s 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

os
t 

an
d 

di
d 

no
t a

ffe
ct

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s.

 In
 o

th
er

 w
or

ds
, t

he
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

on
ly

 u
se

d 
in

 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 C

O
LA

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s.

 
As

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
ba

si
c 

m
em

be
r r

at
es

 fo
r t

he
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f e
ac

h 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

st
 g

ro
up

, t
he

 C
O

LA
 m

em
be

r r
at

es
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 p
oo

le
d 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 s
am

e 
tie

r. 
Th

is
 

re
su

lts
 in

 tw
el

ve
 d

iff
er

en
t s

et
s 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r e
ac

h 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

st
 g

ro
up

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

9 
 

P
E

P
R

A
 M

em
be

rs
 

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 S

ec
tio

n 
75

22
.3

0(
a)

 o
f t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e,
 P

EP
R

A 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 a

t l
ea

st
 

50
%

 o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
at

 e
xa

ct
ly

 5
0%

 o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

PE
PR

A 
m

em
be

rs
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
th

e 
to

ta
l N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e 

fo
r t

he
 P

EP
R

A 
tie

rs
 to

 th
e 

ne
ar

es
t 

on
e-

fif
tie

th
 o

f o
ne

 p
er

ce
nt

 (i
.e

., 
th

e 
ne

ar
es

t e
ve

n 
on

e-
hu

nd
re

dt
h)

 a
s 

th
at

 w
ill 

al
lo

w
 th

e 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e 

to
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 e
xa

ct
ly

 5
0:

50
 w

ith
ou

t g
oi

ng
 b

ey
on

d 
tw

o 
de

ci
m

al
 p

la
ce

s.
 

Th
e 

m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

fo
r a

ll 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

III
. 

C
os

t S
ha

rin
g 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

: 
St

ar
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n,
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

to
ok

 a
ct

io
n 

to
 d

ep
oo

l C
C

C
ER

A’
s 

as
se

ts
, 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
no

rm
al

 c
os

t b
y 

em
pl

oy
er

 w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s.

 T
he

 B
oa

rd
 a

ct
io

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ba
ck

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
2.

 T
hi

s 
di

d 
no

t i
nv

ol
ve

 re
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 

ra
te

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9.

 H
ow

ev
er

, i
t d

id
 in

vo
lv

e 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

th
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

in
 

ea
ch

 in
di

vi
du

al
 c

os
t g

ro
up

 b
ac

k 
fro

m
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
2 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9.
 T

he
 c

os
t g

ro
up

s 
ar

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
V

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
ac

tio
n 

ca
lle

d 
fo

r a
 d

is
co

nt
in

ua
tio

n 
of

 c
er

ta
in

 c
os

t s
ha

rin
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 fo
r b

ot
h 

m
em

be
r a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

. E
ve

n 
un

de
r 

th
e 

de
po

ol
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

fe
w

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 c

os
t s

ha
rin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. H

er
e 

is
 a

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

co
st

 
sh

ar
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 th

at
 w

er
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n:
  

• 
Sm

al
le

r e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

(le
ss

 th
an

 5
0 

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9)
 w

er
e 

po
ol

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
C

ou
nt

y 
tie

r. 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ea
st

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 w
er

e 
po

ol
ed

 w
ith

 S
af

et
y 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
. 

• 
D

ue
 to

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t, 

th
e 

Su
pe

rio
r C

ou
rt 

w
as

 p
oo

le
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f h
ow

 m
an

y 
m

em
be

rs
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

ha
s.

  
• 

U
AA

L 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

po
ol

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
an

d 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
2 

w
hi

ch
 re

pr
es

en
t G

en
er

al
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Sm

al
l D

is
tri

ct
s.

 U
AA

L 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 p
oo

le
d 

fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
#7

 a
nd

 #
9 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 S

af
et

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
tie

rs
. 

Ad
di

tio
na

l C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
e 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

: 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

to
 s

om
e 

U
AA

L 
am

ou
nt

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nt
y,

 th
e 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
(C

C
C

FP
D

), 
th

e 
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 (M
or

ag
a)

, F
irs

t 5
 –

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (F
irs

t F
iv

e)
 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l A
ge

nc
y 

Fo
rm

at
io

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (L

AF
C

O
) t

o 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 P
en

si
on

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

Bo
nd

s 
(P

O
Bs

) a
nd

 a
ny

 
ot

he
r s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 th

at
 th

ey
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
m

ad
e.

 T
he

se
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 s

er
ve

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

U
AA

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
 fo

r t
he

se
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 T

he
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 b

al
an

ce
s 

of
 th

es
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

ar
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
 

G
en

er
al

 
M

or
ag

a 
 

G
en

er
al

 
Fi

rs
t F

iv
e 

G
en

er
al

 
LA

FC
O

  
G

en
er

al
 

C
C

C
FP

D
  

Sa
fe

ty
 

Ba
si

c 
$1

21
,8

36
,6

65
 

$2
14

,5
58

 
$4

63
,9

54
 

$2
2,

20
0 

$3
4,

97
1,

53
0 

C
O

L 
$9

7,
62

8,
94

7 
$1

24
,5

27
 

$3
50

,9
44

 
$8

,3
35

 
$2

6,
67

0,
85

2 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

0 
 

In
te

rn
al

 R
ev

en
ue

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
41

5:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

41
5 

of
 th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e 

(IR
C

) s
pe

ci
fie

s 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 b

en
ef

its
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
pa

id
 to

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 fr

om
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pl
an

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r t
o 

an
 

in
di

vi
du

al
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

 in
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

pl
an

.  
A 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 p

ay
 b

en
ef

its
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
41

5 
lim

its
. T

he
 u

lti
m

at
e 

pe
na

lty
 fo

r n
on

-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
is

 d
is

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
n:

 a
ct

iv
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 ta
xe

d 
on

 th
ei

r v
es

te
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

th
e 

IR
S 

m
ay

 s
ee

k 
to

 ta
x 

th
e 

in
co

m
e 

ea
rn

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pl

an
’s

 a
ss

et
s.

 
In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, S

ec
tio

n 
41

5(
b)

 o
f t

he
 IR

C
 li

m
its

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 a
nn

ua
l b

en
ef

it 
pa

ya
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

N
or

m
al

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

Ag
e 

to
 a

 d
ol

la
r l

im
it 

of
 $

16
0,

00
0 

in
de

xe
d 

fo
r i

nf
la

tio
n.

 T
ha

t l
im

it 
is

 $
22

5,
00

0 
fo

r 2
01

9.
 N

or
m

al
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ge

 
fo

r t
he

se
 p

ur
po

se
s 

is
 a

ge
 6

2.
 T

he
se

 a
re

 th
e 

lim
its

 in
 s

im
pl

ifi
ed

 te
rm

s.
 T

he
y 

m
us

t b
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ea

ch
 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 fo

r s
uc

h 
th

in
gs

 a
s 

ag
e 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

fo
rm

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 c

ho
se

n 
an

d 
af

te
r t

ax
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

.  
N

on
-P

EP
R

A 
be

ne
fit

s 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

e 
lim

its
 m

ay
 b

e 
pa

id
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l e
xc

es
s 

pl
an

 th
at

 
m

ee
ts

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
41

5(
m

). 
Le

ga
l C

ou
ns

el
’s

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
la

w
 a

nd
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ou
gh

t o
n 

an
y 

qu
es

tio
ns

 in
 th

is
 

re
ga

rd
. 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 th

is
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
fo

r t
he

 S
ec

tio
n 

41
5 

lim
ita

tio
ns

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
it 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 P

EP
R

A 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ill 
no

t b
e 

lim
ite

d 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

PE
PR

A 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

lim
it 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

ei
r b

en
ef

it.
 A

ct
ua

l l
im

ita
tio

ns
 w

ill 
re

su
lt 

in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l g

ai
ns

 a
s 

th
ey

 o
cc

ur
. 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
E

xp
en

se
s:

 
1.

13
%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r b

as
ed

 o
n 

no
rm

al
 c

os
t (

be
fo

re
 e

xp
en

se
s)

 fo
r 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r. 

Th
is

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f a

ct
ua

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r l
ea

di
ng

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

1 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

S
al

ar
y 

In
cr

ea
se

s:
 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 ra

te
 o

f c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

cl
ud

es
: i

nf
la

tio
n 

at
 2

.7
5%

, p
lu

s 
“a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ar
d”

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 0
.5

0%
 p

er
 y

ea
r, 

pl
us

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

er
it 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s:

 

M
er

it 
an

d 
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

s 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 1

 
10

.0
0 

10
.5

0 
1 

– 
2 

7.
25

 
7.

25
 

2 
– 

3 
5.

25
 

5.
75

 
3 

– 
4 

3.
75

 
4.

50
 

4 
– 

5 
2.

75
 

3.
00

 
5 

– 
6 

2.
25

 
1.

75
 

6 
– 

7 
1.

75
 

1.
25

 
7 

– 
8 

1.
50

 
1.

20
 

8 
– 

9 
1.

25
 

1.
15

 
9 

– 
10

 
1.

20
 

1.
10

 
10

 –
 1

1 
1.

15
 

1.
05

 
11

 –
 1

2 
1.

10
 

1.
00

 
12

 –
 1

3 
1.

00
 

0.
95

 
13

 –
 1

4 
0.

90
 

0.
85

 
14

 –
 1

5 
0.

80
 

0.
80

 
15

 –
 1

6 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
16

 –
 1

7 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
17

 –
 1

8 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
18

 –
 1

9 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
19

 –
 2

0 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
20

 &
 O

ve
r 

0.
75

 
0.

75
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

2 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

P
os

t-R
et

ire
m

en
t M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
: 

H
ea

lth
y 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e,
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t b
ac

k 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 
• 

Al
l B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 H
ea

dc
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

R
P-

20
14

 H
ea

lth
y 

An
nu

ita
nt

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e,

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 g

en
er

at
io

na
lly

 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 
D

is
ab

le
d 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t f
or

w
ar

d 
ei

gh
t 

ye
ar

s,
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t f
or

w
ar

d 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 

P
re

-R
et

ire
m

en
t M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
: 

• 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 7
5%

, 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

15
. 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
(1

) 
Sa

fe
ty

(1
)  

M
al

e 
Fe

m
al

e 
M

al
e 

Fe
m

al
e 

25
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

30
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

35
 

0.
05

 
0.

03
 

0.
05

 
0.

03
 

40
 

0.
06

 
0.

04
 

0.
06

 
0.

04
 

45
 

0.
09

 
0.

06
 

0.
09

 
0.

06
 

50
 

0.
16

 
0.

10
 

0.
16

 
0.

10
 

55
 

0.
26

 
0.

16
 

0.
26

 
0.

16
 

60
 

0.
42

 
0.

23
 

0.
42

 
0.

23
 

65
 

0.
73

 
0.

33
 

0.
73

 
0.

33
 

 (1
)  

G
en

er
at

io
na

l p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

ba
se

 y
ea

r (
20

14
) a

re
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

s.
 

Al
l p

re
-re

tir
em

en
t d

ea
th

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

3 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

 fo
r M

em
be

r 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
: 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e,
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 to
 2

03
4 

w
ith

 
th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

, w
ei

gh
te

d 
30

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

70
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t b
ac

k 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

 2
03

4 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

, w
ei

gh
te

d 
85

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

15
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 In

ci
de

nc
e:

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 In
ci

de
nc

e 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 4

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 5

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
20

 
0.

01
 

0.
01

 
0.

02
 

25
 

0.
02

 
0.

02
 

0.
22

 
30

 
0.

04
 

0.
03

 
0.

42
 

35
 

0.
08

 
0.

05
 

0.
56

 
40

 
0.

22
 

0.
08

 
0.

66
 

45
 

0.
36

 
0.

13
 

1.
00

 
50

 
0.

52
 

0.
16

 
2.

88
 

55
 

0.
60

 
0.

20
 

4.
60

 
60

 
0.

60
 

0.
28

 
5.

00
 

65
 

0.
60

 
0.

32
 

5.
00

 
70

 
0.

60
 

0.
32

 
5.

00
 

65
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 4
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 o

th
er

 3
5%

 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

30
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 o

th
er

 7
0%

 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

10
0%

 o
f S

af
et

y 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

4 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

Te
rm

in
at

io
n:

 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 

Le
ss

 th
an

 1
 

13
.5

0 
13

.0
0 

1 
– 

2 
9.

25
 

8.
00

 
2 

– 
3 

9.
00

 
7.

00
 

3 
– 

4 
6.

00
 

5.
50

 
4 

– 
5 

4.
50

 
3.

75
 

5 
– 

6 
4.

25
 

3.
25

 
6 

– 
7 

3.
75

 
3.

00
 

7 
– 

8 
3.

50
 

2.
75

 
8 

– 
9 

3.
25

 
2.

50
 

9 
– 

10
 

3.
00

 
2.

25
 

10
 –

 1
1 

2.
75

 
2.

00
 

11
 –

 1
2 

2.
50

 
1.

90
 

12
 –

 1
3 

2.
40

 
1.

80
 

13
 –

 1
4 

2.
30

 
1.

70
 

14
 –

 1
5 

2.
20

 
1.

60
 

15
 –

 1
6 

2.
10

 
1.

50
 

16
 –

 1
7 

2.
00

 
1.

40
 

17
 –

 1
8 

2.
00

 
1.

30
 

18
 –

 1
9 

2.
00

 
1.

20
 

19
 –

 2
0 

1.
75

 
1.

10
 

20
 &

 O
ve

r 
1.

50
 

1.
00

 
Th

e 
m

em
be

r i
s 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

r o
f t

he
 m

em
be

r’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
or

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

re
tir

em
en

t 
be

ne
fit

.  
N

o 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
fte

r a
 m

em
be

r i
s 

fir
st

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 re

tir
e.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

5 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (G
en

er
al

): 

Ag
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
) 

Ti
er

 1
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
Ti

er
 3

 
En

ha
nc

ed
 

Ti
er

 1
  

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

an
d 

Ti
er

 5
 

50
 

5.
00

 
4.

00
 

3.
00

 
0.

00
 

51
 

4.
00

 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
0.

00
 

52
 

5.
00

 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
2.

00
 

53
 

5.
00

 
5.

00
 

3.
00

 
3.

00
 

54
 

14
.0

0 
6.

00
 

3.
00

 
3.

00
 

55
 

20
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
5.

00
 

56
 

20
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
5.

00
 

57
 

20
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
6.

00
 

58
 

20
.0

0 
12

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
8.

00
 

59
 

25
.0

0 
13

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
9.

00
 

60
 

28
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

61
 

35
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
14

.0
0 

62
 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

63
 

30
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

64
 

30
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

65
 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

66
 

40
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

67
 

40
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

68
 

40
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

69
 

40
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

70
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

71
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

72
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

73
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

74
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

75
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

6 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (S
af

et
y)

: 

Ag
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
) 

Ti
er

 A
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
Ti

er
 C

 
En

ha
nc

ed
 

Ti
er

 A
 

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

an
d 

Ti
er

 E
 

45
 

4.
00

 
2.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

46
 

3.
00

 
1.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

47
 

10
.0

0 
4.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

48
 

10
.0

0 
4.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

49
 

25
.0

0 
12

.0
0 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

50
 

30
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

5.
00

 
5.

00
 

51
 

30
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

4.
00

 
4.

00
 

52
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

4.
00

 
4.

00
 

53
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

5.
00

 
5.

00
 

54
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

8.
00

 
6.

00
 

55
 

28
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

56
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

57
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

12
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

58
 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

59
 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

60
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

61
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

62
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

63
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

64
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

10
0.

00
 

30
.0

0 
65

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
30

.0
0 

66
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

it 
fo

r 
D

ef
er

re
d 

V
es

te
d 

M
em

be
rs

: 
G

en
er

al
: 

59
 

Sa
fe

ty
: 

54
 

40
%

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 6

5%
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 d

ef
er

re
d 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

a 
re

ci
pr

oc
al

 e
m

pl
oy

er
. F

or
 re

ci
pr

oc
al

s,
 4

.7
5%

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

as
su

m
ed

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 fo

r b
ot

h 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y.
 

P
er

ce
nt

 M
ar

rie
d:

 
Fo

r a
ll 

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, 7

5%
 o

f m
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 5

0%
 o

f f
em

al
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

ar
rie

d 
at

 p
re

-re
tir

em
en

t d
ea

th
 o

r r
et

ire
m

en
t. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

7 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

Le
av

e 
C

as
ho

ut
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r l
ea

ve
 c

as
ho

ut
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 fi

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ay
 a

re
 u

se
d:

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
rs

 1
, 2

 a
nd

 3
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
s 

A
 a

nd
 C

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

 
1.

25
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 2

 
0.

50
%

 fo
r T

ie
r 2

 
 

 
1.

00
%

 fo
r T

ie
r 3

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 3

 
5.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 4

 
0.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 5

 
1.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 6

 
0.

75
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 7

 
1.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 8

 
0.

75
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 9

 
0.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

0 
1.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

1 
2.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

2 
2.

50
%

 
 

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
0.

00
%

 
G

en
er

al
 P

E
P

R
A

 T
ie

rs
 4

 a
nd

 5
 S

af
et

y 
P

E
P

R
A

 T
ie

rs
 D

 a
nd

 E
 

 
N

on
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 fr
om

 A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 S
ic

k 
Le

av
e 

C
on

ve
rs

io
n:

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
on

ve
rte

d 
fro

m
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 s

ic
k 

le
av

e 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
at

 re
tir

em
en

t a
re

 u
se

d:
 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
ts

: 
 

G
en

er
al

: 
1.

20
%

 
 

Sa
fe

ty
: 

1.
90

%
 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 R

et
ire

m
en

ts
: 

 
G

en
er

al
: 

0.
08

%
 

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 
1.

30
%

 
Pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 S
ec

tio
n 

31
64

1.
01

, t
he

 c
os

t o
f t

hi
s 

be
ne

fit
 fo

r t
he

 n
on

-P
EP

R
A 

tie
rs

 w
ill 

be
 c

ha
rg

ed
 o

nl
y 

to
 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
an

d 
w

ill 
no

t a
ffe

ct
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

8 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
PL

AN
 P

R
O

VI
SI

O
N

S 

Th
is

 e
xh

ib
it 

su
m

m
ar

iz
es

 th
e 

m
aj

or
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
f t

he
 P

la
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 It
 is

 n
ot

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 b

e,
 n

or
 sh

ou
ld

 it
 b

e 
in

te
rp

re
te

d 
as

, a
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
st

at
em

en
t o

f a
ll 

pl
an

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s. 

Pl
an

 Y
ea

r:
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1 

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

El
ig

ib
ili

ty
: 

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 

G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 h
ire

d 
be

fo
re

 J
ul

y 
1,

 1
98

0 
an

d 
el

ec
tin

g 
no

t t
o 

tra
ns

fe
r t

o 
Ti

er
 2

 P
la

n.
 C

er
ta

in
 G

en
er

al
 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
be

fo
re

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

hi
re

d 
by

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

w
ho

 d
id

 n
ot

 a
do

pt
 T

ie
r 2

 
ar

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 T

ie
r 1

. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

M
os

t G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 h
ire

d 
on

 o
r a

fte
r A

ug
us

t 1
, 1

98
0 

an
d 

al
l G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 h

ire
d 

be
fo

re
 J

ul
y 

1,
 1

98
0 

el
ec

tin
g 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 th
e 

Ti
er

 2
 P

la
n.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
00

2,
 fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nt
y,

 T
ie

r 2
 w

as
 e

lim
in

at
ed

 a
nd

 a
ll 

C
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 C
N

A 
em

pl
oy

ee
s)

 in
 T

ie
r 2

 w
er

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 T

ie
r 3

. E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
00

5,
 a

ll 
C

N
A 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

 T
ie

r 2
 w

er
e 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 T
ie

r 3
. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 

G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
be

fo
re

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 T

ie
r 1

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 

Ti
er

 3
. 

G
en

er
al

 P
E

P
R

A
 T

ie
r 4

 
G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

hi
re

d 
by

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

w
ho

 d
id

 n
ot

 
ad

op
t T

ie
r 2

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 T

ie
r 4

. 

G
en

er
al

 P
E

P
R

A
 T

ie
r 5

 
G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 T

ie
r 4

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 

Ti
er

 5
. 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 T

ie
r C

 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
be

fo
re

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3.

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sh
er

iff
’s

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
 

hi
re

d 
on

 o
r a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
00

7,
 b

ut
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
ar

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 C

 E
nh

an
ce

d.
 

S
af

et
y 

P
E

P
R

A
 T

ie
r D

 a
nd

 T
ie

r E
 

Sa
fe

ty
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3.

 S
af

et
y 

m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 c
er

ta
in

 b
ar

ga
in

in
g 

un
its

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 E

. 

Fi
na

l C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r B
en

ef
it 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n:

 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 (n
on

-
di

sa
bi

lit
y)

, S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 

H
ig

he
st

 c
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

12
 m

on
th

s 
of

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
ea

rn
ab

le
. (

§3
14

62
.1

) (
FA

S1
) 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(d

is
ab

ili
ty

), 
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 C

 
H

ig
he

st
 c

on
se

cu
tiv

e 
36

 m
on

th
s 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

ea
rn

ab
le

. (
§3

14
62

) (
FA

S3
) 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

,  
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

 a
nd

 T
ie

r E
 

H
ig

he
st

 c
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

36
 m

on
th

s 
of

 p
en

si
on

ab
le

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 (§

75
22

.1
0(

c)
, §

75
22

.3
2 

an
d 

§7
52

2.
34

) (
FA

S3
) 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

9 
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Li

m
it:

 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 2

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 3
,  

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 T

ie
r C

 
Fo

r m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
on

 o
r a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 1
99

6,
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Ea
rn

ab
le

 is
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 In
te

rn
al

 
R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

40
1(

a)
(1

7)
. T

he
 li

m
it 

is
 $

28
0,

00
0 

fo
r c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r 2

01
9.

 T
he

 li
m

it 
is

 in
de

xe
d 

fo
r 

in
fla

tio
n 

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

,  
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

 a
nd

 T
ie

r E
 

Pe
ns

io
na

bl
e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 $

12
4,

18
0 

fo
r 2

01
9 

($
14

9,
01

6,
 if

 n
ot

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
). 

Th
e 

lim
it 

is
 in

de
xe

d 
fo

r i
nf

la
tio

n 
on

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 b

as
is

. 

So
ci

al
 S

ec
ur

ity
 P

rim
ar

y 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Am
ou

nt
: 

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

Es
tim

at
ed

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
 a

w
ar

d 
at

 a
ge

 6
2 

as
su

m
in

g 
le

ve
l f

ut
ur

e 
ea

rn
in

gs
. (

PI
A)

 

Se
rv

ic
e:

 
 

A
ll 

Ti
er

s 
Ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 (Y

rs
) a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

m
em

be
r’s

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t d
ur

in
g 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 ti

m
e 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 
de

du
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
fro

m
 th

ei
r c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n.

 In
cl

ud
es

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 s
ic

k 
le

av
e 

as
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 re
tir

em
en

t. 
(§

31
64

1.
01

) 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

M
ax

im
um

 o
f 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

(Y
rs

30
). 

 

Se
rv

ic
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t E

lig
ib

ili
ty

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 2

, a
nd

 T
ie

r 3
 

Ag
e 

50
 w

ith
 1

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
, o

r a
ge

 7
0 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

, o
r a

fte
r 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f a

ge
. 

(§
31

67
2)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 
Ag

e 
52

 w
ith

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 o

r a
ge

 7
0 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. (
§7

52
2.

20
(a

) a
nd

 §
31

67
2.

3)
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 T

ie
r C

 
Ag

e 
50

 w
ith

 1
0 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

, o
r a

ge
 7

0 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
, o

r a
fte

r 2
0 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f a
ge

. 
(§

31
66

3.
25

) 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 
Ag

e 
50

 w
ith

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 o

r a
ge

 7
0 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. (
§7

52
2.

25
(a

)) 
an

d 
§3

16
72

.3
) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a:

 
Th

e 
of

fs
et

s 
sh

ow
n 

in
 a

ll 
be

ne
fit

 fo
rm

ul
as

 o
nl

y 
ap

pl
y 

to
 m

em
be

rs
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
.  

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 (§
31

67
6.

11
) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

1.
24

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

55
 

1.
67

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

60
 

2.
18

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

62
 

2.
35

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

61
%

 x
 (F

AS
1 

– 
$1

,4
00

) x
 Y

rs
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

0 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

 (§
31

67
6.

16
) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

1.
43

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

55
 

2.
00

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

60
 

2.
26

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

62
 

2.
37

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

42
%

 x
 (F

AS
1 

– 
$1

,4
00

) x
 Y

rs
 

Fo
r m

em
be

rs
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
co

ve
re

d 
un

de
r t

he
 n

on
-e

nh
an

ce
d 

§3
16

76
.1

1 
fo

rm
ul

a,
 th

ey
 a

re
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 a
t l

ea
st

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

th
ey

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 u
nd

er
 §

31
67

6.
11

. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 (§

31
75

2)
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

0.
83

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

– 
0.

57
%

 x
 Y

rs
30

 x
 P

IA
 

55
 

1.
13

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

– 
0.

87
%

 x
 Y

rs
30

 x
 P

IA
 

60
 

1.
43

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

– 
1.

37
%

 x
 Y

rs
30

 x
 P

IA
 

62
 

1.
55

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

– 
1.

67
%

 x
 Y

rs
30

 x
 P

IA
 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
1.

73
%

 x
 F

AS
3 

x 
Yr

s 
– 

1.
67

%
 x

 Y
rs

30
 x

 P
IA

 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 
(§

75
22

.2
0(

a)
) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

52
 

1.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

55
 

1.
30

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

60
 

1.
80

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

62
 

2.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

65
 

2.
30

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

67
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

50
%

 x
 F

AS
3 

x 
Yr

s 
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 (N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
(§

31
66

4)
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

2.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

1 
x 

Yr
s 

55
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

62
%

 x
 F

AS
1 

x 
Yr

s 
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
(§

31
66

4.
1)

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ge

 
B

en
ef

it 
Fo

rm
ul

a 
50

 &
 O

ve
r 

3.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

1 
x 

Yr
s 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

1 
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
(§

31
66

4.
1)

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ge

 
B

en
ef

it 
Fo

rm
ul

a 
50

 &
 O

ve
r 

3.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 
(§

75
22

.2
5(

d)
) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

2.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

55
 

2.
50

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

57
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

70
%

 x
 F

AS
3 

x 
Yr

s 
 

M
ax

im
um

 B
en

ef
it:

 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

, 
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r C
 

10
0%

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 (§

31
67

6.
11

, §
31

67
6.

16
, §

31
66

4,
 §

31
66

4.
1)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 4

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
, 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 
N

on
e.

  

N
on

-S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 4

 
 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

Fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. (
§3

17
20

) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

1.
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
. I

f t
he

 b
en

ef
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

on
e-

th
ird

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 a

ge
 6

5,
 b

ut
 th

e 
to

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

-th
ird

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

(§
31

72
7)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 

 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

Te
n 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

. (
§3

17
20

.1
) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

40
%

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pl

us
 1

0%
 o

f F
in

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

m
in

or
 

ch
ild

 (m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

hr
ee

). 
(§

31
72

7.
01

) 

O
ffs

et
 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 
be

ne
fit

s 
ar

e 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

ot
he

r p
la

ns
 o

f t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 e

xc
ep

t W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 S
ec

ur
ity

. 

S
af

et
y 

 
 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

Fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 (§
31

72
0)

. 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

1.
8%

 p
er

 y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
. I

f t
he

 b
en

ef
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

on
e-

th
ird

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 a

ge
 5

5,
 b

ut
 th

e 
to

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

-th
ird

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

(§
31

72
7.

2)
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

2 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 4

, 
S

af
et

y 
 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

N
o 

ag
e 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. (

§3
17

20
) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
%

 o
f t

he
 F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 (§

31
72

7.
4)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 3

, a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 

 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

N
o 

ag
e 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. (

§3
17

20
) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

40
%

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pl

us
 1

0%
 o

f F
in

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

m
in

or
 c

hi
ld

 (m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

hr
ee

). 
(§

31
72

7.
01

) 

O
ffs

et
 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 
be

ne
fit

s 
ar

e 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

ot
he

r p
la

ns
 o

f t
he

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 e

xc
ep

t W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 S
ec

ur
ity

. 

Pr
e-

R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

, T
ie

r 4
,  

an
d 

Ti
er

 5
, 

S
af

et
y 

 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 –

 A
  

N
on

e.
 

B
en

ef
it 

– 
A

 
R

ef
un

d 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 w

ith
 in

te
re

st
, p

lu
s 

on
e 

m
on

th
’s

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

, t
o 

a 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f s
ix

 m
on

th
’s

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
(§

31
78

1)
. 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 –

 B
 

Fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 (T
en

 y
ea

rs
 fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

). 

B
en

ef
it 

– 
B

 
O

pt
io

n 
2 

(1
00

%
 c

on
tin

ua
tio

n)
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
t o

r N
on

-S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ilit
y 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

. 

D
ea

th
 in

 li
ne

 o
f d

ut
y 

50
%

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pa

ya
bl

e 
to

 s
po

us
e.

 (§
31

78
7)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 –

 A
  

N
on

e.
 

B
en

ef
it 

– 
A

 
R

ef
un

d 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 w

ith
 in

te
re

st
, p

lu
s 

$2
,0

00
 lu

m
p 

su
m

 b
en

ef
it 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
an

y 
So

ci
al

 S
ec

ur
ity

 
pa

ym
en

t. 
(§

31
78

1.
01

); 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 –

 B
 

Te
n 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

. 

B
en

ef
it 

– 
B

 
O

pt
io

n 
2 

(1
00

%
 c

on
tin

ua
tio

n)
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
t o

r N
on

-S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ilit
y 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

3 
 

D
ea

th
 in

 li
ne

 o
f d

ut
y 

60
%

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 o

r D
is

ab
ilit

y 
R

et
ire

m
en

t B
en

ef
it 

(m
in

im
um

 b
en

ef
it 

is
 2

4%
 o

f F
in

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n)

 p
lu

s,
 fo

r e
ac

h 
m

in
or

 c
hi

ld
, 1

0%
 o

f t
he

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
pa

id
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r. 

M
in

im
um

 fa
m

ily
 b

en
ef

it 
is

 6
0%

 o
f t

he
 

m
em

be
r’s

 a
llo

w
an

ce
. M

ax
im

um
 fa

m
ily

 b
en

ef
it 

is
 1

00
%

 o
f m

em
be

r’s
 a

llo
w

an
ce

. 

D
ea

th
 A

fte
r R

et
ire

m
en

t: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

, T
ie

r 4
,  

an
d 

Ti
er

 5
, 

S
af

et
y 

 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
t o

r 
N

on
-S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ne

ct
ed

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

U
nl

es
s 

an
ot

he
r o

pt
io

n 
w

as
 s

el
ec

te
d 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

60
%

 o
f m

em
be

r’s
 u

nm
od

ifi
ed

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 e

lig
ib

le
 

sp
ou

se
. A

n 
el

ig
ib

le
 s

po
us

e 
is

 a
 s

ur
vi

vi
ng

 s
po

us
e 

w
ho

 w
as

 m
ar

rie
d 

to
 th

e 
m

em
be

r a
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 y
ea

r p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 re
tir

em
en

t o
r a

t l
ea

st
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f d

ea
th

 a
nd

 h
as

 a
tta

in
ed

 a
ge

 5
5 

on
 o

r p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f d

ea
th

. (
§3

17
60

.2
) A

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

um
p 

su
m

 b
en

ef
it 

of
 $

5,
00

0 
is

 p
ay

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
m

em
be

r’s
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
. 

(§
31

78
9.

5)
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
U

nl
es

s 
an

ot
he

r o
pt

io
n 

w
as

 s
el

ec
te

d 
at

 re
tir

em
en

t, 
10

0%
 o

f m
em

be
r’s

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
 e

lig
ib

le
 s

po
us

e.
 

(§
31

78
6)

 A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
um

p 
su

m
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 $
5,

00
0 

is
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

. (
§3

17
89

.5
) 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
t o

r 
N

on
-S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ne

ct
ed

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

U
nl

es
s 

an
ot

he
r o

pt
io

n 
w

as
 s

el
ec

te
d 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

60
%

 o
f m

em
be

r’s
 u

nm
od

ifi
ed

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 e

lig
ib

le
 

sp
ou

se
 p

lu
s 

20
%

 o
f a

llo
w

an
ce

 to
 e

ac
h 

m
in

or
 c

hi
ld

. (
§3

17
89

.1
1)

 M
ax

im
um

 b
en

ef
it 

is
 1

00
%

 o
f a

llo
w

an
ce

. A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
um

p 
su

m
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 $
5,

00
0 

(§
31

78
9.

5)
 p

lu
s 

$2
,0

00
 le

ss
 a

ny
 S

oc
ia

l S
ec

ur
ity

 lu
m

p 
su

m
 p

ay
m

en
t 

(§
31

78
9.

01
) a

re
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

.  

W
ith

dr
aw

al
 B

en
ef

its
: 

 

Le
ss

 th
an

 F
iv

e 
Y

ea
rs

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

R
ef

un
d 

of
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 in
te

re
st

, o
r e

ar
ne

d 
be

ne
fit

 a
t a

ge
 7

0.
 (§

31
62

8)
 

Fi
ve

 o
r M

or
e 

Y
ea

rs
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
If 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 le
ft 

on
 d

ep
os

it,
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 e
ar

ne
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e 

af
te

r e
lig

ib
le

 to
 re

tir
e.

 
(§

31
70

0)
 

Po
st

-R
et

ire
m

en
t C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

B
en

ef
its

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

 (n
on

-
di

sa
bi

lit
y)

, T
ie

r 4
, a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

, 
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

 a
nd

 T
ie

r D
 

Fu
tu

re
 c

ha
ng

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

C
on

su
m

er
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x 
to

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f 3
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
ex

ce
ss

 “b
an

ke
d.

”  
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 3

 (d
is

ab
ili

ty
) 

an
d 

Ti
er

 5
 (d

is
ab

ili
ty

) 
Fu

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

e 
In

de
x 

to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 4

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r, 

ex
ce

ss
 “b

an
ke

d.
” 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 (u
nd

er
 

ce
rta

in
 M

O
U

s)
,  

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 

Fu
tu

re
 c

ha
ng

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

C
on

su
m

er
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x 
to

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f 2
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
ex

ce
ss

 “b
an

ke
d.

” 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

4 
 

M
em

be
r C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

: 
Pl

ea
se

 re
fe

r t
o 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
III

 fo
r s

pe
ci

fic
 ra

te
s.

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r o

ne
-h

al
f o

f t
he

 §
31

67
6.

11
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ya
bl

e 
at

 a
ge

 5
5.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r a

n 
an

nu
ity

 a
t a

ge
 6

0 
eq

ua
l t

o 
1/

12
0 

of
 F

AS
1.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l N
or

m
al

 C
os

t r
at

e.
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 (N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r o

ne
-h

al
f o

f t
he

 §
31

66
4 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
ab

le
 a

t a
ge

 5
0.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r a

n 
an

nu
ity

 a
t a

ge
 5

0 
eq

ua
l t

o 
1/

10
0 

of
 F

AS
1.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r a

n 
an

nu
ity

 a
t a

ge
 5

0 
eq

ua
l t

o 
1/

10
0 

of
 F

AS
3.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l N
or

m
al

 C
os

t r
at

e.
 

O
th

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n:
 

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
fro

m
 T

ie
r 1

 to
 T

ie
r 2

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

on
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 ir

re
vo

ca
bl

e 
ba

si
s.

 C
re

di
t i

s 
gi

ve
n 

un
de

r 
Ti

er
 2

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
on

ly
. T

he
 C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

m
ax

im
um

 is
 4

%
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 c

re
di

t u
nd

er
 T

ie
r 2

. T
ra

ns
fe

rre
d 

Ti
er

 2
 m

em
be

rs
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

fiv
e-

ye
ar

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 n

on
se

rv
ic

e-
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
 T

ho
se

 w
ho

 w
er

e 
m

em
be

rs
 

on
 o

r b
ef

or
e 

M
ar

ch
 7

, 1
97

3 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
on

 o
r b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
w

ill 
be

 
ex

em
pt

 fr
om

 p
ay

in
g 

m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

fte
r 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

Pl
an

 P
ro

vi
si

on
s 

N
ot

 V
al

ue
d:

 
Ad

di
tio

na
l $

5,
00

0 
lu

m
p 

su
m

 p
os

t-r
et

ire
m

en
t d

ea
th

 b
en

ef
it 

(e
xc

ep
t f

or
 $

2,
00

0 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 m

em
be

rs
 p

ai
d 

ou
t o

f t
he

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s)
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 a
 m

em
be

r’s
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
. T

hi
s 

be
ne

fit
 is

 p
ai

d 
fro

m
 a

 re
se

rv
e 

th
at

 
is

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 a

t a
ll 

tim
es

 to
 th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 fu
nd

s.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 P

la
n 

Pr
ov

is
io

ns
: 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

no
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
la

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
la

st
 v

al
ua

tio
n.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

5 
 N

ot
e:

 
Th

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 o

ut
lin

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
l p

la
n 

be
ne

fit
s a

s i
nt

er
pr

et
ed

 fo
r p

ur
po

se
s o

f t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 If
 th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 fi
nd

 th
e 

pl
an

 su
m

m
ar

y 
no

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s, 

th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 a

le
rt 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
y 

so
 th

ey
 c

an
 b

ot
h 

be
 su

re
 th

e 
pr

op
er

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s a

re
 v

al
ue

d.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

6 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 
G

en
er

al
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

15
 

3.
69

%
 

5.
30

%
 

1.
67

%
 

2.
51

%
 

5.
36

%
 

7.
81

%
 

16
 

3.
75

%
 

5.
39

%
 

1.
71

%
 

2.
56

%
 

5.
46

%
 

7.
95

%
 

17
 

3.
82

%
 

5.
49

%
 

1.
74

%
 

2.
61

%
 

5.
56

%
 

8.
10

%
 

18
 

3.
88

%
 

5.
59

%
 

1.
78

%
 

2.
67

%
 

5.
66

%
 

8.
26

%
 

19
 

3.
95

%
 

5.
69

%
 

1.
81

%
 

2.
72

%
 

5.
76

%
 

8.
41

%
 

20
 

4.
02

%
 

5.
79

%
 

1.
85

%
 

2.
77

%
 

5.
87

%
 

8.
56

%
 

21
 

4.
08

%
 

5.
89

%
 

1.
88

%
 

2.
82

%
 

5.
96

%
 

8.
71

%
 

22
 

4.
15

%
 

5.
99

%
 

1.
91

%
 

2.
87

%
 

6.
06

%
 

8.
86

%
 

23
 

4.
22

%
 

6.
10

%
 

1.
95

%
 

2.
93

%
 

6.
17

%
 

9.
03

%
 

24
 

4.
30

%
 

6.
21

%
 

1.
99

%
 

2.
99

%
 

6.
29

%
 

9.
20

%
 

25
 

4.
37

%
 

6.
32

%
 

2.
03

%
 

3.
05

%
 

6.
40

%
 

9.
37

%
 

26
 

4.
44

%
 

6.
43

%
 

2.
07

%
 

3.
10

%
 

6.
51

%
 

9.
53

%
 

27
 

4.
52

%
 

6.
55

%
 

2.
11

%
 

3.
17

%
 

6.
63

%
 

9.
72

%
 

28
 

4.
60

%
 

6.
66

%
 

2.
15

%
 

3.
22

%
 

6.
75

%
 

9.
88

%
 

29
 

4.
68

%
 

6.
78

%
 

2.
19

%
 

3.
29

%
 

6.
87

%
 

10
.0

7%
 

30
 

4.
76

%
 

6.
90

%
 

2.
23

%
 

3.
35

%
 

6.
99

%
 

10
.2

5%
 

31
 

4.
84

%
 

7.
03

%
 

2.
28

%
 

3.
42

%
 

7.
12

%
 

10
.4

5%
 

32
 

4.
92

%
 

7.
15

%
 

2.
32

%
 

3.
48

%
 

7.
24

%
 

10
.6

3%
 

33
 

5.
01

%
 

7.
28

%
 

2.
37

%
 

3.
55

%
 

7.
38

%
 

10
.8

3%
 

34
 

5.
10

%
 

7.
42

%
 

2.
41

%
 

3.
62

%
 

7.
51

%
 

11
.0

4%
 

35
 

5.
19

%
 

7.
55

%
 

2.
46

%
 

3.
69

%
 

7.
65

%
 

11
.2

4%
 

36
 

5.
28

%
 

7.
69

%
 

2.
51

%
 

3.
76

%
 

7.
79

%
 

11
.4

5%
 

37
 

5.
38

%
 

7.
83

%
 

2.
55

%
 

3.
83

%
 

7.
93

%
 

11
.6

6%
 

38
 

5.
47

%
 

7.
97

%
 

2.
61

%
 

3.
91

%
 

8.
08

%
 

11
.8

8%
 

39
 

5.
57

%
 

8.
12

%
 

2.
65

%
 

3.
98

%
 

8.
22

%
 

12
.1

0%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

7 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

40
 

5.
67

%
 

8.
27

%
 

2.
71

%
 

4.
06

%
 

8.
38

%
 

12
.3

3%
 

41
 

5.
78

%
 

8.
43

%
 

2.
76

%
 

4.
14

%
 

8.
54

%
 

12
.5

7%
 

42
 

5.
88

%
 

8.
58

%
 

2.
81

%
 

4.
22

%
 

8.
69

%
 

12
.8

0%
 

43
 

5.
98

%
 

8.
73

%
 

2.
87

%
 

4.
30

%
 

8.
85

%
 

13
.0

3%
 

44
 

6.
08

%
 

8.
88

%
 

2.
92

%
 

4.
38

%
 

9.
00

%
 

13
.2

6%
 

45
 

6.
18

%
 

9.
04

%
 

2.
97

%
 

4.
46

%
 

9.
15

%
 

13
.5

0%
 

46
 

6.
29

%
 

9.
20

%
 

3.
03

%
 

4.
55

%
 

9.
32

%
 

13
.7

5%
 

47
 

6.
40

%
 

9.
36

%
 

3.
09

%
 

4.
63

%
 

9.
49

%
 

13
.9

9%
 

48
 

6.
50

%
 

9.
51

%
 

3.
14

%
 

4.
71

%
 

9.
64

%
 

14
.2

2%
 

49
 

6.
60

%
 

9.
66

%
 

3.
19

%
 

4.
79

%
 

9.
79

%
 

14
.4

5%
 

50
 

6.
70

%
 

9.
82

%
 

3.
25

%
 

4.
87

%
 

9.
95

%
 

14
.6

9%
 

51
 

6.
81

%
 

9.
98

%
 

3.
30

%
 

4.
95

%
 

10
.1

1%
 

14
.9

3%
 

52
 

6.
92

%
 

10
.1

4%
 

3.
36

%
 

5.
04

%
 

10
.2

8%
 

15
.1

8%
 

53
 

7.
02

%
 

10
.3

0%
 

3.
41

%
 

5.
12

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

15
.4

2%
 

54
 

7.
13

%
 

10
.4

6%
 

3.
47

%
 

5.
20

%
 

10
.6

0%
 

15
.6

6%
 

55
 

7.
23

%
 

10
.6

1%
 

3.
52

%
 

5.
28

%
 

10
.7

5%
 

15
.8

9%
 

56
 

7.
28

%
 

10
.6

8%
 

3.
55

%
 

5.
32

%
 

10
.8

3%
 

16
.0

0%
 

57
 

7.
26

%
 

10
.6

5%
 

3.
53

%
 

5.
30

%
 

10
.7

9%
 

15
.9

5%
 

58
 

7.
24

%
 

10
.6

2%
 

3.
53

%
 

5.
29

%
 

10
.7

7%
 

15
.9

1%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
7.

03
%

 
10

.3
1%

 
3.

41
%

 
5.

12
%

 
10

.4
4%

 
15

.4
3%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
1.

00
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

52
.0

7%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

8 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

15
 

3.
68

%
 

5.
29

%
 

1.
56

%
 

2.
34

%
 

5.
24

%
 

7.
63

%
 

16
 

3.
74

%
 

5.
38

%
 

1.
59

%
 

2.
38

%
 

5.
33

%
 

7.
76

%
 

17
 

3.
81

%
 

5.
48

%
 

1.
62

%
 

2.
43

%
 

5.
43

%
 

7.
91

%
 

18
 

3.
87

%
 

5.
57

%
 

1.
65

%
 

2.
47

%
 

5.
52

%
 

8.
04

%
 

19
 

3.
94

%
 

5.
67

%
 

1.
68

%
 

2.
52

%
 

5.
62

%
 

8.
19

%
 

20
 

4.
00

%
 

5.
77

%
 

1.
71

%
 

2.
57

%
 

5.
71

%
 

8.
34

%
 

21
 

4.
08

%
 

5.
88

%
 

1.
75

%
 

2.
62

%
 

5.
83

%
 

8.
50

%
 

22
 

4.
14

%
 

5.
98

%
 

1.
78

%
 

2.
67

%
 

5.
92

%
 

8.
65

%
 

23
 

4.
22

%
 

6.
09

%
 

1.
81

%
 

2.
72

%
 

6.
03

%
 

8.
81

%
 

24
 

4.
29

%
 

6.
20

%
 

1.
85

%
 

2.
78

%
 

6.
14

%
 

8.
98

%
 

25
 

4.
36

%
 

6.
31

%
 

1.
89

%
 

2.
83

%
 

6.
25

%
 

9.
14

%
 

26
 

4.
44

%
 

6.
42

%
 

1.
92

%
 

2.
88

%
 

6.
36

%
 

9.
30

%
 

27
 

4.
51

%
 

6.
53

%
 

1.
96

%
 

2.
94

%
 

6.
47

%
 

9.
47

%
 

28
 

4.
59

%
 

6.
65

%
 

2.
00

%
 

3.
00

%
 

6.
59

%
 

9.
65

%
 

29
 

4.
67

%
 

6.
77

%
 

2.
03

%
 

3.
05

%
 

6.
70

%
 

9.
82

%
 

30
 

4.
75

%
 

6.
89

%
 

2.
07

%
 

3.
11

%
 

6.
82

%
 

10
.0

0%
 

31
 

4.
83

%
 

7.
01

%
 

2.
11

%
 

3.
17

%
 

6.
94

%
 

10
.1

8%
 

32
 

4.
92

%
 

7.
14

%
 

2.
15

%
 

3.
23

%
 

7.
07

%
 

10
.3

7%
 

33
 

5.
00

%
 

7.
27

%
 

2.
20

%
 

3.
30

%
 

7.
20

%
 

10
.5

7%
 

34
 

5.
09

%
 

7.
40

%
 

2.
24

%
 

3.
36

%
 

7.
33

%
 

10
.7

6%
 

35
 

5.
18

%
 

7.
53

%
 

2.
28

%
 

3.
42

%
 

7.
46

%
 

10
.9

5%
 

36
 

5.
27

%
 

7.
67

%
 

2.
33

%
 

3.
49

%
 

7.
60

%
 

11
.1

6%
 

37
 

5.
36

%
 

7.
81

%
 

2.
37

%
 

3.
56

%
 

7.
73

%
 

11
.3

7%
 

38
 

5.
46

%
 

7.
96

%
 

2.
42

%
 

3.
63

%
 

7.
88

%
 

11
.5

9%
 

39
 

5.
56

%
 

8.
11

%
 

2.
47

%
 

3.
70

%
 

8.
03

%
 

11
.8

1%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

9 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

  
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

40
 

5.
66

%
 

8.
25

%
 

2.
51

%
 

3.
77

%
 

8.
17

%
 

12
.0

2%
 

41
 

5.
76

%
 

8.
40

%
 

2.
56

%
 

3.
84

%
 

8.
32

%
 

12
.2

4%
 

42
 

5.
86

%
 

8.
56

%
 

2.
61

%
 

3.
92

%
 

8.
47

%
 

12
.4

8%
 

43
 

5.
96

%
 

8.
71

%
 

2.
66

%
 

3.
99

%
 

8.
62

%
 

12
.7

0%
 

44
 

6.
06

%
 

8.
86

%
 

2.
71

%
 

4.
07

%
 

8.
77

%
 

12
.9

3%
 

45
 

6.
17

%
 

9.
02

%
 

2.
77

%
 

4.
15

%
 

8.
94

%
 

13
.1

7%
 

46
 

6.
28

%
 

9.
18

%
 

2.
81

%
 

4.
22

%
 

9.
09

%
 

13
.4

0%
 

47
 

6.
38

%
 

9.
34

%
 

2.
87

%
 

4.
30

%
 

9.
25

%
 

13
.6

4%
 

48
 

6.
48

%
 

9.
48

%
 

2.
91

%
 

4.
37

%
 

9.
39

%
 

13
.8

5%
 

49
 

6.
59

%
 

9.
65

%
 

2.
97

%
 

4.
45

%
 

9.
56

%
 

14
.1

0%
 

50
 

6.
69

%
 

9.
80

%
 

3.
01

%
 

4.
52

%
 

9.
70

%
 

14
.3

2%
 

51
 

6.
80

%
 

9.
96

%
 

3.
07

%
 

4.
60

%
 

9.
87

%
 

14
.5

6%
 

52
 

6.
90

%
 

10
.1

2%
 

3.
12

%
 

4.
68

%
 

10
.0

2%
 

14
.8

0%
 

53
 

7.
03

%
 

10
.3

1%
 

3.
18

%
 

4.
77

%
 

10
.2

1%
 

15
.0

8%
 

54
 

7.
11

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

3.
22

%
 

4.
83

%
 

10
.3

3%
 

15
.2

6%
 

55
 

7.
20

%
 

10
.5

7%
 

3.
27

%
 

4.
90

%
 

10
.4

7%
 

15
.4

7%
 

56
 

7.
28

%
 

10
.6

8%
 

3.
30

%
 

4.
95

%
 

10
.5

8%
 

15
.6

3%
 

57
 

7.
26

%
 

10
.6

6%
 

3.
29

%
 

4.
94

%
 

10
.5

5%
 

15
.6

0%
 

58
 

7.
25

%
 

10
.6

4%
 

3.
29

%
 

4.
93

%
 

10
.5

4%
 

15
.5

7%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
6.

84
%

 
10

.0
3%

 
3.

09
%

 
4.

63
%

 
9.

93
%

 
14

.6
6%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

75
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

48
.4

8%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

0 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

  
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

5.
48

%
 

2.
64

%
 

8.
12

%
 

16
 

5.
57

%
 

2.
69

%
 

8.
26

%
 

17
 

5.
67

%
 

2.
74

%
 

8.
41

%
 

18
 

5.
77

%
 

2.
79

%
 

8.
56

%
 

19
 

5.
88

%
 

2.
85

%
 

8.
73

%
 

20
 

5.
98

%
 

2.
90

%
 

8.
88

%
 

21
 

6.
09

%
 

2.
96

%
 

9.
05

%
 

22
 

6.
20

%
 

3.
02

%
 

9.
22

%
 

23
 

6.
31

%
 

3.
08

%
 

9.
39

%
 

24
 

6.
42

%
 

3.
14

%
 

9.
56

%
 

25
 

6.
53

%
 

3.
19

%
 

9.
72

%
 

26
 

6.
65

%
 

3.
26

%
 

9.
91

%
 

27
 

6.
77

%
 

3.
32

%
 

10
.0

9%
 

28
 

6.
89

%
 

3.
38

%
 

10
.2

7%
 

29
 

7.
01

%
 

3.
45

%
 

10
.4

6%
 

30
 

7.
14

%
 

3.
52

%
 

10
.6

6%
 

31
 

7.
27

%
 

3.
58

%
 

10
.8

5%
 

32
 

7.
40

%
 

3.
65

%
 

11
.0

5%
 

33
 

7.
53

%
 

3.
72

%
 

11
.2

5%
 

34
 

7.
66

%
 

3.
79

%
 

11
.4

5%
 

35
 

7.
80

%
 

3.
86

%
 

11
.6

6%
 

36
 

7.
95

%
 

3.
94

%
 

11
.8

9%
 

37
 

8.
09

%
 

4.
02

%
 

12
.1

1%
 

38
 

8.
24

%
 

4.
09

%
 

12
.3

3%
 

39
 

8.
40

%
 

4.
18

%
 

12
.5

8%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

1 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

8.
55

%
 

4.
26

%
 

12
.8

1%
 

41
 

8.
71

%
 

4.
34

%
 

13
.0

5%
 

42
 

8.
86

%
 

4.
42

%
 

13
.2

8%
 

43
 

9.
02

%
 

4.
51

%
 

13
.5

3%
 

44
 

9.
18

%
 

4.
59

%
 

13
.7

7%
 

45
 

9.
35

%
 

4.
68

%
 

14
.0

3%
 

46
 

9.
50

%
 

4.
76

%
 

14
.2

6%
 

47
 

9.
66

%
 

4.
84

%
 

14
.5

0%
 

48
 

9.
82

%
 

4.
93

%
 

14
.7

5%
 

49
 

9.
98

%
 

5.
01

%
 

14
.9

9%
 

50
 

10
.1

4%
 

5.
10

%
 

15
.2

4%
 

51
 

10
.3

0%
 

5.
18

%
 

15
.4

8%
 

52
 

10
.4

7%
 

5.
27

%
 

15
.7

4%
 

53
 

10
.6

3%
 

5.
35

%
 

15
.9

8%
 

54
 

10
.7

7%
 

5.
43

%
 

16
.2

0%
 

55
 

10
.8

7%
 

5.
48

%
 

16
.3

5%
 

56
 

10
.9

8%
 

5.
54

%
 

16
.5

2%
 

57
 

10
.9

4%
 

5.
52

%
 

16
.4

6%
 

58
 

10
.7

0%
 

5.
39

%
 

16
.0

9%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

.2
6%

 
5.

16
%

 
15

.4
2%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
4.

75
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

52
.7

0%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

2 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

15
 

3.
67

%
 

5.
27

%
 

1.
67

%
 

2.
51

%
 

5.
34

%
 

7.
78

%
 

16
 

3.
74

%
 

5.
37

%
 

1.
71

%
 

2.
56

%
 

5.
45

%
 

7.
93

%
 

17
 

3.
80

%
 

5.
46

%
 

1.
74

%
 

2.
61

%
 

5.
54

%
 

8.
07

%
 

18
 

3.
86

%
 

5.
56

%
 

1.
77

%
 

2.
66

%
 

5.
63

%
 

8.
22

%
 

19
 

3.
93

%
 

5.
66

%
 

1.
81

%
 

2.
71

%
 

5.
74

%
 

8.
37

%
 

20
 

4.
00

%
 

5.
76

%
 

1.
85

%
 

2.
77

%
 

5.
85

%
 

8.
53

%
 

21
 

4.
06

%
 

5.
86

%
 

1.
88

%
 

2.
82

%
 

5.
94

%
 

8.
68

%
 

22
 

4.
14

%
 

5.
97

%
 

1.
91

%
 

2.
87

%
 

6.
05

%
 

8.
84

%
 

23
 

4.
20

%
 

6.
07

%
 

1.
95

%
 

2.
93

%
 

6.
15

%
 

9.
00

%
 

24
 

4.
28

%
 

6.
18

%
 

1.
99

%
 

2.
98

%
 

6.
27

%
 

9.
16

%
 

25
 

4.
35

%
 

6.
29

%
 

2.
03

%
 

3.
04

%
 

6.
38

%
 

9.
33

%
 

26
 

4.
42

%
 

6.
40

%
 

2.
07

%
 

3.
10

%
 

6.
49

%
 

9.
50

%
 

27
 

4.
50

%
 

6.
52

%
 

2.
11

%
 

3.
16

%
 

6.
61

%
 

9.
68

%
 

28
 

4.
58

%
 

6.
63

%
 

2.
15

%
 

3.
22

%
 

6.
73

%
 

9.
85

%
 

29
 

4.
66

%
 

6.
75

%
 

2.
19

%
 

3.
28

%
 

6.
85

%
 

10
.0

3%
 

30
 

4.
74

%
 

6.
87

%
 

2.
23

%
 

3.
35

%
 

6.
97

%
 

10
.2

2%
 

31
 

4.
82

%
 

7.
00

%
 

2.
27

%
 

3.
41

%
 

7.
09

%
 

10
.4

1%
 

32
 

4.
90

%
 

7.
12

%
 

2.
32

%
 

3.
48

%
 

7.
22

%
 

10
.6

0%
 

33
 

4.
99

%
 

7.
25

%
 

2.
36

%
 

3.
54

%
 

7.
35

%
 

10
.7

9%
 

34
 

5.
08

%
 

7.
38

%
 

2.
41

%
 

3.
61

%
 

7.
49

%
 

10
.9

9%
 

35
 

5.
17

%
 

7.
52

%
 

2.
46

%
 

3.
69

%
 

7.
63

%
 

11
.2

1%
 

36
 

5.
26

%
 

7.
65

%
 

2.
50

%
 

3.
75

%
 

7.
76

%
 

11
.4

0%
 

37
 

5.
35

%
 

7.
79

%
 

2.
55

%
 

3.
83

%
 

7.
90

%
 

11
.6

2%
 

38
 

5.
45

%
 

7.
94

%
 

2.
60

%
 

3.
90

%
 

8.
05

%
 

11
.8

4%
 

39
 

5.
55

%
 

8.
09

%
 

2.
65

%
 

3.
98

%
 

8.
20

%
 

12
.0

7%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

3 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

40
 

5.
65

%
 

8.
24

%
 

2.
71

%
 

4.
06

%
 

8.
36

%
 

12
.3

0%
 

41
 

5.
75

%
 

8.
39

%
 

2.
76

%
 

4.
14

%
 

8.
51

%
 

12
.5

3%
 

42
 

5.
85

%
 

8.
54

%
 

2.
81

%
 

4.
22

%
 

8.
66

%
 

12
.7

6%
 

43
 

5.
95

%
 

8.
69

%
 

2.
87

%
 

4.
30

%
 

8.
82

%
 

12
.9

9%
 

44
 

6.
05

%
 

8.
84

%
 

2.
91

%
 

4.
37

%
 

8.
96

%
 

13
.2

1%
 

45
 

6.
16

%
 

9.
01

%
 

2.
97

%
 

4.
46

%
 

9.
13

%
 

13
.4

7%
 

46
 

6.
26

%
 

9.
16

%
 

3.
03

%
 

4.
54

%
 

9.
29

%
 

13
.7

0%
 

47
 

6.
36

%
 

9.
31

%
 

3.
08

%
 

4.
62

%
 

9.
44

%
 

13
.9

3%
 

48
 

6.
46

%
 

9.
46

%
 

3.
13

%
 

4.
70

%
 

9.
59

%
 

14
.1

6%
 

49
 

6.
58

%
 

9.
63

%
 

3.
19

%
 

4.
79

%
 

9.
77

%
 

14
.4

2%
 

50
 

6.
67

%
 

9.
77

%
 

3.
24

%
 

4.
86

%
 

9.
91

%
 

14
.6

3%
 

51
 

6.
78

%
 

9.
94

%
 

3.
30

%
 

4.
95

%
 

10
.0

8%
 

14
.8

9%
 

52
 

6.
89

%
 

10
.1

0%
 

3.
35

%
 

5.
03

%
 

10
.2

4%
 

15
.1

3%
 

53
 

7.
01

%
 

10
.2

8%
 

3.
42

%
 

5.
13

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

15
.4

1%
 

54
 

7.
11

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

3.
47

%
 

5.
21

%
 

10
.5

8%
 

15
.6

4%
 

55
 

7.
20

%
 

10
.5

7%
 

3.
52

%
 

5.
28

%
 

10
.7

2%
 

15
.8

5%
 

56
 

7.
24

%
 

10
.6

3%
 

3.
54

%
 

5.
31

%
 

10
.7

8%
 

15
.9

4%
 

57
 

7.
27

%
 

10
.6

7%
 

3.
55

%
 

5.
33

%
 

10
.8

2%
 

16
.0

0%
 

58
 

7.
16

%
 

10
.5

1%
 

3.
50

%
 

5.
25

%
 

10
.6

6%
 

15
.7

6%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
6.

86
%

 
10

.0
5%

 
3.

34
%

 
5.

01
%

 
10

.2
0%

 
15

.0
6%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

50
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

52
.2

7%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

4 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

5.
31

%
 

2.
55

%
 

7.
86

%
 

16
 

5.
40

%
 

2.
60

%
 

8.
00

%
 

17
 

5.
50

%
 

2.
65

%
 

8.
15

%
 

18
 

5.
60

%
 

2.
70

%
 

8.
30

%
 

19
 

5.
70

%
 

2.
76

%
 

8.
46

%
 

20
 

5.
80

%
 

2.
81

%
 

8.
61

%
 

21
 

5.
90

%
 

2.
86

%
 

8.
76

%
 

22
 

6.
01

%
 

2.
92

%
 

8.
93

%
 

23
 

6.
11

%
 

2.
97

%
 

9.
08

%
 

24
 

6.
22

%
 

3.
03

%
 

9.
25

%
 

25
 

6.
33

%
 

3.
09

%
 

9.
42

%
 

26
 

6.
45

%
 

3.
15

%
 

9.
60

%
 

27
 

6.
56

%
 

3.
21

%
 

9.
77

%
 

28
 

6.
68

%
 

3.
27

%
 

9.
95

%
 

29
 

6.
80

%
 

3.
34

%
 

10
.1

4%
 

30
 

6.
92

%
 

3.
40

%
 

10
.3

2%
 

31
 

7.
04

%
 

3.
46

%
 

10
.5

0%
 

32
 

7.
17

%
 

3.
53

%
 

10
.7

0%
 

33
 

7.
30

%
 

3.
60

%
 

10
.9

0%
 

34
 

7.
43

%
 

3.
67

%
 

11
.1

0%
 

35
 

7.
57

%
 

3.
74

%
 

11
.3

1%
 

36
 

7.
70

%
 

3.
81

%
 

11
.5

1%
 

37
 

7.
85

%
 

3.
89

%
 

11
.7

4%
 

38
 

7.
99

%
 

3.
96

%
 

11
.9

5%
 

39
 

8.
14

%
 

4.
04

%
 

12
.1

8%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

5 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

  
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

8.
29

%
 

4.
12

%
 

12
.4

1%
 

41
 

8.
45

%
 

4.
20

%
 

12
.6

5%
 

42
 

8.
60

%
 

4.
28

%
 

12
.8

8%
 

43
 

8.
75

%
 

4.
36

%
 

13
.1

1%
 

44
 

8.
90

%
 

4.
44

%
 

13
.3

4%
 

45
 

9.
06

%
 

4.
53

%
 

13
.5

9%
 

46
 

9.
22

%
 

4.
61

%
 

13
.8

3%
 

47
 

9.
38

%
 

4.
69

%
 

14
.0

7%
 

48
 

9.
53

%
 

4.
77

%
 

14
.3

0%
 

49
 

9.
69

%
 

4.
86

%
 

14
.5

5%
 

50
 

9.
85

%
 

4.
94

%
 

14
.7

9%
 

51
 

10
.0

1%
 

5.
03

%
 

15
.0

4%
 

52
 

10
.1

6%
 

5.
11

%
 

15
.2

7%
 

53
 

10
.3

3%
 

5.
20

%
 

15
.5

3%
 

54
 

10
.4

9%
 

5.
28

%
 

15
.7

7%
 

55
 

10
.6

0%
 

5.
34

%
 

15
.9

4%
 

56
 

10
.6

7%
 

5.
37

%
 

16
.0

4%
 

57
 

10
.7

3%
 

5.
41

%
 

16
.1

4%
 

58
 

10
.6

1%
 

5.
34

%
 

15
.9

5%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

.2
9%

 
5.

17
%

 
15

.4
6%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
1.

25
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

52
.6

9%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

6 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

15
 

4.
18

%
 

6.
03

%
 

1.
62

%
 

2.
43

%
 

5.
80

%
 

8.
46

%
 

16
 

4.
25

%
 

6.
14

%
 

1.
65

%
 

2.
48

%
 

5.
90

%
 

8.
62

%
 

17
 

4.
32

%
 

6.
24

%
 

1.
69

%
 

2.
53

%
 

6.
01

%
 

8.
77

%
 

18
 

4.
40

%
 

6.
36

%
 

1.
72

%
 

2.
58

%
 

6.
12

%
 

8.
94

%
 

19
 

4.
47

%
 

6.
47

%
 

1.
75

%
 

2.
63

%
 

6.
22

%
 

9.
10

%
 

20
 

4.
55

%
 

6.
59

%
 

1.
79

%
 

2.
68

%
 

6.
34

%
 

9.
27

%
 

21
 

4.
62

%
 

6.
70

%
 

1.
82

%
 

2.
73

%
 

6.
44

%
 

9.
43

%
 

22
 

4.
70

%
 

6.
82

%
 

1.
85

%
 

2.
78

%
 

6.
55

%
 

9.
60

%
 

23
 

4.
78

%
 

6.
94

%
 

1.
89

%
 

2.
83

%
 

6.
67

%
 

9.
77

%
 

24
 

4.
87

%
 

7.
07

%
 

1.
93

%
 

2.
89

%
 

6.
80

%
 

9.
96

%
 

25
 

4.
96

%
 

7.
20

%
 

1.
97

%
 

2.
95

%
 

6.
93

%
 

10
.1

5%
 

26
 

5.
04

%
 

7.
33

%
 

2.
00

%
 

3.
00

%
 

7.
04

%
 

10
.3

3%
 

27
 

5.
13

%
 

7.
46

%
 

2.
04

%
 

3.
06

%
 

7.
17

%
 

10
.5

2%
 

28
 

5.
22

%
 

7.
59

%
 

2.
08

%
 

3.
12

%
 

7.
30

%
 

10
.7

1%
 

29
 

5.
31

%
 

7.
73

%
 

2.
12

%
 

3.
18

%
 

7.
43

%
 

10
.9

1%
 

30
 

5.
40

%
 

7.
87

%
 

2.
16

%
 

3.
24

%
 

7.
56

%
 

11
.1

1%
 

31
 

5.
50

%
 

8.
01

%
 

2.
20

%
 

3.
30

%
 

7.
70

%
 

11
.3

1%
 

32
 

5.
60

%
 

8.
17

%
 

2.
25

%
 

3.
37

%
 

7.
85

%
 

11
.5

4%
 

33
 

5.
70

%
 

8.
31

%
 

2.
29

%
 

3.
43

%
 

7.
99

%
 

11
.7

4%
 

34
 

5.
80

%
 

8.
47

%
 

2.
33

%
 

3.
50

%
 

8.
13

%
 

11
.9

7%
 

35
 

5.
91

%
 

8.
63

%
 

2.
38

%
 

3.
57

%
 

8.
29

%
 

12
.2

0%
 

36
 

6.
02

%
 

8.
79

%
 

2.
43

%
 

3.
64

%
 

8.
45

%
 

12
.4

3%
 

37
 

6.
12

%
 

8.
95

%
 

2.
47

%
 

3.
71

%
 

8.
59

%
 

12
.6

6%
 

38
 

6.
23

%
 

9.
11

%
 

2.
52

%
 

3.
78

%
 

8.
75

%
 

12
.8

9%
 

39
 

6.
34

%
 

9.
27

%
 

2.
57

%
 

3.
85

%
 

8.
91

%
 

13
.1

2%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

7 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

  
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

40
 

6.
45

%
 

9.
44

%
 

2.
62

%
 

3.
93

%
 

9.
07

%
 

13
.3

7%
 

41
 

6.
56

%
 

9.
60

%
 

2.
67

%
 

4.
00

%
 

9.
23

%
 

13
.6

0%
 

42
 

6.
66

%
 

9.
76

%
 

2.
71

%
 

4.
07

%
 

9.
37

%
 

13
.8

3%
 

43
 

6.
78

%
 

9.
93

%
 

2.
76

%
 

4.
14

%
 

9.
54

%
 

14
.0

7%
 

44
 

6.
88

%
 

10
.0

9%
 

2.
81

%
 

4.
21

%
 

9.
69

%
 

14
.3

0%
 

45
 

6.
99

%
 

10
.2

5%
 

2.
85

%
 

4.
28

%
 

9.
84

%
 

14
.5

3%
 

46
 

7.
11

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

2.
91

%
 

4.
36

%
 

10
.0

2%
 

14
.7

9%
 

47
 

7.
22

%
 

10
.5

9%
 

2.
95

%
 

4.
43

%
 

10
.1

7%
 

15
.0

2%
 

48
 

7.
34

%
 

10
.7

8%
 

3.
01

%
 

4.
51

%
 

10
.3

5%
 

15
.2

9%
 

49
 

7.
44

%
 

10
.9

3%
 

3.
05

%
 

4.
58

%
 

10
.4

9%
 

15
.5

1%
 

50
 

7.
54

%
 

11
.0

7%
 

3.
09

%
 

4.
64

%
 

10
.6

3%
 

15
.7

1%
 

51
 

7.
61

%
 

11
.1

8%
 

3.
13

%
 

4.
69

%
 

10
.7

4%
 

15
.8

7%
 

52
 

7.
58

%
 

11
.1

3%
 

3.
11

%
 

4.
67

%
 

10
.6

9%
 

15
.8

0%
 

53
 

7.
52

%
 

11
.0

5%
 

3.
09

%
 

4.
63

%
 

10
.6

1%
 

15
.6

8%
 

54
 &

 O
ve

r 
7.

22
%

 
10

.5
9%

 
2.

95
%

 
4.

43
%

 
10

.1
7%

 
15

.0
2%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

25
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

43
.7

7%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

8 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

16
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

17
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

18
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

19
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

20
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

21
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

22
 

9.
60

%
 

6.
37

%
 

15
.9

7%
 

23
 

9.
74

%
 

6.
47

%
 

16
.2

1%
 

24
 

9.
89

%
 

6.
57

%
 

16
.4

6%
 

25
 

10
.0

4%
 

6.
68

%
 

16
.7

2%
 

26
 

10
.1

9%
 

6.
78

%
 

16
.9

7%
 

27
 

10
.3

5%
 

6.
89

%
 

17
.2

4%
 

28
 

10
.5

0%
 

7.
00

%
 

17
.5

0%
 

29
 

10
.6

6%
 

7.
11

%
 

17
.7

7%
 

30
 

10
.8

3%
 

7.
23

%
 

18
.0

6%
 

31
 

11
.0

0%
 

7.
34

%
 

18
.3

4%
 

32
 

11
.1

7%
 

7.
46

%
 

18
.6

3%
 

33
 

11
.3

5%
 

7.
59

%
 

18
.9

4%
 

34
 

11
.5

3%
 

7.
71

%
 

19
.2

4%
 

35
 

11
.7

2%
 

7.
85

%
 

19
.5

7%
 

36
 

11
.9

1%
 

7.
98

%
 

19
.8

9%
 

37
 

12
.1

0%
 

8.
11

%
 

20
.2

1%
 

38
 

12
.2

9%
 

8.
24

%
 

20
.5

3%
 

39
 

12
.5

0%
 

8.
39

%
 

20
.8

9%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

9 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.7

2%
 

8.
54

%
 

21
.2

6%
 

41
 

12
.9

3%
 

8.
69

%
 

21
.6

2%
 

42
 

13
.1

6%
 

8.
85

%
 

22
.0

1%
 

43
 

13
.3

9%
 

9.
01

%
 

22
.4

0%
 

44
 

13
.6

5%
 

9.
19

%
 

22
.8

4%
 

45
 

13
.8

7%
 

9.
35

%
 

23
.2

2%
 

46
 

13
.8

9%
 

9.
36

%
 

23
.2

5%
 

47
 

13
.9

2%
 

9.
38

%
 

23
.3

0%
 

48
 

13
.7

3%
 

9.
25

%
 

22
.9

8%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.2
1%

 
8.

89
%

 
22

.1
0%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

75
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

69
.7

5%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

15
0 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

16
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

17
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

18
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

19
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

20
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

21
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

22
 

9.
58

%
 

6.
51

%
 

16
.0

9%
 

23
 

9.
72

%
 

6.
61

%
 

16
.3

3%
 

24
 

9.
87

%
 

6.
72

%
 

16
.5

9%
 

25
 

10
.0

2%
 

6.
83

%
 

16
.8

5%
 

26
 

10
.1

7%
 

6.
94

%
 

17
.1

1%
 

27
 

10
.3

2%
 

7.
04

%
 

17
.3

6%
 

28
 

10
.4

8%
 

7.
16

%
 

17
.6

4%
 

29
 

10
.6

4%
 

7.
27

%
 

17
.9

1%
 

30
 

10
.8

0%
 

7.
39

%
 

18
.1

9%
 

31
 

10
.9

7%
 

7.
51

%
 

18
.4

8%
 

32
 

11
.1

5%
 

7.
64

%
 

18
.7

9%
 

33
 

11
.3

2%
 

7.
76

%
 

19
.0

8%
 

34
 

11
.5

1%
 

7.
89

%
 

19
.4

0%
 

35
 

11
.7

0%
 

8.
03

%
 

19
.7

3%
 

36
 

11
.8

8%
 

8.
16

%
 

20
.0

4%
 

37
 

12
.0

8%
 

8.
30

%
 

20
.3

8%
 

38
 

12
.2

7%
 

8.
44

%
 

20
.7

1%
 

39
 

12
.4

7%
 

8.
58

%
 

21
.0

5%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

1 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.6

9%
 

8.
74

%
 

21
.4

3%
 

41
 

12
.9

1%
 

8.
90

%
 

21
.8

1%
 

42
 

13
.1

4%
 

9.
06

%
 

22
.2

0%
 

43
 

13
.3

7%
 

9.
22

%
 

22
.5

9%
 

44
 

13
.6

2%
 

9.
40

%
 

23
.0

2%
 

45
 

13
.8

3%
 

9.
55

%
 

23
.3

8%
 

46
 

13
.9

0%
 

9.
60

%
 

23
.5

0%
 

47
 

13
.8

4%
 

9.
56

%
 

23
.4

0%
 

48
 

13
.7

5%
 

9.
50

%
 

23
.2

5%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.2
4%

 
9.

13
%

 
22

.3
7%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

50
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

71
.5

1%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

2 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

16
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

17
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

18
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

19
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

20
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

21
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

22
 

9.
17

%
 

3.
92

%
 

13
.0

9%
 

23
 

9.
31

%
 

3.
99

%
 

13
.3

0%
 

24
 

9.
45

%
 

4.
05

%
 

13
.5

0%
 

25
 

9.
59

%
 

4.
11

%
 

13
.7

0%
 

26
 

9.
73

%
 

4.
18

%
 

13
.9

1%
 

27
 

9.
88

%
 

4.
24

%
 

14
.1

2%
 

28
 

10
.0

3%
 

4.
31

%
 

14
.3

4%
 

29
 

10
.1

8%
 

4.
38

%
 

14
.5

6%
 

30
 

10
.3

4%
 

4.
45

%
 

14
.7

9%
 

31
 

10
.5

0%
 

4.
52

%
 

15
.0

2%
 

32
 

10
.6

7%
 

4.
60

%
 

15
.2

7%
 

33
 

10
.8

4%
 

4.
68

%
 

15
.5

2%
 

34
 

11
.0

1%
 

4.
75

%
 

15
.7

6%
 

35
 

11
.1

8%
 

4.
83

%
 

16
.0

1%
 

36
 

11
.3

6%
 

4.
91

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

37
 

11
.5

4%
 

4.
99

%
 

16
.5

3%
 

38
 

11
.7

1%
 

5.
07

%
 

16
.7

8%
 

39
 

11
.9

1%
 

5.
16

%
 

17
.0

7%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

3 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.1

0%
 

5.
24

%
 

17
.3

4%
 

41
 

12
.2

9%
 

5.
33

%
 

17
.6

2%
 

42
 

12
.4

9%
 

5.
42

%
 

17
.9

1%
 

43
 

12
.6

6%
 

5.
50

%
 

18
.1

6%
 

44
 

12
.7

6%
 

5.
54

%
 

18
.3

0%
 

45
 

12
.7

7%
 

5.
55

%
 

18
.3

2%
 

46
 

12
.6

5%
 

5.
49

%
 

18
.1

4%
 

47
 

12
.3

9%
 

5.
37

%
 

17
.7

6%
 

48
 

12
.7

2%
 

5.
52

%
 

18
.2

4%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.3
0%

 
5.

79
%

 
19

.0
9%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

00
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

45
.0

9%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

4 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

16
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

17
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

18
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

19
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

20
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

21
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

22
 

9.
58

%
 

6.
24

%
 

15
.8

2%
 

23
 

9.
72

%
 

6.
34

%
 

16
.0

6%
 

24
 

9.
87

%
 

6.
44

%
 

16
.3

1%
 

25
 

10
.0

2%
 

6.
54

%
 

16
.5

6%
 

26
 

10
.1

7%
 

6.
65

%
 

16
.8

2%
 

27
 

10
.3

2%
 

6.
75

%
 

17
.0

7%
 

28
 

10
.4

8%
 

6.
86

%
 

17
.3

4%
 

29
 

10
.6

4%
 

6.
97

%
 

17
.6

1%
 

30
 

10
.8

0%
 

7.
08

%
 

17
.8

8%
 

31
 

10
.9

7%
 

7.
19

%
 

18
.1

6%
 

32
 

11
.1

5%
 

7.
32

%
 

18
.4

7%
 

33
 

11
.3

2%
 

7.
43

%
 

18
.7

5%
 

34
 

11
.5

1%
 

7.
56

%
 

19
.0

7%
 

35
 

11
.7

0%
 

7.
69

%
 

19
.3

9%
 

36
 

11
.8

8%
 

7.
82

%
 

19
.7

0%
 

37
 

12
.0

8%
 

7.
96

%
 

20
.0

4%
 

38
 

12
.2

7%
 

8.
09

%
 

20
.3

6%
 

39
 

12
.4

7%
 

8.
22

%
 

20
.6

9%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

5 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.6

9%
 

8.
37

%
 

21
.0

6%
 

41
 

12
.9

1%
 

8.
52

%
 

21
.4

3%
 

42
 

13
.1

4%
 

8.
68

%
 

21
.8

2%
 

43
 

13
.3

7%
 

8.
84

%
 

22
.2

1%
 

44
 

13
.6

2%
 

9.
01

%
 

22
.6

3%
 

45
 

13
.8

3%
 

9.
15

%
 

22
.9

8%
 

46
 

13
.9

0%
 

9.
20

%
 

23
.1

0%
 

47
 

13
.8

4%
 

9.
16

%
 

23
.0

0%
 

48
 

13
.7

5%
 

9.
10

%
 

22
.8

5%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.2
4%

 
8.

75
%

 
21

.9
9%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

50
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

68
.5

2%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

6 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

16
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

17
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

18
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

19
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

20
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

21
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

22
 

9.
76

%
 

6.
66

%
 

16
.4

2%
 

23
 

9.
90

%
 

6.
76

%
 

16
.6

6%
 

24
 

10
.0

5%
 

6.
86

%
 

16
.9

1%
 

25
 

10
.2

0%
 

6.
97

%
 

17
.1

7%
 

26
 

10
.3

6%
 

7.
09

%
 

17
.4

5%
 

27
 

10
.5

1%
 

7.
19

%
 

17
.7

0%
 

28
 

10
.6

7%
 

7.
31

%
 

17
.9

8%
 

29
 

10
.8

3%
 

7.
42

%
 

18
.2

5%
 

30
 

11
.0

0%
 

7.
54

%
 

18
.5

4%
 

31
 

11
.1

7%
 

7.
67

%
 

18
.8

4%
 

32
 

11
.3

5%
 

7.
80

%
 

19
.1

5%
 

33
 

11
.5

3%
 

7.
92

%
 

19
.4

5%
 

34
 

11
.7

2%
 

8.
06

%
 

19
.7

8%
 

35
 

11
.9

0%
 

8.
19

%
 

20
.0

9%
 

36
 

12
.0

9%
 

8.
33

%
 

20
.4

2%
 

37
 

12
.2

9%
 

8.
47

%
 

20
.7

6%
 

38
 

12
.4

9%
 

8.
61

%
 

21
.1

0%
 

39
 

12
.6

9%
 

8.
76

%
 

21
.4

5%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

7 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.9

0%
 

8.
91

%
 

21
.8

1%
 

41
 

13
.1

2%
 

9.
06

%
 

22
.1

8%
 

42
 

13
.3

5%
 

9.
23

%
 

22
.5

8%
 

43
 

13
.5

9%
 

9.
40

%
 

22
.9

9%
 

44
 

13
.8

2%
 

9.
57

%
 

23
.3

9%
 

45
 

14
.0

5%
 

9.
73

%
 

23
.7

8%
 

46
 

14
.0

8%
 

9.
75

%
 

23
.8

3%
 

47
 

14
.0

2%
 

9.
71

%
 

23
.7

3%
 

48
 

13
.7

6%
 

9.
52

%
 

23
.2

8%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
12

.9
9%

 
8.

97
%

 
21

.9
6%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
2.

50
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

71
.6

5%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

8 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
57

%
 

6.
70

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

16
 

9.
57

%
 

6.
70

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

17
 

9.
57

%
 

6.
70

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

18
 

9.
57

%
 

6.
70

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

19
 

9.
57

%
 

6.
70

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

20
 

9.
57

%
 

6.
70

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

21
 

9.
57

%
 

6.
70

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

22
 

9.
71

%
 

6.
80

%
 

16
.5

1%
 

23
 

9.
86

%
 

6.
91

%
 

16
.7

7%
 

24
 

10
.0

0%
 

7.
02

%
 

17
.0

2%
 

25
 

10
.1

6%
 

7.
13

%
 

17
.2

9%
 

26
 

10
.3

1%
 

7.
24

%
 

17
.5

5%
 

27
 

10
.4

6%
 

7.
35

%
 

17
.8

1%
 

28
 

10
.6

2%
 

7.
47

%
 

18
.0

9%
 

29
 

10
.7

8%
 

7.
59

%
 

18
.3

7%
 

30
 

10
.9

5%
 

7.
71

%
 

18
.6

6%
 

31
 

11
.1

2%
 

7.
84

%
 

18
.9

6%
 

32
 

11
.3

0%
 

7.
97

%
 

19
.2

7%
 

33
 

11
.4

7%
 

8.
10

%
 

19
.5

7%
 

34
 

11
.6

6%
 

8.
24

%
 

19
.9

0%
 

35
 

11
.8

6%
 

8.
38

%
 

20
.2

4%
 

36
 

12
.0

4%
 

8.
52

%
 

20
.5

6%
 

37
 

12
.2

3%
 

8.
66

%
 

20
.8

9%
 

38
 

12
.4

3%
 

8.
80

%
 

21
.2

3%
 

39
 

12
.6

4%
 

8.
96

%
 

21
.6

0%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

9 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.8

6%
 

9.
12

%
 

21
.9

8%
 

41
 

13
.0

7%
 

9.
27

%
 

22
.3

4%
 

42
 

13
.3

1%
 

9.
45

%
 

22
.7

6%
 

43
 

13
.5

4%
 

9.
62

%
 

23
.1

6%
 

44
 

13
.7

6%
 

9.
78

%
 

23
.5

4%
 

45
 

13
.9

7%
 

9.
94

%
 

23
.9

1%
 

46
 

14
.0

3%
 

9.
98

%
 

24
.0

1%
 

47
 

13
.9

5%
 

9.
92

%
 

23
.8

7%
 

48
 

13
.7

9%
 

9.
80

%
 

23
.5

9%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.0
5%

 
9.

26
%

 
22

.3
1%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
2.

00
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

73
.6

1%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

0 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 O

n 
or

 A
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
– 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
68

%
 

1.
99

%
 

10
.6

7%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
– 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
16

%
 

1.
84

%
 

10
.0

0%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 5

 (3
%

/4
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
39

%
 

2.
76

%
 

11
.1

5%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
23

%
 

2.
83

%
 

11
.0

6%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
96

%
 

3.
02

%
 

11
.9

8%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

10
.0

7%
 

2.
27

%
 

12
.3

4%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

11
.3

8%
 

3.
79

%
 

15
.1

7%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

9.
39

%
 

3.
21

%
 

12
.6

0%
 

Th
e 

PE
PR

A
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s a
re

 5
0%

 o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e.

 T
he

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s s

ho
w

n 
ab

ov
e 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll.
 

N
ot

e:
 

It 
is

 o
ur

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
en

si
on

 b
en

ef
its

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
PE

PR
A

 fo
rm

ul
as

, t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
th

at
 c

an
 

be
 ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r 2

01
9 

is
 e

qu
al

 to
 $

12
4,

18
0;

 fo
r a

n 
em

pl
oy

er
 th

at
 is

 n
ot

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
, t

he
 m

ax
im

um
 a

m
ou

nt
 is

 
$1

49
,0

16
. (

§7
52

2.
10

) T
he

se
 a

m
ou

nt
s s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dj

us
te

d 
fo

r c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

e 
In

de
x 

fo
r A

ll 
U

rb
an

 C
on

su
m

er
s a

fte
r 

20
19

. (
§7

52
2.

10
(d

))
 



Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

16
1 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 O
n 

or
 A

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

3 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

- P
EP

R
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

14
.3

1%
 

5.
73

%
 

20
.0

4%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
13

.0
5%

 
5.

35
%

 
18

.4
0%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

- P
EP

R
A 

Ti
er

 E
 

12
.0

9%
 

3.
32

%
 

15
.4

1%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 E

 
13

.1
7%

 
3.

57
%

 
16

.7
4%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 - 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

12
.7

0%
 

5.
23

%
 

17
.9

3%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 - 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
11

.4
4%

 
4.

71
%

 
16

.1
5%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 - 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

11
.6

5%
 

4.
82

%
 

16
.4

7%
 

Th
e 

PE
PR

A
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s a
re

 5
0%

 o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e.

 T
he

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s s

ho
w

n 
ab

ov
e 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll.
 

N
ot

e:
 

It 
is

 o
ur

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
en

si
on

 b
en

ef
its

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
PE

PR
A

 fo
rm

ul
as

, t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
th

at
 c

an
 

be
 ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r 2

01
9 

is
 e

qu
al

 to
 $

12
4,

18
0;

 fo
r a

n 
em

pl
oy

er
 th

at
 is

 n
ot

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
, t

he
 m

ax
im

um
 a

m
ou

nt
 is

 
$1

49
,0

16
. (

§7
52

2.
10

) T
he

se
 a

m
ou

nt
s s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dj

us
te

d 
fo

r c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

e 
In

de
x 

fo
r A

ll 
U

rb
an

 C
on

su
m

er
s a

fte
r 

20
19

. (
§7

52
2.

10
(d

))
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

2 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 IV
 –

 R
EF

U
N

D
AB

IL
IT

Y 
FA

C
TO

R
S 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 

Le
ga

cy
 T

ie
rs

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

s 
Le

ga
cy

 T
ie

rs
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
s 

G
en

er
al

 
 

 
 

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1 

– 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 1

) 
0.

95
77

 
 

0.
96

02
 

 
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

 
0.

95
74

 
 

0.
96

05
 

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) 
 

0.
95

82
 

 
0.

96
13

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
2 

– 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 3

) 
0.

95
40

 
 

0.
95

76
 

 
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

 
0.

95
80

 
 

0.
96

11
 

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 (3

%
/4

%
 C

O
LA

) 
 

0.
96

04
 

 
0.

96
31

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

– 
 

C
en

tra
l C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tri

ct
 

0.
95

60
 

0.
96

61
 

0.
95

88
 

0.
96

70
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
– 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0.
95

36
 

0.
96

43
 

0.
95

71
 

0.
96

54
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
– 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

0.
95

63
 

 
0.

95
91

 
 

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) 
 

0.
95

68
 

 
0.

96
30

 
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

 
0.

95
85

 
 

0.
96

06
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
– 

 
Sm

al
l D

is
tri

ct
s 

(N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
Ti

er
 1

 a
nd

 4
) 

0.
95

12
 

0.
96

47
 

0.
95

56
 

0.
96

43
 

Sa
fe

ty
 

 
 

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
– 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r A

 a
nd

 D
) 

0.
95

99
 

0.
97

16
 

0.
96

57
 

0.
97

58
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
– 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 a

nd
 E

as
t F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
s 

 
0.

96
06

 
 

0.
96

66
 

 
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

 
0.

97
32

 
 

0.
97

70
 

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 E
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) 
 

0.
97

19
 

 
0.

97
48

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

– 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

(T
ie

r C
 a

nd
 E

) 
0.

96
13

 
0.

97
03

 
0.

96
70

 
0.

97
52

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 –
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

ire
 D

is
tri

ct
 

0.
96

39
 

0.
97

33
 

0.
96

88
 

0.
97

87
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 –

 
Sa

n 
R

am
on

 V
al

le
y 

Fi
re

 D
is

tri
ct

 
0.

96
18

 
0.

97
35

 
0.

96
65

 
0.

97
94

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 –
 

R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
0.

95
33

 
0.

97
69

 
0.

97
18

 
0.

98
03

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

3 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 V
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
C

O
ST

 G
R

O
U

PS
 A

N
D

 E
M

PL
O

YE
R

S 
G

en
er

al
 

C
os

t 
G

ro
up

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 N

am
e 

B
en

ef
it 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l  
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
1 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

   
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
Lo

ca
l A

ge
nc

y 
Fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

  
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 M

os
qu

ito
 a

nd
 V

ec
to

r C
on

tro
l D

is
tri

ct
  

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
Be

th
el

 Is
la

nd
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 D
is

tri
ct

 (N
on

-In
te

gr
at

ed
) 

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
Fi

rs
t 5

-C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

Su
pe

rio
r C

ou
rt 

 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
Ea

st
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

ire
 D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

 
 

 
2 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 
Ti

er
 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 

Ye
s 

 
In

-H
om

e 
Su

pp
or

tiv
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Ti

er
 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 

 
 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 M
os

qu
ito

 a
nd

 V
ec

to
r C

on
tro

l D
is

tri
ct

 
Ti

er
 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 

 
 

Su
pe

rio
r C

ou
rt 

 
Ti

er
 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 

Ye
s 

 
 

 
 

3 
C

en
tra

l C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 (N
on

-In
te

gr
at

ed
) 

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
 

 
 

4 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
 

 
 

5 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

 
 

 
6 

R
od

eo
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 1
 N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
By

ro
n 

Br
en

tw
oo

d 
C

em
et

er
y 

Ti
er

 1
 N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

4 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 V
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
C

O
ST

 G
R

O
U

PS
 A

N
D

 E
M

PL
O

YE
R

S 
(C

O
N

TI
NU

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 

C
os

t 
G

ro
up

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 N

am
e 

B
en

ef
it 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l  
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
7 

C
ou

nt
y 

Sa
fe

ty
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
 

 
 

 
 

8 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

/E
 

Ye
s 

 
Ea

st
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
 

 
 

 
 

9 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Ti

er
 C

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 E
 

 
 

 
(M

em
be

rs
 h

ire
d 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

00
7)

 
 

 
 

 
 

10
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

ire
 D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
 

 
 

 
 

11
 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
 

 
 

 
 

12
 

R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
Ti

er
 A

 N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

 

N
ot

e:
 A

 sp
ec

ia
l a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
s m

ad
e 

fo
r e

m
pl

oy
er

s t
ha

t h
av

e 
a 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f a
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
 o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

s d
es

cr
ib

ed
 o

n 
pa

ge
 1

19
. 



Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

16
5 

EX
H

IB
IT

 V
I –

 A
LL

O
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

 V
AL

U
E 

O
F 

AS
SE

TS
 A

S 
O

F 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
01

8 
C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
 

#1
 a

nd
 #

2 
 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
C

en
tr

al
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 
H

ou
si

ng
 

Au
th

or
ity

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
Sm

al
l D

is
tr

ic
ts

 
(G

en
er

al
 N

on
-

En
ha

nc
ed

) 
Te

rm
in

at
ed

 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

1 
Al

lo
ca

te
d 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
as

 o
f 

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 Y
ea

r 
$4

,5
83

,6
79

,0
28

 
$3

17
,1

88
,7

61
 

$5
3,

42
4,

56
8 

$4
8,

48
4,

69
0 

$6
,7

80
,5

93
 

$5
6,

54
2,

06
8 

2 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
:(1

)  
a.

To
ta

l M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
$6

9,
69

8,
40

2 
$3

,8
76

,9
89

 
$6

10
,1

54
 

$6
10

,9
15

 
$1

18
,7

51
 

$0
 

b.
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Ex
cl

ud
es

PO
B 

an
d 

ot
he

r S
pe

ci
al

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

17
7,

74
2,

80
5 

17
,5

20
,6

15
 

2,
25

4,
45

4 
1,

69
3,

62
1 

24
1,

04
6 

0 

c.
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Sp
ec

ia
l (

PO
B,

Te
rm

in
at

io
n,

 e
tc

.)
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

1,
08

9,
68

0 

d.
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
$2

47
,4

41
,2

07
 

$2
1,

39
7,

60
4 

$2
,8

64
,6

08
 

$2
,3

04
,5

36
 

$3
59

,7
97

 
$1

,0
89

,6
80

 
3 

To
ta

l P
ay

m
en

ts
 E

xc
lu

di
ng

 P
os

t-
R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 

25
5,

20
7,

70
2 

20
,0

41
,1

87
 

3,
14

1,
08

4 
3,

23
3,

92
3 

36
6,

99
5 

5,
34

7,
73

4 

4 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

(2
)  

7,
06

8,
13

6 
37

2,
65

8 
60

,5
69

 
55

,8
15

 
9,

22
9 

0 
5 

Su
bt

ot
al

 (1
 +

 2
d 

– 
3 

– 
4)

 
$4

,5
68

,8
44

,3
97

 
$3

18
,1

72
,5

20
 

$5
3,

08
7,

52
3 

$4
7,

49
9,

48
8 

$6
,7

64
,1

66
 

$5
2,

28
4,

01
4 

6 
W

ei
gh

te
d 

Av
er

ag
e 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 
4,

57
6,

26
1,

71
0 

31
7,

68
0,

64
1 

53
,2

56
,0

46
 

47
,9

92
,0

89
 

6,
77

2,
38

0 
54

,2
54

,9
63

 
7 

Ea
rn

in
gs

 A
llo

ca
te

d 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
 to

 (6
) 

28
9,

34
1,

88
5 

20
,0

85
,8

96
 

3,
36

7,
20

4 
3,

03
4,

38
1 

42
8,

19
5 

3,
43

0,
36

2 
8 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

As
 

of
 E

nd
 o

f Y
ea

r (
5 

+ 
7)

 
$4

,8
58

,1
86

,2
82

 
$3

38
,2

58
,4

16
 

$5
6,

45
4,

72
7 

$5
0,

53
3,

86
9 

$7
,1

92
,3

61
 

$5
5,

71
4,

37
6 

9 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t f
or

 P
re

-P
ai

d 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

10
 F

in
al

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
As

 o
f 

En
d 

of
 Y

ea
r (

8 
+ 

9)
 

$4
,8

58
,1

86
,2

82
 

$3
38

,2
58

,4
16

 
$5

6,
45

4,
72

7 
$5

0,
53

3,
86

9 
$7

,1
92

,3
61

 
$5

5,
71

4,
37

6 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
Em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
“m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

” a
nd

 e
xc

lu
de

 “e
m

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
”. 

(2
) 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

6 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 V
I –

 A
LL

O
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

 V
AL

U
E 

O
F 

AS
SE

TS
 A

S 
O

F 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
01

8 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

 #
7 

&
 9

  
Sa

fe
ty

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 &
 

Ea
st

 F
ire

 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 

Fi
re

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 

Va
lle

y 
Fi

re
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 

R
od

eo
-

H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

To
ta

l 
1 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

as
 o

f 
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 Y

ea
r 

$1
,6

78
,7

68
,4

88
  

$8
79

,8
30

,5
04

  
$1

60
,2

48
,9

90
  

$3
62

,5
97

,4
96

  
$3

2,
34

6,
00

5 
 

$8
,1

79
,8

91
,1

91
  

2 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
:(1

)  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

a.
 T

ot
al

 M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

$1
7,

14
9,

12
5 

 
$6

,5
63

,2
06

  
$1

,3
46

,4
50

  
$3

,2
64

,0
50

  
$3

03
,4

87
  

$1
03

,5
41

,5
29

  
 

b.
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 - 
Ex

cl
ud

es
 

PO
B 

an
d 

ot
he

r S
pe

ci
al

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
69

,3
92

,7
85

  
29

,8
41

,8
17

  
5,

16
4,

01
1 

 
16

,9
36

,7
67

  
2,

98
5,

50
2 

 
32

3,
77

3,
42

3 
 

 
c.

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Sp
ec

ia
l (

PO
B,

 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n,
 e

tc
.) 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

25
4,

00
0 

 
0 

 
1,

34
3,

68
0 

 

 
d.

 T
ot

al
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

$8
6,

54
1,

91
0 

 
$3

6,
40

5,
02

3 
 

$6
,5

10
,4

61
  

$2
0,

45
4,

81
7 

 
$3

,2
88

,9
89

  
$4

28
,6

58
,6

32
  

3 
To

ta
l P

ay
m

en
ts

 E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

os
t-

R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

 
90

,4
78

,1
68

  
56

,9
30

,9
42

  
10

,3
20

,4
42

  
17

,0
18

,6
41

  
1,

87
2,

12
9 

 
46

3,
95

8,
94

7 
 

4 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

(2
)  

1,
04

6,
09

3 
 

38
7,

29
3 

 
79

,7
70

  
23

3,
71

2 
 

23
,7

78
  

9,
33

7,
05

3 
 

5 
Su

bt
ot

al
 (1

 +
 2

d 
– 

3 
– 

4)
 

$1
,6

73
,7

86
,1

37
  

$8
58

,9
17

,2
92

  
$1

56
,3

59
,2

39
  

$3
65

,7
99

,9
60

  
$3

3,
73

9,
08

7 
 

$8
,1

35
,2

53
,8

23
  

6 
W

ei
gh

te
d 

Av
er

ag
e 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 
1,

67
6,

27
7,

31
3 

 
86

9,
37

3,
89

8 
 

15
8,

30
4,

11
5 

 
36

4,
19

8,
72

8 
 

33
,0

42
,5

46
  

8,
15

7,
41

4,
42

9 
 

7 
Ea

rn
in

gs
 A

llo
ca

te
d 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

 to
 (6

) 
10

5,
98

5,
46

8 
 

54
,9

67
,6

35
  

10
,0

09
,0

45
  

23
,0

27
,0

81
  

2,
08

9,
17

1 
 

51
5,

76
6,

32
3 

 
8 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

As
 

of
 E

nd
 o

f Y
ea

r (
5 

+ 
7)

 
$1

,7
79

,7
71

,6
05

  
$9

13
,8

84
,9

27
  

$1
66

,3
68

,2
84

  
$3

88
,8

27
,0

41
  

$3
5,

82
8,

25
8 

 
$8

,6
51

,0
20

,1
46

  

9 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t f
or

 P
re

-P
ai

d 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(3

) 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(8

41
,9

20
) 

(8
41

,9
20

) 
10

 F
in

al
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

As
 o

f 
En

d 
of

 Y
ea

r (
8 

+ 
9)

 
$1

,7
79

,7
71

,6
05

  
$9

13
,8

84
,9

27
  

$1
66

,3
68

,2
84

  
$3

88
,8

27
,0

41
  

$3
4,

98
6,

33
8 

 
$8

,6
50

,1
78

,2
26

  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
Em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
“m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

” a
nd

 e
xc

lu
de

 “e
m

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
”. 

(2
) 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

 
(3

)  
Th

is
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
s 

to
 e

xc
lu

de
 6

 m
on

th
s 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
20

18
 c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r t

ha
t w

er
e 

pr
e-

pa
id

 fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r. 
Th

es
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 w
ill 

be
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 

 56
00

64
4v

4/
05

33
7.

00
2 

 



180 Howard Street  Suite 1100  San Francisco, CA 94105-6147 
T 415.263.8200  www.segalco.com John W. Monroe, ASA, MAAA, EA 

Vice President & Actuary 
jmonroe@segalco.com 

Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting. Member of The Segal Group. Offices throughout the United States and Canada 

October 16, 2019 

Ms. Gail Strohl 
Chief Executive Officer 
Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300 
Concord, CA 94520 

Re: Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 
Contribution Rate Packet for the Period from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 

Dear Gail: 

As requested, we have prepared the enclosed contribution rate packet that contains the employer 
and member contribution rates for the period from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021.  

The following documents are enclosed: 

 Contribution Rate Packet Cover Page

 Contribution Rate Packet Table of Contents

 Contribution Rate Packet Cover Memo

 Board of Supervisors Resolution

 Employer Contribution Rates (Exhibits A and B)

 Member Contribution Rates (Exhibits C through O)

 Examples for Subvention and Employee Cost Sharing

 Prepayment Discount Factor for 2020-2021

The information enclosed is based on the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation results 
including the participant data and actuarial assumptions on which that valuation was based. That 
valuation was completed under the supervision of John Monroe, ASA, MAAA, EA. 



Ms. Gail Strohl 
October 16, 2019 
Page 2 

5601524v1/05337.002 

We will also send these documents to you electronically. Please let us know if you have any 
questions. 

Sincerely, 

John Monroe 

AW/hy 
Enclosures (5598969) 



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue   Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960    
FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 
CONTRIBUTION RATE PACKET FOR 

JULY 1, 2020 through JUNE 30, 2021 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue   Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960 
FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page Description 

i Memo from CEO 

1 Board of Supervisors Resolution  

2 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for General Tiers 1 and 3 
(Exhibit A - 1) 

3 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for General PEPRA Tiers 4 
and 5 with 2% Maximum COLA (Exhibit A - 2) 

4 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for General PEPRA Tiers 4 
and 5 with 3% Maximum COLA (Exhibit A - 3) 

5 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for Safety Tiers A and C 
(Exhibit B - 1) 

6 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for Safety PEPRA Tiers D 
and E (Exhibit B - 2) 

7 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #1 Member Rates (Exhibit C) 

8 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #2 Member Rates (Exhibit D) 

9 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #3 Member Rates (Exhibit E) 

10 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #4 Member Rates (Exhibit F) 

11 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #5 Member Rates (Exhibit G) 

12 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #6 Member Rates (Exhibit H) 

13 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #7 Member Rates (Exhibit I) 

14 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #8 Member Rates (Exhibit J) 

15 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #9 Member Rates (Exhibit K) 

16 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #10 Member Rates (Exhibit L) 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue   Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960 
FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

17 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #11 Member Rates (Exhibit M) 

18 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #12 Member Rates (Exhibit N) 

19 General and Safety PEPRA Member Rates (Exhibit O) 

20 Examples for Subvention and Employee Cost Sharing 

21 Prepayment Discount Factor for 2020-21 



MEMORANDUM 

i 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue   Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960    
FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

Date: October __, 2019 

To: Interested Parties and Participating Employers 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Contribution Rates Effective July 1, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

At its October 9, 2019 meeting, the Retirement Board reviewed the actuary’s valuation report 
for the year ending December 31, 2018. As its October 23, 2019 Board meeting the Board 
adopted the recommended employer and employee contribution rates, which will become 
effective on July 1, 2020. A copy of the December 31, 2018 Actuarial Valuation can be found on 
CCCERA’s website at www.cccera.org under the Actuarial Valuations link.  

Enclosed are the employer and employee contribution rates to be used effective July 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2021.  

Please note the following: 

 The rates are effective July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 and have not yet been
adopted by the County Board of Supervisors.

 The rates are BEFORE ANY EMPLOYER SUBVENTION of the employee contribution.
The rates quoted here are the employer required rates without taking into
consideration any employer subvention of employee contributions. A convenient
methodology for adding subvention is included for your use on page 20. Note that
subvention is not always permitted for PEPRA members.

 The rates are BEFORE ANY INCREASE IN EMPLOYEE RATE to pay a portion of the
employer contribution.
If an employee’s rate needs to be increased to pay a portion of the employer
contribution, both employee and employer rates would need to be adjusted
accordingly. A convenient methodology for adding subvention is included for your use
on page 20.



ADMINISTRATION 
   CONTRIBUTIONS - 1 -

  (Resolution)

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

Adopted this Order on _____________________________________, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

SUBJECT: Approving Contribution Rates to be charged Resolution No.______ 
by the Contra Costa County 
Employees’ Retirement Association. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 31454 and on recommendation of the Board of the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement  Association, 
BE IT  RESOLVED that the following contribution rates are approved to be effective for the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 

I. Employer Contribution Rates for Basic and Cost-of-Living Components
and Non-refundability Discount Factors 

A. For General Members (Sec. 31676.11, Sec. 31676.16 and Sec. 7522.20(a)) 
See attached Exhibit A

B. For Safety Members (Sec. 31664, Sec. 31664.1 and Sec. 7522.25(d))
See attached Exhibit B

II. Employee Contribution Rates for Basic and Cost-of-Living Components

See attached Exhibits C through O 

The Pension Obligation Bonds (POB) issued by the County in March 1994 and April 2003, affected contribution rates for certain 
County employers. The following non-County employers who participate in the Retirement Association are referred to as “Districts”.  

Bethel Island Municipal Improvement District Contra Costa County Fire Protection District 
Byron, Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District East Contra Costa Fire Protection District 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District 
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District 
Contra Costa Housing Authority San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District 
Contra Costa Mosquito and Vector Control District 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
Rodeo Sanitary District 
In-Home Supportive Services Authority 
First 5 - Children & Families Commission  

All other departments/employers are referred to as “County” including the Superior Court of California, Contra Costa County. 

Contra Costa County Fire Protection District and Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District issued Pension Obligation Bonds in 2005 
which affected contribution rates for these two employers. Subsequently, Contra Costa County Fire Protection District has made 
additional payments to CCCERA for its UAAL in 2006 and 2007.  

First 5 - Children & Families Commission made a UAAL prepayment in 2013 which affected contribution rates for that employer. 

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District made a UAAL prepayment in 2013, 2014 and 2015 which affected contribution rates for that 
employer. 

Local Agency Formation Commission made a UAAL prepayment in 2017 which affected contribution rates for that employer. 

San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District made a UAAL prepayment in 2017 and 2018 which affected contribution rates for that 
employer. 



Ex
hi

bi
t A

 - 
1

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t A

-1
Pa

ge
 2

10
/1
6/

20
19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 3

 L
eg

ac
y 

M
em

be
rs

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

3
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
4

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

5
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
RS

 - 
EN

HA
N

CE
D

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
Di

st
ric

ts
Ce

nt
ra

l C
on

tr
a 

Co
st

a
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
Ti

er
 1

 B
AS

IC
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Co
un

ty
Fi

re
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
rs

t 5
LA

FC
O

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
Ho

us
in

g 
Au

th
or

ity
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
F

ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
 &

 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

1
5
.2

8
%

N
/A

1
5
.4

4
%

1
8
.1

6
%

1
8
.6

2
%

N
/A

1
9
.8

6
%

N
/A

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
 &

 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

2
2
.9

1
%

N
/A

2
3
.1

5
%

2
7
.2

4
%

2
7
.9

3
%

N
/A

2
9
.7

9
%

N
/A

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

2
2
.9

1
%

2
0
.6

2
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
7
.9

3
%

3
5
.5

9
%

N
/A

2
2
.2

8
%

Ti
er

 1
 C

O
L 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
F

ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
3
.6

0
%

N
/A

3
.8

7
%

6
.1

5
%

6
.3

2
%

N
/A

9
.6

8
%

N
/A

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
5
.4

1
%

N
/A

5
.8

2
%

9
.2

3
%

9
.4

8
%

N
/A

1
4
.5

1
%

N
/A

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

5
.4

1
%

5
.3

1
%

N
/A

N
/A

9
.4

8
%

1
5
.2

5
%

N
/A

1
1
.3

8
%

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

77
0.

95
77

0.
95

77
0.

95
77

0.
95

77
0.

95
60

0.
95

36
0.

95
63

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

N
a
m

e
T

ie
r

Di
st

ric
ts

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

1
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
T

ie
r 

1
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

Ti
er

 3
 B

AS
IC

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
Co

un
ty

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

L
A

F
C

O

F
ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
1
5
.5

1
%

1
8
.9

2
%

C
C

 M
o
s
q

u
it
o
 &

 V
e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
2
3
.2

7
%

2
8
.3

9
%

B
e
th

e
l 
Is

la
n
d
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t

F
ir
s
t 

5
 -

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

N
/A

2
8
.3

9
%

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

S
u
p
e
ri
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

Ti
er

 3
 C

O
L 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
E

a
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

F
ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
3
.5

9
%

6
.3

3
%

M
o
ra

g
a
-O

ri
n
d
a
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
5
.3

8
%

9
.4

9
%

R
o
d
e
o
-H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
a
n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

N
/A

9
.4

9
%

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

2
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
T

ie
r 

3
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

40
0.

95
40

In
-H

o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
C

 M
o
s
q

u
it
o
 &

 V
e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

6
S

u
p
e
ri
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R 
 N

O
N

-E
N

HA
N

CE
D

Di
st

ric
ts

Ti
er

 1
 B

AS
IC

 N
O

N
-E

nh
an

ce
d

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

3
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 S
a
n
it
a
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ie
r 

1
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

F
ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
8
.6

2
%

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
1
2
.9

2
%

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

4
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

T
ie

r 
1
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

N
/A

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

5
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
1
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

Ti
er

 1
 C

O
L 

N
O

N
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

6
R

o
d
e
o
 S

a
n
it
a
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ie
r 

1
 N

o
n
-e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

1
.6

7
%

 @
 5

5
)

F
ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
2
.5

9
%

B
y
ro

n
 B

re
n
tw

o
o
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
3
.8

9
%

B
a
s
ic

 r
a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
 l
o
a
d
 o

f 
0
.6

3
%

 o
f 

p
a
y
ro

ll.
 T

h
is

 l
o
a
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

N
/A

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
.

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

12Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

2

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

1



Ex
hi

bi
t A

 - 
2

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t A

-2
Pa

ge
 3

10
/1
6/

20
19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 5

 P
EP

RA
 M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 2

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

3
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
4

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

5
G

EN
ER

AL
 P

EP
RA

 T
IE

RS
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
Di

st
ric

ts
Ce

nt
ra

l C
on

tr
a 

Co
st

a
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
Ti

er
 4

 B
AS

IC
Co

un
ty

Fi
re

 D
is

tr
ic

t
Fi

rs
t 5

LA
FC

O
w

ith
ou

t P
O

B
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Ho
us

in
g 

Au
th

or
ity

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Di
st

ric
t

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
1
9
.7

6
%

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
.6

0
%

Ti
er

 4
 C

O
L

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
3
.9

4
%

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
0
.2

0
%

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

74
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
0.

95
68

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

N
a
m

e
T

ie
r

Di
st

ric
ts

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

1
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
T

ie
r 

4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

Ti
er

 5
 B

AS
IC

 
Co

un
ty

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

L
A

F
C

O

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
1
9
.2

4
%

2
4
.2

9
%

C
C

 M
o
s
q

u
it
o
 &

 V
e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
e
th

e
l 
Is

la
n
d
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t

Ti
er

 5
 C

O
L

F
ir
s
t 

5
 -

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
3
.7

9
%

7
.8

4
%

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

S
u
p
e
ri
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

80
0.

95
80

E
a
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

M
o
ra

g
a
-O

ri
n
d
a
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

R
o
d
e
o
-H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
a
n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

2
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
T

ie
r 

5
  

(2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

In
-H

o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
C

 M
o
s
q

u
it
o
 &

 V
e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

S
u
p
e
ri
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

3
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 S
a
n
it
a
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ie
r 

4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

4
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

T
ie

r 
4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

5
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

6
R

o
d
e
o
 S

a
n
it
a
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ie
r 

4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

B
y
ro

n
 B

re
n
tw

o
o
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
o
m

e
 t

ie
rs

 a
re

 n
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

 t
a
b
le

.

B
a
s
ic

 r
a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
 l
o
a
d
 o

f 
0
.6

3
%

 o
f 

p
a
y
ro

ll.

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

2

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

1



Ex
hi

bi
t A

 - 
3

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t A

-3
Pa

ge
 4

10
/1
6/

20
19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 5

 P
EP

RA
 M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 3

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

3
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
4

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

5
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
6

G
EN

ER
AL

 P
EP

RA
 T

IE
RS

 
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

Di
st

ric
ts

Ce
nt

ra
l C

on
tr

a 
Co

st
a

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

Di
st

ric
ts

Ti
er

 4
 B

AS
IC

Co
un

ty
Fi

re
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
rs

t 5
LA

FC
O

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
Ho

us
in

g 
Au

th
or

ity
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
w

ith
ou

t P
O

B
 A

ll 
E

lig
ib

le
 $

1
9

.8
8

%
1

7
.8

7
%

2
0

.1
1

%
2

4
.1

8
%

2
4

.9
3

%
3

1
.4

6
%

2
5

.4
0

%
2

1
.9

1
%

9
.5

5
%

Ti
er

 4
 C

O
L

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
4

.9
1

%
4

.8
7

%
5

.3
1

%
8

.6
8

%
8

.9
6

%
1

4
.4

1
%

1
3

.5
9

%
1

1
.7

2
%

3
.2

1
%

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

82
0.

95
82

0.
95

82
0.

95
82

0.
95

82
0.

96
61

0.
96

43
0.

95
85

0.
96

47

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
N

a
m

e
T

ie
r

Di
st

ric
ts

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

1
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e

n
e

ra
l

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

Ti
er

 5
 B

AS
IC

 
Co

un
ty

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

L
A

F
C

O

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
1

9
.4

7
%

2
4

.5
2

%
C

C
 M

o
s
q
u
it
o

 &
 V

e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
e

th
e

l 
Is

la
n
d

 M
u
n
ic

ip
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Ti
er

 5
 C

O
L 

F
ir
s
t 
5

 -
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
4

.7
1

%
8

.7
6

%
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n
ty

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
' R

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n

S
u
p
e

ri
o

r 
C

o
u
rt

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
96

04
0.

96
04

E
a

s
t 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

M
o

ra
g
a

-O
ri
n
d

a
 F

ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

R
o

d
e

o
-H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
a

n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

2
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e

n
e

ra
l

T
ie

r 
5

  
(2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

In
-H

o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
iv

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

C
C

 M
o

s
q
u
it
o

 &
 V

e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

S
u
p
e

ri
o

r 
C

o
u
rt

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

3
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 S
a

n
it
a

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

4
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

5
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n
ty

 F
ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

6
R

o
d

e
o

 S
a

n
it
a

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

B
y
ro

n
 B

re
n
tw

o
o

d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

B
a

s
ic

 r
a

te
s
 s

h
o

w
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 e
x
p
e

n
s
e

 l
o

a
d

 o
f 

0
.6

3
%

 o
f 

p
a

y
ro

ll.

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

2

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

1



Ex
hi
bi
t B

 ‐ 
1

CO
N
TR

A 
CO

ST
A 
CO

U
N
TY

 E
M
PL
O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR
EM

EN
T 
AS

SO
CI
AT

IO
N

EM
PL
O
YE

R 
CO

N
TR

IB
U
TI
O
N
 R
AT

ES
 E
FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O
R 
JU

LY
 1
, 2

02
0 
TH

RO
U
G
H
 JU

N
E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo
r S

af
et
y 
Ti
er
 A
 a
nd

 C
 L
eg

ac
y 
M
em

be
rs

Co
st
 G
ro
up

 #
7

Co
st
 G
ro
up

 #
10

Co
st
 G
ro
up

 #
11

SA
FE
TY

 T
IE
RS

 E
N
H
AN

CE
D

Co
nt
ra
 C
os
ta
 C
ou

nt
y

Ea
st
 C
on

tr
a 
Co

st
a

M
or
ag
a‐
O
rin

da
Sa
n 
Ra

m
on

 V
al
le
y

Sa
fe
ty
 A
 B
AS

IC
 E
nh

an
ce
d

Co
un

ty
Fi
re
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t

Fi
re
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t

Fi
re
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t

Fi
re
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t

Al
l e

lig
ib

le
 $

44
.3

7%
33

.8
5%

59
.7

6%
34

.4
1%

51
.3

9%

Sa
fe
ty
 A
 C
O
L 
En

ha
nc
ed

Al
l e

lig
ib

le
 $

26
.5

3%
33

.5
3%

53
.3

0%
38

.1
6%

26
.8

4%

N
on

‐R
ef
un

da
bi
lit
y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

99
0.
96

06
0.
96

06
0.
96

39
0.
96

18

Co
st
 G
ro
up

 #
9

C
os

t G
ro

up
Em

pl
oy

er
 N

am
e

Ti
er

Sa
fe
ty
 C
 B
AS

IC
 E
nh

an
ce
d 

Co
un

ty
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
 7

C
ou

nt
y 

Sa
fe

ty
Ti

er
 A

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
(3

%
 @

 5
0)

Al
l e

lig
ib

le
 $

42
.4

9%
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
 8

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

(3
%

 @
 5

0)
Sa
fe
ty
 C
 C
O
L 
En

ha
nc
ed

Ea
st

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

Al
l e

lig
ib

le
 $

23
.8

5%
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
 9

C
ou

nt
y 

Sa
fe

ty
Ti

er
 C

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
(3

%
 @

 5
0)

N
on

‐R
ef
un

da
bi
lit
y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
96

13
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
 1

0
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

(3
%

 @
 5

0)
Co

st
 G
ro
up

 #
12

SA
FE
TY

 T
IE
R 
 N
O
N
‐E
N
H
AN

CE
D

Ro
de

o‐
H
er
cu
le
s

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

 1
1

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
Ti

er
 A

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
(3

%
 @

 5
0)

Sa
fe
ty
 A
 B
AS

IC
 N
O
N
‐E
nh

an
ce
d

Fi
re
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t

Al
l e

lig
ib

le
 $

17
.2

9%
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
 1

2
R

od
eo

 H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
Ti

er
 A

 N
on

-e
nh

an
ce

d 
(2

%
 @

 5
0)

M
on

th
ly

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

To
w

ar
ds

 U
AA

L
$6

1,
55

4
Ba

si
c 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

an
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.6
3%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll.
Sa
fe
ty
 A
 C
O
L 
N
O
N
‐E
nh

an
ce
d

Al
l e

lig
ib

le
 $

5.
00

%
M

on
th

ly
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
To

w
ar

ds
 U

AA
L

$4
4,

51
1

N
on

‐R
ef
un

da
bi
lit
y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

33

Co
st
 G
ro
up

 #
8

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0‐
21

Ex
hi
bi
t B

‐1
Pa

ge
 5

10
/1
6/
20

19



Ex
hi

bi
t B

 - 
2

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t B

-2
Pa

ge
 6

10
/1
6/

20
19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H

 JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 E

 P
EP

RA
 M

em
be

rs

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

7
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
10

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

11
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
12

SA
FE

TY
 P

EP
RA

 T
IE

RS
 

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

Ea
st

 C
on

tr
a 

Co
st

a
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

Sa
n 

Ra
m

on
 V

al
le

y
Ro

de
o-

H
er

cu
le

s
Sa

fe
ty

 D
 B

AS
IC

 (3
%

 M
ax

im
um

 C
O

LA
)

Co
un

ty
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 $
3
6
.3

2
%

2
4
.9

6
%

5
0
.8

7
%

2
6
.7

5
%

4
1
.1

9
%

1
1
.6

5
%

M
o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 T

o
w

a
rd

s
 U

A
A

L
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
$
1
7
,7

4
5

Sa
fe

ty
 D

 C
O

L 
(3

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

)
A

ll 
e
lig

ib
le

 $
2
5
.2

0
%

3
1
.8

8
%

5
1
.6

5
%

3
6
.6

4
%

2
4
.6

3
%

4
.8

2
%

M
o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 T

o
w

a
rd

s
 U

A
A

L
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
$
1
2
,8

3
2

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
97

16
0.

97
32

0.
97

32
0.

97
33

0.
97

35
0.

97
69

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

8
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
9

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

N
a
m

e
T

ie
r

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 7
C

o
u
n
ty

 S
a
fe

ty
T

ie
r 

D
 (

2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

Sa
fe

ty
 E

 B
AS

IC
 (2

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

)
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Co
un

ty
 

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 $
2
4
.0

0
%

3
5
.1

8
%

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 8
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
D

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

E
a
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Sa
fe

ty
 E

 C
O

L 
(2

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

)
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
E

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 $
2
9
.8

5
%

2
3
.0

4
%

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 9
C

o
u
n
ty

 S
a
fe

ty
T

ie
r 

E
 (

2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
97

19
0.

97
03

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 1
0

M
o
ra

g
a
-O

ri
n
d
a
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
D

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 1
1

S
a
n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
D

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 1
2

R
o
d
e
o
 H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
D

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

B
a
s
ic

 r
a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
 l
o
a
d
 o

f 
0
.6

3
%

 o
f 

p
a
y
ro

ll.

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

8



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit C   Page 7

Exhibit C

GENERAL Cost Group #1 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age

Basic not in Social 

Security

Basic in Social 

Security* COLA

Total not in Social 

Security

Total in Social 

Security*

15 5.30% 5.31% 2.51% 7.81% 7.82%

16 5.39% 5.40% 2.56% 7.95% 7.96%

17 5.49% 5.50% 2.61% 8.10% 8.11%

18 5.59% 5.60% 2.67% 8.26% 8.27%

19 5.69% 5.70% 2.72% 8.41% 8.42%

20 5.79% 5.80% 2.77% 8.56% 8.57%

21 5.89% 5.90% 2.82% 8.71% 8.72%

22 5.99% 6.00% 2.87% 8.86% 8.87%

23 6.10% 6.11% 2.93% 9.03% 9.04%

24 6.21% 6.22% 2.99% 9.20% 9.21%

25 6.32% 6.33% 3.05% 9.37% 9.38%

26 6.43% 6.44% 3.10% 9.53% 9.54%

27 6.55% 6.56% 3.17% 9.72% 9.73%

28 6.66% 6.67% 3.22% 9.88% 9.89%

29 6.78% 6.79% 3.29% 10.07% 10.08%

30 6.90% 6.91% 3.35% 10.25% 10.26%

31 7.03% 7.04% 3.42% 10.45% 10.46%

32 7.15% 7.16% 3.48% 10.63% 10.64%

33 7.28% 7.29% 3.55% 10.83% 10.84%

34 7.42% 7.43% 3.62% 11.04% 11.05%

35 7.55% 7.56% 3.69% 11.24% 11.25%

36 7.69% 7.70% 3.76% 11.45% 11.46%

37 7.83% 7.84% 3.83% 11.66% 11.67%

38 7.97% 7.98% 3.91% 11.88% 11.89%

39 8.12% 8.13% 3.98% 12.10% 12.11%

40 8.27% 8.28% 4.06% 12.33% 12.34%

41 8.43% 8.44% 4.14% 12.57% 12.58%

42 8.58% 8.59% 4.22% 12.80% 12.81%

43 8.73% 8.74% 4.30% 13.03% 13.04%

44 8.88% 8.89% 4.38% 13.26% 13.27%

45 9.04% 9.05% 4.46% 13.50% 13.51%

46 9.20% 9.21% 4.55% 13.75% 13.76%

47 9.36% 9.37% 4.63% 13.99% 14.00%

48 9.51% 9.52% 4.71% 14.22% 14.23%

49 9.66% 9.67% 4.79% 14.45% 14.46%

50 9.82% 9.83% 4.87% 14.69% 14.70%

51 9.98% 9.99% 4.95% 14.93% 14.94%

52 10.14% 10.15% 5.04% 15.18% 15.19%

53 10.30% 10.31% 5.12% 15.42% 15.43%

54 10.46% 10.47% 5.20% 15.66% 15.67%

55 10.61% 10.62% 5.28% 15.89% 15.90%

56 10.68% 10.69% 5.32% 16.00% 16.01%

57 10.65% 10.66% 5.30% 15.95% 15.96%

58 10.62% 10.63% 5.29% 15.91% 15.92%

59 10.31% 10.32% 5.12% 15.43% 15.44%

60 and over 10.31% 10.32% 5.12% 15.43% 15.44%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 52.07% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.

The rate should be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit D   Page 8

Exhibit D

GENERAL Cost Group #2 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age

Basic not in Social 

Security

Basic in Social 

Security* COLA

Total not in Social 

Security

Total in Social 

Security*

15 5.29% 5.30% 2.34% 7.63% 7.64%

16 5.38% 5.39% 2.38% 7.76% 7.77%

17 5.48% 5.49% 2.43% 7.91% 7.92%

18 5.57% 5.58% 2.47% 8.04% 8.05%

19 5.67% 5.68% 2.52% 8.19% 8.20%

20 5.77% 5.78% 2.57% 8.34% 8.35%

21 5.88% 5.89% 2.62% 8.50% 8.51%

22 5.98% 5.99% 2.67% 8.65% 8.66%

23 6.09% 6.10% 2.72% 8.81% 8.82%

24 6.20% 6.21% 2.78% 8.98% 8.99%

25 6.31% 6.32% 2.83% 9.14% 9.15%

26 6.42% 6.43% 2.88% 9.30% 9.31%

27 6.53% 6.54% 2.94% 9.47% 9.48%

28 6.65% 6.66% 3.00% 9.65% 9.66%

29 6.77% 6.78% 3.05% 9.82% 9.83%

30 6.89% 6.90% 3.11% 10.00% 10.01%

31 7.01% 7.02% 3.17% 10.18% 10.19%

32 7.14% 7.15% 3.23% 10.37% 10.38%

33 7.27% 7.28% 3.30% 10.57% 10.58%

34 7.40% 7.41% 3.36% 10.76% 10.77%

35 7.53% 7.54% 3.42% 10.95% 10.96%

36 7.67% 7.68% 3.49% 11.16% 11.17%

37 7.81% 7.82% 3.56% 11.37% 11.38%

38 7.96% 7.97% 3.63% 11.59% 11.60%

39 8.11% 8.12% 3.70% 11.81% 11.82%

40 8.25% 8.26% 3.77% 12.02% 12.03%

41 8.40% 8.41% 3.84% 12.24% 12.25%

42 8.56% 8.57% 3.92% 12.48% 12.49%

43 8.71% 8.72% 3.99% 12.70% 12.71%

44 8.86% 8.87% 4.07% 12.93% 12.94%

45 9.02% 9.03% 4.15% 13.17% 13.18%

46 9.18% 9.19% 4.22% 13.40% 13.41%

47 9.34% 9.35% 4.30% 13.64% 13.65%

48 9.48% 9.49% 4.37% 13.85% 13.86%

49 9.65% 9.66% 4.45% 14.10% 14.11%

50 9.80% 9.81% 4.52% 14.32% 14.33%

51 9.96% 9.97% 4.60% 14.56% 14.57%

52 10.12% 10.13% 4.68% 14.80% 14.81%

53 10.31% 10.32% 4.77% 15.08% 15.09%

54 10.43% 10.44% 4.83% 15.26% 15.27%

55 10.57% 10.58% 4.90% 15.47% 15.48%

56 10.68% 10.69% 4.95% 15.63% 15.64%

57 10.66% 10.67% 4.94% 15.60% 15.61%

58 10.64% 10.65% 4.93% 15.57% 15.58%

59 10.03% 10.04% 4.63% 14.66% 14.67%

60 and over 10.03% 10.04% 4.63% 14.66% 14.67%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 48.48% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.

The rate should be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit E   Page 9

Exhibit E

GENERAL Cost Group #3 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 5.48% 2.64% 8.12%

16 5.57% 2.69% 8.26%

17 5.67% 2.74% 8.41%

18 5.77% 2.79% 8.56%

19 5.88% 2.85% 8.73%

20 5.98% 2.90% 8.88%

21 6.09% 2.96% 9.05%

22 6.20% 3.02% 9.22%

23 6.31% 3.08% 9.39%

24 6.42% 3.14% 9.56%

25 6.53% 3.19% 9.72%

26 6.65% 3.26% 9.91%

27 6.77% 3.32% 10.09%

28 6.89% 3.38% 10.27%

29 7.01% 3.45% 10.46%

30 7.14% 3.52% 10.66%

31 7.27% 3.58% 10.85%

32 7.40% 3.65% 11.05%

33 7.53% 3.72% 11.25%

34 7.66% 3.79% 11.45%

35 7.80% 3.86% 11.66%

36 7.95% 3.94% 11.89%

37 8.09% 4.02% 12.11%

38 8.24% 4.09% 12.33%

39 8.40% 4.18% 12.58%

40 8.55% 4.26% 12.81%

41 8.71% 4.34% 13.05%

42 8.86% 4.42% 13.28%

43 9.02% 4.51% 13.53%

44 9.18% 4.59% 13.77%

45 9.35% 4.68% 14.03%

46 9.50% 4.76% 14.26%

47 9.66% 4.84% 14.50%

48 9.82% 4.93% 14.75%

49 9.98% 5.01% 14.99%

50 10.14% 5.10% 15.24%

51 10.30% 5.18% 15.48%

52 10.47% 5.27% 15.74%

53 10.63% 5.35% 15.98%

54 10.77% 5.43% 16.20%

55 10.87% 5.48% 16.35%

56 10.98% 5.54% 16.52%

57 10.94% 5.52% 16.46%

58 10.70% 5.39% 16.09%

59 10.26% 5.16% 15.42%

60 and over 10.26% 5.16% 15.42%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 52.70% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit F   Page 10

Exhibit F

GENERAL Cost Group #4 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age

Basic not in Social 

Security

Basic in Social 

Security* COLA

Total not in Social 

Security

Total in Social 

Security*

15 5.27% 5.28% 2.51% 7.78% 7.79%

16 5.37% 5.38% 2.56% 7.93% 7.94%

17 5.46% 5.47% 2.61% 8.07% 8.08%

18 5.56% 5.57% 2.66% 8.22% 8.23%

19 5.66% 5.67% 2.71% 8.37% 8.38%

20 5.76% 5.77% 2.77% 8.53% 8.54%

21 5.86% 5.87% 2.82% 8.68% 8.69%

22 5.97% 5.98% 2.87% 8.84% 8.85%

23 6.07% 6.08% 2.93% 9.00% 9.01%

24 6.18% 6.19% 2.98% 9.16% 9.17%

25 6.29% 6.30% 3.04% 9.33% 9.34%

26 6.40% 6.41% 3.10% 9.50% 9.51%

27 6.52% 6.53% 3.16% 9.68% 9.69%

28 6.63% 6.64% 3.22% 9.85% 9.86%

29 6.75% 6.76% 3.28% 10.03% 10.04%

30 6.87% 6.88% 3.35% 10.22% 10.23%

31 7.00% 7.01% 3.41% 10.41% 10.42%

32 7.12% 7.13% 3.48% 10.60% 10.61%

33 7.25% 7.26% 3.54% 10.79% 10.80%

34 7.38% 7.39% 3.61% 10.99% 11.00%

35 7.52% 7.53% 3.69% 11.21% 11.22%

36 7.65% 7.66% 3.75% 11.40% 11.41%

37 7.79% 7.80% 3.83% 11.62% 11.63%

38 7.94% 7.95% 3.90% 11.84% 11.85%

39 8.09% 8.10% 3.98% 12.07% 12.08%

40 8.24% 8.25% 4.06% 12.30% 12.31%

41 8.39% 8.40% 4.14% 12.53% 12.54%

42 8.54% 8.55% 4.22% 12.76% 12.77%

43 8.69% 8.70% 4.30% 12.99% 13.00%

44 8.84% 8.85% 4.37% 13.21% 13.22%

45 9.01% 9.02% 4.46% 13.47% 13.48%

46 9.16% 9.17% 4.54% 13.70% 13.71%

47 9.31% 9.32% 4.62% 13.93% 13.94%

48 9.46% 9.47% 4.70% 14.16% 14.17%

49 9.63% 9.64% 4.79% 14.42% 14.43%

50 9.77% 9.78% 4.86% 14.63% 14.64%

51 9.94% 9.95% 4.95% 14.89% 14.90%

52 10.10% 10.11% 5.03% 15.13% 15.14%

53 10.28% 10.29% 5.13% 15.41% 15.42%

54 10.43% 10.44% 5.21% 15.64% 15.65%

55 10.57% 10.58% 5.28% 15.85% 15.86%

56 10.63% 10.64% 5.31% 15.94% 15.95%

57 10.67% 10.68% 5.33% 16.00% 16.01%

58 10.51% 10.52% 5.25% 15.76% 15.77%

59 10.05% 10.06% 5.01% 15.06% 15.07%

60 and over 10.05% 10.06% 5.01% 15.06% 15.07%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 52.27% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.

              The rate should be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit G   Page 11

Exhibit G

GENERAL Cost Group #5 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 5.31% 2.55% 7.86%

16 5.40% 2.60% 8.00%

17 5.50% 2.65% 8.15%

18 5.60% 2.70% 8.30%

19 5.70% 2.76% 8.46%

20 5.80% 2.81% 8.61%

21 5.90% 2.86% 8.76%

22 6.01% 2.92% 8.93%

23 6.11% 2.97% 9.08%

24 6.22% 3.03% 9.25%

25 6.33% 3.09% 9.42%

26 6.45% 3.15% 9.60%

27 6.56% 3.21% 9.77%

28 6.68% 3.27% 9.95%

29 6.80% 3.34% 10.14%

30 6.92% 3.40% 10.32%

31 7.04% 3.46% 10.50%

32 7.17% 3.53% 10.70%

33 7.30% 3.60% 10.90%

34 7.43% 3.67% 11.10%

35 7.57% 3.74% 11.31%

36 7.70% 3.81% 11.51%

37 7.85% 3.89% 11.74%

38 7.99% 3.96% 11.95%

39 8.14% 4.04% 12.18%

40 8.29% 4.12% 12.41%

41 8.45% 4.20% 12.65%

42 8.60% 4.28% 12.88%

43 8.75% 4.36% 13.11%

44 8.90% 4.44% 13.34%

45 9.06% 4.53% 13.59%

46 9.22% 4.61% 13.83%

47 9.38% 4.69% 14.07%

48 9.53% 4.77% 14.30%

49 9.69% 4.86% 14.55%

50 9.85% 4.94% 14.79%

51 10.01% 5.03% 15.04%

52 10.16% 5.11% 15.27%

53 10.33% 5.20% 15.53%

54 10.49% 5.28% 15.77%

55 10.60% 5.34% 15.94%

56 10.67% 5.37% 16.04%

57 10.73% 5.41% 16.14%

58 10.61% 5.34% 15.95%

59 10.29% 5.17% 15.46%

60 and over 10.29% 5.17% 15.46%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 52.69% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit H   Page12

Exhibit H

GENERAL Cost Group #6 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age

Basic not in Social 

Security

Basic in Social 

Security* COLA

Total not in Social 

Security

Total in Social 

Security*

15 6.03% 6.04% 2.43% 8.46% 8.47%

16 6.14% 6.15% 2.48% 8.62% 8.63%

17 6.24% 6.25% 2.53% 8.77% 8.78%

18 6.36% 6.37% 2.58% 8.94% 8.95%

19 6.47% 6.48% 2.63% 9.10% 9.11%

20 6.59% 6.60% 2.68% 9.27% 9.28%

21 6.70% 6.71% 2.73% 9.43% 9.44%

22 6.82% 6.83% 2.78% 9.60% 9.61%

23 6.94% 6.95% 2.83% 9.77% 9.78%

24 7.07% 7.08% 2.89% 9.96% 9.97%

25 7.20% 7.21% 2.95% 10.15% 10.16%

26 7.33% 7.34% 3.00% 10.33% 10.34%

27 7.46% 7.47% 3.06% 10.52% 10.53%

28 7.59% 7.60% 3.12% 10.71% 10.72%

29 7.73% 7.74% 3.18% 10.91% 10.92%

30 7.87% 7.88% 3.24% 11.11% 11.12%

31 8.01% 8.02% 3.30% 11.31% 11.32%

32 8.17% 8.18% 3.37% 11.54% 11.55%

33 8.31% 8.32% 3.43% 11.74% 11.75%

34 8.47% 8.48% 3.50% 11.97% 11.98%

35 8.63% 8.64% 3.57% 12.20% 12.21%

36 8.79% 8.80% 3.64% 12.43% 12.44%

37 8.95% 8.96% 3.71% 12.66% 12.67%

38 9.11% 9.12% 3.78% 12.89% 12.90%

39 9.27% 9.28% 3.85% 13.12% 13.13%

40 9.44% 9.45% 3.93% 13.37% 13.38%

41 9.60% 9.61% 4.00% 13.60% 13.61%

42 9.76% 9.77% 4.07% 13.83% 13.84%

43 9.93% 9.94% 4.14% 14.07% 14.08%

44 10.09% 10.10% 4.21% 14.30% 14.31%

45 10.25% 10.26% 4.28% 14.53% 14.54%

46 10.43% 10.44% 4.36% 14.79% 14.80%

47 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

48 10.78% 10.79% 4.51% 15.29% 15.30%

49 10.93% 10.94% 4.58% 15.51% 15.52%

50 11.07% 11.08% 4.64% 15.71% 15.72%

51 11.18% 11.19% 4.69% 15.87% 15.88%

52 11.13% 11.14% 4.67% 15.80% 15.81%

53 11.05% 11.06% 4.63% 15.68% 15.69%

54 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

55 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

56 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

57 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

58 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

59 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

60 and over 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 43.77% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.

              The rate should be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit I   Page 13

Exhibit I

SAFETY Cost Group #7 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

16 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

17 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

18 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

19 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

20 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

21 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

22 9.60% 6.37% 15.97%

23 9.74% 6.47% 16.21%

24 9.89% 6.57% 16.46%

25 10.04% 6.68% 16.72%

26 10.19% 6.78% 16.97%

27 10.35% 6.89% 17.24%

28 10.50% 7.00% 17.50%

29 10.66% 7.11% 17.77%

30 10.83% 7.23% 18.06%

31 11.00% 7.34% 18.34%

32 11.17% 7.46% 18.63%

33 11.35% 7.59% 18.94%

34 11.53% 7.71% 19.24%

35 11.72% 7.85% 19.57%

36 11.91% 7.98% 19.89%

37 12.10% 8.11% 20.21%

38 12.29% 8.24% 20.53%

39 12.50% 8.39% 20.89%

40 12.72% 8.54% 21.26%

41 12.93% 8.69% 21.62%

42 13.16% 8.85% 22.01%

43 13.39% 9.01% 22.40%

44 13.65% 9.19% 22.84%

45 13.87% 9.35% 23.22%

46 13.89% 9.36% 23.25%

47 13.92% 9.38% 23.30%

48 13.73% 9.25% 22.98%

49 and over 13.21% 8.89% 22.10%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 69.75% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit J   Page 14

Exhibit J

SAFETY Cost Group #8 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

16 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

17 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

18 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

19 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

20 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

21 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

22 9.58% 6.51% 16.09%

23 9.72% 6.61% 16.33%

24 9.87% 6.72% 16.59%

25 10.02% 6.83% 16.85%

26 10.17% 6.94% 17.11%

27 10.32% 7.04% 17.36%

28 10.48% 7.16% 17.64%

29 10.64% 7.27% 17.91%

30 10.80% 7.39% 18.19%

31 10.97% 7.51% 18.48%

32 11.15% 7.64% 18.79%

33 11.32% 7.76% 19.08%

34 11.51% 7.89% 19.40%

35 11.70% 8.03% 19.73%

36 11.88% 8.16% 20.04%

37 12.08% 8.30% 20.38%

38 12.27% 8.44% 20.71%

39 12.47% 8.58% 21.05%

40 12.69% 8.74% 21.43%

41 12.91% 8.90% 21.81%

42 13.14% 9.06% 22.20%

43 13.37% 9.22% 22.59%

44 13.62% 9.40% 23.02%

45 13.83% 9.55% 23.38%

46 13.90% 9.60% 23.50%

47 13.84% 9.56% 23.40%

48 13.75% 9.50% 23.25%

49 and over 13.24% 9.13% 22.37%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 71.51% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit K   Page 15

Exhibit K

SAFETY Cost Group #9 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

16 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

17 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

18 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

19 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

20 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

21 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

22 9.17% 3.92% 13.09%

23 9.31% 3.99% 13.30%

24 9.45% 4.05% 13.50%

25 9.59% 4.11% 13.70%

26 9.73% 4.18% 13.91%

27 9.88% 4.24% 14.12%

28 10.03% 4.31% 14.34%

29 10.18% 4.38% 14.56%

30 10.34% 4.45% 14.79%

31 10.50% 4.52% 15.02%

32 10.67% 4.60% 15.27%

33 10.84% 4.68% 15.52%

34 11.01% 4.75% 15.76%

35 11.18% 4.83% 16.01%

36 11.36% 4.91% 16.27%

37 11.54% 4.99% 16.53%

38 11.71% 5.07% 16.78%

39 11.91% 5.16% 17.07%

40 12.10% 5.24% 17.34%

41 12.29% 5.33% 17.62%

42 12.49% 5.42% 17.91%

43 12.66% 5.50% 18.16%

44 12.76% 5.54% 18.30%

45 12.77% 5.55% 18.32%

46 12.65% 5.49% 18.14%

47 12.39% 5.37% 17.76%

48 12.72% 5.52% 18.24%

49 and over 13.30% 5.79% 19.09%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 45.09% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit L   Page 16

Exhibit L

SAFETY Cost Group #10 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

16 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

17 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

18 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

19 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

20 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

21 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

22 9.58% 6.24% 15.82%

23 9.72% 6.34% 16.06%

24 9.87% 6.44% 16.31%

25 10.02% 6.54% 16.56%

26 10.17% 6.65% 16.82%

27 10.32% 6.75% 17.07%

28 10.48% 6.86% 17.34%

29 10.64% 6.97% 17.61%

30 10.80% 7.08% 17.88%

31 10.97% 7.19% 18.16%

32 11.15% 7.32% 18.47%

33 11.32% 7.43% 18.75%

34 11.51% 7.56% 19.07%

35 11.70% 7.69% 19.39%

36 11.88% 7.82% 19.70%

37 12.08% 7.96% 20.04%

38 12.27% 8.09% 20.36%

39 12.47% 8.22% 20.69%

40 12.69% 8.37% 21.06%

41 12.91% 8.52% 21.43%

42 13.14% 8.68% 21.82%

43 13.37% 8.84% 22.21%

44 13.62% 9.01% 22.63%

45 13.83% 9.15% 22.98%

46 13.90% 9.20% 23.10%

47 13.84% 9.16% 23.00%

48 13.75% 9.10% 22.85%

49 and over 13.24% 8.75% 21.99%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 68.52% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit M   Page 17

Exhibit M

SAFETY Cost Group #11 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

16 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

17 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

18 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

19 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

20 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

21 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

22 9.76% 6.66% 16.42%

23 9.90% 6.76% 16.66%

24 10.05% 6.86% 16.91%

25 10.20% 6.97% 17.17%

26 10.36% 7.09% 17.45%

27 10.51% 7.19% 17.70%

28 10.67% 7.31% 17.98%

29 10.83% 7.42% 18.25%

30 11.00% 7.54% 18.54%

31 11.17% 7.67% 18.84%

32 11.35% 7.80% 19.15%

33 11.53% 7.92% 19.45%

34 11.72% 8.06% 19.78%

35 11.90% 8.19% 20.09%

36 12.09% 8.33% 20.42%

37 12.29% 8.47% 20.76%

38 12.49% 8.61% 21.10%

39 12.69% 8.76% 21.45%

40 12.90% 8.91% 21.81%

41 13.12% 9.06% 22.18%

42 13.35% 9.23% 22.58%

43 13.59% 9.40% 22.99%

44 13.82% 9.57% 23.39%

45 14.05% 9.73% 23.78%

46 14.08% 9.75% 23.83%

47 14.02% 9.71% 23.73%

48 13.76% 9.52% 23.28%

49 and over 12.99% 8.97% 21.96%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 71.65% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Exhibit N
SAFETY Cost Group #12 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21
Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total
15 9.57% 6.70% 16.27%
16 9.57% 6.70% 16.27%
17 9.57% 6.70% 16.27%
18 9.57% 6.70% 16.27%
19 9.57% 6.70% 16.27%
20 9.57% 6.70% 16.27%
21 9.57% 6.70% 16.27%
22 9.71% 6.80% 16.51%
23 9.86% 6.91% 16.77%
24 10.00% 7.02% 17.02%
25 10.16% 7.13% 17.29%
26 10.31% 7.24% 17.55%
27 10.46% 7.35% 17.81%
28 10.62% 7.47% 18.09%
29 10.78% 7.59% 18.37%
30 10.95% 7.71% 18.66%
31 11.12% 7.84% 18.96%
32 11.30% 7.97% 19.27%
33 11.47% 8.10% 19.57%
34 11.66% 8.24% 19.90%
35 11.86% 8.38% 20.24%
36 12.04% 8.52% 20.56%
37 12.23% 8.66% 20.89%
38 12.43% 8.80% 21.23%
39 12.64% 8.96% 21.60%
40 12.86% 9.12% 21.98%
41 13.07% 9.27% 22.34%
42 13.31% 9.45% 22.76%
43 13.54% 9.62% 23.16%
44 13.76% 9.78% 23.54%
45 13.97% 9.94% 23.91%
46 14.03% 9.98% 24.01%
47 13.95% 9.92% 23.87%
48 13.79% 9.80% 23.59%

49 and over 13.05% 9.26% 22.31%
Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 73.61% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013

Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit N   Page 18



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit O   Page 19

Exhibit O

PEPRA Tiers Member Contribution Rates

Membership Date on or after January 1, 2013

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

General Tiers Basic COLA Total

Cost Group #1 – PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) 8.68% 1.99% 10.67%

Cost Group #1 – PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 8.80% 2.96% 11.76%

Cost Group #2 - PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) 8.16% 1.84% 10.00%

Cost Group #2 - PEPRA Tier 5 (3%/4% COLA) 8.39% 2.76% 11.15%

Cost Group #3 - PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 8.23% 2.83% 11.06%

Cost Group #4 - PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 8.96% 3.02% 11.98%

Cost Group #5 - PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) 10.07% 2.27% 12.34%

Cost Group #5 - PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 11.38% 3.79% 15.17%

Cost Group #6 - PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 9.39% 3.21% 12.60%

Safety Tiers Basic COLA Total

Cost Group #7 - PEPRA Tier D 14.31% 5.73% 20.04%

Cost Group #8 - PEPRA Tier D 13.05% 5.35% 18.40%

Cost Group #8 - PEPRA Tier E 12.09% 3.32% 15.41%

Cost Group #9 - PEPRA Tier E 13.17% 3.57% 16.74%

Cost Group #10 - PEPRA Tier D 12.70% 5.23% 17.93%

Cost Group #11 - PEPRA Tier D 11.44% 4.71% 16.15%

Cost Group #12 - PEPRA Tier D 11.65% 4.82% 16.47%

The Basic rates shown above also include an administrative expense load of 0.47% of payroll.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation (whether or not in Social Security) up to the

             applicable annual Gov. Code 7522.10(d) compensation limit.



Page 20 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

SUBVENTION 

All rates are shown as a percent of payroll. 

Employee contribution rates vary depending upon their tier and age at entry. To compute the exact 
subvention percent for each employee, do the following: 

Employee rate – Decrease the employee’s rate by the subvention percent (i.e. 25%, 50%, etc.). 

Employer rate – Increase the employer’s rate by a percent of the employee’s decrease using the 
applicable refundability factor (found on Exhibits A and B): 

EXAMPLE FOR COST GROUP #3 LEGACY MEMBERS: 

 If the subvention percent is 25%, and  
the employee’s rate is 6.00%,  

 Employee rates should be decreased by 1.50% (25% × 6.00%) 
The employer rate should be increased by 1.4340% (1.50% × 0.9560) 

Please note that for PEPRA members, subvention is generally not permitted. The standard under 
Gov. Code §7522.30(a) is that employees pay at least 50 percent of normal costs and that employers not 
pay any of the required employee contribution, but there are some exceptions. Gov. Code §7522.30(f) 
allows the terms (regarding the employee’s required contribution) of a contract, including a memorandum 
of understanding, that is in effect on January 1, 2013, to continue through the length of a contract. This 
means that it is possible that an employer will subvent a portion of a PEPRA member’s required 
contribution until the expiration date of the current contract, so long as it has been determined that the 
contract has been impaired. 

CAUTION – these rates are for employer subvention of up to one-half the member contribution under 
Gov. Code §31581.1, NOT employer pick-up of employee contribution rates. When an employer 
subvents, the contribution subvented is not placed in the member’s account and is therefore not available 
to the member as a refund. For this reason, the employer pays the contribution at a discount (i.e. 
“Refundability Factor”). 

Employer pick-ups of employee contributions are those made under Gov. Code §31581.2 and Internal 
Revenue Code §414 (h)(2) for the sole purpose of deferring income tax. These contributions are added to 
the member’s account, are available to the member as a refund and are considered by CCCERA as part of 
the member’s compensation for retirement purposes. 

EMPLOYEE PAYMENT OF EMPLOYER COST 

There are several reasons why the attached contribution rates may need to be adjusted to increase the 
employee portion including the following: 

Gov. Code §31631 allows for members to pay all or part of the employer contributions. 

Gov. Code §31639.95 allows for Safety members to pay a portion of the employer cost for the “3% at 50” 
enhanced benefit. 

Gov. Code §7522.30(c) requires that an employee’s contribution rate be at least equal to that of similarly 
situated employees.



Page 21 

Gov. Code §7522.30(e) allows the employee contributions to be more than one-half of the normal cost 
rate if the increase has been agreed to through the collective bargaining process. 

If you need to increase the employee contribution rate for any reason, you will need to adjust both 
employee and employer rates as follows: 

Employee rate – Increase the employee’s rate by the desired percent of payroll. 

Employer rate – Decrease the employer’s rate by a percent of the cost-sharing percent of payroll 
using the applicable refundability factor: 

EXAMPLE FOR COST GROUP #11 LEGACY MEMBERS: 

If the required increase in the employee rate is 8.0%, 

Employee rates should be increased by 8.0%. 
The employer rate should be decreased by 7.6944% (8.0% × 0.9618) 

PREPAYMENT DISCOUNT FACTOR FOR 2020-21 

Employer Contribution Prepayment Program & Discount Factor for 2020-21 is 0.9696 

If you are currently participating in the prepayment program and wish to continue, you do not need to do 
anything other than prepay the July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 contributions on or before 
July 31, 2020. If you wish to start participating, please contact the Accounting Department at CCCERA 
by March 31, 2020. 

The discount factor is calculated assuming the prepayment will be received on July 31 in accordance with 
Gov. Code §31582(b) in lieu of 12 equal payments due at the end of each month in accordance with Gov. 
Code §31582(a). The discount factor for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 will be 0.9696 
based on the interest assumption of 7.00% per annum. It is calculated by discounting each of the 12 equal 
payments back to the date that the prepayment is made and is the sum of the discount factors shown in the 
table below divided by 12. Each of the discount factors below is based on how many months early the 
payment is made. 

Payment Number Number of Months  
Payment is Made Early Discount Factor

1 0 1.0000 
2 1 0.9944 
3 2 0.9888 
4 3 0.9832 
5 4 0.9777 
6 5 0.9722 
7 6 0.9667 
8 7 0.9613 
9 8 0.9559 

10 9 0.9505 
11 10 0.9452 
12 11 0.9399 

Sum of Discount Factors Divided by 12: 0.9696 



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: October 23, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel 

Subject:     Consider and Take Possible Action to Amend the Retirement Board’s Regulations  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
The Board of Retirement’s Regulations cover a number of topics including the election of 
officers, their terms, meetings, matters relating to the administrative procedure of the board, 
and pension administration matters.   Due to CCCERA’s office relocation, the regulations section 
pertaining to board meeting location must be updated.  The new boardroom address is: 1200 
Concord Avenue, Suite 350, Concord, California.  The new CCCERA office location is the same, 
but in Suite 300.  Other updates are also in order, for the Board’s consideration. 

Proposed Amendments 
Amendments to the Board Regulations require at least six affirmative votes of the Board of 
Retirement, as well as approval by the Board of Supervisors in order to become effective.  
(Regs. Section IX; Gov’t Code Section 31525.)  The proposed changes to the Board Regulations 
are set forth below and are also included in the enclosure.   

1. Board of Retirement Regulations, Section II.1, Regular Meetings

Current Provision: 
Regular meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Wednesday of 
each month at 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room of the Contra Costa County 
Retirement Association, 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221, Concord, California 
94520, unless changed by the Board. The meeting regularly scheduled for 
fourth Wednesday in November shall instead be scheduled for the fourth 
Tuesday.  

Proposed Amendment:   
Regular meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Wednesday of 
each month at 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room of the Contra Costa County 
Retirement Association, 1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350, Concord, 
California 94520, unless changed by the Board. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/23/19Agenda Item#5



CCCERA Board of Retirement 
10/23/2019 

Page 2 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520   Phone: (925) 521-3960    Fax: (925) 521-3969   cccera.org 

Delete: “The meeting regularly scheduled for fourth Wednesday in 
November shall instead be scheduled for the fourth Tuesday.”  
Reason: update the address and allow the Board the flexibility to set the 
second Board meeting in November depending upon the SACRS 
conference and holiday dates that month.   

2. Board of Retirement Regulations, Section II.2, Quarterly Investment
Review

Current Provision: 
The Board shall review investment manager performance at the meetings 
scheduled on the fourth Wednesday of February, May, and August, and 
on the fourth Tuesday of November at 9:00 a.m., unless changed by the 
Board. 

Proposed Amendment:   
The Board shall review investment manager performance on a quarterly 
basis, unless changed by the Board. 
Reason: allow flexibility in setting the quarterly investment review 
meeting.    

3. Board of Retirement Regulations, Section I.3

Current Provision: 
The Chairperson shall appoint two board members to assist in 
establishing the agenda as it relates to administrative or investment 
matters. 

Proposed Amendment:   
The Chairperson shall establish the agenda as it relates to administrative 
or investment matters with the assistance of the Chief Executive Officer. 
Reason: update to reflect current process of establishing Board meeting 
agendas.   

4. Board of Retirement Regulations, Chief Executive Officer

Proposed Amendment:   
Change “Retirement Chief Executive Officer” to “Chief Executive Officer.” 
Reason: update to reflect current title. 



CCCERA Board of Retirement 
10/23/2019 

Page 3 
 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520   Phone: (925) 521-3960    Fax: (925) 521-3969   cccera.org 

 

  
Recommendation  
Consider and take possible action to amend the Board Regulations as set forth above and 
request the approval of the County Board of Supervisors for the amendments. 



 

 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
REGULATIONS 

 
 
 

 

Adopted 9/14/99 
Amended 9/18/01 

Amended 12/11/02 
Amended 2/19/03 
Amended 7/09/03 
Amended 8/11/04 

Amended 2/8/06 
Amended 7/11/07 

Amended 9/8/10 
Amended 1/14/15 

 Amended __/__/19 
 



Board Regulations 

  

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT 

ASSOCIATION 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

REGULATIONS 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

Section                                     Page  

 

 I. ADMINISTRATION 1 

 

 II. MEETINGS 3 

 

 III. MEMBERSHIP 6 

 

 IV. CONTRIBUTIONS AND REPORTING 8 

 

 V. SERVICE 9 

 

 VI. COMPENSATION 13 

 

 VII. NORMAL RETIREMENT AGE AND BONAFIDE  

               SEPARARATIONS 14 

 

 VIII. WITHDRAWALS 15 

 

 IX. NEW PARTICIPATING EMPLOYERS 17 

 

 X. PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER WITHDRAWAL 18 

 

 XI. DISPENSING WITH RECALCULATION 

  FOR MINOR DISCREPANCY 19 

 

 XII. APPLICATIONS FOR DISABILITY RETIREMENT 20 

 

 XIII. CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT OF PARTIALLY 

  DISABLED EMPLOYEES 22 

 

 XIV. AMENDMENT OF REGULATIONS 25 

 

 



Board Regulations 

1 
 

 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT 

ASSOCIATION 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

REGULATIONS 
 

 

 

I.   ADMINISTRATION 

 

1. Name 

 

The name of this Association is “The Contra Costa County Employees’ 

Retirement Association” (“CCCERA” or the “Association”). 

 

2. Board 

 

Whenever used in these Regulations, unless otherwise stated, “Board” and “Board 

of Retirement” mean CCCERA’s Board of Retirement as defined in California 

Government (“Gov.”) Code beginning at Section 31459. 

 

2.1 Alternate Board Members 

 

A. The alternate safety, alternate appointed and alternate retiree members shall be 

provided with the same conference, education and manager on-site visit 

opportunities as all other Board members. 

 

B. The alternate safety, alternate appointed and alternate retiree members may 

participate in the deliberations of the Board or its committees including those 

deliberations held in closed session. 

 

C. Neither the alternate safety member, the alternate appointed member nor the 

alternate retiree member shall be entitled to serve as an officer of the Board. 

 

D. The alternate retiree member shall be entitled to the same compensation as the 

retiree member for attending a meeting, pursuant to Gov. Code Section 31521, 

whether or not the retiree member is in attendance at that meeting.  

 

E. The alternate appointed member shall be entitled to the same compensation as 

the fourth, fifth, sixth or ninth member, pursuant to Gov. Code Section 

31520.12, whether or not the fourth, fifth, sixth or ninth members attend the 

meeting. 

 

 

 

 



Board Regulations 

2 
 

3. Election of Officers 

 

At the first regular meeting in July, as the first order of business, the Board shall 

elect a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary, each to hold office for a 

term of one year or until a successor is duly elected and qualified.  The newly 

elected officers shall immediately be seated.  The Chairperson shall establish the 

agenda as it relates to administrative or investment matters with the assistance of 

the Chief Executive Officer.  Should an officer for any reason fail to complete 

his/her term, the Board shall select a successor for the balance of the expired 

term at its next regular meeting. 

 

4. Delegation to Chief Executive Officer 

 

In addition to the normal duties required to administer the Association on a day-

to-day basis, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to perform the following 

duties which are otherwise reserved for the Board: 

 

A. Issue subpoenas and subpoenas duces tecum under Gov. Code Section 31535. 

 

B. Release unclaimed funds under Gov. Code Section 31629 provided the 

claimant has adequately established his/her identity and makes application for 

the funds. 

 

C. Determine, under Gov. Code Section 31724, that the effective date of a 

member’s disability retirement is a date earlier than the date the application 

was filed if the delay in filing was due to administrative oversight or inability 

to ascertain permanency and where credible documentation exists to support 

this fact. 

 

D. Accept elections for deferred retirement under Gov. Code Section 31700 and 

affidavits of membership under Gov. Code Section 31526. 

 

E. Correct prospectively any administrative error in the calculation of retirement 

benefits, with the issue of retroactive corrections, if any, to be reserved for the 

Board’s exercise of discretion in accordance with the law.   

 

5. Fiscal Year 

 

The fiscal year for budget purposes shall be the calendar year. 



Board Regulations 

3 
 

II.   MEETINGS 

 

1. Regular Meetings 

 

Regular meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Wednesday of each 

month at 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room of the Contra Costa County Employees’ 

Retirement Association, 1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350, Concord, California 

94520, unless changed by the Board.   

 

2. Quarterly Investment Review 

 

The Board shall review investment manager performance on a quarterly basis, 

unless changed by the Board. 

 

3. Special Meetings 

 

Special meetings may be called in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

 

4. Rules of Order 

 

Unless otherwise provided herein, the general conduct of the Board shall be 

guided by Robert’s Rules of Order, Revised, 1915 edition.  All other proceedings, 

including those of motions and decorum, shall be guided by those provisions 

pertaining to an “Assembly” as specified in Robert’s Rules of Order. 

 

The Chairperson will: 

 

A. Vote on all Questions 

 

B. Recognize a member or non-member entitled to speak 

 

C. Enforce the rules and decorum specified in these Regulations 

 

A motion for the “Previous Question” (to “call” or cut off debate of the immediate 

pending question) may be made by any member without a second.  If no 

objections are made by the members, the Chairperson will immediately “put”, 

without debate, the question.  If an objection is made, a vote is immediately 

required, without debate, regarding the “previous question”.  A vote of 2/3 of the 

votes cast is necessary for adoption.  If adopted, the Chairperson immediately 

“puts”, without debate, the pending question. 

 



Board Regulations 

4 
 

4.a. Order of Business, First Meeting of the Month 
 

The usual order of business at the first meeting of the month shall be: 
 

A. Public Comment 
 

B. Approval of minutes 
 

C. Routine items approval 
 

D. Closed Session for disabilities, litigation, and personnel matters. 
 

E. Report out of Closed Session 
 

F. Unfinished administrative business 
 

G. New administrative business 
 

H. Fiduciary/Staff education 
 

I. Miscellaneous 

    ( i)       Staff Report 

(ii) Outside Professionals’ Reports 

(iii) Trustees' comments 
 

The Chairperson may modify the order of business. 

 

4.b. Order of Business, Second Meeting of the Month 
 

The usual order of business at the second meeting of the month shall be: 
 

A. Public Comment 
 

B. Approval of minutes 
 

C. Investment performance review  

 

D. Investment matters 
 

E. Actuarial matters 
 

F. Miscellaneous 

( i) Staff Report 

(ii) Outside Professionals’ Report 

(iii) Trustees' comments 
 

 

The Chairperson may modify the order of business. 

 



Board Regulations 

5 
 

 

5. Quorum 

 

Five voting Members of the Board present at the meeting shall constitute a 

quorum.  No motion may be passed or business transacted without five 

affirmative votes. 

 

6. Communications and Requests 

 

Communications and requests should be made in writing and any action of the 

Board thereon shall be noted in the minutes. 

 

7. Minutes 

 

The minutes or a true copy thereof, prepared in accordance with the Ralph M. 

Brown Act, shall be signed by the Secretary and the Chairperson, and shall form 

part of the permanent records of the Board.  The reason for a Board member’s 

vote on a Board action shall be included in the minutes when requested by the 

member. 

 

8. Committees of the Board 

 

The Chairperson shall appoint committees as deemed necessary to carry out the 

business of the Board.  A quorum for a Committee meeting shall consist of three 

Board Members.  Committee meeting will be open to the public, except for 

meetings of ad-hoc advisory committees consisting of less than a quorum of the 

full Board.  A Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson for each Committee will be 

appointed by the Board of Retirement Chairperson. 



Board Regulations 

6 
 

III.   MEMBERSHIP 

 

1. Exclusion from Membership – By Type of Employment 

 

A. All officers and employees of the County or districts shall be members of the 

association as provided in Article 4 under Sections 31550-31567 of the 

County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 (Gov. Code Secs. 31450, et seq. 

“CERL”), unless excluded from membership by this Section. 

 

B. The following employees shall be excluded from membership: 

 

(  i) Temporary, seasonal or independent contract employees who are 

employed or re-employed for temporary service or at certain specified 

periods each year. 

 

( ii) Intermittent or permanent-intermittent employees who are appointed to 

serve less than 80% of the full number of working hours required of 

regular employees or who actually serve less than 80% of such full 

number of working hours in one year as certified by their appointing 

authority. 

 

(iii) Part-time employees whose service for the County or district is less than 

fifty (50) percent of the full number or working hours required of full-

time employees at that employer. 

 

( iv) Project employees, unless the appointing authority certifies that the 

project is expected to be of one year or more in duration on a greater than 

part-time basis. 

 

(  v) Provisional employees, unless they otherwise meet the requirements for 

reciprocal benefits with other retirement systems under Article 15 of  

CERL. 

 

C. In making its determination regarding an employee’s inclusion in or exclusion 

from membership, the Board will not rely solely upon the term given to the 

type of employment.  Rather, the Board will rely upon such additional facts 

such as the nature of the employment, its expected or actual duration, and its 

relationship to what is considered full-time, permanent employment. 

 

2. Exclusion from Membership – by Compensation 

 

Except as otherwise herein provided, all employees of the County or district who 

receive compensation amounting to less than one-hundred ($100) dollars per 

month, and in the case of employees paid on other than a monthly basis an 

average of one-hundred ($100) dollars per month for the preceding year, 

including maintenance valued according to the schedule adopted by the governing 



Board Regulations 

7 
 

body, are hereby excluded and exempted from membership in the Retirement 

Association.  Any member of the Retirement Association whose salary is reduced 

to an amount less than one-hundred ($100) dollars per month shall have the 

option of continuing or discontinuing his/her active membership in the 

Association. 

 

2.1 Exclusion from Membership – by Waiver 

 

Newly hired employees age 60 and older may waive membership as authorized by 

Gov. Code Section 31552.  Any such waiver of membership shall be effective 

only if it is submitted to the CCCERA Chief Executive Officer within 90 days of 

the employee’s date of hire; provided, however, that the Chief Executive Officer 

may, in his/her sole and reasonable discretion, waive the time limitation if the 

newly hired employee establishes good cause for such a waiver.  

 

3. Certifications 

 

Every employee of the County or district within the county whose employees are 

members of the Association shall, upon entry into the Association, complete a 

sworn statement as provided for in Gov. Code Section 31526(b).  A certified 

copy of the member’s birth certificate or other evidence of birth may be required 

by the Board. 

 

It shall be the employer’s responsibility to assure compliance with this section.  

The Board shall assess the employer five hundred ($500) dollars per employee 

for every month or fraction thereof that the required certification is not 

submitted.  The Board shall notify the employer in writing of the imposition of 

assessment at least thirty days before the assessment. 



Board Regulations 

8 
 

IV.   CONTRIBUTIONS AND REPORTING 

 

1. Leave of Absence 

 

When a leave of absence without pay is less than a full calendar month, the full 

monthly contribution, if available from the member’s salary, shall be deducted 

from the member’s earnable compensation and service credit shall be given for a 

full calendar month.  If the amount of the member’s salary for the applicable 

period is less than the contributions due, then no deduction shall be made for 

service credit.  (Gov. Code section 31527, subd. (a).) 

 

Members on stipendiary educational leaves shall continue to make contributions. 

 

2. Due Dates 

 

Each employer shall report to the Association in a manner and frequency as 

determined by the Board sufficient for the Board to credit contributions and 

service to each member’s record. 

 

Unless otherwise specified, reports shall be due no later than the tenth of each 

month for the previous month’s payroll and shall be accompanied by member and 

employer contributions.  If the tenth of the month falls on a weekend or holiday, the 

due date shall be the last working day before the tenth.  Reports, which are 

unreadable or incorrect, shall not be accepted and shall be returned to the employer. 

 

Reports and contributions received after the due date shall be considered late and 

subject to a late reporting penalty equal to: the prime rate in effect on the due date 

computed on a daily, non-compounding basis and applied to the contributions due. 

 

3. Drops in Payroll 

 

Whenever the employer’s reportable payroll drops to a level which is lower than 

70% of its payroll during the same period in the preceding year, the Board may 

investigate the cause.  Whenever the employer’s reportable payroll drops to a 

level which is lower than 50% of its payroll during the same period in the 

preceding year, the Board shall investigate the cause.  If the Board determines that 

the cause is other than temporary it shall determine the amount of contributions 

due from the employer to continue paying its share of any unfunded liability.  

This amount shall then be due from the employer in addition to any contributions 

made on the reduced payroll. 

 

4. Employer Certification 

 

Each report as specified in Section IV.2 shall include or be accompanied by a 

certification, under penalty of perjury, as to its accuracy.  The certification shall 

be made by a duly authorized representative of the employer. 



Board Regulations 

9 
 

V.   SERVICE 

 

1. Leave of Absence 

 

When a member returns from a medical leave of absence without pay, the 

member shall receive credit for up to 12 months of the leave time if the member 

pays an amount equal to what he or she would have paid, including any amount 

that would have been paid by the member’s employer on the member’s behalf 

(i.e., subvented), had he or she not taken the leave together with the interest that 

such amount would have earned had it been on deposit.  Calculation of the cost of 

the leave purchase and the method of payment for such leave shall be as provided 

in Gov. Code Section 31646.  

 

2. Prior Service 

 

In establishing the length of prior service for any member entitled to credit 

therefore, official payroll records or other official records shall be controlling.  In 

the event that any of such records are unavailable, the Board, in its discretion, 

may accept affidavits of the employee, affidavits of the employee’s employer, 

affidavits of fellow employees or such other sworn evidence as the Board 

determines to be pertinent. 

 

For the purpose of these Regulations, credit for prior service for a per diem 

employee entitling the employee to a full year’s credit towards retirement shall 

mean 200 or more workdays of service rendered in any one calendar year 

including leave of absence, vacation and sick leave duly granted, but not more 

than one year of credit shall be allowed for service in any one calendar year.  

Service of less than 200 workdays in any one calendar year shall be credited on 

the pro-rata basis of 250 workdays per year. 

 

Prior service shall include all service for the employer and all service while on 

leave from the employer for military duty, which is prior to the establishment of 

the retirement system. 

 

3. Sick Leave Credit 

 

The following provisions govern the use of sick leave credit toward service credit 

at retirement under Government Code Sections 31641.01 as adopted by the 

County Board of Supervisors. 

 

A. The total hours of sick leave accumulated by the member on the date of 

retirement, at the rate of one day for each one day earned, shall be certified 

as to its accuracy in writing under penalty of perjury by the duly authorized 

representative of the employer. 

 



Board Regulations 

10 
 

B. The Association shall convert the total sick leave into years and fractions of 

a year using the following equivalencies: 

 

(  i) For firefighters, accumulated sick leave hours at retirement shall be 

divided by 2,912 (average number of working hours per year for a 

firefighter). 

( ii) For all other members, the accumulated sick leave hours at retirement 

shall be divided by 2,000 hours (average number of working hours per 

year). 

 

C. The formula used to determine the sick leave service credit value shall be 

the same as used for the member’s service category at the time of 

retirement. 

 

4. Service Purchase 

 

Any member who elects to purchase prior public service under Government Code 

Section 31641.2, prior nonmembership service under Government Code Section 

31641.5, prior service under Government Code Section 31648, or military service 

under Government Code Section 31649.5, shall be eligible to make the purchase 

anytime before applying for retirement. 

 

Any member who elects to purchase prior public service under Government Code 

Section 31641.2, prior nonmembership service under Government Code Section 

31641.5, prior service under Government Code Section 31648 or military service 

under Government Code Section 31649.5 shall be permitted to make such 

purchase in installment payments as provided for in Section V, paragraph 6 of 

these Regulations. 

 

5. Redeposit of Withdrawn Contributions 

 

On redeposit, a member must pay withdrawn contributions plus any interest as 

defined in Gov. Code Section 31472.1, subject to Section V, paragraph 8. 

 

The redeposit will exclude contributions subvented by the employer under Gov. 

Code Secs. 31581.1 31581.2 and 31630, and exclude any Cost of Living (COL) 

contributions that were not otherwise paid by members as a result of a transfer of 

excess surplus funds for that year. 

 

6. Installment Payments 

 

Whenever a member elects to purchase prior public service (Gov. Code Sec. 

31641.2), prior nonmembership service (Gov. Code Sec. 31641.5), prior military 

service (Gov. Code Sec. 31649.5), prior service (Gov. Code Sec. 31648), or leave 

of absence service (Gov. Code Sec. 31646), or elects to redeposit withdrawn 



Board Regulations 

11 
 

service (Gov. Code Sec. 31652), and the member elects to make such purchase or 

redeposit in installment payments, the following shall govern: 

 

A. The amount of service represented by each installment payment shall be 

computed by dividing the amount of the installment payment by the total cost 

of purchase or redeposit, and multiplying the resulting percent by the total 

service being purchased or redeposited. 

 

B. The member’s service credit record shall be increased to reflect each 

installment payment as it is received and shall be applied to the most recent 

service for which credit is available. 

 

C. The member’s account balance shall be increased to reflect each installment 

payment as it is received.  Unless otherwise certified by the employer, the 

installment payment will be deemed and credited as after-tax member 

contributions. 

 

D. If the member dies, requests a refund, or retires either for service or disability, 

no further installments shall be accepted.  Any benefit payable thereafter shall 

recognize or include service purchased or redeposited and account balances to 

date. 

 

E. If multiple periods of service are eligible for purchase or redeposit, the cost of 

each period shall be separately computed and any installments shall apply to 

the most recent service period first. 

 

F. Unless otherwise prohibited by law (leave of absence without pay under Gov. 

Code Sec. 31646, prior public service under Gov. Code Sec. 31641.2, and 

prior nonmembership service under Gov. Code Sec. 31641.5), the member 

shall be eligible to make installment payments so long as he or she continues 

to be actively employed. 

 

 As for service purchased under Government Code Sections 31641.5 and 

31646, such payments may be made by lump sum or by installment payments 

over a period not to excess the length of time for which the member has 

elected to receive credit, in the manner otherwise provided for in this 

paragraph 6. 

 

 As for service purchased under Government Code Section 31641.2, such 

payments may be made during active employment as a member by lump sum 

or by installment payments over a period not to exceed five years. 

 

G. A member may elect installment payments by monthly payroll deductions on 

a post tax basis. 

 

( i) A Purchase Contract must be signed for payroll deductions. 



Board Regulations 

12 
 

 

 (ii) All payroll deduction Purchase contracts must be paid in full by the 

member’s retirement date or within 120 days of termination. 

 

(iii) Service credit is posted to member’s account at the completion of the 

contractual payments. 

 

7. Conversion of Tier II Service Credit 

 

Once a member elects or by resolution has been placed into Tier III membership 

under Gov. Code Sec 31755 he or she is eligible to convert all or any part of Tier 

II service credit to Tier III service credit. 

 

 The member’s cost shall be the difference between the total amount he or she and 

the employer paid into the Association under Tier II and what would have been 

contributed during the same time if the employee had been under Tier III, together 

with interest as defined in Section 31472.1, subject to Section V, paragraph 8. 

 

 

8. Forgiveness of Interest 

 

 In cases where a member is redepositing withdrawn contributions, purchasing 

service credit or converting service credit in accordance with this Section V, 

interest shall not include the most recently credited interest amount if all of the 

following conditions are met: 

 

A. The member requested a calculation of the cost of the purchase or conversion 

more than three months prior to the June 30 or December 31 interest crediting 

date. 

B. The member received the requested calculation after the June 30 or December 

31 interest crediting date. 

C. Within 30 days of receipt of the requested calculation the member pays all or 

a part of the cost with a lump sum payment. 

 

 



Board Regulations 

13 
 

VI.   COMPENSATION 

 

 

1. Compensation for Retirement Purposes. 

 

The Board has adopted a Board Compensation Policy listing items of 

compensation that are included in “compensation”, “compensation earnable”, 

and “final compensation” as defined in Government Code Sections 31460, 

31461, and 31462.1.  The Retirement Association will provide each employer 

with a copy of the Board Compensation Policy.  Each employer is required to 

transmit promptly to the Retirement Association, contributions on each item of 

compensation listed in the Compensation Policy as includible in 

“compensation”. 

 

2. New or changed pay items. 

  

 Each employer shall report to the Association in writing within 30 days of any 

of the following events: 

 

A.  A new pay item is created. 

 

B. There has been a change in either an existing pay item or the conditions under 

which the pay item is computed, accrued or paid. 

 

C. Notification received after the 30 days adoption shall be considered late and 

shall be assessed as defined in Section IV.2. 

 

D. Upon notification, the Board shall determine whether the pay item is included 

in “compensation” as defined in Section 31460. 



Board Regulations 

14 
 

VII. NORMAL RETIREMENT AGE AND BONA FIDE SEPARATIONS 

 

Normal Retirement Age 

 

For purposes of applying the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (“PPA”) and complying 

with other applicable tax-related laws (such as restrictions on in-service 

distributions), effective July 1, 2007, the “Normal Retirement Age” for CCCERA 

members shall be the age set forth in CERL retirement formula for an unreduced 

benefit that applies to each CCCERA member immediately preceding the effective 

date of his or her retirement from a CCCERA employer.  For example, the Normal 

Retirement Age for a member who earns retirement service immediately before 

retirement under a “3% at 50” retirement formula (Gov. Code section 31664.1) is 50 

years of age.  The Normal Retirement Age for a member who earns retirement service 

immediately before retirement under a “2% at 55” retirement formula (Gov. Code 

section 31676.16) is 55 years of age.   

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Normal Retirement Age for CCCERA members shall 

in no event be earlier than (i) age 55 for CCCERA members who are not Qualified 

Public Safety Employees (as defined in Internal Revenue Code section 72(t)(10)(B)) 

immediately prior to their retirement; and (ii) age 50 for CCCERA members who are 

Qualified Public Safety Employees. 

 

The Board may change or further refine its determination of Normal Retirement Age 

as described herein in order to comply with any rules or regulations of the Internal 

Revenue Service or other applicable law.  The Board’s current determinations of 

Normal Retirement Age are based upon the findings and conclusions set forth in 

Board of Retirement Resolutions 2007-1 and 2007-2. 

 

Bona Fide Separation from Service 

 

A)  In order to comply with tax law restrictions on in-service distributions, a 

member who retires at an age younger than Normal Retirement Age, as defined 

herein, may not enter into an agreement, either oral or written, prior to the date the 

member's retirement commences, to be reemployed while retired by the same 

CCCERA employer, regardless of the length of the member's break in service after 

retirement. The member must acknowledge in writing to CCCERA at the time of 

retirement that the member has been informed of these requirements and limitations 

on post-retirement employment and that no prearrangement to be reemployed while 

retired exists. 

 

B) A member who retires at an age younger than Normal Retirement Age, as 

defined herein, must have at least a continuous 90-day break in service from the date 

of the member's last day of employment prior to being reemployed while retired by 

the member’s prior CCCERA employer. 

 



Board Regulations 

15 
 

C) If a member is reemployed without compliance with subsections (A) and (B) 

above, the retired member's retirement benefits from CCCERA must cease as soon as 

practicable upon discovery by CCCERA and will not resume until the member has a 

bona fide separation from service or reaches Normal Retirement Age, whichever 

occurs first. 

 

D) The definitions, limitations and requirements contained herein shall be 

provided to every CCCERA member who inquires about retirement. 

 

VIII.   WITHDRAWALS 

 

1. Discontinued Service 

 

The service of a member will be considered “discontinued” under Gov. Code 

Section 31628 only if the member has actually terminated employment and 

either the termination is due to lay-off or the member is not reemployed by that 

employer for a period of 45 days. 

 

The service of a member will not be considered discontinued if the member 

continues to work for the employer or for another participating employer, even 

if the member’s work schedule is below the minimum number of hours required 

to qualify for coverage.  In these cases interest will continue to be credited to 

the member's account. 

 

2. Account Withdrawals 

 

All requests to withdraw an account must be in writing. 

   

All payments of an account balance shall be in the form of either or both of the 

following: 

 

A. A lump sum distribution 

 

B. A rollover to an IRA or a new employer’s Qualified Plan per current IRS 

guidelines. 

 

3. Interest Crediting 

 

Interest is credited to the account of a pending refund request on June 30th or 

December 31st if the funds have been on deposit for six months or more in 

accordance with Gov. Code Section 31591. 

 

A member who continues employment in a non-covered position will have 

interest credited to his/her account. 

 

 



Board Regulations 

16 
 

4. Account Reinstatement 

 

A member who has appealed a dismissal and has been reinstated by the 

employer is allowed to redeposit withdrawn retirement contributions, plus 

interest, and will be reinstated as of the original date of membership in the 

Association. 



Board Regulations 

17 
 

IX.   NEW PARTICIPATING EMPLOYERS (Section 31557) 

 

All officers and employees of any newly participating district shall become members 

of the Association as provided in Section 31557. 

 

A. An actuarial valuation shall be made to determine liability. 

 

B. The district shall pay the cost of the valuation. 



Board Regulations 

18 
 

X.   PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER WITHDRAWAL 

(SECTIONS 31564 AND 31564.2) 

 

An employer, by resolution, may withdraw its employees from membership in the 

Association as provided in Government Code sections 31564 and 31564.2. 

 

A. Upon notification by an employer that it is considering withdrawing from the 

Association, the Association will provide the employer with a copy of the 

Association’s Employer Termination Policy. 

 

B. An employer shall comply with the Association’s Employer Termination Policy 

to ensure the actuarial soundness of the retirement system. 



Board Regulations 

19 
 

XI.   DISPENSING WITH RECALCULATION FOR MINOR DISCREPANCY 

 

 

1. Closed Accounts 

 

The Board authorizes the Chief Executive Officer to refrain from collecting an 

under payment or refunding an overpayment of accumulated contributions from 

a member who has terminated from the association and cannot be located, 

whenever the amount is fifty dollars ($50) or less. 

 

2. Active, Deferred and Retiree Accounts 

 

The association may dispense with issuing any check whenever the retroactive 

liability is less than five dollars ($5). 



Board Regulations 

20 
 

XII.   APPLICATIONS FOR DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

 

(Adopted:  Retirement Board – June 14, 1977) 

 

(Approved:  Board of Supervisors – June 28, 1977) 

 

1.   Application Form 

 

An application for service-connected or nonservice-connected disability 

retirement shall be filed on the Application for Disability Retirement form 

prescribed by the Board of Retirement, and shall include either a completed 

Physician’s Statement or another form of medical report to support the 

Application. 

 

2. Effective Date Of Disability Retirement Allowance 

 

(a) The effective date of a disability retirement allowance shall be established 

pursuant to Gov. Code Section 31724. 

 

(b) The applicant may apply to have the disability retirement allowance become 

effective earlier than the date the application is filed upon a showing the 

application was delayed due to administrative oversight or by the inability to 

determine the permanency of the disability until after the date following the last 

day for which the applicant received regular compensation, by completing the 

applicable section of the Application for Disability Retirement form. The failure 

of the applicant to apply for an earlier effective date at the time the application is 

filed shall constitute a waiver of the right to apply for an earlier effective date. 

 

3. Denial Without Prejudice 

 

(a) In the event the medical advisor’s recommendation is to deny the disability 

application (without prejudice), the member may submit additional medical 

information to support the application and/or request a hearing within six (6) 

months of notice of the denial.   

 

(b) In the event the medical advisor’s recommendation is to grant the disability 

application, the Board of Retirement will review the recommendation and take 

action on the application for disability retirement.  If the Board denies the 

application (without prejudice), the member may request a hearing within six (6) 

months of notice of the denial. 

 

4. Request For Hearing 

 

Any applicant for disability retirement shall, upon request, be entitled to a 

hearing, at the sole discretion of the Board of Retirement, before the Board, or 

before a referee appointed by the Board pursuant to Gov. Code section 31533.  



Board Regulations 

21 
 

Any such request for hearing shall be in writing, and shall be made within 30 

days after notice of the Board's action denying the application is mailed by 

certified or registered mail to the applicant. An application is deemed made on 

the date mailed if mailed by certified or registered mail, on the date postmarked 

if mailed by first class mail and received, or on the date received by the 

Association, whichever is earlier. 

 

5. Judicial Review 

 

In any matter in which the party or applicant is entitled to judicial review of any 

action taken by the Board of Retirement, the petition to the court must be filed 

within 90 days from the date the notice of the Board's decision is delivered to the 

party or applicant, or served by certified or registered mail upon the party or 

applicant or the party's or applicant's attorney. 

 

The procedure for hearings on disability retirement applications that the Board of 

Retirement or a Referee holds in connection with determination of disability 

retirement benefits under CERL shall be set forth in the Board of Retirement’s 

separate policy regarding the same. 

 



Board Regulations 

22 
 

XIII.   CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT OF PARTIALLY DISABLED EMPLOYEES 

 

(Approved:  Board of Supervisors – May 9, 1972) 

 

NOTE:  This entire section (formerly Section 10) is under 

consideration for either a complete rewrite and renumbering, or 

deletion.  Below is a reproduction of Section 10 as created in 1972. 
 

Section 10.1 – Purpose 

 

This regulation governs the procedures for the continued employment of partially 

disable members pursuant to Government Code Section 31725.5 and County 

Ordinance Code Section 2468. 

 

Section 10.2 – Definitions 

 

In this regulation, unless otherwise specifically provided, or required by the context, 

these terms have these meanings: 

 

A. “Reassignment” means the appointment (pursuant to the Statute, the 

ordinance and this regulation) of a member to a position, with duties different 

from, and compensation earnable higher, lower, or the same as, the position 

for which he is incapacitated. 

 

B. “Board” means the Board of Retirement (Retirement Board). 

 

C. “Chief Executive Officer” means the Retirement Administrator as defined in 

Government Code Section 31522. 

 

D. “Incapacitated for the performance of his/her duties” means the permanent 

inability of the member, due to physical or mental causes, to perform the 

duties of his/her specific position. 

 

E. “Committee” means the Rehabilitation Committee. 

 

F. “Governing Body” means the Board of Supervisors or the elected officials 

governing a district. 

 

G. “District” is defined in Government Code Section 31468. 

 

Section 10.3 – Rehabilitation Committee 

 

A. A Rehabilitation Committee is hereby established for the purpose of 

recommending whether a member shall be reassigned. 

 



Board Regulations 

23 
 

B. Except as provided by Section 10.7, this committee shall consist of the 

following: 

 

a. The permanent members are a member of the Board designated by it; and 

the County Administrator, Director of Personnel and County Health 

Officer or their designees; and the Chief Executive Officer or his/her 

designee, who serves as secretary without a vote. 

 

b. The appointing authority within the department or district to which the 

reassignment is proposed or his/her (its) designee. 

 

c. The employee and/or his/her designee, unless he waives membership. 

 

Section 10.4 – Procedure 

 

A. After an application for disability is filed, the Chief Executive Officer shall 

consult with the Board’s medical advisor, the member employee and others 

as necessary, to determine whether a reassignment appears feasible (in view 

of the members employee’s condition) if the Board later finds the member 

employee to be incapacitated for the performance of his/her duties.  If a 

reassignment appear feasible to the Chief Executive Officer, he shall convene 

the permanent members of the Committee and the employee or his/her 

designee, and they shall explore the practicabilities of returning the member 

employee to his/her previous position or reassigning, rehabilitating and/or 

retraining him/her. 

 

B. When a department or district is located to which a reassignment appears 

feasible, the appointing authority within it shall be added to the Committee 

(pursuant to Section 10.3B(2) above). 

 

C. The Committee may make its recommendation to the Board at any time 

before or after Board action on the application for disability retirement. 

 

Section 10.5 – Reassignment 

 

After the Board determines that the member employee is incapacitated for the 

performance of his/her duties, he shall be reassigned, in lieu of being retired for 

disability, if the appointing authority in the department or district in which he is to be 

employed and the Governing Body agree to his/her appointment and the appointment 

is made in accordance with any applicable merit or Civil Service system rules. 

 

Section 10.6 – Later Retirement 

 

If a member who has accepted reassignment is voluntarily or involuntarily separated 

from the service thereafter, his/her retirement benefits and rights, including those of 

his/her beneficiaries, shall be determined as if he were being retired on the date of this 



Board Regulations 

24 
 

later separation for the same type of disability retirement as he would have received 

had he been retired originally instead of reassigned, but a new application may be 

filed for disability retirement based on his/her job connected injury or disease 

occuring after the first application was filed, and his/her rights and benefits (including 

Cost-of-Living retirement adjustments) shall not be less than those to which he would 

be entitled if he retires for service on the date of his/her later separation. 

Section 10.7 

 

In a district for which the Board of Supervisors is not the governing body, the Chief 

Executive Officer shall request the district to appoint to the Committee those 

personnel with functions similar to those of the County Administrator and Director of 

Personnel; and such other personnel shall then service on the Committee in lieu of the 

County Administrator and Director of Personnel. 

 



Board Regulations 

25 
 

XIV.   AMENDMENT OF REGULATIONS 

 

Amendments to these regulations require 6 affirmative votes of the Board. 

 



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: October 23, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with 
LRWL Inc. for pension administration system consulting services.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
On April 24, 2019, the Board of Retirement approved the issuance of a Request for Proposal 
(RFP) for Pension Administration System Consulting Services.   The scope of the RFP included 
providing oversight for CCCERA’s Pension Administration System Modernization Project in a 
two-phase contract.  The following three firms submitted proposals:  

• Linea Solutions

• LRWL Inc.

• Segal Consulting

Proposals were reviewed based on the firm’s capacity to meet or exceed the requirement and 
service levels specified in the RFP and that they demonstrated possession of the organizational, 
functional, and technical capabilities to offer and perform the services. After careful 
consideration, LRWL Inc. was selected as the finalist. They would be assisting CCCERA in two 
phases:  1) assessing and defining requirements and the procurement of a pension 
administration system, and 2) implementation. The estimated fee for both phases is 
$1,697,280. 

Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with LRWL Inc. for 
pension administration system consulting services, not to exceed $1,697,280. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/23/19Agenda Item#6



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
 2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 R

es
er

v
ed

.

L
R

W
L
 B

o
a

rd
 P

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 F

ir
m

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

3
, 2

0
1

9

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/23/19Agenda Item#6



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

L
R
W

L
 P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o
n
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e
s

❑
In

tr
o
d
u
ce

 L
R
W

L
 t

o
 C

C
C
E
R
A

❑
H

ig
h
lig

h
t 

th
e
 S

co
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ro
je

ct
 

a
n
d
 K

e
y
 C

o
n
ce

p
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

P
ro

p
o
sa

l

❑
A
d
d
re

ss
 a

n
y
 Q

u
e
st

io
n
s 

/ 
C
o
n
ce

rn
s 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 C

C
C
E
R
A
 B

o
a
rd

2



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

L
R
W

L
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
ct

io
n
s

3

P
o
si

ti
o
n

N
a
m

e
Y
e
a
rs

 

L
R
W

L

Y
e
a
rs

 

P
e
n
si

o
n

E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce

Y
e
a
rs

 

IT

#
 o

f 

P
u
b
lic

 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 

P
ro

je
ct

s

#
 P

A
S
 

P
ro

je
ct

P
ro

g
ra

m
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r

Je
ff

 M
ill

s
1
7

2
1

2
1

3
0

1
1

P
ro

je
ct

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r

C
h
ri
s 

F
ik

e
s

1
9

2
5

2
5

3
6

1
4

S
e
n
io

r 
C
o
n
su

lt
a
n
t

S
u
e
 Z

ie
g
le

r
5

2
2

3
0
+

4
4



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

L
R
W

L
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

C
lie

n
ts

❑
8
0
+

 p
u
b
lic

 p
e
n
si

o
n
 c

lie
n
ts

❑
S
im

ila
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 f
o
r 

a
lm

o
st

 6
0
 o

f 
th

o
se

 c
lie

n
ts

❑
>

3
0
 o

f 
o
u
r 

cl
ie

n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
n
-

st
a
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
(C

it
y
 o

r 
C
o
u
n
ty

) 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
/ 

a
ss

o
ci

a
ti
o
n
s

❑
1
3
 o

f 
o
u
r 

cl
ie

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 

C
a
lif

o
rn

ia

❑
E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce

 w
it
h
 1

4
 P

A
S
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs

4



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

L
R
W

L’
s 

“O
th

e
r”

 C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 C

lie
n
ts

✓
A
la

m
e
d
a
 C

E
R
A

✓
C
a
lS

T
R
S

✓
C
it
y
 o

f 
F
re

sn
o
 R

S

✓
K
e
rn

 C
E
R
A

✓
LA

 F
ir
e
 a

n
d
 P

o
lic

e

✓
S
a
n
 B

e
rn

a
rd

in
o
 

C
E
R
A

✓
S
a
n
 D

ie
g
o
 C

E
R
S

✓
S
a
n
 J

o
se

 O
R
S

✓
S
a
n
 L

u
is

 O
b
is

p
o
 C

P
T

✓
S
a
n
 M

a
te

o
 C

E
R
A

✓
S
o
n
o
m

a
 C

E
R
A

✓
T
u
la

re
 C

E
R
A

5



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

L
R
W

L
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

6



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

L
R
W

L
 M

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
ie

s

L
R
W

L
 h

a
s 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

se
d
 6

 c
o
p
y
ri
g
h
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

ra
d
e
m

a
rk

e
d
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
ie

s.
  
W

e
 p

ro
p
o
se

 t
o
 u

se
 a

s 
st

a
rt

in
g
 p

o
in

ts
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

ct
:

❑
R

F
P

E
N

S
IO

N
T

o
o

ls
T

M
–

fo
r 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 R

F
P
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

so
lic

it
a
ti
o
n
 /

 p
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t 

a
ct

iv
it
ie

s 
th

ro
u
g
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
ct

 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e

xe
cu

ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

se
d
 h

e
a
v
ily

 f
o
r 

P
h
a
se

 1

❑
O

P
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
T

o
o

ls
T

M
–

fo
r 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

a
re

n
a
.
T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

se
d
 h

e
a
v
ily

 f
o
r 

P
h
a
se

 2

❑
IT

P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

T
o

o
ls

T
M
–

fo
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 I

T
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n
s

❑
O

R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
T

o
o

ls
T

M
 
–

fo
r 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

rg
a
n
iz

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
st

u
d
ie

s

❑
B

P
R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

T
o

o
ls

T
M
–

fo
r 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 p
ro

ce
ss

 r
e
-

e
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s

❑
D

A
T

A
C

L
E

A
N

T
o

o
ls

T
M
–

fo
r 

fa
ci

lit
a
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 c
le

a
n
si

n
g
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s

7

T
h
e
se

 a
re

 a
lw

a
ys

 f
ir
st

 c
o
n
fi
g
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 c

u
st

o
m

iz
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
ci

fi
c 

cl
ie

n
t/

p
ro

je
ct

.



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

L
R
W

L’
s 

A
p
p
ro

a
ch

 a
t 

C
C
C
E
R
A

T
h
e
 C

C
C
E
R
A
 R

F
P
 h

a
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

ct
 b

ro
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 

p
h
a
se

s;
 e

a
ch

 w
it
h
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s 

o
f 

M
ile

st
o
n
e
s 

a
n
d
 

D
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

s:

❑
P
h
a
se

 1
 –

A
ss

e
ss

, 
D

e
fi
n
e
 R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t

❑
P
h
a
se

 2
 –

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

8



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

P
h
a
se

 1
 –

A
ss

e
ss

, 
D

e
fi
n
e
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 P

ro
cu

re
m

e
n
t

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

1
 –

P
ro

je
ct

 In
it

ia
ti

o
n

 P
h

as
e

P
ro

je
ct

 S
ta

ff
in

g 
P

la
n

 

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 P

la
n

Q
u

al
it

y 
P

la
n

 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
h

ar
te

r

B
as

el
in

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ch
ed

u
le

D
el

iv
er

ab
le

 O
u

tl
in

e
s 

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

2
 –

O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
N

ee
d

s 

V
is

io
n

in
g 

Se
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 

D
em

o
(s

) 

O
p

er
at

io
n

s 
 N

ee
d

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
R

ep
o

rt

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

3
 –

Id
en

ti
fy

 
th

e 
G

ap
s

A
n

al
ys

is
 o

f 
C

u
rr

en
t 

Pe
n

si
o

n
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 
Sy

st
em

C
o

n
d

u
ct

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

O
p

er
at

io
n

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 M

at
er

ia
l 

G
e

n
e

ra
te

 a
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

ze
d

 L
is

t 
o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 G

ap
s

9



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

P
h
a
se

 1
 -

A
ss

e
ss

, 
D

e
fi
n
e
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 P

ro
cu

re
m

e
n
t

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

4
 –

D
ev

el
o

p
 C

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts

B
u

si
n

es
s 

R
eq

u
ir

em
e

n
ts

 A
n

al
ys

is
 

M
ar

ke
t 

St
u

d
y 

o
f 

Po
te

n
ti

al
 O

p
ti

o
n

s

U
se

 C
as

es
 /

 C
as

e 
St

u
d

ie
s 

fo
r 

C
C

C
ER

A

U
ti

liz
e 

LR
W

L 
G

u
id

eb
o

o
ks

 a
n

d
 D

at
a 

R
ep

o
si

to
ri

es

Fi
n

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 w

it
h

 R
ec

o
m

m
e

n
d

at
io

n
s

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

5
 –

P
la

n
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 T
ec

h
n

o
lo

gy
, P

ro
je

ct
, 

Q
u

al
it

y,
 R

is
k,

 …
 P

la
n

s

R
ev

ie
w

 C
u

rr
en

t 
Te

ch
n

ic
al

 
In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re

R
ec

o
m

m
e

n
d

 O
ve

ra
ll 

St
ra

te
gi

es
 t

o
 

M
ee

t 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

al
 a

n
d

 T
ec

h
n

ic
al

 
N

ee
d

s

B
u

ild
 a

n
d

 D
el

iv
er

 a
 P

la
n

 t
h

at
 

A
d

d
re

ss
e

s 
th

e 
R

ec
o

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
A

b
o

ve

P
ro

vi
d

e 
an

 E
st

im
at

e 
o

f 
C

o
st

s,
 

R
es

o
u

rc
es

, a
n

d
 S

ch
ed

u
le

s

1
0



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

P
h
a
se

 1
 -

A
ss

e
ss

, 
D

e
fi
n
e
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 P

ro
cu

re
m

e
n
t

1
1

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

6
 –

R
FP

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

7
 –

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
R

FP
 O

u
tl

in
e

R
FP

, E
va

lu
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 

O
ve

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 

d
at

a 
cl

ea
n

si
n

g 
p

ro
je

ct

G
o

al
s 

&
 O

b
je

ct
iv

es
 f

o
r 

PA
S 

M
o

d
er

n
iz

at
io

n

Se
t 

o
f 

R
eq

u
ir

em
e

n
ts

 o
f 

PA
S 

M
o

d
e

rn
iz

at
io

n

R
FP

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

V
en

d
o

r 
Li

st

B
id

d
e

r 
C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

 A
ge

n
d

a

B
id

d
e

r 
Q

u
es

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 C
C

C
ER

A
 R

es
p

o
n

se
s

Ev
al

u
at

o
r 

W
o

rk
sh

e
et

 a
n

d
 H

an
d

b
o

o
k

R
ef

er
en

ce
 C

h
e

ck
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

ai
re

Q
u

e
st

io
n

s 
to

 a
n

d
 R

es
p

o
n

se
s 

fr
o

m
 B

id
d

er
s

Si
d

e-
b

y-
Si

d
e 

C
o

st
 C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n

Fi
n

al
 R

FP
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
&

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l 

Ev
al

u
at

io
n



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

L
R
W

L
 P

ro
cu

re
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

ce
ss

✓
D

o
cu

m
e
n
te

d
 

M
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

✓
U

se
d
 c

lo
se

 t
o
 6

0
 

ti
m

e
s

✓
C
o
n
st

a
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

u
p
d
a
te

d

✓
P
ro

v
id

e
s 

fo
r 

co
n
si

st
e
n
cy

✓
E
n
su

re
s 

“s
e
a
m

le
ss

” 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

1
2

V
en

do
r 

Se
le

ct
io

n

V
en

do
r 

P
ro

po
sa

l
Pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 

R
FP

 C
re

at
io

n

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
A

n
al

ys
is

V
en

do
r 

Se
rv

ic
es

A
n

d 
Te

rm
s 

an
d 

Co
nd

it
io

n
s

Co
m

pi
le

 R
FP

D
ra

ft
Id

en
ti

fy
 

Ca
n

di
d

at
es

O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 

R
ev

ie
w

Pu
bl

is
h 

/ 
D

is
tr

ib
u

te
 R

FP

D
ev

el
o

p 
Ev

al
u

at
io

n
 

M
e

th
o

do
lo

gy

Se
le

ct
 &

 E
du

ca
te

 
Ev

al
u

at
io

n
 T

ea
m

H
ol

d 
B

id
d

er
s 

Co
nf

er
en

ce

R
es

po
n

d 
to

 
B

id
d

er
 

Q
u

es
ti

on
s

D
ev

el
o

p 
D

em
o

ns
tr

at
io

n 
Sc

en
ar

io
s

R
ec

ei
ve

 
Pr

op
os

al
s

R
ev

ie
w

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

/
Co

m
pi

le
 

Q
u

es
ti

on
s

Pe
rf

o
rm

 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 
Ch

ec
ks

Ev
al

u
at

e 
V

en
d

or
 

D
em

o
ns

tr
at

io
ns

R
eq

u
es

t B
es

t 
an

d
 F

in
al

 O
ff

er
N

eg
ot

ia
te

 a
nd

 
aw

ar
d 

C
on

tr
ac

t
O

p
en

 a
nd

 
Ev

al
u

at
e 

Co
st

s

B
eg

in
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

P
h
a
se

 1
 T

im
e
lin

e

1
3



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

P
h
a
se

 2
 –

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

8
 –

P
ro

je
ct

 K
ic

ko
ff

P
ro

je
ct

 K
ic

ko
ff

 A
ge

n
d

a

P
ro

je
ct

 P
la

n

Q
u

al
it

y 
M

an
ag

em
e

n
t 

P
la

n

U
se

 o
f 

se
ve

ra
l o

f 
th

e 
st

ep
s 

in
 o

u
r 

O
P

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T

To
o

ls
TM

m
et

h
o

d
o

lo
gy

Q
u

al
it

y 
Ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s 
C

h
e

ck
lis

t

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

9
 –

D
es

ig
n

 P
h

as
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
e

n
ts

 T
ra

ce
ab

ili
ty

 
M

at
ri

x 
(R

TM
)

Fe
ed

b
ac

k 
o

n
 D

es
ig

n
 

D
o

cu
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

V
en

d
o

r 
C

la
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
G

ap
 A

n
al

ys
is

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

1
0

 –
B

u
ild

 
P

h
as

e

PA
S 

C
o

n
fi

gu
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
C

u
st

o
m

iz
at

io
n

V
en

d
o

r 
Te

st
 P

la
n

n
in

g

In
ci

d
e

n
t 

Tr
ac

ki
n

g 

C
C

C
ER

A
 T

es
ti

n
g 

/ 
U

AT

A
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 T
es

t 
P

la
n

W
ee

kl
y 

Te
st

 R
ep

o
rt

in
g

C
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
e

n
t

1
4



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

P
h
a
se

 2
 –

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

1
1

 –
Im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

A
rc

h
it

ec
tu

re

P
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

D
ep

lo
ym

en
t 

P
la

n

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

Tr
ai

n
in

g 
P

la
n

s 
an

d
 M

at
er

ia
ls

C
re

at
io

n
 o

f 
Po

st
 Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 P

ro
ce

d
u

re
s/

Se
rv

ic
e 

Le
ve

l 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t

M
ile

st
o

n
e 

1
2

 –
P

ro
je

ct
 H

an
d

o
ff

 /
 

C
lo

su
re

Fi
n

al
, A

cc
ep

te
d

 R
TM

Fi
n

al
, D

el
iv

er
ab

le
 R

eg
is

te
r

P
ro

je
ct

 L
es

so
n

s 
Le

ar
n

e
d

C
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
e

n
t

1
5



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

P
h
a
se

 2
 T

im
e
lin

e

❑
P
h
a
se

 2
 e

x
p
e
ct

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
g
in

 a
ro

u
n
d
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
2
0

❑
A
ss

u
m

e
d

d
u
ra

ti
o
n
 (

i.
e
.,
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

ct
) 

o
f 

3
6
 m

o
n
th

s

❑
C
C
C
E
R
A
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 “

L
IV

E
” 

w
it
h
 a

 s
y
st

e
m

 e
n
d
 d

a
te

 o
f 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
2
3

❑
To

ta
l 
p
ro

je
ct

 d
u
ra

ti
o
n
 4

6
 m

o
n
th

s

1
6

It
 i
s 

ve
ry

 d
if
fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

cc
u
ra

te
 s

ch
e
d
u
le

 e
st

im
a
te

s 
a
t 

th
is

 p
o
in

t 
in

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

ct
 

si
n
ce

 w
e
 d

o
n
’t
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
e
 s

co
p
e
, 

ve
n
d
o
r 

sc
h
e
d
u
le

, 
C
C
C
E
R
A
 s

ta
ff

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 l
e
ve

ls
, 

d
e
g
re

e
 o

f 
d
a
ta

-r
e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

, 
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
le

ct
e
d
 v

e
n
d
o
r,
…



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.P
h
a
se

 1
 C

o
st

  
$
2
9
3
,2

8
0

+
P
h
a
se

 2
 C

o
st

*
 

$
1
,4

0
4
,0

0
0

To
ta

l 
  
  

  
  

$
1
,6

9
7,

2
8
0

*
 B

a
se

d
 o

n
 a

 3
6
-m

o
n
th

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

ch
e
d
u
le

 a
n
d
 

1
5
0
 p

e
rs

o
n
 h

o
u
rs

 p
e
r 

m
o
n
th

 o
n
 s

it
e
.

1
7

E
st

im
a
te

d
 F

e
e
 -

S
u
m

m
a
ry



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

W
h
y
 L

R
W

L
?

❑
H

ig
h

ly
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

d
, 

n
a

ti
o

n
w

id
e

 c
o
n
su

lt
in

g
 f
ir
m

 

❑
F
o
cu

s 
o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

sy
st

e
m

s:
 t

e
ch

n
ic

a
l 
a
n
a
ly

si
s,

 
p
e
n
si

o
n
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 g
a
th

e
ri
n
g
, 
R
F
P
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 a
n
d
 P

A
S
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s.

❑
M

o
re

 p
u
b
lic

 r
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

cl
ie

n
ts

 t
h
a
n
 o

u
r 

co
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 -

o
v
e
r 

8
0

❑
P
ro

v
id

e
d
 c

o
n
su

lt
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s,

 a
s 

re
q
u
e
st

e
d
 i
n
 b

o
th

 P
h
a
se

 1
 a

n
d
 2

 -
a
lm

o
st

 6
0
 t

im
e
s

❑
B
ro

a
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
(i
n
 f
a
ct

 i
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l)
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce

 t
o
 o

u
r 

p
ro

je
ct

s

❑
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s 

o
f 

lo
ca

lly
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 s

y
st

e
m

s,
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o
se

d
 t

e
a
m

 h
a
s 

e
x
te

n
si

v
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce

 w
it
h
 p

e
e
r 

sy
st

e
m

s

❑
H

a
v
e
 i
n
v
e
st

e
d
 t

im
e
, 
m

o
n
e
y,

 a
n
d
 e

n
e
rg

y
 i
n
 h

o
n
in

g
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a
l 
sk

ill
s

❑
H

a
v
e
 f
a
m

ili
a
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 C

C
C
E
R
A
’s
 L

e
g
a
cy

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

❑
P
ro

je
ct

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce

 w
it
h
 3

 C
P
A
S
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

1
8



C
o

p
y

ri
g

h
t 

©
  2

0
19

 L
R

W
L

 I
n

c.
  A

ll
 R

ig
h

ts
 

R
es

er
v

ed
.

Q
u
e
st

io
n
s…

?

1
9



 

 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: October 23, 2019 
To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 
From: Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer 
Subject: Annual Review of Risk Diversifying Sub-Portfolio 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Overview 
Every year, I review each of the three functional sub-portfolios (liquidity, diversifying and 
growth) in detail with the Board.  Today’s review focuses on the Risk Diversifying sub-portfolio.  
I will review the role of Risk Diversifying strategies in CCCERA’s portfolio, the three requirement 
we place upon these strategies, performance of the allocation and finally review of recent and 
prospective changes to the allocation. 
 
We will conclude with a discussion featuring Chang Suh of AFL-CIO Housing Investment Trust 
(intermediate duration fixed income).  Chang recently took on the role of CEO in addition to his 
long tenure as portfolio manager.  Our discussion will examine changes to the organization 
under Chang’s leadership, the role of this portfolio in the CCCERA portfolio, review the demand 
for multi-family housing and conclude with an examination of the role and impact of private 
debt vehicles on the multi-family housing asset class. A brief description of the AFL-CIO Housing 
Investment Trust is included below. 
 
AFL-CIO Housing Investment Trust 
CCCERA has invested in the AFL-CIO Housing Investment Trust since June 1991.  This strategy 
invests primarily in debt that finances union-built multi-family housing.  The debt is typically 
guaranteed by a government agency.  For much of CCCERA’s investment history, the AFL-CIO 
HIT was classified as core fixed income.  The strategy was recategorized as a Risk Diversifying 
strategy in 2016.  Since the inception of CCCERA’s investment through September 30, 2019, the 
strategy has returned 5.7% (net of fee, annualized) relative to 5.7% for the Bloomberg Barclays 
Aggregate Index.  
 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/23/19Agenda Item#7



R
is

k 
D

iv
e

rs
if

yi
n

g 
Su

b
-

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 R

ev
ie

w
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
3

, 2
0

1
9

Ti
m

o
th

y 
P

ri
ce

, C
FA

C
h

ie
f 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

O
ff

ic
er

1

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/23/19Agenda Item#7a.



R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

Su
b

-
Po

rt
fo

lio
1

.
R

o
le

 o
f 

R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

in
 C

C
C

ER
A

 p
o

rt
fo

lio

2
.

Fe
at

u
re

s 
o

f 
d

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

as
se

ts

3
.

St
ru

ct
u

re
 o

f 
R

is
k 

D
iv

er
si

fy
in

g 
al

lo
ca

ti
o

n

4
.

C
C

C
ER

A
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

5
.

Po
te

n
ti

al
 p

ro
gr

am
m

at
ic

 e
n

h
an

ce
m

en
ts

2



R
o

le
 o

f 
R

is
k 

D
iv

er
si

fy
in

g

•
D

o
w

n
si

d
e 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 
to

 h
el

p
 b

u
ff

er
 t

h
e 

la
rg

e 
gr

o
w

th
 

al
lo

ca
ti

o
n

•
Li

q
u

id
 p

o
o

l o
f 

ca
p

it
al

 
to

 c
ap

tu
re

 s
tr

es
se

d
 

gr
o

w
th

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

3



Fe
at

u
re

s 
o

f 
R

is
k 

D
iv

er
si

fy
in

g 
St

ra
te

gi
es

4

Q
u

al
it

y
R

at
io

n
al

e

Lo
w

 t
o

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
co

rr
el

at
io

n
 w

it
h

 
gr

o
w

th
 a

ss
et

s
A

ct
 a

s 
d

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

o
ff

se
t 

to
 C

C
C

ER
A

’s
 la

rg
e 

gr
o

w
th

 
(e

q
u

it
y)

 a
llo

ca
ti

o
n

H
ig

h
 li

q
u

id
it

y 
d

u
ri

n
g 

p
er

io
d

s 
o

f 
eq

u
it

y 
m

ar
ke

t 
st

re
ss

M
u

st
 b

e 
ab

le
 t

o
 r

ed
ep

lo
y 

th
es

e 
as

se
ts

 t
o

 c
ap

tu
re

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 s
tr

es
se

d
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t.
  

Po
si

ti
ve

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 r

ea
l r

et
u

rn
W

e 
w

an
t 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 t

h
at

 c
an

 b
e 

h
el

d
 o

n
 a

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

b
as

is
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
ac

ti
n

g 
as

 a
 d

ra
g 

o
n

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ex
p

ec
te

d
 

re
tu

rn
s



R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

U
n

iv
er

se

G
en

er
al

ly
 f

al
ls

 in
to

 t
w

o
 c

am
p

s,
 e

xp
lic

it
 a

n
d

 im
p

lic
it

 
m

ar
ke

t 
h

ed
ge

s.
  W

e 
fo

cu
s 

o
n

 im
p

lic
it

 h
ed

ge
s.

5

H
e

d
ge

 T
yp

e
Ex

am
p

le
Ef

fi
ci

e
n

cy
 o

f 
H

e
d

ge
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

C
o

st

Ex
p

lic
it

Ta
il 

ri
sk

 h
ed

ge
 

(b
u

yi
n

g 
eq

u
it

y 
p

u
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s)

H
ig

h
, c

re
at

es
 a

n
 e

xp
lic

it
 

p
o

si
ti

ve
 p

ay
o

ff
 w

h
en

 e
q

u
it

y 
m

ar
ke

t 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s 

d
et

er
io

ra
te

H
ig

h
, e

ss
en

ti
al

ly
 a

n
 

in
su

ra
n

ce
 p

re
m

iu
m

 is
 p

ai
d

 
ev

er
y 

m
o

n
th

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

p
u

ts
 

ex
p

ir
e 

w
o

rt
h

le
ss

Im
p

lic
it

U
S 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

gu
ar

an
te

ed
 

d
eb

t

M
ed

iu
m

, n
o

t 
an

 e
xp

lic
it

 
n

eg
at

iv
e 

co
rr

el
at

io
n

, 
ty

p
ic

al
ly

 a
n

 u
n

co
rr

el
at

ed
 

re
tu

rn

M
ed

iu
m

-l
o

w
.  

Sh
o

u
ld

 h
av

e 
an

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 r
at

io
n

al
e 

fo
r 

a 
p

o
si

ti
ve

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 r

et
u

rn



Ev
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

6

2
0

1
5

A
d

o
p

te
d

 F
u

n
ct

io
n

al
 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

2
0

1
7

Is
su

ed
 R

FI
 f

o
r 

R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es

2
0

1
8

Fu
n

d
ed

 P
ar

am
et

ri
c 

D
ef

en
si

ve
 E

q
u

it
y 

st
ra

te
gy

2
0

1
6

R
e-

ca
te

go
ri

ze
d

 A
FL

-C
IO

, 
W

el
lin

gt
o

n
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
as

 
R

is
k 

D
iv

er
si

fy
in

g 
as

se
ts

2
0

1
9

C
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g 

re
se

ar
ch

 o
n

 s
ev

er
al

 
p

ro
sp

ec
ti

ve
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s



C
u

rr
en

t 
A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

7

St
ra

te
gy

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 a
s 

o
f 

9
/3

0
/1

9
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
Ta

rg
et

 A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

A
FL

-C
IO

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Tr
u

st
3

.7
%

3
.5

%

W
el

lin
gt

o
n

 D
iv

er
si

fi
ed

 
In

fl
at

io
n

 H
ed

gi
n

g
2

.1
%

2
.0

%

Pa
ra

m
et

ri
c 

D
ef

en
si

ve
 

Eq
u

it
y

2
.2

%
2

.5
%

To
ta

l
8

.0
%

8
.0

%



C
C

C
ER

A
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
as

 o
f 

Se
p

te
m

b
er

 3
0

, 2
0

1
9

 (
N

et
)

8

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

1
 Y

e
ar

3
 Y

e
ar

s
5

 Y
e

ar
s

R
is

k 
D

iv
e

rs
if

yi
n

g
5

.4
%

1
.8

%
1

.1
%

A
FL

-C
IO

 H
IT

1
0

.5
%

3
.1

%
3

.6
%

W
el

lin
gt

o
n

 D
IH

3
.0

%
1

.0
%

-1
.4

%

Pa
ra

m
et

ri
c 

D
ef

en
si

ve
 E

q
u

it
y

-0
.1

%
-

-



C
C

C
ER

A
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce

9

A
s 

o
f 

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
1

9

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

M
e

as
u

re
m

e
n

t
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

 D
at

a
St

at
u

s

O
ff

se
t 

V
o

la
ti

lit
y 

in
 

G
ro

w
th

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
C

o
rr

el
at

io
n

0
.5

 o
ve

r 
tr

ai
lin

g 
5

 
ye

ar
s

M
ee

ti
n

g 
Ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s

Po
si

ti
ve

 R
ea

l R
et

u
rn

s
R

et
u

rn
s

Tr
ai

lin
g 

5
yr

 r
ea

l 
re

tu
rn

 o
f 

-1
.2

%
B

el
o

w
 E

xp
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s

H
ig

h
 L

iq
u

id
it

y
%

 o
f 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 t
h

at
 

ca
n

 b
e 

liq
u

id
at

ed
 

w
it

h
in

 9
0

 d
ay

s

1
0

0
%

M
ee

ti
n

g 
Ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s



R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

vs
. M

SC
I A

C
W

I

1
0

R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

tr
ai

lin
g 

o
n

e
-y

ea
r 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 v
s.

 
M

SC
I A

C
W

I 
(g

lo
b

al
 e

q
u

it
y)

 
in

d
ex

.

D
em

o
n

st
ra

te
s 

lo
w

 c
o

rr
el

at
io

n
 

an
d

 m
o

d
e

st
 

p
o

si
ti

ve
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce
 

h
is

to
ri

ca
lly

.



Fu
tu

re
 E

n
h

an
ce

m
en

ts

•
Id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
co

m
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
is

 a
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

C
C

ER
A

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

te
am

•
C

u
rr

en
tl

y 
re

se
ar

ch
in

g 
th

re
e 

ty
p

es
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
fo

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 in

cl
u

si
o

n
:

•
M

u
lt

i-
as

se
t 

ab
so

lu
te

 r
et

u
rn

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s

•
Fa

ct
o

r 
b

as
ed

 t
re

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

•
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

ri
sk

 p
re

m
ia

•
Ex

p
ec

t 
to

 f
u

n
d

 1
-2

 n
ew

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

b
y 

2
Q

2
0

1
1



In
ve

st
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
er

 D
is

cu
ss

io
n

•
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
m

an
ag

er
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n
•

C
h

an
g 

Su
h

, C
EO

 a
n

d
 C

o
-C

h
ie

f 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
,  

   
   

A
FL

-C
IO

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Tr
u

st

•
A

ge
n

d
a

•
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

te
am

, s
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
 a

t 
C

C
C

ER
A

•
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 o

f 
d

em
an

d
 f

o
r 

m
u

lt
i-

fa
m

ily
 p

ro
je

ct
s

•
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 o

f 
co

m
p

et
it

iv
e 

la
n

d
sc

ap
e 

fo
r 

d
eb

t 
p

ro
vi

d
er

s 

•
Q

&
A

 f
ro

m
 T

ru
st

ee
s

1
2



AF
L-

CI
O 

H
OU

SI
N

G 
IN

VE
ST

M
EN

T 
TR

US
T

Co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

Re
tu

rn
s ·

 U
ni

on
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Jo
bs

 · 
H

ou
si

ng
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
Oc

to
be

r 2
3,

 2
01

9

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/23/19Agenda Item#7b.



Fe
at

ur
es

 o
f t

he
 H

IT


$6
.6

 b
ill

io
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t g

ra
de

 fi
xe

d-
in

co
m

e 
po

rt
fo

lio


Op
en

-e
nd

 in
st

itu
tio

na
l c

om
m

in
gl

ed
 m

ut
ua

l f
un

d 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 In

ve
st

m
en

t C
om

pa
ny

 A
ct

 o
f 

19
40

 a
nd

 re
gu

la
te

d 
un

de
r t

he
 fe

de
ra

l s
ec

ur
iti

es
 la

w
s a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 th

e 
U.

S.
 S

ec
ur

iti
es

 a
nd

 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 C

om
m

is
si

on


M
on

th
ly

 u
ni

t v
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
in

co
m

e 
di

st
ri

bu
tio

n 
–

in
de

pe
nd

en
t t

hi
rd

-p
ar

ty
 p

ri
ci

ng
 


Re

co
rd

 o
f c

on
si

st
en

t a
nd

 c
om

pe
ti

tiv
e 

re
tu

rn
s


25

 o
ut

 o
f 2

6 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

e 
ye

ar
s o

ut
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
its

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

on
 a

 g
ro

ss
 b

as
is

, 1
6 

of
 th

os
e 

ye
ar

s 
on

 a
 n

et
 b

as
is


In

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y


W
ith

 it
s f

oc
us

 o
n 

hi
gh

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y 
m

ul
tif

am
ily

 m
or

tg
ag

e 
se

cu
ri

tie
s, 

th
e 

po
rt

fo
lio

 is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 g

en
er

at
e 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

ri
sk

 a
dj

us
te

d 
re

tu
rn

s v
er

su
s 

its
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k,
 th

e 
Bl

oo
m

be
rg

 B
ar

cl
ay

s 
US

 A
gg

re
ga

te
 B

on
d 

In
de

x,
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g:


a 

hi
gh

er
 in

co
m

e 


a 
su

pe
ri

or
 c

re
di

t p
ro

fil
e


a 

si
m

ila
r i

nt
er

es
t r

at
e 

ri
sk

H
IT

's 
ne

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r t

he
 1

-, 
3-

, 5
-, 

an
d 

10
-y

ea
r p

er
io

ds
 e

nd
ed

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9 

w
as

 1
0.

35
%

, 2
.7

5%
, 3

.2
4%

, a
nd

 3
.6

2%
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y. 

Th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
qu

ot
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

as
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 is

 n
o 

gu
ar

an
te

e o
f f

ut
ur

e r
es

ul
ts

. P
er

io
ds

 o
ve

r o
ne

 y
ea

r a
re

 a
nn

ua
liz

ed
. 

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 a

nd
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 v
al

ue
 w

ill
 fl

uc
tu

at
e s

o 
th

at
 u

ni
ts

 in
 th

e 
H

IT
, w

he
n 

re
de

em
ed

, m
ay

 b
e 

w
or

th
 m

or
e 

or
 le

ss
 th

an
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

co
st

. T
he

 H
IT

’s 
cu

rr
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ay

 b
e 

lo
w

er
 o

r h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
qu

ot
ed

. P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 
cu

rr
en

t t
o 

th
e 

m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 m
on

th
-e

nd
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e f
ro

m
 th

e 
H

IT
’s 

w
eb

sit
e 

at
 w

w
w

.a
flc

io
-h

it.
co

m
. G

ro
ss

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s d

o 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 H
IT

 
ex

pe
ns

es
.N

et
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s a
nd

 a
re

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s i

nv
es

to
rs

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e i

n
th

e 
H

IT
.I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
on

 p
ag

e 
1 

of
 th

e 
H

IT
’s 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
sp

ec
tu

s. 

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

As
of

Se
pt

em
be

r3
0,

20
19

,u
nl

es
so

th
er

w
ise

de
no

te
d

1



*L
et

te
r f

ro
m

 G
eo

rg
e 

M
ea

ny
, P

re
sid

en
t, 

AF
L-

CI
O,

 d
at

ed
 M

ar
ch

 2
3,

 1
96

4 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

es
ta

bl
ish

m
en

t o
f a

 M
or

tg
ag

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t T
ru

st
 

an
d 

Au
xi

lia
ry

 H
ou

sin
g 

Co
rp

or
at

io
n 

at
 p

.2
 (t

he
 “M

ea
ny

 L
et

te
r”

). 
 


Op

en
ed

 d
oo

rs
 in

 1
98

4 
(s

uc
ce

ss
or

 to
 th

e 
M

or
tg

ag
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t T

ru
st

, 
st

ar
te

d 
in

 1
96

5)
.


Cr

ea
te

d 
by

 th
e 

AF
L-

CI
O 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Co

un
ci

l u
nd

er
 P

re
si

de
nt

 G
eo

rg
e 

M
ea

ny
’s 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
.


Es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 a

nd
 a

ss
is

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f l

ow
er

 in
co

m
e 

ho
us

in
g 

w
hi

le
 cr

ea
tin

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

tr
ad

es


“A
 m

as
si

ve
 a

tt
ac

k 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 m
ee

t A
m

er
ic

a’
s t

re
m

en
do

us
 

un
m

et
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

”, 
Ge

or
ge

 M
ea

ny
*


10

0 
pe

rc
en

t u
ni

on
 la

bo
r 

re
qu

ir
em

en
t f

or
 a

ll 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
re

la
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.

H
is

to
ry

 o
f t

he
 H

IT

33
3 

H
ar

ri
so

n 
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o,
 C

A
El

ec
tc

he
st

er
 H

ou
si

ng
 C

o.
Qu

ee
ns

, N
Y

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

2

Po
tr

er
o 

La
un

ch
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o,

 C
A




H

IT
 in

ve
st

ed
 $

8.
4 

bi
lli

on
 n

at
io

na
lly

 s
in

ce
 in

ce
pt

io
n 

in
 1

98
4


Fi

na
nc

ed
 5

25
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 2

9 
st

at
es

 a
nd

 D
.C

.


$1
5.

5 
bi

lli
on

 o
f t

ot
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
co

m
bi

ne
d 

H
IT

 &
 th

ir
d-

pa
rt

y 
fin

an
ci

ng
)

*S
ou

rc
e:

 P
in

na
cl

e 
Ec

on
om

ic
s, 

In
c.,

 a
nd

 H
IT

.  J
ob

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 im

pa
ct

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
ar

e 
es

tim
at

es
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
us

in
g 

IM
PL

AN
, a

n 
in

pu
t-

ou
tp

ut
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

H
IT

 a
nd

 su
bs

id
ia

ry
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

Am
er

ic
a 

pr
oj

ec
t d

at
a.

  D
at

a 
cu

rr
en

t a
s o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 

30
, 2

01
9.

 E
co

no
m

ic
 im

pa
ct

 d
at

a 
is 

in
 2

01
8 

do
lla

rs
 a

nd
 a

ll 
ot

he
r f

ig
ur

es
 a

re
 n

om
in

al
.

H
IT

’s 
H

is
to

ry
 o

f I
m

pa
ct

 In
ve

st
in

g*

O
ut

pu
t

Re
su

lt
s

(1
98

4-
20

19
)

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
ro

je
ct

s 
52

5
To

ta
l H

ou
si

ng
 U

ni
ts

11
5,

48
4 

(6
7%

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
)

To
ta

l J
ob

s C
re

at
ed

18
4,

78
3

Un
io

n 
Jo

b 
Cr

ea
tio

n
17

1.
9

M
ill

io
n 

H
ou

rs
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Jo

b 
W

ag
es

$6
.1

 B
ill

io
n

To
ta

lE
co

no
m

ic
 Im

pa
ct

$3
0.

8 
Bi

lli
on

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

3



In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
M

aj
or

 H
IT

 M
ar

ke
ts

*

*S
ou

rc
e:

 P
in

na
cl

e E
co

no
m

ic
s, 

In
c.,

 a
nd

 H
IT

.  J
ob

 a
nd

 ec
on

om
ic

 im
pa

ct
 fi

gu
re

s a
re

 es
tim

at
es

 ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 u

sin
g 

IM
PL

AN
, a

n 
in

pu
t-

ou
tp

ut
 m

od
el

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
H

IT
 a

nd
 su

bs
id

ia
ry

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Am

er
ic

a 
pr

oj
ec

t d
at

a.
  T

he
 d

at
a 

is 
cu

rr
en

t a
s o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9.

  
Ec

on
om

ic
 im

pa
ct

 d
at

a 
is 

in
 2

01
8 

do
lla

rs
 a

nd
 a

ll 
ot

he
r f

ig
ur

es
 a

re
 n

om
in

al
. 

^ 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, B
ui

ld
in

g 
Am

er
ic

a 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

d 
N

ew
 M

ar
ke

t T
ax

 C
re

di
t (

N
M

TC
) a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s: 

$8
M

 in
 N

YC
, $

21
M

 in
 

Bo
st

on
, $

10
M

 in
 C

hi
ca

go
, $

14
3.

5M
 N

at
io

nw
id

e

AF
L-

CI
O

Ho
us

in
g

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

4

(1
98

4-
20

19
)

N
ew

 Y
or

k 
Ci

ty
Bo

st
on

Ch
ic

ag
o

Tw
in

 
Ci

ti
es

N
or

th
er

n 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a

M
aj

or
 

M
ar

ke
ts

Na
tio

nw
id

e

#
of

 P
ro

je
ct

s
67

33
51

62
23

23
6

52
5

H
IT

 In
ve

st
m

en
t

$1
.7

 
bi

lli
on

^
$5

64
.2

 
m

ill
io

n^
$6

38
.8

 
m

ill
io

n^
$9

75
.9

 
m

ill
io

n
$4

24
.8

 
m

ill
io

n
$4

.3
 

bi
lli

on
$8

.4
 

bi
lli

on
^

To
ta

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Co
st

$3
.6

bi
lli

on
$1

.4
bi

lli
on

$1
.5

 
bi

lli
on

$1
.5

bi
lli

on
$7

23
.1

 
m

ill
io

n
$8

.9
 

bi
lli

on
$1

5.
5

bi
lli

on

Un
io

n 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
H

ou
rs

20
.4

 
m

ill
io

n
11

.7
 

m
ill

io
n

17
.8

 
m

ill
io

n
15

.7
 

m
ill

io
n

9.
5 

m
ill

io
n

75
.0

 
m

ill
io

n
17

1.
9 

m
ill

io
n

To
ta

l J
ob

s 
Cr

ea
te

d
20

,8
34

13
,1

64
17

,7
18

18
,8

37
9,

67
0

80
,2

23
18

4,
78

3

H
ou

si
ng

 U
ni

ts
 

(%
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

)
41

,4
95

 
(9

3%
)

3,
95

9 
(8

8%
)

11
,7

27
(6

9%
)

9,
05

4
(4

9%
)

3,
76

1
(4

2%
)

69
,9

96
(8

0%
)

11
5,

48
4 

(6
7%

)

To
ta

l E
co

no
m

ic
 

Im
pa

ct
$3

.7
 

bi
lli

on
$2

.5
 

bi
lli

on
$2

.9
 

bi
lli

on
$3

.1
 

bi
lli

on
$1

.6
 

bi
lli

on
$1

3.
7 

bi
lli

on
$3

0.
8

bi
lli

on



Zv
ag

o 
at

 L
ak

e 
Su

pe
ri

or
Du

lu
th

, M
N

Th
e 

Fu
tu

re
 o

f H
IT

 u
nd

er
 N

ew
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p

Re
ne

w
ed

 C
om

m
itm

en
t t

o:


Lo

w
er

 C
os

ts


M

od
ify

 In
ve

st
m

en
t A

ut
ho

ri
tie

s I
nt

en
de

d 
To

 
H

el
p 

Ge
ne

ra
te

:


M

or
e 

Im
pa

ct
 In

ve
st

in
g


M

or
e 

Yi
el

d

N
or

th
 a

nd
 S

ou
th

 C
on

st
itu

tio
n

H
ob

ok
en

, N
J

Ga
te

w
ay

 N
or

th
Ly

nn
, M

A

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

5



In
ve

st
or

 P
ro

fil
e:

 3
74

 In
ve

st
or

s

Pl
an

 ty
pe

s i
nc

lu
de

 p
en

si
on

,  h
ea

lth
 &

 w
el

fa
re

, a
nn

ui
ty

, a
m

on
g 

ot
he

rs
.

$2
,1

29
.3

1
32

%

$1
,1

51
.2

8
18

%
$1

,0
19

.1
7

16
%

$1
,7

41
.2

1
26

%

$5
38

.3
1

8%

In
ve

st
or

s 
at

 a
 G

la
nc

e
(a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

20
19

)
$ 

in
 M

ill
io

ns

Bu
ild

in
g 

Tr
ad

es
 - 

Lo
ca

l (
25

3)

Bu
ild

in
g 

Tr
ad

es
 - 

N
at

io
na

l (
25

)

In
du

st
ri

al
 - 

Ot
he

r (
50

)

Pu
bl

ic
 (1

3)

Se
rv

ic
e 

(3
3)

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

6



Im
po

rt
an

tN
ot

ic
e.

Th
e

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

fu
rn

ish
ed

in
th

is
re

po
rt

is
pr

ov
id

ed
as

a
co

ur
te

sy
on

ly
to

as
sis

ty
ou

in
yo

ur
in

te
rn

al
re

vi
ew

sa
nd

do
es

no
tc

on
st

itu
te

a
st

at
em

en
to

fy
ou

ra
cc

ou
nt

.U
nl

es
se

xp
re

ss
ly

st
at

ed
ot

he
rw

ise
,t

he
H

IT
m

ak
es

no
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

,e
xp

re
ss

or
im

pl
ie

d,
as

to
th

e
ac

cu
ra

cy
of

th
e

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

be
in

g
re

po
rt

ed
.

In
ac

co
rd

an
ce

w
ith

th
e

In
ve

st
m

en
tC

om
pa

ny
Ac

to
f1

94
0,

as
am

en
de

d,
th

e
H

IT
fil

es
nu

m
er

ou
sr

ep
or

ts
w

ith
th

e
Se

cu
ri

tie
sa

nd
Ex

ch
an

ge
Co

m
m

iss
io

n,
in

cl
ud

in
g

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

on
its

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

in
its

an
nu

al
(a

ud
ite

d)
an

d
se

m
i-a

nn
ua

l(
un

au
di

te
d)

re
po

rt
sa

nd
its

co
m

pl
et

e
sc

he
du

le
of

po
rt

fo
lio

ho
ld

in
gs

on
Fo

rm
N

-P
OR

T.

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fo
r 

Pe
ri

od
s 

En
di

ng
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
30

, 2
01

9

1 
Ye

ar
3 

Ye
ar

5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
Si

nc
e 

In
ce

pt
io

n 
6/

19
91

N
et

 P
ar

tic
ip

an
tD

ol
la

r-
W

ei
gh

te
d

10
.6

1%
3.

03
%

3.
37

%
3.

66
%

4.
98

%

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f U

ni
ts

 H
el

d 
at

 9
/3

0/
20

19
:

$3
37

,4
80

,3
60

.5
0

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 S
in

ce
 In

ce
pt

io
n:

$4
57

,7
81

,5
42

.4
0

W
ith

dr
aw

al
s S

in
ce

 In
ce

pt
io

n:
$1

40
,2

00
,0

00
.0

0

In
co

m
e 

Ea
rn

ed
 S

in
ce

 In
ce

pt
io

n:
$1

48
,2

87
,9

08
.8

0

As
 o

f  
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9 

un
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
ise

 d
en

ot
ed

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

7

H
IT

's 
ne

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r t

he
 1

-, 
3-

, 5
-, 

an
d 

10
-y

ea
r p

er
io

ds
 e

nd
ed

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9 

w
as

 1
0.

35
%

, 2
.7

5%
, 3

.2
4%

, a
nd

 3
.6

2%
, 

re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y. 

Th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
qu

ot
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

as
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 is

 n
o 

gu
ar

an
te

e o
f f

ut
ur

e r
es

ul
ts

. P
er

io
ds

 o
ve

r o
ne

ye
ar

 
ar

e a
nn

ua
liz

ed
. I

nv
es

tm
en

t r
es

ul
ts

 a
nd

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 v

al
ue

 w
ill

 fl
uc

tu
at

e s
o 

th
at

 u
ni

ts
 in

 th
e 

H
IT

, w
he

n 
re

de
em

ed
, m

ay
 b

e 
w

or
th

 m
or

e
or

 
le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 co

st
. T

he
 H

IT
’s 

cu
rr

en
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ay
 b

e 
lo

w
er

 o
r h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

at
a 

qu
ot

ed
. P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

da
ta

 cu
rr

en
t t

o 
th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t m
on

th
-e

nd
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e f
ro

m
 th

e 
H

IT
’s 

w
eb

sit
e 

at
 w

w
w

.a
flc

io
-h

it.
co

m
. G

ro
ss

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s d

o 
no

t 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s.
N

et
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s a
nd

 a
re

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s 

in
ve

st
or

s e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
H

IT
.I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
on

 p
ag

e 
1 

of
 th

e 
H

IT
’s 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
sp

ec
tu

s. 



H
IT

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 g
en

er
at

e 
co

m
pe

ti
ti

ve
 re

tu
rn

s 

U
ni

on
 p

en
si

on
fu

nd
s 

in
ve

st
 

in
 H

IT

H
IT

 fi
na

nc
es

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
gu

ar
an

te
ed

 s
ec

ur
it

ie
s

U
ni

on
 w

or
ke

rs
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ge

ne
ra

te
 h

ou
si

ng
, j

ob
s,

 
ec

on
om

ic
 im

pa
ct

Th
e 

H
IT

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Cy
cl

e2

3

4

5

1

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

8

H
IT

:  
Cy

cl
e 

of
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
, R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t



Th
e 

H
IT

 s
ee

ks
 to

 o
ffe

r 
in

ve
st

or
s:


Co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
Re

tu
rn

s 


H

ig
h 

Cr
ed

it 
Qu

al
ity


H

ig
hl

y 
Li

qu
id

 In
ve

st
m

en
t


Va

lu
e 

Ad
de

d 
–

Co
lla

te
ra

l 
Be

ne
fit

s


Un

io
n 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Jo
bs


Af

fo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng


Ec

on
om

ic
 Im

pa
ct

 

Ga
bi

la
n

Pl
az

a
Sa

lin
as

, C
A

Ca
sa

 d
el

 P
ue

bl
o

Sa
n 

Jo
se

, C
A

Co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

Re
tu

rn
s a

nd
 C

ol
la

te
ra

l B
en

ef
its

 
th

ro
ug

h 
Di

re
ct

ly
 S

ou
rc

ed
 M

ul
tif

am
ily

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

9

Th
e 

Ci
vi

c
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o,

 C
A



H
IT

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 S

tr
at

eg
y

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

St
ra

te
gy

Co
re

 C
om

pe
te

nc
y


Ge

ne
ra

te
 co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
ri

sk
-a

dj
us

te
d 

fix
ed

-in
co

m
e 

to
ta

l r
et

ur
ns

 
ve

rs
us

 th
e 

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 B

ar
cl

ay
s U

S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e 

Bo
nd

 In
de

x.
 


Fa

ci
lit

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t f

or
 u

ni
on

 m
em

be
rs

 in
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
tr

ad
es

 a
nd

 re
la

te
d 

in
du

st
ri

es
.


En

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 a

nd
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 h

ou
si

ng
. 


Sp

ec
ia

liz
e 

in
 d

ir
ec

tly
 so

ur
ce

d 
m

ul
tif

am
ily

 M
BS

 th
at

 c
re

at
e 

jo
bs

 
an

d 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

.


M
ul

tif
am

ily
 M

BS
 te

nd
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

in
co

m
e 

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 o

th
er

 se
cu

ri
tie

s w
ith

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

cr
ed

it 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
 ri

sk
. 


Of

fe
r d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
be

ne
fit

s t
o 

in
ve

st
or

s b
y 

su
bs

tit
ut

in
g 

pr
ep

ay
m

en
t-

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
m

ul
tif

am
ily

 M
BS

 fo
r c

or
po

ra
te

s a
nd

 
so

m
e 

Tr
ea

su
ri

es
 in

 th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k.


Co

ns
tr

uc
t a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
a 

po
rt

fo
lio

 w
ith

: 


su
pe

ri
or

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y


hi
gh

er
 y

ie
ld


si

m
ila

r i
nt

er
es

t r
at

e 
ri

sk
 re

la
tiv

e 
to

 th
e 

Ba
rc

la
ys

 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

10



H
IT

 v
s. 

Be
nc

hm
ar

k:
 F

un
da

m
en

ta
ls

As
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9

Th
e

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n

of
th

e
HI

T
yi

el
d

he
re

in
re

pr
es

en
ts

a
w

id
el

y
ac

ce
pt

ed
po

rt
fo

lio
ch

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

ba
se

d
on

co
up

on
ra

te
an

d
cu

rr
en

tp
ri

ce
an

d
is

no
tc

ur
re

nt
yi

el
d

or
ot

he
rp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
da

ta
as

de
fin

ed
by

th
e

SE
C

in
Ru

le
48

2.

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

11

H
IT

Ba
rc

la
ys

 
Ag

g
AA

A 
Co

m
p.

 
H

IT
Ba

rc
la

ys
 

Ag
g

AA
A 

Co
m

p.
 

H
ig

he
r 

Cr
ed

it
 Q

ua
lit

y
Lo

w
er

 In
te

re
st

 R
at

e 
Ri

sk
U.

S.
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t/
 

Ag
en

cy
/A

AA
/C

as
h

94
.8

%
72

.0
%

10
0%

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Du

ra
tio

n
5.

50
5.

85
5.

02

A 
&

 B
el

ow
0.

46
%

24
.6

%
0%

Co
nv

ex
ity

0.
10

0.
10

-0
.0

3

H
ig

he
r 

Yi
el

d 
Si

m
ila

r
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t R
is

k

Cu
rr

en
t Y

ie
ld

 
3.

15
%

3.
01

%
2.

74
%

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
 

81
%

73
%

63
%

Yi
el

d 
to

 W
or

st
 

2.
50

%
2.

28
%

2.
01

%
N

o 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n

19
%

27
%

37
%



H
IT

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
el

at
iv

e 
to

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

Th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
qu

ot
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

as
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 is

 n
o 

gu
ar

an
te

e o
f f

ut
ur

e r
es

ul
ts

. P
er

io
ds

 o
ve

r o
ne

 y
ea

r a
re

 a
nn

ua
liz

ed
. 

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 a

nd
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 v
al

ue
 w

ill
 fl

uc
tu

at
e s

o 
th

at
 u

ni
ts

 in
 th

e 
H

IT
, w

he
n 

re
de

em
ed

, m
ay

 b
e 

w
or

th
 m

or
e 

or
 le

ss
 th

an
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

co
st

. T
he

 H
IT

’s 
cu

rr
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ay

 b
e 

lo
w

er
 o

r h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
qu

ot
ed

. P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 
cu

rr
en

t t
o 

th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t 

m
on

th
-e

nd
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e f
ro

m
 th

e 
H

IT
’s 

w
eb

sit
e 

at
 w

w
w

.a
flc

io
-h

it.
co

m
. G

ro
ss

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s d

o 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 H
IT

 
ex

pe
ns

es
.N

et
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s a
nd

 a
re

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s i

nv
es

to
rs

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e i

n
th

e 
H

IT
.I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
on

 p
ag

e 
1 

of
 th

e 
H

IT
’s 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
sp

ec
tu

s. 

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

12

8.51%

10.76%

3.15%

3.66%

4.05%

8.24%

10.35%

2.75%

3.24%

3.62%

8.52%

10.30%

2.92%

3.38%

3.75%

6.86%

9.34%

2.33%

2.88%

3.12%

0.
0%

2.
0%

4.
0%

6.
0%

8.
0%

10
.0

%

YT
D

 1
-y

ea
r

 3
-y

ea
r

 5
-y

ea
r

 1
0-

ye
ar

H
IT

 G
ro

ss
H

IT
 N

et
Ba

rc
la

ys
 A

gg
re

ga
te

AA
A 

 C
om

po
ne

nt
 B

ar
cl

ay
s A

gg
re

ga
te

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 T

ot
al

 R
et

ur
ns

 v
s.

 
Be

nc
hm

ar
k 

an
d 

AA
A 

Ba
rc

la
ys

 A
gg

re
ga

te
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 
As

 o
f S

ep
te

m
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

9



Av
er

ag
e 

An
nu

al
 T

ot
al

 R
et

ur
ns

 v
s. 

Be
nc

hm
ar

k

Th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
qu

ot
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

as
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 is

 n
o 

gu
ar

an
te

e o
f f

ut
ur

e r
es

ul
ts

. P
er

io
ds

 o
ve

r o
ne

 y
ea

r a
re

 a
nn

ua
liz

ed
. 

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 a

nd
 p

ri
nc

ip
al

 v
al

ue
 w

ill
 fl

uc
tu

at
e s

o 
th

at
 u

ni
ts

 in
 th

e 
H

IT
, w

he
n 

re
de

em
ed

, m
ay

 b
e 

w
or

th
 m

or
e 

or
 le

ss
 th

an
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

co
st

. T
he

 H
IT

’s 
cu

rr
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ay

 b
e 

lo
w

er
 o

r h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
qu

ot
ed

. P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 
cu

rr
en

t t
o 

th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t 

m
on

th
-e

nd
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e f
ro

m
 th

e 
H

IT
’s 

w
eb

sit
e 

at
 w

w
w

.a
flc

io
-h

it.
co

m
. G

ro
ss

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s d

o 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 H
IT

 
ex

pe
ns

es
.N

et
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s a
nd

 a
re

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s i

nv
es

to
rs

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e i

n
th

e 
H

IT
.I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t H
IT

 e
xp

en
se

s c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
on

 p
ag

e 
1 

of
 th

e 
H

IT
’s 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
sp

ec
tu

s. 

8.60%

12.04%

4.17%

4.59%

3.03%

5.08%

7.14%

5.68%

6.73%

6.62%

8.34%

4.71%

-1.95%

6.56%

1.58%

2.35%

3.58%

0.58%

8.21%

11.64%

3.78%

4.20%

2.64%

4.65%

6.70%

5.25%

6.28%

6.16%

7.86%

4.27%

-2.37%

6.10%

1.13%

1.94%

3.17%

0.16%

8.44%

10.25%

4.10%

4.34%

2.43%

4.33%

6.97%

5.24%

5.93%

6.54%

7.84%

4.22%

-2.02%

5.97%

0.55%

2.65%

3.54%

0.01%

-3
%

-1
%1%3%5%7%9%11
%

13
%

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

H
IT

 G
ro

ss
H

IT
 N

et
Ba

rc
la

ys
 A

gg
re

ga
te

Ca
le

nd
ar

 Y
ea

r 
Re

tu
rn

s 
as

 o
f  

Ye
ar

-e
nd

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

As
of

Se
pt

em
be

r3
0,

20
19

,u
nl

es
so

th
er

w
ise

de
no

te
d

13



H
ig

h 
Cr

ed
it 

Qu
al

ity
96

%
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t/
Ag

en
cy

/A
AA

/C
as

h 

38
.7

%

4.
7%

2.
3%

52
.9

%

0.
9%

0.
5%

Ca
sh

 &
 C

as
h 

Eq
ui

va
le

nt
s

AA
A

Ag
en

cy
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

Fa
nn

ie
 &

 F
re

dd
ie

)

US
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

Tr
ea

su
ry

, F
HA

 &
 

G
in

ni
e)

AA
 A

ve
ra

ge
 Q

ua
lit

y
(S

ta
te

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
on

ds
)

N
ot

 R
at

ed
 (D

ire
ct

 L
oa

ns
)Cr

ed
it

 Q
ua

lit
y*

 
As

 o
f S

ep
te

m
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

9

* B
as

ed
 o

n 
to

ta
l i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
fu

nd
ed

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

.

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

14



Ov
er

w
ei

gh
t t

o 
M

ul
tif

am
ily

 S
ec

to
r

75
%

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 

* B
as

ed
 o

n 
to

ta
l i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
fu

nd
ed

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

.
**

 In
cl

ud
es

 5
.5

8%
 F

N
 D

US
 S

AR
M

 a
llo

ca
tio

n

14
.5

%
0.

4% 3.
2%

11
.6

%

63
.1

%

1.
8%0.
9%4.

5%
Sh

or
t T

er
m

Tr
ea

su
ry

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n-

Re
la

te
d 

M
F 

M
BS

AA
A 

Pr
iv

at
e-

La
be

l 
CM

BS
   

   

30
-Y

ea
r S

F 
M

BS
 

Pe
rm

an
en

t M
F 

M
BS

**

15
-Y

ea
r S

F 
M

BS
 

AR
M

S/
flo

at
er

s 
SF

 M
BS

Se
ct

or
 A

llo
ca

ti
on

*
As

 o
f S

ep
te

m
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

9

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

15



M
ul

tif
am

ily
 F

oc
us

: A
tt

ra
ct

iv
e 

Sp
re

ad
s


Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n-
re

la
te

d
GN

M
A

M
BS

co
nv

er
t

to
pe

rm
an

en
t

M
BS

,
w

ith
th

e
po

te
nt

ia
l

fo
r

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
pr

ic
e

ap
pr

ec
ia

tio
n.


M

ul
tif

am
ily

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n-

re
la

te
d

lo
an

sp
re

ad
sr

em
ai

n
hi

gh
er

th
an

pe
rm

an
en

tl
oa

n
sp

re
ad

s
an

d
so

m
e

ot
he

rh
ig

h
cr

ed
it

qu
al

ity
op

tio
ns

pr
ov

id
in

g
be

tt
er

ri
sk

ad
ju

st
ed

in
co

m
e.

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

16

In
ve

st
m

en
t T

yp
e

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n

(Y
ea

rs
)

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Co

nv
ex

it
y

Yi
el

d 
(%

)

Sp
re

ad
 

to
 1

0-
Yr

 
(b

ps
)

10
 Y

ea
r U

ST
9.

09
0.

45
1.

68
%

0

GN
M

A 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n/
Pe

rm
an

en
t

9.
13

0.
49

3.
02

%
13

4

GN
M

A 
 P

er
m

an
en

t
8.

19
0.

39
2.

37
%

70

Ag
en

cy
 C

M
BS

 (g
nr

20
18

-8
5 

e)
9.

25
0.

99
2.

68
%

10
0

FN
M

A 
 M

ul
tif

am
ily

 1
0/

9.
5 

DU
S

7.
94

0.
38

2.
22

%
54

UM
BS

 3
.0

%
 3

0y
r M

BS
3.

25
-3

.3
4

2.
65

%
97

Go
ld

 (F
re

dd
ie

 M
ac

) 3
.0

%
 3

0y
r M

BS
3.

13
-3

.4
1

2.
58

%
90

GN
M

A 
3.

0%
 3

0y
r M

BS
3.

76
-1

.9
1

2.
41

%
73

Ba
rc

la
ys

 A
AA

 C
or

po
ra

te
 In

de
x

11
.4

6
2.

41
2.

51
%

83

So
ur

ce
: H

IT
 a

nd
 S

ec
ur

iti
es

 D
ea

le
rs

2040608010
0

12
0

14
0

16
0 Se

p-
17

M
ar

-1
8

Se
p-

18
M

ar
-1

9
Se

p-
19

Spreads  to 10-Year Treasury in Basis  Points

H
is

to
ri

ca
l M

ul
ti

fa
m

ily
 S

pr
ea

ds
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
7-

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
01

9

Gi
nn

ie
 M

ae
 P

er
m

an
en

t
Gi

nn
ie

 M
ae

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n/
Pe

rm
an

en
t

Fa
nn

ie
 M

ae
 M

ul
tif

am
ily

 1
0/

9.
5 

DU
S

As
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9,

 u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 n
ot

ed

In
ve

st
m

en
t C

om
pa

ri
so

n
As

 o
f S

ep
te

m
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

9



St
ro

ng
 D

em
an

d 
fo

r M
ul

tif
am

ily
 H

ou
si

ng

As
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9,

 u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 n
ot

ed


Re

nt
al

 v
ac

an
cy

 ra
te

s r
em

ai
ne

d 
be

lo
w

 5
%

 n
at

io
na

lly
, d

es
pi

te
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

ls
 o

f n
ew

 su
pp

ly
 in

 so
m

e 
m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 lo

w
er

 n
et

 a
bs

or
pt

io
n 

in
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 q
ua

rt
er

.


Re

nt
 g

ro
w

th
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 n

at
io

na
lly

, s
ho

w
in

g 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
f 4

.3
%

 a
nn

ua
lly

 in
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 
qu

ar
te

r o
f 2

01
9,

 co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 a
 y

ea
r e

ar
lie

r. 
 U

.S
. c

om
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

pr
ic

es
 ro

se
 6

.6
%

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
in

 A
ug

us
t.


St

ill
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
ac

ce
ss

 m
or

tg
ag

e 
cr

ed
it 

fo
r s

om
e 

si
ng

le
 fa

m
ily

 h
om

e 
bu

ye
rs

.


Th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 c

ri
si

s i
n 

al
m

os
t e

ve
ry

 m
et

ro
 m

ar
ke

t.


Ec

on
om

ic
, d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

nd
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

l t
re

nd
s c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
 su

pp
or

t t
he

 m
ul

tif
am

ily
 m

ar
ke

t. 

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

, R
ei

s; 
ch

ar
ts

, U
S 

Ce
ns

us
 B

ur
ea

u 
an

d 
H

av
er

 A
na

ly
tic

s (
ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r b
re

ak
s i

n 
da

ta
)

H
is

to
ri

ca
l H

om
eo

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
Ra

te
(p

er
ce

nt
) 

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

17

626364656667686970

Jun-65
Jun-67
Jun-69
Jun-71
Jun-73
Jun-75
Jun-77
Jun-79
Jun-81
Jun-83
Jun-85
Jun-87
Jun-89
Jun-91
Jun-93
Jun-95
Jun-97
Jun-99
Jun-01
Jun-03
Jun-05
Jun-07
Jun-09
Jun-11
Jun-13
Jun-15
Jun-17
Jun-19

0
20

0
40

0
60

0
80

0
1,

00
0

1,
20

0
1,

40
0

1,
60

0
1,

80
0

2,
00

0

1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 F

or
m

at
io

n 
(T

ho
us

an
ds

 o
f N

ew
 H

ou
se

ho
ld

s)
 



Ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l T

re
nd

s F
av

or
 O

ng
oi

ng
 D

em
an

d


Un

iq
ue

Qu
al

iti
es

Re
su

lt
in

On
go

in
g

Re
nt

al
Ap

ar
tm

en
tD

em
an

d


Fa
m

ily
Ch

oi
ce

s
Sh

ift
in

g.
In

20
18

le
ss

th
an

60
%

of
pe

op
le

ag
ed

25
to

34
liv

ed
w

ith
a

sp
ou

se
or

pa
rt

ne
r,

co
m

pa
re

d
to

80
%

in
19

67
.


Th

e
de

la
ye

d
ag

e
of

m
ar

ri
ag

e
de

la
ys

ho
m

e
pu

rc
ha

se
ch

oi
ce

s.


Li
vi

ng
w

ith
pa

re
nt

sl
on

ge
ra

sa
re

su
lt.


Fi

na
nc

ia
l

Co
nd

it
io

ns
D

is
fa

vo
r

O
w

ni
ng

.T
he

co
st

of
ho

m
eo

w
ne

rs
hi

p
co

nt
in

ue
s

to
in

cr
ea

se
,b

an
k

le
nd

in
g

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

co
nt

in
ue

to
be

tig
ht

an
d

st
ud

en
td

eb
tb

ur
de

ns
co

nt
in

ue
to

ri
se

.


20
17

Ra
te

s
of

ho
m

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p

fo
r

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
un

de
r

35
an

d
35

-4
4

ha
ve

de
cl

in
ed

by
7

an
d

10
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

po
in

ts
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y
si

nc
e

20
06

.


Li
fe

st
yl

e
Tr

en
ds

Fa
vo

r
U

rb
an

Li
vi

ng
.

Ac
co

rd
in

g
to

Pe
w

Re
se

ar
ch

,
88

%
of

m
ill

en
ni

al
s

liv
e

in
m

et
ro

po
lit

an
ar

ea
s.

W
ith

ur
ba

n
re

si
de

nt
so

ve
ra

ll
fa

vo
ri

ng
re

nt
in

g
ov

er
ow

ni
ng

,c
ho

ic
es

of
lo

ca
tio

n
w

ill
al

so
in

he
re

nt
ly

in
cr

ea
se

re
nt

al
de

m
an

d.

Ge
ne

ra
ti

on
Ye

ar
s 

Bo
rn

Ag
es

Po
pu

la
ti

on
%

 o
f U

S 
Po

pu
la

ti
on

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
Z

19
97

-2
01

2
7-

22
73

.6
 m

ill
io

n
21

.5
%

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
Y 

(M
ill

en
ni

al
s)

19
81

-1
99

6
23

-3
8

79
.4

 m
ill

io
n

24
.7

%

Ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
X

19
65

-1
98

0
39

-5
4

65
.7

 m
ill

io
n

20
.3

%

Ba
by

 B
oo

m
er

s
19

46
-1

96
4

55
-7

3
75

.5
 m

ill
io

n
23

.5
%

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

18

So
ur

ce
: T

ab
le

, P
ew

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
Ce

nt
er

, U
S 

Ce
ns

us
, K

no
em

a
m

on
th

ly
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
es

tim
at

es
; U

S 
Ce

ns
us

 B
ur

ea
u;

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.in

ve
st

op
ed

ia
.c

om
/n

ew
s/

re
al

-r
ea

so
ns

-m
ill

en
ni

al
s-

ar
en

t-
bu

yi
ng

-h
om

es
/


Yo

ut
h

Bo
om

w
ill

La
st

fo
rN

ex
tT

hr
ee

De
ca

de
s


W

ith
15

3
m

ill
io

n
in

Ge
ne

ra
tio

ns
Y

an
d

Z,
46

.2
%

of
th

e
US

po
pu

la
tio

n
is

at
or

be
lo

w
th

e
pr

im
e

ag
e

fo
r

re
nt

in
g.

https://www.investopedia.com/news/real-reasons-millennials-arent-buying-homes/


Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 a

nd
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 H
ou

si
ng

 D
em

an
d 


Re

nt
al

H
ou

si
ng

co
st

s
ha

ve
gr

ow
n

m
uc

h
fa

st
er

th
an

w
ag

es


A
w

or
ke

r
ea

rn
in

g
th

e
fe

de
ra

lm
in

im
um

w
ag

e
of

$7
.2

5
an

ho
ur

w
ou

ld
ne

ed
to

w
or

k
ne

ar
ly

12
7

ho
ur

s
a

w
ee

k
to

af
fo

rd
a

m
od

es
tt

w
o-

be
dr

oo
m

re
nt

al
.


11

m
ill

io
n

Am
er

ic
an

sp
ay

m
or

e
th

an
½

th
ei

ri
nc

om
es

fo
rr

en
t.


Su

pp
ly

ha
s

no
tk

ep
tu

p
w

it
h

de
m

an
d,

pu
sh

in
g

re
nt

sh
ig

he
r


Lo

w
va

ca
nc

y
ra

te
s

ha
ve

ke
pt

th
e

pr
es

su
re

on
re

nt
s.

Re
nt

al
va

ca
nc

ie
s

in
94

of
th

e
15

0
m

et
ro

st
ra

ck
ed

by
Re

al
Pa

ge
fe

ll
fr

om
th

e
be

gi
nn

in
g

of
20

18
to

th
e

be
gi

nn
in

g
of

20
19

.


Un
its

re
nt

in
g

fo
r

le
ss

th
an

$8
00

fe
ll

by
1

m
ill

io
n

or
4.

9%
in

20
16

-2
01

7
al

on
e,

de
cr

ea
se

d
ev

er
y

ye
ar

si
nc

e
20

11
,b

ri
ng

in
g

th
e

to
ta

ln
et

de
cl

in
e

to
4

m
ill

io
n

(1
7%

).


Su
bs

id
ie

s
an

d
re

so
ur

ce
s

ha
ve

no
tk

ep
tp

ac
e

w
it

h
de

m
an

d
–

su
pp

ly
/d

em
an

d
m

is
m

at
ch

co
nt

in
ue

st
o

gr
ow


In

ad
eq

ua
te

fu
nd

in
g

fo
r

H
ou

si
ng

Ch
oi

ce
Vo

uc
he

rs
an

d
ot

he
r

pu
bl

ic
ho

us
in

g
pr

og
ra

m
s

m
ea

n
th

at
on

ly
1

in
4

el
ig

ib
le

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
re

ce
iv

es
fe

de
ra

lr
en

ta
la

ss
is

ta
nc

e.


37
af

fo
rd

ab
le

an
d

av
ai

la
bl

e
un

its
fo

re
ve

ry
10

0
ex

tr
em

el
y

lo
w

-in
co

m
e

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
.


O

pp
or

tu
ni

ti
es

to
pr

es
er

ve
ag

in
g

ho
us

in
g

st
oc

k


Ab
ou

t
10

,0
00

pr
op

er
tie

s
bu

ilt
w

ith
lo

w
-in

co
m

e
ho

us
in

g
ta

x
cr

ed
its

(L
IH

TC
s)

ha
ve

re
ac

he
d

th
ei

r1
5th

ye
ar

in
op

er
at

io
n.


Ge

ne
ra

te
sd

em
an

d
fo

rr
ef

in
an

ci
ng

an
d

ca
pi

ta
lf

or
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n.

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

19

So
ur

ce
: N

at
io

na
l L

ow
 In

co
m

e 
H

ou
sin

g 
Co

al
iti

on
, O

ut
 o

f R
ea

ch
 2

01
9;

 Jo
in

t C
en

te
r f

or
 H

ou
sin

g 
St

ud
ie

s, 
St

at
e 

of
 th

e 
N

at
io

n’
s H

ou
sin

g 
St

oc
k 

20
19

; N
at

io
na

l a
lli

an
ce

 to
 e

nd
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s; 

N
at

io
na

l L
ow

 In
co

m
e 

H
ou

sin
g 

Co
al

iti
on

, T
he

 G
ap

: A
 S

ho
rt

ag
e o

f A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

om
es

, 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

9;
 h

tt
ps

:/
/w

w
w

.h
ou

sin
gf

in
an

ce
.c

om
/f

in
an

ce
/m

ee
t-

th
e-

ch
al

le
ng

e-
of

-a
gi

ng
-a

ffo
rd

ab
le

-h
ou

sin
g_

o

https://www.housingfinance.com/finance/meet-the-challenge-of-aging-affordable-housing_o


In
te

re
st

 R
at

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t
US

 a
nd

 g
lo

ba
l y

ie
ld

s f
el

l i
n 

un
is

on
 re

fle
ct

in
g 

lo
w

er
 g

ro
w

th
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 so

ft 
in

fla
tio

n 
pr

es
su

re
s

Yi
el

d 
Cu

rv
e

M
ar

ke
t I

nf
la

tio
n 

Ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

20


In

te
re

st
 ra

te
s o

n 
th

e 
lo

ng
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 y
ie

ld
 cu

rv
e 

ha
ve

 fa
lle

n 
dr

am
at

ic
al

ly
 o

ve
r t

he
 y

ea
r a

s t
he

 m
ar

ke
t e

xp
ec

ts
 

th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l R

es
er

ve
 to

 e
as

e 
m

on
et

ar
y 

po
lic

y 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 u

nc
er

ta
in

 g
lo

ba
l g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 fa

lli
ng

 in
fla

tio
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

Ec
on

om
ic

 In
di

ca
to

rs
12

/3
1/

20
18

6/
30

/2
01

9
9/

30
/2

01
9

GD
P 

(s
ea

so
na

lly
 a

dj
. a

nn
ua

l r
at

e)
2.

2%
2.

0%
n/

a

Un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t R
at

e
3.

9%
3.

7%
3.

5%

Co
re

 In
fla

tio
n 

(P
CE

)
Ye

ar
 o

ve
r Y

ea
r

2.
0%

1.
6%

 
1.

8%
 

(@
 8

/2
01

9)

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Fe

de
ra

l F
un

ds
 R

at
e

2.
3%

2.
4%

1.
9%

So
ur

ce
: B

ur
ea

u 
of

 E
co

no
m

ic
 A

na
ly

sis
, B

ur
ea

u 
of

 L
ab

or
 S

ta
tis

tic
s, 

Fe
de

ra
l R

es
er

ve
 B

oa
rd

2.
48

8
2.

51
1

2.
58

6
2.

68
4

3.
01

5

2.
26

0
2.

23
3

2.
31

3
2.

40
5

2.
81

4

1.
62

2
1.

54
4

1.
61

3
1.

66
5

2.
11

1

1.
5

1.
7

1.
9

2.
1

2.
3

2.
5

2.
7

2.
9

3.
1

2
5

7
10

30

12
/3

1/
20

18
3/

31
/2

01
9

9/
30

/2
01

9

1.
2

1.
3

1.
4

1.
5

1.
6

1.
7

1.
8

1.
9

2

1
1.

2
1.

4
1.

6
1.

82
2.

2
2.

4
2.

6
2.

83 Fe
b-

19
M

ar
-1

9
Ap

r-
19

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n-

19
Ju

l-1
9

Au
g-

19
Se

p-
19

10
-Y

ea
r T

re
as

ur
y 

Yi
el

d
5x

5 
Ye

ar
 B

re
ak

ev
en

 In
fla

tio
n

As
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9,

 u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 n
ot

ed



M
ar

ke
t O

ut
lo

ok


Sl
ow

in
g

gl
ob

al
gr

ow
th

an
d

el
ev

at
ed

ge
op

ol
iti

ca
lu

nc
er

ta
in

tie
s

fr
om

bo
th

w
ith

in
th

e
US

an
d

ab
ro

ad
w

ill
co

nt
in

ue
to

ch
al

le
ng

e
th

e
ec

on
om

ic
gr

ow
th

ou
tlo

ok
.


Ce

nt
ra

l
ba

nk
s

ar
ou

nd
th

e
gl

ob
e

ha
ve

ea
se

d
m

on
et

ar
y

po
lic

y
in

re
sp

on
se

to
do

w
ns

id
e

gr
ow

th
ri

sk
s.

Th
e

EC
B

an
d

th
e

Fe
d

re
ce

nt
ly

cu
t

ra
te

s
w

ith
th

e
EC

B
al

so
st

ar
tin

g
QE

.
M

ar
ke

t
an

d
an

al
ys

ts
ar

e
ex

pe
ct

in
g

fu
rt

he
r

po
lic

y
ea

si
ng

to
su

pp
or

tg
ro

w
th

fa
ci

ng
su

bd
ue

d
in

fla
tio

n
de

sp
ite

a
he

al
th

y
la

bo
rm

ar
ke

t.


M

aj
or

un
ce

rt
ai

nt
y

in
ge

op
ol

iti
ca

lr
is

ks
an

d
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
in

ca
pi

ta
lm

ar
ke

tp
ri

ci
ng

w
ill

le
ad

to
fu

tu
re

el
ev

at
ed

vo
la

til
ity

.
Pa

th
of

in
te

re
st

ra
te

s
co

ul
d

be
gr

ea
tly

ef
fe

ct
ed

by
ou

tc
om

es
in

tr
ad

e
po

lic
y,

bu
ts

tr
uc

tu
ra

li
ss

ue
s

in
th

e
gl

ob
al

ec
on

om
y

ov
er

th
e

lo
ng

er
ru

n
ar

e
lik

el
y

ke
ep

ra
te

sn
ea

rh
is

to
ri

cl
ow

s.


Fo

re
ig

n
so

ve
re

ig
n

de
bt

yi
el

ds
in

de
ve

lo
pe

d
ec

on
om

ie
s

ha
ve

hi
ta

ll-
tim

e
no

m
in

al
lo

w
s

(G
er

m
an

y,
Fr

an
ce

,
Sw

ed
en

)
fu

rt
he

r
si

gn
al

in
g

so
ft

in
fla

tio
n

an
d

gr
ow

th
gl

ob
al

ly
.T

he
re

is
ov

er
$1

6
tr

ill
io

n
of

bo
nd

sw
ith

ne
ga

tiv
e

yi
el

ds
w

or
ld

w
id

e.


Gr

ow
in

g
ri

sk
s

of
re

ce
ss

io
n

co
nt

in
ue

w
ith

m
an

y
to

p
ec

on
om

is
ts

in
cr

ea
si

ng
th

ei
r

pr
ob

ab
ili

ty
in

th
e

ne
ar

-te
rm

.

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

21



w
w

w
.a

flc
io

-h
it

.c
om

 

AF
L-

CI
O

 H
ou

si
ng

 In
ve

st
m

en
t T

ru
st

24
01

 P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
Av

en
ue

, N
W

, S
ui

te
 2

00
W

as
hi

ng
to

n,
 D

C 
20

03
7 

 
(2

02
) 3

31
-8

05
5

Ch
an

g 
Su

h,
 C

FA
, C

EO
/C

o-
Ch

ie
f P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
cs

uh
@

af
lc

io
-h

it.
co

m

AF
L-

CI
O

H
ou

si
ng

In
ve

st
m

en
tT

ru
st

22

In
ve

st
or

s
sh

ou
ld

co
ns

id
er

th
e

H
IT

’s
in

ve
st

m
en

t
ob

je
ct

iv
es

,
ri

sk
s

an
d

ex
pe

ns
es

ca
re

fu
lly

be
fo

re
in

ve
st

in
g.

A
pr

os
pe

ct
us

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
m

or
e

co
m

pl
et

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
m

ay
be

ob
ta

in
ed

fr
om

th
e

H
IT

by
ca

lli
ng

th
e

M
ar

ke
tin

g
an

d
In

ve
st

or
Re

la
tio

ns
De

pa
rt

m
en

t
co

lle
ct

at
20

2-
33

1-
80

55
or

by
vi

ew
in

g
th

e
H

IT
’s

w
eb

sit
e

at
w

w
w

.a
flc

io
-h

it.
co

m
.

Th
e

pr
os

pe
ct

us
sh

ou
ld

be
re

ad
ca

re
fu

lly
be

fo
re

in
ve

st
in

g.
Th

is
do

cu
m

en
t

co
nt

ai
ns

fo
re

ca
st

s,
es

tim
at

es
,o

pi
ni

on
s,

an
d/

or
ot

he
r

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

th
at

is
su

bj
ec

tiv
e.

St
at

em
en

ts
co

nc
er

ni
ng

ec
on

om
ic

,f
in

an
ci

al
,o

r
m

ar
ke

tt
re

nd
s

ar
e

ba
se

d
on

cu
rr

en
tc

on
di

tio
ns

,w
hi

ch
w

ill
flu

ct
ua

te
.T

he
re

is
no

gu
ar

an
te

e
th

at
su

ch
st

at
em

en
ts

w
ill

be
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

un
de

r
al

lm
ar

ke
t

co
nd

iti
on

s,
es

pe
ci

al
ly

du
ri

ng
pe

ri
od

s
of

do
w

nt
ur

n.
It

sh
ou

ld
no

tb
e

co
ns

id
er

ed
as

in
ve

st
m

en
ta

dv
ic

e
or

as
a

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

of
an

y
ki

nd
.


	Agenda 10.23.19
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7



